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WESTEAN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.
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CERTIFIED TRUE cCoPY OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF
MRECTORS OF WESTERM INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED AT ITS BOARD MEETING
HELD ON 21" SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 2:50 PM. AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700001

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 230 o 232 of the Cormpanies Act, 2013 ('the
Aot} and g8 other applicable provislons of the Act end the rules framed thersundes, 2s may be
applicanles, the Securties end Ewxchange Board of Indla (Listing Obligatone end Disclosure
Fequirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations’), Securities and Exchanga Board of Indin Mastar
Circular No. SEBVHO/CFD/DIL V/CIR/P2021/0000000665, dated 23™ November, 2021 (including, in each
case, any emandment(s), statulory medification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the fima being In forcs), and any
ather spplicable provisions, if any, resd with the relevant clawsas of the mamorandum of associalion and
arfickes of ssaociation of Weatem Indla Commercial Company Limited (hereinafter refered io as 'the
Transfaror Company’ or the "‘Company’ or ‘Western India) and subject to tha: (a) approvals of the
shamsholgers, secured and unsecured craditors of tha Company (F any) and N.B.LIndustral Finance
Company Limited (hereinafter refarred to as ‘the Transferes Company' or ‘N_B. Indusiral’) {if any); (b)
spproval of tha Nationsl Company Law Trbunal, Kekata Bench ('NCLTY); {c) appravel of the Reserve
Bank of india (RBI') (as applicable); (d) no objections ! chsarvation lattar of the National Stook Exchange
of Indin Limitad (NSE" and the Calcutta Slock Exchange Limited {'CSE'] (collectively refarrad 1o as
‘Block Exchanges’); and (a) approvals from such oiher perscns or Govemmantal authorifies aa may be
gt out in the Scheme of Amalgamalion and subject to such conditions and modifications 88 may be
prescribed or imposed by any Govemmental authorities while granting such approvale, ang upon Laking
note of. (ij the valuation report dated 21 September, 2022 (Valuation Reporl) provided by RESA
Vailuation Advisors LLP, a Registerad Valuer, thal datermines the share exchange ratlo under the
Scheme, and (i} other relevant documents placed bedore the board of drectors ('Board’) of the Compsny,
the approval of the Boarz of the Company be and Is hereby accorded to the Schome of

[Beheme’) amongst the Company and the Transferes Company, and their respective sharahalders and
credilore, 8s placed before the Board, for inter aka the following as sat aut in the Schama:

® The smaigamation of tha Company with lhe Transfaree Company and dissolution of the
Company withow winding up:

b Cancellation of the share certificates, if any, and / or the shares in alsctranic form represanting
the sharea held by the Transfarea Company i1 1he Company;

c fesusnce of 4,808,044 equity shares of the Transferez Company lo the equity shareholders
{excant tha Transferes Company) of the Company in accordance with the Ein.:g'rg :

d Transfar of authorized share cagital of the Comgparry to the Tranalersa Company;

&, t:i;gg equity shares of ihe Transferes Company Issued to the shurehokiers of Company on

f. Varous other matters incidental, consequential or ctherwise intsgrally connectad therawith,
pursuant to eactons 230 1o 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companias Act. 2013 (the
Act’) in the manner provided for In tha Schame.
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o
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the report of the Augt Commiites dated 21" September, 2022,
recommending the draft Schene, taking into consideration, intar alia, the Vaation Report, as placed
befors the Board be and is hareby acceptad and tekan on racond.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the report of the Board dated 21" September, 2022 In terms of Section
232(2yic) of tha Act, as placad before the Beard, be and i harety scoepted and takan on record and thal
the same be signed on bohalf of the Board by any of the directors of the Company,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, NSE be and heraby appointed as the Designated Siock Exchange for the
purposes of the Schema and for coordinating with SEBI In terma of SEB| Master Circular Number
SEBIHOMCFIVDIL1/CIR/P2021/0000000885 dated 23™ Novembar, 2021, issued by SEB| and applicabls
Lisking Reguiations

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the direstors of the Comgany, and Ghanshyam Mahia, Company
Becretary and Complianca Qfficar of the Company (callactively referred to a5 'Authorlzed Persone’) be
and 8re hereby ssverally aulhorlzed io teke all sctions and decide &l melters relaling to and /| or
incidental 1o the Scheme andlor necessary or desirable for gving effect to the Schams, incisding bul not
[imitad:

& o make any aiterations, changes, or modfications o the Scheme, ss may be expedient or
NOCessAry,

b, tofie appropriate applicationis), documents, patitions, filings, affidavits, letters or writings bafore
tha NCLT, or such other appropriaie authorities seeking direclions ag 1o convening | dispensing
with tha meeting of the sharohoiders, secured or ursecured credifors of the Company and,
wnare nacessary, to iake sieps to convene and hold such meetings as per the diractions of the
MCLT or such other apgropriste authority;

. tofile ony affidavits, petitions, pleadings, applicaions, ofders, forms or raports befora the NCLT,
Stock Ewchanges, RBEI or any statulory or reguistory authority inciuding the Regstrar of
Companies, as may be necessary, In connection with tha Scheme andior In connection with the
senction thereof, and to do all such acts, deads or things @8 may be desmed necassary or
desirable in connection therewith or incidanial thereto;

d. to sign all spplications. afidevits, petitons, pleadings, documents, filings, latters or writings
relating to the Schemsa, and regresent the Company before the NCLT, Siock Exchanges, REl
and any other regulatory muthorties in relafion to any matter pertaining to the Scheme or
dalagate such autharity to any cther person by a valid power of attorney:

2. loengage, dismiss or change coursals, advocates, solciors, valuers and ofher professionals in
connection with the Schame;

f.  tosign and execute vakalatnama wheraver necessary, and slgn and issus public advertisaments
and nofices in connaction with the Bchame;

8- Lo settle any question or aifficulty thal may arise with regard 1o the implamantation of the above
Scheme, and to give sffect to the above ragolution;

®
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h. toobtaln approval from the NCLT, Stock Exchanges. RBI and such other authorities and parties
Insluding the shareholdsre, crediters end lenders as may be considered necessary, for the
approval and sanction of the Schema;

10 Incur axpEnsss 83 may be necessany o give affedt to the Scheme, including paymant of fess
(o allorneys, counsels and cther sxpenses (such as stamp duty and other applieabls texag),

J %o do all further mcte, deeds, matters and things &3 may bé necassary, proper or expedient to
gh'e affect to the Schame and for matiers connacied therewith or incidartal thereto;

k. o debsgate all ar any of tha above-mentioned powers to any othar perscn.

RE30OLVED FURTHER THAT the common seal of the Company, i required, be affieed o relavant
dozienenis wharewer deamed necassary, as per the provisions of aricles of associalion of the Cormgany
and In pressnce of any one of the above Authorized Persans and that the commaon seal ba moved from
ihe ragsterad offica, I requined.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT eny one of the directors of the Company and the Company Secreiary be
and are hereby severally authorized to sign any copy of this resclution as & certified true copy thareof and
furndah the same to whomaoever concamad,”

CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE COPY
For Western Indla Commercial Company Limited,

s Y

MName: Bubhas Jajoo
Designation: Chaimman

Date; 21* Saptember, 2022
Place: KOLKATA
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF M.BE.LINDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED AT (TS BOARD MEETING
HELD ON 21" SEFTEMBER, 2022 AT 3:30 P.M. AT 21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700001

“RESDLVED THAT pursuant lo lhe proviaions of sactions 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (ha
Act) and sll other spplicable provisions of the Act, and the rules framed thereunder, as may be
applicable, tha Securltims =nd Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations'], Securities anr.' Exchange Board of india Master
Circular No. SEBYHOICFDVDIL1/CIR/P202 10000000888, dalad 23™ Nevember, 2021 {including, in each
cage, any amandment(s), statuteny madification{s) or re-enactmant(s) for the tima being in force), and any
other applicable provisions, £ eny, read with the relevant clauses of the mamomandum of associstion and
articles of association of N8I Industial Finance Company Limitad (the ‘Company’) and subjact ta the: {a}
spprovals of the aharsholders, secined and unseourad credifors of the Company (if any) and Wastam
india Commersial Company Limiled (hersinafter referred to a& “the Transferor Compary’ or ‘Westam
Indiz) {if any): (b} approval of tha National Company Lew Tribungl, Kolkata Bench {‘'NCLT'); (o) approval
of the Resarve Bank of India ('RBI') (a1 applicable); {d) no chjeclions | observation letter of the National
Btock Exchanges of India Limited {'MSE') and the Calcutta Stock Exghange Limited {collectively refermad to
as ‘Slock Exchanges'); and {2) approvels from such other psrsons or Governmental authorlies aa may be
got out i tha Schame and & fovsuch conditions and modifications a8 may be prascribed or Imposed
by mny Governmental authorties whils granting such epprovals, and upon taking note of: () the valualion
repert dated 21" Seplermber, 2022 (‘Valuation Report] provided by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP, 8
Ragistered Valuar, thal determines the share exchange rallo undet the Schame, and (i) other refevan
documents placed bafora the board of drectors ('Board’) of the Company, the approvel of the Board of
tha Company be and s hereby accorded to the Scheme of Amalgamation (‘Schema'] amongst he
Trangferor Company and the Company, Bnd thair respective sharsholders and creditars, 88 placed before
the Board, for Inter alla the folowing as sat aut in the Scheme:

a, The ameigemation of tha Trensferor Company with the Compeny and dizsoluilon of the
Transfaror Company without winding up;

b. Cancalation of the shara cedificates, If any, and / or tve shares in elecironic form representing
the sharea held by the Company In the Transferor Company;

g, lssuance of 408,044 equity shares =f the Company 1o the equity shamholders (sxcept the
Company] of the Transferor Company in accardance with the Scheme;

d. Transfer of authorired share capital of the Transferor Company to the Transferes Company,

B thtpg of Emﬂw shares of the Company issusd to tha ahareholdera of the Transferor Company
on the NGE;

f  ‘Werous ofher mafiers incdental consequantial or otherwizs Integraly connected thesewdth,
pursuant to sections 230 to 232 and cther mlevant provisions of the Companias Act, 2013 ('the
Aot In the manner provided for in the Schema.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the certificute issued by Chaturvedi & Company, Statutory Auditor of the
Company certifying the sccounting treatment cantained in the draft Schame I8 in compliance with all
accounling stendards, as placed befors the Board, and Inltiated by the Chalrman for the purposes of
iantification, be and is hereby accapted snd approved,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the report of the Audit Committee daled 21" Seplember, 2022
recommending the draft Scheme, taking Into considaration, inter alia, the Valuation Report, s placed
bafora tha Board ba &nd is hereby accepted and taken on racord,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the repert of the Board dated 21% Seplember, 2022 in tarms of section
232(2Yc) of the Act, aa placed before the Board, be and is hereby accepled and taken on record and that
the sarme be signed on bahalf of the Board by any of the dreciom of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, NSE be and hereby eppointed as the Designated Siock Exchange for ths
purposes of the Scheme and for coordinating with SEBI in terms of SEBI Master Chroular Number
SEBVHOICFDIDIL1/ACIFAPI2021/0000000865 dated 23™ Navember, 2021, ssued by SEB! and applicable
Listing Regulations.

RESCOLVED FURTHER THAT any of ihe direciors of the Comparny, Mana Kumer Pesar], Vice Presideni,
8 P. Kumer, Chiaf Financlal Officer of the Company and Ashish Kedla, Company Secratary and
Comglianca Officer of the Company (collectivaly referred to as ‘Authorized Persons’) be and are harsby
savaraly authodzed 1o fake all actions ard decide all maitera relating %o and { or incidental to the Bchemae
andior necassary or dasirable for glving effect to the Scheme, ncluding but not limited:

a. o make eny alterstions, changes, or modifications to the Scheme, as may be expediant o
NEnCaE sy

b. o file sppropriate application(s), documents, petitione, filings, aftidavils, letters or writings before
the NCLT, or such ofhar appropriats suthorities seeking directions as lo convening / dispanaing
with tha mesting of the shareholders, secwed or wnsecured creditors of the Company and,
where necassary, in iake slaps fo convene and hold such meetings &8 par the directions of the
NCLT ¢r such other appropriste authority:

¢. tofile any affidavits, patitions, plescings. applicatinne, pedars, forma of reports befora tha NOLT,
Stocx Exchenges, RBI or any statuiony or requistory mwihority neluding the Rogistar of
Companies, a8 mey be nepessaly, in connedtion with the Scheme andior in connaction with tha
sanstion thereof, and 1o do all such acts, deeds or things as may be deemed necessary or
dasirabla In cannection thesawithoor Incidentsl thereta:

d. o sign all spplicationa. affdavile, petitions, plaadings, documents, flings, lefters or wilings
relating to the Schemas, and mpiesent the Company before the NCLT, Stock Exchanges, RBI
and any other regulsiory authorities in refation to any matter perfainiyg to the Scheme or
delegate such authorlly fo any other person by @ valid power of attormey;

& ipengage, diam@s or change counsels, advecates, sollcilors, velusns and other professionala in
connection with the Schame;
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f. o sign and execite vakalatnama wherever necaseary, and sign and issus publc adverisements
and notices in connection with the Schame;

g (o satie any gquestion or difficulty that may ariss with regard to the implamentation of the above
Scheme, and ta give affect to the above resciition,

h.  to eblein spproval from tha NGLT, Stock Exchanges, RE| and such other authorities and partias
inclding the sharenoldors, creditors and leriders as may be conskiered necessary, for the
approvel and sanclion of tha Schama;

. to incur expenses as may be necessary to give effect to the Scheme, nduding payment of fees
to attorneys, counsels and ofher expenses (such as stamp duty end other applicabile taxes),

| to do all further scls, deeds, matters and thinge as may be necessary, proper or axpediant to
give effect to the Schema and for matters connectad therswith or incidental thereto;

k. to delegale all or any of the sbove-mentioned powars 10 any oines person,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the common seal of the Company, if required, be affixed lo relevant
documeants wheraver deemed necessary, 8s per the pravisions of arlicies of association of the Company
and in presence of any cne of the above Authorized Perscns and that the common seal be moved from
the mpisterad affics, if reguived.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the directors of the Company and the Company Secretary be
and are hereby sevarally authorized to sign any copy of thia reselulion as & cartified trus copy thereof and
furnish the same to whomsoayar cancermed.”

CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE COPY
For N.B.LINDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Brytaiata Kt
Mame: Ashish Kedia
Designation: Company Secretary

Date: 21% Septembaer, 2022
Place: KOLKATA
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

{UMDER SECTIONS 230-232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

BETWEEN

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
[“WESTERN INDIA" OR “"TRANSFEROR COMPANY™)

AHD

M.B.LINDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(“M.BLINDUSTRIAL" OR “TRANSFEREE COMPANY")

AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

1.

1.1

1.2,

Z.1.

— ==
WW
This Scheme (as defined hereinafier] is presented under sections 230 to 232 and
other applicabie provisions of ihe Companies Act, 2013 and rules framad thereunder
far amalgamation of Wastermn India Commarcial Company Limited (*Western India® or
“Transferar Company”) Into H.B.lindustial Finance Company Lmiled ("N.BLL

Industrial” or “Transferee Company’) and ther respective shaseholders and
craditors with effect fram the Appointed Date (as defined hereinafier).

In addition, this Schame also provide for varous other maiters consequential
supplemental and/ar otherwise integrally connectad therewith,

OF COMP

Wastern Indla Commercial Company Limited (heceinafter refered to as "Western
India® or *“Transferor Company”) is a public limited comgany, originally incorporated
on August 13, 1828 in the name of "indian Investment Co. Lid" under the Indian
Companies Act, 1913, with CIN LET120WB1828PLC0S3824 and having its registensd
office at 21, Sirend Road Kolkata ~ TODDO01, Wesl Bengal, Indiz. The company is
camying on the business 2s a Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC®} and is
registered with Resarve Bank of India (hereinafier neferrad to e “REI") under saction

@D




2.4,

31

32

45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834 having registration number B-05 06730,
Tha company is engaged mainly In investment in shares, securities and fnancial
aclivity. The equity shares of the Transferor Company are listed on Calculis Stock
Exchange Limited ("CSE").,

N.B.LIndustrial Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as *N.B.L
Industrial® or *Transferes Company”), is a public limited company, criginally
incorporated in the name of "The New Bank Limilad” under the Indian Companies Act,
1813, with CIN LE6223WB1036PLC0E5590 and having its registerad office at 21,
Strand Road Kofkata - 700001, West Bengal, India. t was incorporated on 21"
December, 1836. Tha company is camylng on the business ss a NBFC and Is
registered with RBI under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834 having
ragistration number 05.00262. The company Is engaged mainly in investmart in
shares, securities and financial activity. The equity shares of the Transferes Company
are listed on National Stock Exchange of Indla Limited ("NSE"),

RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

The proposed amalgamation would be In the best interests of the Comparnles (as
defined hereinaftar) and thair respective shareholders, amployees, creditors and other
sigkeholders. The proposed amaigamation wil yield advantages as set out inter alia
balow:

The shares of the Transferar Company are listed on Caleutta Stock Exchange and no
trading ectivity is being undertaken In the shares of Transferor Company. Upon
amalgamnation of the Transferar Company into the Transferee Company, equity shares
of the Transferes Company, Ksted on MNational Stock Exchange (a3 defined
hareinafter) having natianwide treding tarminal, would be Issued to the sharsholders of
the Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation would result in providing bener
liquidity to the sharehelders of Transferor Company while not baing prejudicial to the
interest of Transferee Company and its shareholders, creditors, employees ar any
siakeholders.

The amalgamation would resull in improving the patential for further expansion of the
businessas by way of consolidstion of capital base and incressed borrowing strengths
of the combined entity.
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34

4.6

4.1,

42,

4.3

The amaigamation will result not anly In coneolidating and improving the internal
systems, procedwes and controls but will also bring greater management and
operational efficlency due to integration of various similar funclions being carried out
by both the Companies.

Greater size, scele, financial sbength and flexibility for the merged Transferee
Company will result In maximizing and uniocking overall shareholders value.

The amalgamation will result in significant reducllon in muitipliclty of legal and
regulatory compliances which at present la required to be made separalely by the
Companies with saving in adminisirative cost and deriving economias of scale,

PARTS OF THE SCHEME:
This Scheme s divided Inlo the folowing parts:

FART A deals with the definitians of the capiiaized terms and interpretations used in
this Scheme, date of faking effect of this Scheme and Share Capital of the
Comparies;

PART B daals with clauses in relation to amalgamation of Western Indla into N.B.\.
industrial, consideration for emalgamation and sccounting  treatment  for
amalgarmaticn,

PART G deals with general terms and conditions applicable to this Schems.
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In thie Schame (as defined hereinafter), unless repugnant to the meaning or contest
theraof, tha folowing expressions shall have tha meaning mentioned herein balow:

"Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations andior other
guidelines or nolifications made thereunder, and Includes any alterations, modifications,
amandmenis made therelo andior any re-enactment thereof,

‘“Amalgamsation” or "smalgamation’ means amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferes Company, on 8 going concern basis in accordance with section
2(18) of the Income-Ta Act, 1661, in terms of Part B of the Scheme;

“Applicabla Law({s)\® means any statute, nofification, bye lows, rules, regulatons,
guidelines, rule or common law, policy, code, directives, ordinance, schames, nofices,
croers or instructions, law enacted or issued or sanctioned by any Appropriate Authorily
{as defined hereinafier) including any modification or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force;

"Appointed Date” for the purpose ¢f this Scheme and the [T Act (a3 defined hareinafter)
means 1% April 2022 or such other date as may be mutually agreed to by the Board of
Diractors {as defined hereinafter) of Transferer Company and Translerss Company of
auch other dale as may be flxed or epproved by the NOLT {as defined hereinafter) or
any other Appropriate Authority (as defined herainaftar);

"Appropriate Authority’ means any Governmental Authority (as defined hereinafiar),
statutory, regulatory, departmaendtal or public body or authority of the relevant jurisdiction,
inciuding Reglstrar of Companies, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, NCLT, Stock
Exchanges (as defined hereinafier). SEBI (as defined herainafter), Resarve Bank of
India, any relevant tax authority and any other relevant competent authortles;

"Board of Directors” or "Board” In ralation to the Traneferor Company and! or the
Transferae Coempany, ¢ the case may ba, means thei respective Board of Directors
and shall include a commites duly constituted and authorsed for the purposes of
mattars pertaining to the Scheme and’ or any other matter relading thereto;




“Companies” shall coflectively mean the Transferor Company and the Transferae
Company;

“Effective Date" or "On the Schems becoming offective” means the date on which
last of the approvels or events specified under dause 19 of Part C of the Scheme ere
satisfied or obtained or have occumed or the requiremant of which has baan waived (in
writing) in accordance with this Schama, Referances in this Scheme to the date of “upon
this Scheme becoming effective’ or “coming into effect of this Scheme® shall mean the
Etfective Date;

“Governmantal Autheority” means any nafional, regional or local govemment or
governmental, administrative, fiscal, judicial, or govemmant-ownad body or any of its
minlstrlas, depariments, secretariats, agencies or any legisiative body, commissian,
authority, court or tribunal or entity and any other authority axerciging juriadiction over
the Companiss;

"IT Act® means the bhcomsa-tax Act, 1861 and the rules. regulstions, ciroulars, any
statufory modifications, re-enforcements or amendments thereof for the tme baing In
faroe;

"National Gompany Law Tribunal® or "NCLT" or "Hon'ble NCLT" means tha Nasonal
Company Lew Tribunal at Kolkata having |urisdiction in relalion o the Transferor
Company and the Transfarese Company,

"Record Date® for the purpose of this Schema shal mean the date to be fixed by the
Boasd of Directors of the Tranaferss Comgany in consulation with Board of Directors of
Transferor Company for the purpase of determining the shareholders of the Transferor
Coampany who are eligitle to get the shares of the Transferes Company reepeciively as
par Part B of this Schems;

“Reglstrar of Companles™ means Regiatrar of Companies of State of West Bengal;

*RBI's Directions’ maans Resarve Bank of India's direction DNBR (PD) CC Mo,
0A5/03,10.001/2015-18 dated July 08, 2015 and any amendment thareto;

@




"SAST Regulations" maans the Securities and Exchange Boarc of Indie (Substantal
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovars) Regulstions, 2011,

“Bohame" means this Scheme of Amalgamalicn presentad under seclions 230 to 232 of
tha Companles Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013
and/ or Companies Act, 1856 in the present form or with such modification(s) approved
or directed by the NCLT:

“SEBI" meana Securities Exchange Board of Indla estabBshed under Section 3 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1892,

RBEEI Clreular™ means, together, the circular no, CFODILACIRRZ0M7T/21 dated 10
March 2017, the clreular no. CFOYDILICIRI2017/1056 dated 21 September 2017,
clrewlar no, CFOVDILICIR/Z018/2 dated 3 January 2018, circular no. SEBI
MHO/CFDIDIL 1 /CIR/PI2018/192 dated 12 September 2019, circular no. SEBI
MO/CFIDILY ICIRIP /2020 215 dated 3 November 2020; ckoular no. SEBIS
HO/CFOVOIL2/CIR / Pf2021 /0000000657 dated 16 November 2021; croular no. SEBI
HO/CFIVDILZ/CIRY P2021/ DDO0OO00SSS dated 18 November 2021 each issued by the
SEB| and all cthar spplicable circulars and regulations issued by SEBI and as
armended or replaced from lime Lo tme;

“SEBI Listing Regulations™ means the Securities Exchanga Board of india (Listing
Obsigations and Discicsure Requiremants) Regulations 2016, and shall include any
ststutory modification, amendment and reenactment thesecf for the time baing in forca
of any act, regulations, rules, guidelines, sta that may replace such reguiations,

*Share Exchange Ratic" means ralios for determining the zsusnce of shares by
Transferse Company to tha sharshalders of Transferor Company under Part B of this
Scheme, as set oul In the Share Exchange Ratic Report dated 21" September, 2022
lssued by RBSA Valustion Advisors LLP (Registration No. IBBURV-EQ62019/110),
Reglstered Valuer, Kokata, West Bangal;

"Bhare Exchange Ratlc Report® means tha reporl stating Share Exchange Ratio
issued by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP (Registration No. IBENRV-EQS201%110)
Registered Valuer, Kolkats, West Bangal dated 21* Saptember, 2022;
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“Btock Exchanges™ means the Calcutta Siock Ewxchange Limited ('CSE”) and the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE");

"Transferor Company” or "Western India” means Westem India Commercial
Company Limited, a company incorporaied under the Indian Companles Act, 1913, and
having its regisiered office al 21, Strand Road Kolkata -700001, West Bangal, India;

"Transfaree Company”" or "M.BL Industrial® means N.B.. Industrial Finance
Cormpany Limited, a company incorporatad under the Indian Companies Act, 1913, and
having ils reglstered office at 21, Strand Road Kolkata -700001, West Bangal, India.

All ferme and words wsed in this Schema shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning therecf, have the seme maeaning ascribed to them under the Act,
the IT Agt, the Secwities Conlracts (Regufation) Act, 1058, the Secusrities and
Exchange Board of Indla Act, 1992, the Depositorias Act, 1986 and ather Applicabla
Laws, rules, reguiations, tye-laws, guldelines/notifications/circulsrs, as the case may
be or any statutory modification of emendmant or re-anacimaent thereof for the time
baing in fomze.

In this Schame, uniess tha conbext otherwiaa requires:

a] references 1o “persons” Includes individusls, bodies corporste (wherever
Incorparstad), unincorporated associations and partnarships,

b} the headings, sub-headings, fitles. subdiles o clauses, sub-Glauses and
paragraphs are insertec for sase of reference only and do not form part of the
operative provisions of this Schamsa and shall not affect the construction or
interpratation of this Scheme;

c}  references fo ona gender Includes all gandars;
d}  wuords in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;
g)  words "inciude” and "inciuding” are to be construed without limitation;

fi  terms "hereof, "herein”, "hereby”, “hereic” and derivative or similar words refer to
this entire Scheme or speciied clauses of this Schema, as the case may be,
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a reference to “writing” or "written® includes prnting, typing, slectronic malling, and
other means of mproducing words in a vislbda form excluding a text or an instant

messa{e.

refarence to any agreemaent, contract, document or amangement or o aay
provigion thereol shall include references to any such agreemwenl conbract,
dosument or amangement as | may, ater the date hereof, fram time lo time, be
amended, supplemented or novated:

mferance to the recital or clauss are referanoas to fe recial or clause of this
Schems; ard

references to any provision of law or legisiation or regulation includs;

L

guch provision gs from time o me amended, modified, re-enacted or
consolidsted {whether before or after the date of this Schema) to the exient
such amendment, modification, re-enactment or consolidation applies or is
capable of applying to the transaciion entered inic under this Scheme and
{to the axtent lisbility theraunder may exist or can arise) shall inciude any
past statutory provision (as amended, modified, re-enacted or conaclidated
from time to time) which the provision referred o has directly or Indirectly
replaced:;

all subordinale legistatons {including circulars, notifications, clarfications,
guidedings or supplement(s) io. or replacement or amandment of, that law
or legisiation or regulation) made from time fo tme under that provision
{whethar or not amended, modified, re-enacted or consolidatad from time to
time) and ary retrospective amandment thereto.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT

6.1, The Scheme sat out herein in its prasent form or with any modification(s) apgroved or
imposed or directed by the NCLT shall be effective from the Appointad Dete but shall
be operative from the Effective Datz.

SHARE CAPITAL

7.1, The share capitsl of Wastem India as per the audited Balance Sheet as al March 31,
2072 Iz a5 undern,
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35,000 aquity shares of INR 100/- each 35,00,000
Total ~ 35,00,000

Issued, subscribed and pald-up share capital

18,000 equity shares of INR 100/- sach 18.00,000
Total 18,00,000

The aguity shares of Waslam India are lzied on CSE. Further, 33 on March 31, 2023,
fre N.B.L. Indusiral holds 11.69% shares of Western India as a promoter group
COMpany.

Subsequent o the atove date and 28 on the date of fiing this Schema with the
Hon'bla NCLT, there has bean no changs in the issued, subscribad and paid-up share
capital of Western India.

Tha share capital of N_B.|. Industrial as per the sudited Baiance Sheet as at March 31,
2022 |s as under.

Authorized Share Capital
2,00,00,000 equity shares of INR &/- each 10,00,00,000
Total 10,00,00,000
Issued share capital
24,580,058 equity shares of INR 5/- each 1,22,55,290
Total 1,22,95,290
ubscri
74 58,808 equily shares of INR &/- each 1,22,34,030
Total 1,42,84,080 |

The equety shares of MBI Industrial ere llated on NSE.

Subsequent to March 31, 2022 and ss on the date of filing this Scheme with the
Hon'ble NCLT, there has been no change in the issved, subscribed and paid-up shere
capital of M.B.L Indusirial,




8.1,

8.2

TRANSFER AND VESTING

Wih effect from the opening business hours of Appointed Date and on the Scheme
becoming effactive, tha anfire business of the Transferor Company shall, pursuant fo
he provisions of seclions 230-232 and all other applicable provisions of the Act and
saction 2(18) of the IT Act, and without any furiher act, instrument, deed, matter or
thing, stand transferred to end vested, #s & golng concem, Intd the Transfaree
Compary by virtiue of and in the manner provided in this Schema.

This Scheme has been drawn up complying with the conditions relating to
amalgamation as specifiad under saciion 2{1B) of the [T Act. Further, if any terms ar
provisions of the Schema are found or interpretad fo be Inconsistant with the esaid
provigons at a fater date, resulting from an amendment of law or for any other resson
whatsoever, the provisions of the said section of the IT Act shall prevail and the
Scheme shall stand modified to the extant delarmined necessary fo comply with
section 2{18) of the IT Agt. Such modification will howewver not affect other parts of the
Schema, The power to make such amendmeants 88 may becoms necessany shall vest
with the Board of Directors of the Companies, which powsr shall be exercised
reasonably In the best interesis of the Companies and their stakehaldars,

Without prejudice to the genemality of clause 8.1, in respect of esseta of the Transferor
Company, the same shall be fransfarred to and vested into the Transferes Company,
a5 follows:

8.21. ol sssets of the Transferor Company, that ere movable in nalure or are
otherwise capable of transfer by physical or constructive delivery and Jor by
endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal of whatsoever nalurs,
Inciuding plant and machinery, equipment, if any, pursuant to this Scheme
shall stand transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transfemad
to and vesied In the Transferee Company, wherever locsied asnd shal
become the property and an integral part of the Transferee Company. The
vasting pursuant to this sub-clause shall be deamad fo have occurmed by
physical or construciive daelivery or by endorsement and defivery or by

10
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8.2.3

vesting and recordal, pursuant to this Scheme, a5 appropriate to the proparty
baing vested and Htle o the properly shall be deamed to have been
transferred and no conveyanca deed shall be reguired accordingly;

al other moveable properies of the Transferor Company. incuding
investrnents in shares snd any other sacurities, sundry debtors, actionable
claims, eames! monies, recalvabies, bills, credits, outstanding lans and
atvances, if any, recoverable In cash or In kind or for value to be recalved,
bank balances and depasits, if any, with Governmaent, semi-Government,
tocal and other authorities and bodies, customers and other persans, shall
without any further act, instrument or deed, be transfemed to and vested into
== the property of Transferee Company, and the same shall also be deamed
to have been transferrad by way of delivery of possession of the respective
documants in this regard. The Transferse Company may, if required, give
notica in such form as it may deem fit and proper %o each person or debtor
that, pursuant to the Scheme, the said person or debtar shauld pay the debt,
Ipan or advance or make good the same or hold the same to its account ang
that the right of the Transferee Company to recover or realise the sama is in
substitution of the right al the Transferor Company and that approoriate entry
should be passed in their respective books to record the aforesaid changes.
The invesiments held n demsteralzed form wil be transferrad to the
Transferea Company by Issuing appropriate delivery instructions o the
depository participant with whom the Transferor Company has an account.
Such dellvery and transfer shall be made on a dale mutually agread upon
batagan the respactive Boards of Directors of the Transferor Company and
ihe Transferes Company, being a date afier the sanction of the Scheme by
the Hon'ble NCLT;

all immavable properties of the Transferer Campany, including land together
with the buidings and struclures standing thereon and righta and interasts in
immovable properties of the Transferor Company, whether frashold or
leasehold or otherwise and all documants of title, rights and easaments in
refation thereto, if any, shall be vested in snd'cr be deemed to have been
vested in the Transferee Company, without any further act or deed done or
being required to be done by the Transferor Compary and/or the Transferse
Company. The Transferee Gompany shall be entitled to exarcise all rights
end privileges attached to the aforesaid immovable properties and shall be

11
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Ba

liable to pay the ground rent and taxes and fulfil all obilgstions in relation or
applicable to such immavable properties. The relevant autherities shall grant
el clearances/parmissions, ¥ any, required for enabling the Transferee
Company to absolutely own and enjoy the immovable properties in
sccordance with Applzabla Lew(s). The mutation or substitution of title to the
immaovable proparties shall, upan this Scheme becoming effective, be made
and duly recorded in the name of the Transferes Company by Governmantal
Authorities pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Hon'ole NCLT and
upeon the Scheme becoming effactive in accordance with the terms hereck,

624, al bank accounis opersied or aentited o be cparated by the Transfercr
Company shall b= deemed to have frensfared and shall stand transferred to
the Transferes Company and names of the Transferor Company shall be
substituted by tha nama of tha Transfarea Company in the bank's reconds,

With effect from the Appointed Date and on the Scheme becoming effactive, all debis,
fiabiities, contingent labilities, subject 1o provigions of clause 8.1, duties and
obligations, secured or uneacured, of every kind, nalure and description of the
Transferor Company, shal, 10 the axtent that they are outstanding on the Appointed
Date andior an the Scheme becoming effactive, undar the provisiens of this Scheme
and under provisions of sections 230-232 of the Act, and without any further act or
deed, be transferred to or be deamad o be transfarred to the Transferes Company so
as to become, fram the Appainted Dete. the debis, Habilities, contingant Rabiliios,
duties and coligations of the Transferee Company and it ghall not be necessary to
obtain the consent of any third party or other person, wha is a parly to any contract or
arrangemant by virtue of which such dabts, Babilties, contingent Eabdities, duties and
obligatiens have arisen, In order to give effect to the provisions of this clawse.

All the exisfing sescurities, morigages, charges, encumbrances o liens, If any, 85 on
the Appointed Date and those created by Transferor Company after the Appoinied
Data, over the sssats of Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee Company
shall, afier the Effeciive Date, continue to relate and attach to such assats or any part
theraof to which they are related or sttached prior to the Effective Dsle Such
securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or lens shall nol relate or attach or
extand t2 any of the other assals of the Transferes Gompany,

12
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B.4.

B.7.

B.8

B8

Subject to Applicable Laws, any underaking of the Transferor Company, which is
binding on tha Transfaror Company, if any, as on tha Appointed Date of this Scheme,
io give a guarantee to any perscn in respect of any obligation of tha Transferor
Company shall confinue in full force and effect against the Transferas Compeny.

Whene any of the labilities and obligations attributed to the Transferor Company on
the Appoinied Date have been discharged by the Transferor Company on of after the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to
nave been for and an behalf of the Transferse Compary.

With effect from the Appointad Date and on the Scheme bacoming effective, any
stafulory or other lcances, permisslons or approvals or consents, megistrations,
Incentives, tax deferrals and benefits, subsidias, concessions, grants, rights, claims,
lease, ienancy righls, lberlies, special statue and/or other benefits or privileges
enjoyed or conferred upon or avalled of or held by the Transfercr Gompany shal stand
transferred to or vested inte the Transferee Company, without any further act or deed,
and shall, as may be required, be spproprisiely mulated by the sisluiory or other
suthorities concerned therewith in favour of the Transferes Company, The benefil of
all statutory and regulatory permissions including statutory or other lcenses, tax
registralions, permils, permiissions or approvals or consents required bo carry on the
operations of tha Transferor Company shall vest into and become available to the
Traraferes Company pursuant to this Scheme. The Companies shall receive relavant
approvals from the Governmental Authodty as may be necessary in this behall.

Any guestion thal may arise as ta whether a particular assat or liablity partains or
does not pertain to the Transferor Company or whethar i arisac out of the acthvities or
oparations of the Transferor Company shall be decided by mutusl sgreament bebasen
tha Beard of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transfares Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

.21, If any sult, action, ciaims, appeal or other proceeding of whatsoever nature
by or against the Transfercr Company are pending on the Effective Date, the
sama shall not abate or be discontinued or I any way ba prejudicially
affected by reeson of or by amything contained in this Schems, and may ba
continued, prosecuted andlor enforced by or against the Transferee
Company, a5 effectually and In the same manner and to the same exienl as
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It woukd or might heve been continued, prosecuted andfor enforced by or
against the Transfaror Company as if thie Scheme had not been made.

The Transferse Company undartakes to have all legal or other proceedings
initiated by or against the Transferor Company, transfered In its name and to
have the same continued, prosacuted andlor enforced by or against the
Transferee Company to the exclusion of the Transfercr Company to the
exient logally permésaible afer the Schame becaming effectiva.

£10. CONTRACTS, DEEDS ETC.

8.10.1.

8.10.2,

B.10.3.

Subject 1o the ather provisions of this Schema, al confracts, deeds, bonds,
insurance, letters of intent, undertakings, amangements, policies,
agresments, schames and other instrumants, ¥ any, of whatsoever nature,
periaining to tha Transfersr Company or to the benefit of whish the
Tranaferor Company may be eligible. which & subsisting as on the Effective
Date or have effact immedistely before the Effactiva Data, shall continue In
fuill force and effect againset or In faveur of tha Transferee Company, and may
te enforced by or against the Transferee Company as fully and effectually as
i, instead of the Transfarcr Company, the Transferes Company had been a
party therata.

Transferee Company shall enter into andlor issue andfor execute deeds,
wiitings or confimations or enter info any tripartite arrangemants.
confirmations or novalipns, to which the Trarsferor Company will, ¥
necessary, slso be parly, in order to give formal effect to the provisions of
this Schame. Tha Transferee Company shall be desmed to be aulhorizad o
execyuts any such deeds, writings or confirmations or carmy out all formalifies
reguired on the par of the Transferor Company o give aeffect lo the
provisiens of this Scheme,

Without prejudice to the aforessid, it s clarified that if any contracts, deeds,
bonds, agreements, schamas, amangemenis or other instruments of
whatsoever nature in relation to the Transferor Company or to which the
Transferor Company are & pary, cannot ba fransferred to the Transfares
Company for any reason whatsoever, the Transferor Company shall hold
such assels, contracis, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangaments
or oiher instruments of whatsoever natura in brust for the beneft of the
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Transferes Company, in so far as it |s parmissible so to do, 1 such time as
the tranefer is affected.

B.11. TREATMENT OF TAXES

B4, Al the taxes of any nature, dutes, cess or any other deduction or any other
ke paymeni made by the Transferor Company 10 any statutory authorties
such as Income tax, advance tax, tax paid under Minimum ARemative Tax
("MIAT"), Goods and Service tax ("G8T), custom duly elc. or any tax
deduction’ collection al source, credits (Including GST credit, MAT credit),
eic., if any, of the Transferor Company shall ba deemed o have been on
account of or on behall of or paid by the Transferse Company, without any
further acl, Instrument, deed, matter or ihing Deing mads, dong or execubed,
and the Transferea Company shall ba entitied to claim credit for such taxes
deducted (at source)paid agenst is tax duty labiities/MAT credit, GST,
custom duty, efc., on the Scheme becoming effective, notwithstanding that
thi carfificates/chsllans or olher documents for payment of such taxas/duties
ara In the name of the Transferor Company. Further, upon the coming into
effact of this Gcheme, all tax compliances under the applicable tax laws by
tha Translaror Company on or afler Appointed Date shall be deemed to be
mada by the Transferes Company.

8.11.2. Al the daductions otherwise admissible to the Transferor Company inciwding
paymant admissible an aciusl payment or on deduction of appropriate taxes
or on payment of Tax Deducted at Source “TDS") (such as seclicn 438,
section 40, section 404 elc. of the [T Act) will be eligible for deduction to the
Transfares Company, upon fulfiiment of conditions, if any, required under
the IT Act. All banefits, entittements, incentives, issues, refund, under tha [T
Act, GST laws, custom duty law or othar Applicable Laws, reguiations
dealing with jaxes, duties, land levies, levies due to the Transferor Company
consaquent la the essessment made on the Transfaror Compeny (including
any refund for which ro credit is teken in the books of accounts of the
Transferar Company on the Appainted Date) shall belong to and be recelved
by tha Transfaree Comgany withoul any further act, Instrument, deed, matier
or thing being made, done or axecuted, become the properdy of the
Transferee Company

15
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B11.4

8115

B.118.

8.12. EMPLOYEES

On the Schema becoming effective, the Transfaree Company is aisc
expressly permitted lo revise is income tax returns, withholding tax returns,
GST retumns, TDS returns, TDS cedtificatss, and other statutory retumns and
flings wndar the tax laws notwithstanding that the period of fiing/ revising
such retums may have ispsed and to cleim refunds, advence fax and
withholding tax credits, eic,, pursuant 1o the provisions of this Scheme, The
Transferea Company Is expressly parmitted to amend tax deduction at
source certificate and other statutory certificates, and shal have the right to
claim refunds, advance tax credis, set offs and adustments relsting to iis
incomes! transactions from the Appointed Date.

On and from the Appainied Date, if any cerificate for TDS or eny otfer 1@
credit cenificate redating 1o the Transferor Company is received in the namsa
of the Transferor Cempany, it shail be deemed to have bean received In tha
name of the Trensferse Company, which alone shall be entitied to claim
eredit for such tay deductad amount.

The accurmutaled lesses and the allowances for unabsorbed depreclation of
the Transfercr Company shell be desmed to ba the loss and alflowance for
unabeorbed depreciation of the Trensferse Company In accordance with
section T2A of the IT Act and all cther appicable provisions of the IT Act and
amandmants thereof.

All tax sssessmont proceedings/appeals of whatscever nature by or agains!
the Transfesor Company pending andfor arsing at the Appointed Date and
regating to the Transfaror Company shall be continued andfor enforced untl
the Effeciive Date by the Transberor Company. In the event of the Transferor

Company failing lo continue or enforce the proceedings/appeal, the sama
maey be oontinuad or enforced by the Teneferss Company. Aa and from the

effective data, the tax procesdngs shall be continued and enforced by o
apaingt the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extant
as would or might have been conlinued or enforced by the Transferor
Company

16
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8.1,

8.12.1. On the Schema becoming effective, all staff warkmean and employees of the
Trarsferor Company who are in service as on the Effeciive Date shall
become staff. workmen and employees of the Transferse Company without
any break In thair service, on the basis of continuity of sanvice, and on terme
and condilons as o employment and remuneration not less favourable than
thosa on which they are engaged or employed by the Transferor Company.
The Transferee Company agrees that the services of all such employees
with the Transferor Company, up o the Effective Date shal be taken into
account for purposes of all retirement benefils to which they may be aligibla
85 on the Effective Dete. The Transferee Company undertakes to condinues to
abide by any agresmant/settiement, if any, entared into by the Transferor
Company with any unionfemploves of tha Transfarcsr Company.

B.122. It is exprossly provided that, on the Scheme becoming effeciive, the
provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund or such other special fund,
if any, or irusis (hereinalter collectively refarmed as “Funds®) created for the
banefit of the siaff, workmen and employess of the Transferor Company, If
any, shall, with the approval of the Approprate Authorities, either confinue as
Funda of the Transferee Company, or shall be transferred to or merged with
other similar funds of tha Transferse Company for all purposas whalsoaver in
relation to the administration or oparation of such Funds or in relation to the
obligation o make comributions to the =ald Funds In accordance with the
provisions of respeciive trusl deads or other agreements, if any, to the end
and Intenl that all rights, dutiss, powars and obligations of the Transferor
Company In refation to such Funds shall become those of the Transferes
Company. It Is clanfied thal the services of tha stalf, workmen and amployes
will ba treated as having bean continuous for the purpose of the said Funds.

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF TRAMSFEREE COMPANY

On the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and
pursuant to the provisions of section 232(3) of the Act, the authorized share cagital of
tha Transferes Company shall sulomatcally stand Increased by merging with the
authorized share capital of the Transferor Company, without any further aci,
instrument or deed on the part of the Transferee Company by only upon filing the
requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority, and no separate acl, procedurs or
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B4,

10.

10.1.

ingtrument or desd or payment of any stamp duty and registration fees shall be
required to be made or folowad under the Act,

The Memorandum of Assoclstion of the Transferee Company (relating lo the
suthorized share capital) shall, without any further act, instrument or daad, ba and
gtand afterad, medifisd and amended and no fulure resolutions under section 13, 14,
€1 ar 64 and any other apphicable peovisions of the Act shall be required to be
separately passed. The stamp dutiss and fees pald on the authorised capital of the
Tranaferor Company shall b utlized and applisd (o the Increased authorised share
capital of tha Transferee Company and shall be deemed ta have been so pald by the
Transfaree Company for Inchease In the suthorsed shera capital on sush combined
authorised shere capilal and accordingly no extra stamp duty andfor fee shal be
payable by the Transferee Company for increase In the suthorised share capital to
that extent The Memarandum and Arlicles of Asecciation of the Transferee Company
shall be amended as may be required 1o giva affect to this cause

Consequently, subject to the sbove clauses, Clause V of the Memorandum of
Agsociation of the Transferee Company shall be replaced by the following clause:

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Gompany INR 10,35,00,0000- (Rupess ten
erores thiry five lakhs ondy) divided inte 2,07,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 5i- (five)
with such rights , privileges or conditions attached thereto as may be determined by
the Board &t the time of issue, wilh powers to increase and decrease the Capiial and
to divida the shares intc several classes.”

It is clarified that the consent of the members of the Transferee Company to the
Scheme shall be deemed to be suffident for the purposes of effecting the
aforementioned amandment and ehall also ba deemed to be their consent / approval
to the alterstion of fhe Memarandum and Articles of Association of the Transfaree
Company as may be reguired under the Act and referred In clause 8.2 of the Schame.

Pursuant fo this Schema, Tranaferes Company shal file the requisite documents/
information {If any) with the Registrar of Companies or any other Appropriate Authority
for such intreasa of the autharized share capital.

COMSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the amaigamation, the
sharehciders of the Transferor Company (other then for shares already held by the

18



10.2.

10.4.

104,

Transferee Company in the Transferor Company), whose name sppears in the
register of members a5 on the Record Dale (a8 defined In the Schemes), or io their
respeciive heirs, execulors, adminisiralors or other legel representatves or the
successors-in-title as the case may be. shall be aligible to receive B4 (ninety four) fully
pald up equity shares of face value of INR 5~ each of the Tranaferes Company for
every 3 (threa) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 100/~ each of the
Transferar Company held by such shareholder as provided in Share Exchange Ratio
Repoit

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, intercompany investments hald by the
Transferor Company and Transferes Company in sach other shall withoutl any
application or dead stand cancellad,

YWhere equity shares of the Transferee Company are to ba allotted 1o heirs, executors
or administrators, as the casa may be, successors of deceased aquity shareholders or
legal representatives of the equity shareholders of the Transteror Company, the
concerned heirs, executors, edministrators, sucoessors or legal representatives shall
ba obliged to produce evidance of tite satisfactory to the Board of Directors of the
Transferes Company.

The sheres issued pursuant to the provisions of the Scheme as per clause 10.1
(harain after roferred o as "New Equity Shares™), shall ba issuved o the sharehalders
of tha Transferor Company In dematenalized form Into the account in which shares of
Western Indie are held or such other account 8s is infmated in writing by the
shareholders to Western India and/ or its reglsirar provided such infmation has been
recaived by Westemn India andior s regisirar al least 7 (seven) days before the
Record Date. All those shareholders who hold shares of Western India In physicsl
form shall a0 recelve the equity shares o be issued by MN.BLindustrial, In
demateralzed form provided the detalls of their account with the depository
participant are intimated in writing to Western India and/ or its registrar provided such
intimation has been raceived by Westarn India and'or s registrar at least 7 (seven)
days before the Record Data. if no such infimation is received from any sharehalder
who holds shares of Wesbern India in physical form 7 (seven) days before the Record
Date, or if the detals fumnished by any sharsholder do not parmit electronic credit of
tha shares of N.B.LIndustrsl, then M.B.lLIndustrial may, subject to Applicabla Laws,
either issue physicel shares or at its discretion hold such equity shares in sbeyance

Q)
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106,

10.7.

108

10.8.

until details of such sharenolders account with the depositary participant are intimated
in writing to N.B.LIndustrial and! or ita regisirar, In writing,

If any shareholder becomes entitied to any fractional shares or entiiements on the
fssue and allotment of the New Equity Shares by the Transferee Company in
gccordance with clause 10.1 above, the Board of Directors of the Transfanes
Company shall conscidate all such fractional entitlements and shall round up the
egpregate of such fractions to the next whole number and issue consolideted equity
shares to a frustes nominated by (he Transferss Company (the “Trustee"), who shall
hold such equity shares with el addifions or accrelions thereto in trust for the beneft
of the respeciive shareholders, lo whom they belong and thelr respective heirs,
executors, administralors, successors for the specific purposa of selling such equity
ghares In the market &t such price or prices and on such ime or times within ninaty
{80) days from the date of allotment, s the Trustee may In its sole discretion decida
and on such sale, distrbute the net sale proceads (afier deduction of applicable taxes
and cozts incurred) o the concermed sharsholders of the Transderor Company In
proportion to their respective fractional entitiements.

On the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferes Company
pursuant to sections 230-232 of tha Act andier the relevant provisions of the Act, if
sppiceble, | shall be deemed that the said shareholders have also accorded their
consent under sections 13, 42, 61, and 82{1)(c) of the Act andior any other applicabla
provisions of the Act and rules framed theregnder as may be apglicable for the
aforesald Issuance of New Equity Shares to the equity shareholders of the Transferor
Company, and no further resolution or actiona shall ba required to be undartaken by
tha Transfares Compary,

The eguity shares to be issuad and aliotied by the Transferes Company In terms of
clause 10.1 shall be subjoct ta the provisions of the Mamorandum and Artisles of
Assoclation of Transfaree Company.

Furthar, the equity shares to be issued in terms of clause 10.1 on amaigamation shall
rank pari passu with the axisting equity sheras of the Transferse Company.

The New Equity Sharas of the Transferee Company issued in tarms of this Scheme,
shall pursuent to the SEBI Circular and subject to compllance with requisite
formalities, be listed andfor admitted to trading only on NSE, Le., the stock exchange

Q9)
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1011,

T2,

1013,

1014,

on which eguity shares of Transferee Company are isted. The Transferee Company
ghall enter into such errangemsant and issue such confirmations andfor underdakings
88 may be necessary In accordance with Applicable Laws for complying with
formalities of the relevant stock exchange. On such formalities belng fulfiled, the NSE
shall list andior admit such equily shares lesusd pursuant to this Scheme, for the

purpose of frading.

The Transfaree Company shall, ¥ and to the extent required, apply for and obtein any
approvals from the concemed regulatory authories, inciuding the NSE, jor tha issus
and allotmant by the Transferee Company of the aquity shares to the shareholders of
the Transfaror Company pursuant io the Scheme,

The equity shares, in the Transieree Company allsited pursuant to the Scheme, shail
remain frozen in the depositaries system Wl listing/trading parmission is given by the
designated stock exchangs, e, NSE

Poat the Issue of Mew Equity Shares pursuant to clause 10.1, there shall be no
ehange in tha cantrol in the Transferse Company batwean the Record Date and the
listing which may affect the status of the approval by the Stock Exchanges.

In the event that the Companies restructure their eguity share capital by way of share
split! consolidation’ fssue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Schame, the
Share Exchange Ratio shall ba adjusted accordingly to teke into account the effect of
any such corporate actions.

In tha ovent of there baing any pending share {ransters, whather lodged or
outstanding, of any sharsholdar of the Transferor Company, the Boerd of Direclors of
any committes thereof, of the Transferee Company, at the sole discretion, shall ba
empowered in appropriate cases, prior o or even subsequent to the Effeclive Date, as
the case may be, to effectuale such a transfer in Transferor Company as if such
changas In the registered holder were oparative as on the Effective Date in order to
remove any difficulties in relation 1o the new shares after the Scheme becomes
effective. The Board of Direciors of the Transferee Compeny shall be empowered to
remove such dificulties as may arise in the course of implamantation of the Schems
and ragistration of new mambers in the Transferee Company on account of difficutties
faced in the trangition perod.
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Lipon coming it effect of this Scheme and upon shares baing issued and allotied by
Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transfarar Company in accordance with
above clauses, the investmant hald by the shareholders in the equity shane cagital of
Transfaror Company shall, without any futther application, act, instrument or deed
stand cancelled. The share carfificates, if any, and / or the shares in electranic form
represanting the shares haeld by the shareholders of the Transfercs Company in
Transfaror Company shall ba of no efféct, and be extinguished and be deemed to
have been sutomatically canceled, on and from issue and allotment of shares in
Transferce Company.

The New Eguity Shares to De issued by the Transferes Company pursuant to clause
10.1 of the Scheme in respect of such equity shares of the Transferor Company, the
allctmant or tranafer of which is held in abeyanca under Applicable Law shall, pending
alletrmant or sattiement of dispute by arder of the approprigte court or otherwise, also
be kept in abeyance In (ke manner by the Transferee Company.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

11.1.1. The Transferee Company shall record the assats, Fabilites and reserves of
the Transfarar Company. as on Appointed Dale, vested In & pursuant lo the
Schema at their respective camying vakies as per ‘Pooling of intersst Method'
of accounting as per Indlan Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 (Business
Combination) In acoordance with Appendie C of "Business Combinations of
enfities under common control® under the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 No adjusimant shal be made to reflect the fai
values, or recognise any new essets or liabillties.

11.1.2. The identity of the reserves of Transferor Company shall be preserved and
ghall appear in the financial stalements of the Transleree Company in the
same form, in which they eppeared in the financial statements of the
Transfaror Company,

11.1.3. Upon coming into effact of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issus
Mew Equity Shares io the sharchoiders of the Transferor Company (other
than for shares, if any, held by Transferse Company into the Transkeror
Company), Thase New Equity Shares shall be Issuad and recorded at face




11.2,

11.1.4,

11.1.6

118

11.1.T.

1118

valse and accordingly the apgregate face valwe of the shanes lo ba Issued
shall be creditad to Transferse Company’s share capital account.

The camrying value of investments in the finencial statements of the
Transferes Company In the equily share capital of the Transfaror Comparny
shall stand cancaifled pursuant to the Schame becoming effeclive and thers
shall be no further obligation In that behalf.

Upon coming into effect of this Schame, to the extent thete are inter-corporale
lcans! advances, deposits, balances or other obligations as betwaan
Transtercr Company and the Transferee Company, the obligations in respect
theraof shall come to an end, and comesponding effect shall ba given in the
books of accounts and recorgs of the Transferee Company for the reducton
of any assets or liabilities, as the case may be.

Lipon the Scheme coming Info affect, the surplest deficit, if any, of the net
valisa of assets, labiites, reserves of the Transfercr Company scquired and
recorded by the Transferee Comgany in terms of clause 11.1.1 of the Scheme
ovar the sum of [a) face value of Mew Equity Shares issusd and allotiad io the
shareholders of the Transderor Company, and (D) the value of imvestments
cancelled pursuant fo classe 11.1.4 of the Scheme, shall be adjusted in
capital reserves account In the finencial stetement of the Transferes

Comgpany.

In case of any difference in Bcoounting policy between the Transferea
Compary and the Transferor Company, fhe impaci of fhe same will be
guaniified and the same shall be appropriatety adjusted against the capltal
resarses of tha Transferea Company.

The coste and expenses relating to the Scheme shall be accounted for in the
statermant of Profit and Loss,

IN THE BOOKS OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES

1121

There wil be no accounting treatment In the books of the Transferor
Company as it shall cease to exist pursuant to application of the Scheme. All
costs, charges, stamp duly incurrad In connection with giving effect to this
Scheme shall be debited by the Transferee Compeny to its statemant of
Proft and Loss.
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COMDUGCT OF BUSINEES TILL EFFECTIVE DATE

Upan fifing the Scheme with the NCLT and upto and including the Effactive Date:

The Transieror Company:

12.1.1

12.1.2.

12.1.3.

1214,

12.1.E.

ghall ba deemad to have bean carrying on and shall sarry on the husiness and
shall be deamed to have held and stocd possessed of and shall hold and
stand possassed of ail Its properties and assets for and on account of and in
trust for the Transierse Company with utmaost prudence, unfil the Effective
Dala.

shall carry on the business and activities with reascnable diligence, business
prudence and shall not, axcapt in the ordinary course of business or without
prior written cansent of the Transferee Company, alienale, chargs, morgags,
ancumber or otherwise dea! with or dispoese of any business or any pat
thareof,

shall not vary the terms and conditions of any agreements or conlracts except
in the ordinary course of busmness or withoul the pror consant of the
Transferea Company or pursuant fo any pre-axisting obligation undaertaken by
them, as the case may be.

ghall not vary the terms and conditions of employmant of any of their
amployeas, except in the ardinary course of business or withcul the priar
consent of the Transferse Company or pursuant 1o any pre-existing obigation
undertaken by them, ss the case may be, prior to the Appointad Date,

shall be entitled, pending sanction of the Scheme, to apply lo the
Central/State Government and all other agencies, departmeants and authorities
concerned as are necessary under any law or rules for such consants,
approvels and sanctiona, which may be required pursuant to this Schama.

122, With effect from the Appointed Date 2l the profits or losses or income of axpendiure
of the Transferor Company shall for all purposes be tresiad and ba deamed to be
sccrued as the profits or losses or Income or expendilure, as the case may be, of the

Transferes Company.




12.3. Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attachad or related or partaining to

12.4.

13,

131,

14.

14.1.

14.2.

and exercised by or avallable to the Transferor Company shall be deemad to have
been axercised by the Transferor Company for and on behalf of and as agent for the
Transferse Campany. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitmenis that
heve been underdaken or discharged by the Transferor Company shall be deemead 1o
have besn undersken or discharged for and on behalf of and as agent for the
Transferas Company.

On and from the Effective Date and tiil such ima that the name of the bank sccounts
of the Transferor Company have been raplaced with that of (he Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company shall be aentitled to mairtain and operate the hank accounts
af the Transferor Company, in the nama of the Transferor Company for such time as
may be determined to be necessary by the Transferee Company. All chegues and
other negotiable inetruments, payment ordars received or presanted for encashrmant
which are in the name of the Transferor Company, after the Effective Date shel ba
accapied by the banker of the Transferae Company and credited to the account of the
Transferee Company, if presented by the Transfaraa Company.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTION

The transter of assets, propenies and iabilities of the Transfercr Company into the
Transferea Company, transfar of all emplovees of Transferor Company, continuation
of legal procesdings, and the effecivensss of contracts and deeds, under above
mentiened clauses, shall not affest any transaction or procesdings already concluded
by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Data, to
the end and intent that the Trensferes Company accapts and adopts all acts, deeds
and things done and exacuted by or on behalf of the Transferor Company.

DIVIDENDS

The Companies shall be entitled (o dedlare and pay dividends, whether interim and/or
fingl to their respective shareholders prior to the Effective Date, bul only in the
ardinary coursa of business.

it ls clarified that the aforesaid provisions In respect of declaration of dividends are
enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any
sharehalder of tha Companies o damand or claim any dividands which, subject 1o the
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provistons of the Act, shall be entirely &{ the discration of the respective Boards of
Directors of the Companies, and If applicable in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, ba subject to the approval of the sharghoiders of the respedtive Companies.

15, DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFERCOR COMPANY

158.1. On the Bcheme becoming effective, the Transfercr Company shall stand dissoived
automatizally without winding up In accordance with the provisions of sections 230-
232 of the Act and rules and regulations made theraunder.

18. EXENMPTION UNDER SAST REGULATIONS

18.1. For the svoidance of doubt,  i= clorified that pursuant to Amalgamation of the
Transferor Company into the Transfaree Company, the issuance of New Edquity
Shares of the Transferee Company fo the shareholdars of the Transfaror Company as
conslderation for the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferes
Company In terms of this Scheme Iz axempl under the provisions of Regufation
10(1){d)(@) of the SAST Reguiations, and tharefore, the requirement o make an "opan
offer’ shall not be triggered in terms of the provisions of the SAST Regulalions.
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18.

18.1,

182

18

181,

18.2.

APPLICATION TONCLT

The Transferor Gompany and the Transferee Company, @s may be directad by the
Hon'ble NCLT chall make ail necessary applications and pelitions under sections 230-
232 read with other appicable provisions of the Act and the ruies made thereunder for

waeling approvel of the Schema,

MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Transferar Company and the Transfersa Company. with approval of their
respective Board of Directors may consent, from time fo time, on behaif of all persons
concernad, 1o any modifisstionsfamendments or additions/deleticns to the Scheme
which may otherwise be considersd necessary, desirable or appropriate by the said
Baard of Directors to rescive all doubts or dificulties thal mey arlse for carmying out
this Scheme and to do and execute &ll acts, deeds mattars, and things necessary for
Eringing this Schame into effect or agree (o any terms and [ or condRione or limitations
that the NGLT or any other Appropriate Authorities under law may deem fit to approve,
direct andior imposa. The aforesaid powers of the Transferor Company and the
Transferes Company to give sifed o the modiication/amendments to the Scheme
may ba axercised by thalr respective Board of Direciors or any perscn guthorized in
that behatf by the concemed Board of Directars subject to approval of the Hon'bie
MGLT or any other Appropriats Authorilies under Applicable Law.

In the evant that any conditions progosad by the NCLT are found unacceptable for anmy
reason whatsosver by the respective Companies, (hen the respective Companies
ghall ba anifled |o withdraw the Scheme In which event no rights and llabites

whatsoever shall accree to or ba incurred Inter se to or by the Companies or any of
tham.

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme shall be conditional upon and subject io:
the Stock Exchanges having issued iheir obeervation / no-objection letter as required
under the SEBI Listing Regulations read with the SEBI Crcutar,

tha Schema being approved by the respectiva requisite majorities of shareholders and
creditors {as applicable) of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company &5
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18,4

1B.5.

16.6.

20

20.1.

0.2,

@9

required undar the Act and as applicable under SEBI Circudar, subject to any
dispansation that may be granted by the NCLT;

the requisite consent, approval or permission of the Reserve Bank of India {85 per
RBI's Directions) or any other Appropriate Authodty, which by law may ba necessary
for the implemantation of this Scheme;

the Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authorlty under
sections 230-232 of the Act and the rules made thereunder;

the certifiad copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme baing flled with the
Registrar of Companies by the Transferor Company and the Transferse Company;

the Scheme shall not come info effect unless the sforementioned conditions
mentloned In clavss 18.1 to 18.5 above are satiafed and In such an event, unleas
each of tha conditions are satisfied, no rights and labilies whatsoaver shall acorue to
or be Incurrad inter sa the Companles or their respective shareholders or creditors oc

employees or any other persan,
EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROYALS

In the event of any of the sald sanctions and spprovals referred to in cleuss 19 not
being obtained and / or the Scherne not being sanctioned by the Hon'ble NCLT or
such other Appropriate Authority, If @ny, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancaled
and be of no effect, save and axcept in respect of any act or deed dons prior thereto
as is contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and /7 or labiities which might heve
arigen or accrued pursuant thareto and which shall be governed and be presarved or
worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or as may otharwise arise In law
and 85 agreed upon between the respectiva Companies io this Schame. Each party
shal bear and pay ks respectiva cosis, charges and expanses for and or in sonnecton
with the Schame unless otherwise mulually agresd,

it Is further provided in a case if the Board of Direclors of any of the Companies as
baing part of this Schame, at any stage prior to the Scheme coming into effect,
decides not to proceed further with the Scheme and withdraw the consent of the
respactive company to the Schemea, In such a case, the Scheme in its entirely shall
not be proceaded with by any party and this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelflad
and be of no effect.
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221,

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Save and excepl as provided elsewhers in the Scheme or expressly otherwise
agreed, all costs, charges, laxes including duties, levies and 21l clher expsanses of
Transferor Company and Trensferee Company arising out of or incumed in carrying
out and/or implemanting this Scheme and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by
Transferee Company.

In the evant that this Scheme fails o take affect or the Scheme is revoked in terms of
clause 20 of this Scheme, then the Transferor Company and the Transferss
Campany, shall bear their own costs and axpanses incumed by them, in relation to of
in connection with the Schame,

SEVERABILITY

If any clausa of this Scheme is found invalid unworkabis for any reason whatsoaver,
rulad llagal by any court of competant jurisdiction or unenforceable under prasent or
futwe laws, the same shall not, subject to the decision of Board of Directors, affect the
validity or implamentation of the other clavsas of this Scheme.

W.B.L Industrial Finance Co. Lid.

@5
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RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP

VALLATION | INVESTMENT BANKING | RESTRUCTURING | ADMSORY SERVICES

TRANSACTION SERVICES | TRAMSACTION TAX HBS
Advigoars

Strictly Private and Confidential

Date: September 21, 20077
feport Reference Number: RVA2223B0MREP163

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

MLEL. Industrial Finarce Company Limited Westarn India Commarcial Company Limited
21, Srand Road, 21, Strand Raad,

Kaolkata 700 001 Wolkata 700 001

Subject: Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio for proposed amalgamation of Western India
Commerclal Company Limited Into N.B.I. Industrial Finance Company Limited

Dear Sirs,

We refer to our engagement letter dated August 05, 2002 whereby the Board of Directors of N.A.L
Industriz| Finance Company Limited ("NBIFCL™) and Western India Commerclal Company Limited
{"WICCL") have eppointed ABSA Valuation Advisors LLP [*RBSA"/ “Valuer”] to recommeand the Share
Exchange Ratin for the proposed amalgamation of WICCL inte NBIFCL on & ‘going concern value'
premise, pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation between NBIFCL, WICCL and thelr respective
shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companias Act, 2013 [the “Scheme®). NBIIFCL and WICCL are together referred to as the “Specified
Companies")\

The Share Exchange ratic for the purpese of this report [“Report”) refers 1o the number of fully paid-
up egulty shares of face vatue INR 5/- each to be issued by NBIFCL 1o the equity shareholders of WICCL
s consideration for the proposed amaigamation of WICCL into NBIFCL on a “going concern value'
premise, pursiant to the Scheme (the "Share Exchange Ratio®).

This Report is our deliverable to recommend the Share Exchange Ratio to the Board of Directors of
the Specified Companies, for the proposed amalgamation of WICCL into NBIFCL pursuant to the
Scheme.

This Report | subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations, and discleimers detzlied
hereinafter, As such, the Report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the
redavant documents referred to therein.

CONTEXT AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

We understand that the mansgerment of WICCL and NBIFCL (together referred to as the
“Management”) are contemplating the amalgamation of WICCL Into MBIFCL on 2 ‘going concern’
basis. As consideration for amalgamation, NBIIFCL would issue its equity shares to the sharehobders of
WICCL, pursuant to the Scheme (the *Proposed Transaction™).

in this context, the Board of Directors of NBIFFCL and WICCL have jointly appointed RBSA, a Registered
Valuer Entity, to recommend the Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of WICCLinto
MBIFCL on 3 "going concemn value’ premise, pursuant to the Scheme. e,
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Advisors
SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with this exercise, we have considerad the foillowing infonmnation received from the

Maragement and/ ar obtained from the public domain:

& Audited financlal statements of the Specified Companies for FY2021 and FY2022;

* Provisional financial statements of the Specified Companies for the three menths period ended
June 30, 2022;

» Latest available financial statements of key Investee companies of the Specified Companies;

Draft Scheme of Amalgamation between NBIFCL, WICCL and their respective shareholders and

ereditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Comgaanies Act, 2013;

Websites of NSE Indis and BSE India and databases such as Capitalld and Mergermarkeat,;

Discussions and comrespondence with the Management;

Dther Information and documents corsidered relevant for the purpose of this engagement;

We have also obtained the explanations, information, and representations, which we believed

were reasonably necessary and refevant for our exercise from the Management.

PROCEDURES ADOPTED

Procedures adapted for our analysis included such substantive steps as we considered necessary
under the circumstances, Incuding, but not limited to the following:
«  Discussion with the Management to inter-alia:
— Undarstand the business and fundamental factors that affect the business of the
Speciflad Companles;
— Understand historfcal financial perfarmance, current state of affairs and expocted future
financial parfarmance of the Specified Companies;
Analysis of audited financial statements of the Specifled Companies for FY2021 and FY2022;
Analysis of Provisional financlal statemenis of the Specified Companles for the three months
perigd ended June 30, 2022;
»  Analysis of the letest available financial statements of the key investee companies of the Specified
Companies;
s Considered the draft Scheme;
= Selection of appropriate valuaticn approach and methodology/{ies);
= Determination of the Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of WICCL inta NBIIFCL,
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WALLATION | INYESTRIENT RANKING | RESTRUCTURING | ADVISORY SERVICES
TRANSACTION SERVICES | TRANSACTION TAX HBSA

Advisars
BACKGROUND
M.8.1, Industrial Finance Company Limited

MNBIIFCL, Incorporated in December 1936, is a public limited company incorporated under the Indian
Companies Act, 1913 with CIN L65923WR1936PLC0G65596 and has its registered office at 21, Strand
Road Kelkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.

NBIIFCL is a Mon-Banking Financlal Company ("NBFCY) and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India
under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, NBIIFCLis engaged in Investment in shares,
securities, and financial acthdity.

The subscribed equity share capital of NBIFCL as of June 30, 2021 Is INR 12.28 Mn conslsting of
2,456,806 equity shares of face value of INR 5 each fully paid up. The equity shares of NBIFCL are
listed on National $tock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE"),

The sharehalding pattern of MBIIFCL a5 of June 30, 202i is as under;

Shareholder category Mo, of shares Parcentags

. Promoter and Group 1,826,293 74.34
2. Public sharehalders 630,514 | 15.66
Total 2,456,806 | 100.00
Source; NIE filing
Western India Commercial Company Limited

WICCL, Incarporated In August 1928, s 8 public limited company Incorporated under the Indian
Companies Act, 1913 with CiN LE7120WB192EPLIDG3S924 and has its registered office at 21, Strand
Road Kedkata - 700001, West Bengal, India.

WICCL isa NBFC and Is registered with the Reserve Bark of India under section 45-14 of the Aeserve
Bank of India Act, 1934, WICCL is ergaged In investment in shares, securities, and financlal activity.

Thie Isswed and subscribed equity share capital of WICCL a5 of June 30, 2022 i3 INR 1.8 Mn consisting
of 18,000 aquity shares of face value of INR 100 sach. The equity shares of WICCL are listsd on the
Calcutta Stock Exchange [“CSE®).

The shareholding pattern of WICCL as of June 30, 2022 is a5 under:

7. Wa. Sharehalder category Mo, of shares Percentage

\ Promoter and Group :
z Pubilc shareholders 4,510 | 25.06
Total 18,000 | 100.00

Source: information provided by the Monagement
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Advisars
VALUATION APPROACH & METHODOLOGY

Valuation Base: Valuaticn base means the indication of the type of value being used in an
engagement. Different Valuation bases may lead to different conclusions of value. Cansidering the
nature of this exercise, we have adopted Relative Value gs the Valuation base.

Premise of Value: Premise of Value refers to the conditions and circumstances how an 3sset is
deployed. Considering the nature of this exercise, we have adopted ‘Going Concern Valve' as the
premise af valua.

Intended Users: This Report is intended for consurnption of the Board of Directors of NBIFCL and
WICCL and may be submitted to the sharehciders of NBIIFCL and WICCL and relevant regulatory and
judicial autherities as may be mandatorfty required under the laws of Indi, in connection with the
Froposed Transaciion.

It should be understood that the valuation of any entity or business is inherently subjective and is
subject to uncertainties and cortingendes, all of which are difficult to predict and are beyond the
control of the Management. In performing our analysis, we have relled on explanations, information,
provided by the Management and have made assumptions with respect to industry performance and
general business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of the Management
and respective Companies. This valuation could fluctuate with the passage of time, changes in
prevailing market conditions and prospects, Industry performanca and general businass and econamic
conditions financial and otherwise, of the Specified Companies, and other factors which generally
influence the valuation of companies and their assets.

Commanly accepted aporoach/ methads for detarmining the value of the equity shares of a com pany/
business, Include:

s Income Approach — Discounted Cash Flow method

&  Market Approach

* Asset Apgrosch — Net Asset Value method

There are several commonly used and accepted methods, within the market approach, income
approach gnd asset approach, for determining the Share Exchange Ratio, which have been considered
it the present case, 1o the extent relevant and applicable, and subject to the avallabllity of detailed
informaticn.

] = d Cash Fl

Income approach is a valuation approach that converts maintainable or future amounts {2.g., cash
flows or income and expensés) to a single current {i.e,, discounted or capitalized) amount.

Under the DCF method the projected free cash flows to the firm are discounted at the welghted
average cost of capital. This method is used to determing the present value of a business on a going
concern assumption and recognizes the time value of money by discounting the free cash flows for
the expliclt forecast period and the perpetuity value at an appropriate discount factor, The terminal
value represents the Total value of the avallable cash flow for all periods subsequent to the horizon
period. The terminal value of the business at the and of the horizon perod is estimated, discounted
to itz present value equivalent, and added to the present value of the available cash flow to estimate
the value of the business. -
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such DCF analysis involves determining the following:

=  Estimating future free cash fiows: Free cash fiows are the cash flows expected to be generated by
the compary/ asset that are avallable to the providers of the company's capital - both debt and
eguity.

» Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows Le., the cost of capital: This discount rate,
which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity cost to all the capital
providers (namely shareholders and creditors), weighted by their relative contribution to the tatal
capital of the company. The opportunity cost to the capital provider egquals the rate of return the
capital provider expects to earn on other investments of equivalent risk.

The Specified Companies are primariy engaged In investment in shares, securlties, and financial
activity. Considering inter-aliag the nature of the business of the Specified Companies and significant
uncertainties in preparation of the medium/ long term forecast, the Management has not provided
us the financial projections of the Specified Companies. Considering the aforementioned, we hawve
not adopted the Income Approach for the valuation.

Market Approach

herkat approach is a valustion approach that utes prices and other relevant information gencrated
by market transactlons Invelving identical or comparakle {i.e., similar) assets, lisbilities or a group of
aszats and liabilities, such as a business.

Market Price Method:

Under this mathod, the value of shares of a company |5 determined by taking the average of the
market capitalization of the equity shares of such compenles as quoted on a recognized stock
exchanpe over reasonable periods of ime where such quotations are arising from the shares being
regularty and freely traded in an active market, subject to the element of speculative suppert that may
biz inbuilt in the market price,

Thi market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the valus
of the equity shares of that company where such quotations ane arising from the shares baing regularly
and freely traded in, subject to the alement of specudative suppart that may be inbuilt in the value of
the shares. There couvld be situations where the value of the share as quoted on the stock market
would nat be regarded a5 3 proper index of the fair value of the share espedally where the market
values are fluctuating In a volatile capital market or whan market prices do not seem to be reflective
of financial perfermance, Further, in the case of a merger / amalgamation, where there is a question
of svaluating the shares of one company against thase of another, the volume of transactions and the
number of shares available for trading on the stock exchange over a reasonabile period would have to
be of a comparable standard.

In the present case, the aquity shares of NBIIFCL and WICCL are listed on the NSE and CSE respectively,
While the equity shares of NBIIFCL are traded on the NSE, the trading volume is irregular and erratic.
Since C5E has been derecognized as a stock exchange, the equity shares of WICCL are not traded.
Considering the aforementioned, we have not adopted market price method for present valuation
axercise.
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Comparable Transaction Multiple {CTM) Method

Under Comparable Transaction Methed, the value of shares / business of a company Is determined
based on market multiples of publicly disclosed transactions in the similar sgace as that of the subject
comparny. Multiples are generally based on data from recent transactions in a comparable sector, but
with appropriate adjustment after consideration has been given to the spacific characteristics of the
busiress being valued,

Comparable Companies Multiple (CCM) Method:

Under this method, the value of the shares / business of a company is estimated by applylng the
derived market multiple based on market quotatiors of comparable public / listed companies, in an
active market, possessing attributes similar to the business of such company - to the relevant finandial
parameter of the eompany [ business (based on past and | or prejected working results) after making
adjustrnents to the derlved multiples on account of dissimilarities with the comparable companles and
the strengths, weaknesses and other factors peculiar to the company being valued, These valuations
are based on the princlple that such market valuations, taking place between informed buyers and
Informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen
carefully and adjusted for differences between the circumstances.

Considaring Inter-alia, the business of Spacified Companies [investments holding companies), lack of
comparable listed companies, we have not adopted this method for present valuation exercise,

Assat Approach

The asset-based valuation tachaigue is based an the valus of the underlying net assets of the business,
either on a bock value basls or realizable value basis or replacement cost basls. The approach
considers falr value of assets and liabfities, to the extent possible, the respective assat would fetch,
or liability setiled on the Valuation Date,

The Specified Companiez are primarlly engaged in investment In shares, securities, and financial

activity and are investment holding companies. The fair value of the Specified Companies have been

estimated bazed on Asset Approach - Adjusted Net Asset Value Method, considering inter-alio the

following adjustments

L Falrvalue of Quoted shares based on their average market prices over an agpropriate period;

i, Falr value of Unguoted shares of key investes companies based on valuation approach, es
appropriate.

DISCLOSURE OF RY INTEREST OR COMFLICTS

We do not heve any financiel interest in the Specified Companies, nor do we have any conflict of
interest in camying owt this valuation as of this Beport Date, We are indepandent of the Specified
Companies and thelr promoters and have not been under any direct or Indirect influence, which may
#ffect the valuation exerclse.
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SCOPE, ASSUMPTIONS, EXCLUISIONS, LIMITATIONS ANMD DISCLAIMERS

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues dascribed herein are areas of qur
regular practice, These services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting/ tax due
difigence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided Gy us or our affiliates,

The scope of cur services §s to recommend a Share Exchange Ratia for the Proposed Transaction,
Valuation Standards ("ICAI V5" issued by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of india has been
adopted for the valuation.

The recommendatien contained hergin is as at the date of the Report {"Vakuation Date”} and Is not
irtended to represent value at any time other than the date of the Report,

This Report, its contents and the resylts hereln are (i) specific to the purpose of valuation agreed as
per the terms of our engagement; {li) the valuation Date and {fil) are based on the information
provided in the section - Sources of information. We have been informed by the Management that
the business activities of the Specified Companies have been carried out in the normal and ordinary
course berween June 30, 2022 and the Report date and that no material changes have octurred in
their respective operations and financial position between June 30, 2022 and the Report date.

&n analysks of this nature is necessarily based on the infarmation made availabie to us, the prevailing
stock market, financial, econemic, and other conditions In general and industry trends in particular,
as of the Valuation Date. Fvents occurring after the date hersof may affect this Report and the
assumptions used In preparing it, snd we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm
this Report.

The recommendaticn rendered in this Report only represents our recommendation based upon
information till date, furnished by the Mansgement {or their representatives) and other sources and
the sald re¢commendation shall be considered o be in the nature of non-binding advice, Cur
recommendation will however not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell declsion, far which
specific oplnion needs to be taken from expert advisors.

Valuation of » business or an entity is not a precise science and the condusions arrived at in many
cases will, of necessity, be subjactive and dependent on the exercise of individual judgement. There
ls, therefore, no single undisputed Share Exchange Ratio. While we have provided our
recommendation of the Share Exchange Ratio based on the information available to us and within the
scope of our engagement, others may have a different opinion. The final responsibllity for the
determination of the Share Exchange Ratlo at which the Prapased Transaction shall take place will be
with the Board of Directors of the Specified Companies who should take into sccount other factors
such #s their own assessment of the Proposed Transaction and Inputs from other advisors.

The Report assumes that the Specified Companies complies fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicabde in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise stated, and that they will be managed
in a competent and responsible manner. Further, unless specifically stated to the contrary, this Repart
has ghwen ro consideration 1o matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal title and compliance
with local laws, and litigations and other contingent liabilities that are not recorded/ reflected In the
financial statements provided to us.

We have relied on the assessment of the Management as regards to contingent and other iabilities.
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in the course of our valuation, we were provided with both written and verbal Infermation. We have
evaluated the Information provided 1o us by/ on behalf of the Management through broad inquiry,
analysis and review but have not carred out a due dilizence or audit of the infarmation provided for
the purpase of this engagement. Our conclusions are based on the assumptions, forecasts and other
Information given by/on behalf of the Managemant. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
offer any form of assurance regarding the truth and falmass of the financial pesition as indicated in
the financial stetemants. Further, with respect ta the information and explanation sought for the
Specifled Companies, we have been given to understand by the Management that they have pot
cmitted any relevant or maeterisl information. Our conclusions are based on the assumpiions and
informatien glven by/an behalf of the Management. The Managemeant has indicated to us that they
have understood that any omissions, insccuracies, or misstatements may materially affect our
vitluation analysis/resulls,

This Report does not analyse the business/ commerclal reasons behind the Proposed Transaction nor the
likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, t does not address the relative merits of the Proposed
Transaction 3s compared with any other alterative business transaction or other alternatives or whather
such alternatives could be achieved o are available.

Wi have relied on data from external sources alsn 1o conchude the valuation, These sources are believed
to be rellable and therefore, we assume no liabBEity for the truth or accuracy of any data, opinions or
estimates furnished by others that have been used In this analysis. Where we have relied on data,
apinions or estimates from external sources, reasonable care has been taken to ensure that such data
hae been corvectly extracted from those sources and / or reproduced in its proper form and context

The valuation analysis is based on the exerglse of judicious discretion by the valuer taking into account
the relevant factors. There will always be several factors, e.g., management capablility, present and
pruspective competition, yield on comparable securfties, market sentiment, ete. which may not be
apparent from the financlal statements but could strongly Influence the value.

Mo Investigation/ inspection of the Sgecified Companies’ claim to title of assets has been made for the
purpose of this Report and the Specified companies' claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid.
Me consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyand the loans disclosad
in the financial statements. Therefore, no responsibdity is assumed for matters of a legal nature,

Meither this Report nor its cortents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or document
given to third parties other than in connection with the Scheme, without our prior written consent. This
Raport does not [n any manner address the prices at which equity shares of the Specifled Companies will
trade following announcement of the Proposed Transaction amd we express no opinion or
recommendation as to how the shareholders of the Specified Companles should vote at the
shareholders' meeting(s] to be held Inconnection with the Proposed Transaction.

This Report and the information contained in it is absolutely confidential and intended only for the sole
use and Information of the Board of Directors of MBIFCL and WICCL In connection with the Proposed
Transactien including for the purpose of obtaining regulatory approvals, as required under applicable
laws of india, for the proposed amalgamaticen. Without fimiting the foregoing, we understand that
NBIFCL and WICCL may be required to share this Report with thelr sharsholders, regulatory or judicial
authorities, In connection with the Proposed Transaction [together, "Permitted Recipients"). We hereby
give consent to such disclosure of this Report, on the basis that the Valuer owes responsibility only to
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MBIIFCL and WICCL that have engaged us, under the terms of the engagement, and to no other person;
and that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Valuer accepts no responsibility or lability to any
other party, In connection with this Report. It is clarilied that reference to this Report In any document
and [/ or filing with Permitied Reciplents, in connection with the Proposed Transactlon, shall not be
deemed to be an acceptance by the Valuer of any responsibility or liability to any person/ party ather
than the specified Companies.

The Management has informead us that;

»  There are no unusual / abnormal events in the Specified Companies till the Report Date materially
Impacting thelr operating / finandlal performance. Further, the Managerment has informed us that
all material information impacting the Specified Companies has been disclosed to us.

s There would he no material variation between tha draft Scheme of Amalgamation and the final
scheme submitted and approved by the relevant authorities.

We owe responsibility to only the Boards of Directors of NBIFCL and WICCL that has appointed us
urder the terms of cur engagement letter and nobody else, We will not be liable for any lesses, claims,
damages or llabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions of or advice given by any other advisar
i the Specified Companies, In no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses
arising In any way from fracdulent acts, misrepresentations or willful default on part of the Specified
Companies, their directors, employees or agents, In no circumstances shall the liability of a Valuer, its
partners, its directors or employees, relating to the services provided in connection with the
engagement set out in this Valuation Report shall exceed the amount pald to the Valuer in respect of
the fees charged by It for these services.

We do not accept any liability to any third party in relatlon to the issue of this Report. it i understood
that this analysis does not represent a faicnesz opinion on the Share Exchange Ratlo, This Repart is not
a substitute for the third party’s own due dillgence/ appraisal/ enquiries/ independant advice that the
third party should undertake for his purpose.

Our Report can be used by the Board of Directors of NEIFCL and WICCL anly for the purpose, as
indicatad in this Report, for which we have been appointad. The results of our valuation analysis and
our Report cannot be used or relied by NBIIFCL andfor WICCL for any other purpose or by any other
party for any purpose whatsoever. We are not responsible to any other persan/ party for any decision
of such person / party based on this Report. Ary person / party intending to pravide finance [ invest
in the shares / business of the companies / their holding companles/ subsidiaries/ assaciates/ investee
companies, other group companiles, if any, shall do so after seeking thelr own professional advice and
after carrylng out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making an informed
decision. if any person/ party (other than the Specified Companies) choases to place refiance upan
any matters included in the Report, they shall do so at their own risk and without recourse to the
Valuer. It is hereby notified that usage, reproduction, distribution, dreulation, copying or otherwise
quating of this Report or any part thereof, except for the purpose as set out earfier in this Report,
without cur prior written consent, is not permitted, unless there is a statutory or a regulatory
requirement to do so.

The Management of NBIFCL and WICCL have been provided with the opportunity fo review the draft
report (excluding the recommended Share Exchange Ratio) 2s part of our stancard practice to make
sure that factual inaccuracies / omissions are avoided in our final Report. The fee for the engagement
I5 not contingent upon the results reparted. This Report is subject to the liws of India and should be
used in connection with the Scheme,
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BASIS OF FAIR SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO

The Proposed Transaction contemplates the amalgamation of WICCL into NBIFCL on a 'going concern
value' premise, pursuant to the Schems. Arrlving at the Share Exchange Ratio far the Proposed
Transaction would reguire determining the value of the aquity shares of the Speckfied Companies,
independently but on a relative basis, and without considering the Proposed Transaction,

The Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a relative valuation based on the Net
Assets method explained herein earlier and other gualltathse factors relevant to each company and
the. business dynamics, having regard to information base, key underlying assumptions and
l[imitatons.

The computation of the Share Exchange Ratio is as under:

Ualuathon Spgroach el WRCCL

IR pershare  Weight  INR per share Waight

| Incomie Approach — DCF Method o) % A 0%
| Market Appraach: Market Price Method A 0% HA 03
Warket Appraach: Comparable Companies MA 0% MR 6
Multiple Mathod |
Asset Approsch; Adjusted Not Aset Value 6,609 1005 207,076 1005
Methad

Redative Ve per Fouity - Share
4 — Nat Applicabie

W Face value INR 5 sach

& Foce vale INR 100 eoct

On the basis of the foregoing end on consideration of the relevant factors and clrcumstances as
discussed and outlined herein above, we recommend the following Share Exchange Ratle for the
amaigamation of WICCOL intg NBIFCL:

84 (Ninety four) fully paid-up Equity Shares of foce value of INR 5 each of N.B.I Industrial Finance

Company Limited for every 3 [Three] fully paid-uvp Eguity Shares of face walue INR 100 each held In
Western Indla Commercial Company Limited.

The Sharz Exchange Ratio has been determined based on the capltal structure of the Specified
Companies as on the Report Date. In the event of any materlal change In the Scheme or capltal
structure of the Specified Comparnies, the Share Exchange Ratlo may not remaln walid.

Respectfully submitted,

For RRSA Valuation Advisors LLP
{RVE No.: IBBI/RV-E/05/2015/110}

= i,

B2hats Mo~ NEN
Fartner ! ._,_ .'I
Ravishu Vinod Shah W

Aszet Clags: Securities or Finan
[RV No.: IBBI/RV/O6/2020/12728)
Date: September 21, 2002

Blace: Murnbai
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fHE DRAFT SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION UNDER SECTIONSE
olatal MY 1 RaARLA Iy ] HE LLMPANIES A LI 53

COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED, M.B.1. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPA

U RS

Pregant = Directors | Members
i Revi Goanka Chairman of Audit Cammities
Z. T K Bhattacnarya Marmber of Auwdil Gommittes

Othar imvtees and advisors | consultants were presant st the meeting aiong with the Company Secretary
at the maating

1.0 Baokground

1.1 A meating of the Audit Commitiee ('Commiitze’) was held on 21" Sectember, 2022, inler-aks, to
songider and if thought fit, recommend fo the Boare of Directors (Board') the proposed Schame
of Amalgamation (Schame’) under seclions 230 to 232 and cther applicabie provisions of ihe
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), between Wastern Indla Commwrcial Company Limitsd
[hereinafier referred to 25 ‘the Transteror Company' or ‘the Gompany' or ‘Western Irdia?),
NLB.|.Industrisl Finance Company Limited (herainafisr refarred 1o 88 ‘the Transferse Company' of
‘N B4 Industrial) and their respective sharehciders and creditors undar the provigons of the Act

1.2 Tha sppointed dale for the Scheme is 18t April, 2022 or auch other date ss may be mutually
agraad to by the Baard of the Compaany and the Transfarse Company o such ofher dats a3 may
be fixad or approved by the Mational Gompany Law Tribunal, Kolkale Bench {NCLT') ar sy
other Appropriate Autharity (as defined in the Scheme) and shall be operative from the Effective
Date (a3 defined in the Schema),

13 The Scheme will be presentad befcre the NCLT under sections 230 to 232 and ather spplicabla
previsions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and will &lso be In complianos with sectixn
2(18) of the Income-tax Act, 1861 and Securities and Exchange Board of India Master Circular
Igp. iﬁf_]mmcmmrufmmﬁzuwmmmea dated 23™ Noverbar 2021 {SEBl Mastar
imu 3

1.4 in terms of the SEBI Mastar Circular. @ report from the Audit Commites is requirad
recommending the draft Scheme. taking mto consdaration, inter-aliz, the Valugtion Report (as
defined herginaftes], and commenling on the nead for the amalgamation, rationale of the
Scname, impact of the Scheme on the sharehoiders, cost benefit enalysis of the Schems and
synergies of business of the entities Involved in the Schems. Thie repori of the Commitiee s
made in orded o comply with the requirements of the SEBI Master Circular
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WESTERN INDIR COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CiN No. L7 120WB1928PLCI93924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLFATA - T00 001

o 22313 0957, 2243 TTI5, 2230 TOOS, 223 BEO/0G04 (4 LINES), Fa, : 032.2212 1680

E.mail : westemindiacommancialcoti@omal. com

The Sallont Features of the Schamo
The Schema inarali providas fon

Amalgamation of tha Company with the Transferee Company and coneaquent issue of equity
ghares oy the Transferse Company o the shareholdars of the Company in accordance with
clauss 10 of tha Schame.

Tha appeinted date for the Scheme ia 18t April, 2022 or such ofher cate as may be mulually
agreed to by the Board of the Company and the Transferes Company or such other dale as may
be fixed or approved by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authorlty (as defined in the Schema).

The Scheme |s subject to vanous conditions precedent spacified in the Schamsa:

B

Tha stock exchanges, Le., Natiane] Stock Exchange of indla Limited ('NSE') and Calkuita
Stock Exchangs ['CSE') |colectivaly refermad to as ‘Stock Exchanges) having isued
thelr obsarvatian | no-objection lelter as required under the Securities and Exchanpe
Bosrd of India (Lisfings Obligations and Disclosura Requirements) Regulafions, 201%
['SEBI Listing Regulations') read with the SEBI Mastar Circutar;

The Schemse baing approved by the respactive requisite majorities of shareholders and
craditors {as appliceble) of the Company and the Transferes Compary 88 required under
the Act and as applicable under SEB! Master Crowlar, aubjeci to any dispansastion that
may be grantad by the NCLT;

The requisite corsent, aporoval or permission of the Resarve Eank of India or any other
Appropriste Authorily (as defined in the Schems), which by law may be necessary for the
Implameniation of this Schama.

Tha Scheme being sanctioned by the NCLT or any other Appropriate Authorlty (as
'dﬁ'lmdm d:Ir the Schema) under sections 230-232 of the Act and the rubse made
un

The corilied copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the
g:ghwn-nfﬂmm-ﬂu (me dafined In the Schema) by the Company and the Tranaferse
Frpary.

The repert of the Audit Committes |s mads In order to comply with the requirements of ine SEQI
Master Circular, afler considaring the fellowing: ? -

Draft Schems, duly infiated by the Chalrman of the Company for the purpess of
idamiification; :

Valuation repart dated 21" Seplember, 2022 ssued by RBSA Vauation Advisors LLP
(regisirelion number IBBURV-EOS2018/110) (the Registered Valuer), Inlar-alia,
mandlm tha fair share sxchange ratio (Share Exchange Ratk') (Valuation

Fairress opinion daled 21 September, <022 ssued by Sumedha Fissal Services
Limited. Merchant Banker regiglared with the Securities @nd Exchange Board of Indis
E;Eﬂ:jw the Shame Exchange Ratio as mentioned in the Valuation Report {'Farness
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CIN Ne. L67120WE1928PLC(093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 730 001
- 32130057, 2243 TT25, 2290 7905, 2230 $801/9604 (4 LINES), Fax : 033-2213 1650
E.mmall : wastemindiacommercialooitd@gmrail.cam

Rationale of thoe Schame

The proposad amalgamation would ba in the bes! Interests of the Tranaferor Company and the
Transfares Company and their respectva shareholders, employess. craditors and other
stakeholgers, Tha proposed amalgamation will yiald advantages as sat out inter aka balow:

& Tha shares of the Transforor Company are listed an CSE and no trading actavity is beinp
undertaken in tha shares of Transfarer Company. Upon smalgamalion of the Transferor
Company into 1he Transferes Company, ecuity ehares of the Transferea Company, listed
on NSE having nationwide trading tarminal, would be issued w0 the sharsholders of the
Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation woulkd result In providing better quidity to
the shareholders of Transfaror Company whige not baing prejudicial to the Interest of the
Transferse Company and its sharehoiders, creditors, enployees or any stakehclders.

b.  The amalgamation would resull In improving the patantial for further expansion of the
businesses by way of consolidation of capital base and increased bormewing strangths of
tha combined entity,

& The smalgamation will resuit not only in consolidating and Improving the internal
eyslems, procedures and controls but will also bring grester managemeni and
operational efficiency due 1o integralion of verious similer functions being carried out by
bath the Trensferor Comparny and Transferse Company.

d  Greater size, scawe, financial strergth and flexibility for the marged Trensferee Company
will resuli in maximizing and unlocking overall sharahciders valus.

e The amalgamation will rasult in signiicent reduction in muliplicity of legal and regulatory
compiiances which at presant is required to be made separately by both the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company with saving in administralive cosls end deriving
econiomies of scale.

The Audt Commities reviewed and noled the Shers Ewchange Ratlo recommendsd in the
‘aluation Report and confirmed the follewing exchange mlio:

"84 (ninaty four) fully pald up equity sheres of face value of INR &- each of the Transferee
Company for evary 3 (three) fully paid up equily shares of face valus of INR 100/- esch of the
Transferor Company™

Further, the Audit Committea notad that the Faimess Opinion from Sumedha Fiscal Services
fL.lJrnIm:lhns mﬂbinudl inat the Share Exchange Retio as recommend by the Registensd Valuer, is
rand reasonable,

Impact of the Schema on the shareholders

Tha Scheme would result in improving the potential for further expansion of the businesses by
way of consolidation of capital base and Increased bomowing strengihs of the combined entity.
The Committee alse nated that the Schema (3 subject to the majority approval of e public




WESTERN INDIR COMMERCIAL CO. LTD. D

CI Na. L6T120WH1928PLON93924 )
21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 001
i 2393 DOET, 2243 TTI5, 2290 TA05, 2230 9601/0804 (4 LINES), Fax : 0332213 1880
E.mall : cokiifgmei, com

shansnolders of the Company. The Audil Sommitiee was of tha apinion that the Schema i no!
deirimental to the interesis of the sharsholders of the Company. Further, the nesd for the
smalgamation and rationale of the Schems ie ssl oul In 81, 3.1 sbove,

5D Cost baneflt analysis of the Scheme

B1 The Cengldarstion (es defined in the Schems) represenis = feir value of the business ss
aubstantisted by the Share Exchange Ratio recommended in the Valuation Report and Falrmess
Opinicn obfalned in relatlon to the amalgamation. The Schame would antall sorme coats fowards
implamantation. However, the banefits of the Schems over a longer period are skpected 1o fer
oubwelgh such costs for tha stakeholders of the Schame entliies,

&0 Synargles of business of the entities Involved In the Scheme are set out in 5l No. 3.1
above
7.0  Recommendations of the Audit Committes

T The Audit Committes after due deliberations end due consideration of all the terms of the drat
Scheme, Share Exchange Ratic / Velustion Report, Fairness Opinion, rationale of the Scheme,
impact of the Schamsa on the sharshalders and other stakeholders, cost bensfit analysls of the
Schems and tha specific matters mentioned abovwe, ressmmands the draft Scherms for favorabla
conaideration by tha Board of the Company, the Slock Exchanges, SEBI and other applicabla
regulatory authorities,

This report of the Commitiee is made in crder to camply with the requisements of Part [(A)(2)(c) of
the SEBI Master Clroular aftur considering the nécessary documants.

By Order of thw Audit Committos of Wesien Indis Comme‘cial Company Lirviled

(v :

Designation: Cheiman of the Commitiss

DIN: 01353012

Plasa: Kolkats
Date: 21" Seplember, 2022
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September 21, 2022

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

N.B.I Industrial Finance Company Limited ~ Western India Commercial Company Limited
21, Strand Road, 21, Strand Road,

Kolkata 700 001 Kolkata 700 001

Members of the Board:

Subjeck: “Faiurness Opinion” on the Equity Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed
amalgamation of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“WICCL") into NB.L
Industrial Finance Company Limited (“NBITFCL").

Purpose

We, Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited (“SFSL"), refer to the engagement letter dabed
August 5, 2022, towards issuance of "Faimess Opinion” report as required under SEBI
Master Circular Ref. No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DILL/CIR/P/2021,0000000665 dated November 23,
2021, whereby N.Bl. Industrial Finance Company Limited ("NBIIFCL") and Western
India Commercial Company Limited ("WICCL") (hereby referred to as “Companies”)
have jointly appointed us, inter alia, to provide the fairness opinlon to the Board of
Directors of NBIFFCL and WICCL on the respectve Equity Share Exchange Ratio
recommended in the valuation report dated September 21, 2022 (*Valuation Report™)
issued by EBSA Valuation Adviscrs LLP ("EBSA" or "Valuer”) for the proposed
amalgamation of WICCL into NBIFCL as a going concem (“Proposed Transaction™),

pursuant to the proposed amalgamation between WICCL and NBIFCL and their
respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Scheme™),

Sumedha Fiscal Services Limited (YSFSL")

SF3L is a Category 1 Merchant Banker bearing SEBI Registrabion Number [INMOODOI8753.
The registered office is situated at 6A Geetanjali, 6th Floor, 88 Middleton Street, Kolkata -
700 071, West Bengal, India.

Sumedha Fiscal Sertdces Lid,

CINT L0201 M BE S8DPLCIN 7455

Fegiserved & Corporate Ofloe:

&0 Ceetniajndd, B0 Miulifletan Streel, Kolloiin =TT
Telophone : #8033 FH0E0Q06 /G758
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Proposed Transaction Background

NBIFCL and WICCL have proposed to enter into the scheme of amalgamation, which
envisages the merger of WICCL into NBIIFCL, Pursuant to the Merger, NBIFCL will issue
and allot to the shareholders of WICCL, 94 fully paid-up equity shares of face value [NR
5.00 each of NBIFCL for every 3 fully paid-up equity shares of face value INR 100.00 each
of WICCL held by such shareholders (“Share Exchange Ratio").

NBIIFCL and WICCL, in terms of the Appointment Letter, have requested us to issoe our
independent opinion on the faimess of the Equity Share Exchange Ratio recommended by
the Valuer (“Fairness Opinion™) in relation to the proposed transaction, Our scope is
restricted to providing an Opinion on the Equity Share Exchange Ratio towards the
merger of WICCL into NBIIFCL.

Sources of Information
In arriving at our Opinion, we have reviewed the following information:

= Valuation report by REBSA Valuation Advisors LLF, dated September 21, 2022
recommending the Equity Share Exchange Ratio for the Proposed Transaction.

= Draft Scheme of Arrangement towards the proposed transaction between WICCL
and NBIFCL and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 o
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

» Audited Financial Statements of NBIFCL and WICCL for Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2020, March 31, 2021, and March 31, 2022 as well as provisional Financial
Statements for the three months period ended June 30, 2022,

* Financial Statements of companies where both NBIOFCL and WICCL have
investments.

» Further, we have discugsions with EBSA Valuation Advisors LLF on such matters
which we believed were necessary or appropriate for the purpose of issuing the
Opindon.

* Such other information, documents, data, reports, discussions, and explanations
recetved verbally and in writing from the Management of NBIIFCL and WICCL.

» Moreover, we have taken into consideration certain publicly available information,
and have taken into account such other matters as we deemed necessary including
our assessment of general economic, market and monetary conditions.

Sumedha Fiscdl Serdces Lid.

ETNy L2101 WaIFREFLODATIES
Regintered & Corporate Ofice:

G Centanjall, A8 Middizton Street, Kollcata = TO0OTI,
Telephone : +81 33 2220 A936 | 6TSE
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Brief Profile of the Companies Under Reference

NBIFCL: Incorporated on December 21, 1936, N.B.I Industrial Finance Company Limited
("NBIIFCL"} is a Non-Banking Finance Company (INBFC) registered with the Reserve
Bank of India vide Registration Number 5.00252. NBIIFCL is presently engaged in the
business of investment in shares and securities and financial activity. The equity shares of
NBIFCL are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") (Symbol:
NBIFIN) (ISIN: INE3&5II020).

WICCL: Incorporated on August 13, 1928, Western India Commercial Company Limited
("WICCL") is a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with the Reserve Bank
of India vide Registration Number B-05.06730. WICCL is presently engaged in the
business of investment in shares and securities and financial activity. The equity shares of
WICCL are listed on the Calcutta Stock Exchange (“CSE") (Scrip Code: 033038) (ISIN:
INE925M01015).

Exclusions and Limitations

The report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant
documents referred to therein.

We have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy and
completeness of all information that was publicly available or provided or otherwise made
available to us by the management of both NBIIFCL and WICCL for the purposes of the
Fairness Opinion. We express no opinion, and accordingly, accept no responsibility with
respect to or for such information on an “as is” basis, and have not verified the accuracy
and/or the completeness of the same from our end.

Clur opinion is necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in
effect on the date of the issue of Fairness Opinion, and the information made available to
us as of, the date hereof, incduding the capital atructure of NBIOFCL and WICCL. Our
opinion does not address matters such as corporate governance or shareholder rights. We
have assumed the Proposed Transaction is legally enforceable.

We assume no responsibility for the legal tax, accounting or structuring matters
including, but not limited to, legal or title concerns. We have further assumed that the
Transaction would be carried out in complisnce with applicable laws rules and
regulations. Our opinion is not, nor should it be construed as our opinion or certifying the
compliance of the proposed transter with the provisions of any law including companies,
taxation and capital market-related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues
arising thereon.

Sumedha Fiscal Services Ltd.

CIN: L7040 WELASRPLOOSF 405
Begtered & Corparete (Hiice:

A Oeetanfall, BB Middleton Strest, Hulkais — TODDT],
Tel=phone | +41 33 2290 RU3E | 675R
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Our work does not constitute an audit, due diligence or verification of historical financials
including the working results of the companies or their business referred o in this report.
Accordingly, we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of
any fAnancial information referred to in this report.

We have not assumed an obligation to conduet, nor have we conducted any physical
inspection or title verification of the properties or faciliies of NBIFCL or WICCL, nor
have we been furnished with any such appraisals. No investigation of the companies'
claim to the title of assets or property owned by the companies has been made for the
purpase of this Fairness Opinion.

We have not received any internal management information statements or any non-public
reports, and instead, have relied upon information that was publicly available or provided
or otherwise made available to us by NBIFCL and WICCL on an “as is” basis for the
purpose of this Fairness Opinion,

We are not experts in the evaluation of litigation or other actual or threatened claims. We
have assumed that there are no other contingent liabilities or circumstances that could
materially affect the business or the financial prospects of NBIIFCL or WICCL.

We understand that the management of NBIIFCL and WICCL, during our discussion with
them, would have drawn our attention to all information and matters which may have an
impact on our analysis and opinlon,

We have assumed that in the course of obtaining necessary regulatory or other consens, no
restricions will be imposed or there will be no delays that will have a material adverse
effect an the conditions as they currently exist and on the information made available to us
as of the date hereof. It should be undersinod that although subsequent developments
may affect this Pairness Opinion, we do not have an obligation to update, revise or
reaffirm this opinion.

In the ordinary course of business, the SFSL Group is engaged in auditing, assurance,
insolvency practice, merchant banking, debt restructuring, and loan syndication. In the
ordinary course of its trading, investing and finandng activities, any member of the SFSL
Group may at any time hold long or short positions, and may trade or otherwise effact
transactions, for its own account, in debt or equity securities or senicr loans of any
company that may be involved in the proposed amalgamation.

Bumedha Fisedl Services Lid.

CTA: L270101 WELISIPLCOSTH 6T

Fegisiersd & Coupovule Oilce:
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We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendation at all as to NBOIFCL's
and WICCL's underlying decision to effect the proposed amalgamation. We also do not
provide any recommendation to the holders of equity shares of NEIIFCL and WICCL with
respect to the proposed amalgamation,

We hereby declare that we do not have any direct or indirect material pecuniary
relationship with NBIFCL and WICCL, except to the extent of professional fees agreed
upon amongst us for this assignment of Fairness Opinion.

This report is issued on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the persons to
whom it is addressed and for the purpose described above. We will not accept any liability
or responsibility to any person other than those to whom it Is addressed, The report must
not be made available or copied in whole or in part to any other person without our

express writhen permission

Conclusion

Viluer's Recommendation: As stated in the Valustion Report by RBSA Valuation
Advisors LLP, they have recommended the following Share Exchange Ratio for the
amalgamation of WICCL into NBIFCL:

94 fully paid-up Equity Shares of the face value of INR § each of NBI Industrial Finance
Company Limited for every 3 fully paid-up Equity Shares of face value INR 100 each held in
Western Imdia Commiercinl Company Limited.

Qur Opinion on the Valuer's Report: Based on the information, and data made available
to us, mcluding the Valuation Report by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP, our examination
and analysis of factors that we deemed relevant and subject to the scope, limitations as
mentioned herein above, we are of the opinion that the proposed Equity Share Exchange
Ratio as suggested by RBSA Valuation Advisors LLP in relation to the proposed
amalgamation of WICCL into NBIFCL is fair from a financial point of view to the
shareholders.

Distribution of the Fairness Opinion
The Fairness Opinion is addressed only to the Board of Directors of NBITFCL and WICCL.
The Fairness Opinion shall not otherwise be disclosed or referred to publicly or to any
third party without SFSL's prior consent.
However, NBIIFCL and WICCL may provide s copy of the Faimess Opinion if
requested/called upon by any regulatory authoritles of India subject to promptly

Sumedha Fiscal Services Ltd.
CTNe LPD10I WEERSSPLOOW 405
& Corporste Dfflcs:
B Geptunjali, BB Middleton Street, Kolois - TOGTL,
Telephone : 451 33 3229 BU36 [ 5753
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intimating SFSL in writing about the receipt of such request. The Fairness Opinicn should
be read in totality and not in parcts, Further, this Fairness Opinion should not be used or
quoted for any purpose other than the purpose mentioned hereinabove, If this Fairness
Opinion is used by any person other than to whom it is addressed or for any purpose
other than the purpose stated hereinabove, then, we will not be liable for any
consequences thereof and shall not take any responsibility for the same. Neither this
Faimess Qpinion nor its contents may be referred to or quoted tofby any third party, in
any registration statemnent, prospectus, offering memorandum, annual reporl, loan
agreement or any other agreement or documents given to third parties. In no
circumstances, however, will SFSL or its management, directors, officers, employees,
agents, advisors, representatives and controlling persons of SFSL accept any responsibility
or lizbility including the pecuniary or financial liability fo any third party.

For dha Fiscal Services Limited

Bijay Murmuria
Director

Sumedha Fizcal Services Ltd.

CTHY L7001 WEIMBNPLEDSF40E

Begistersd & Corparate Office: f
64 Ceetanjali, BB Middleton Strest, Kolkata - 700071,

Telaphons : +21 T3 JXFY BUAG [ G675



PRE-AMALGAMATION SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

(POST AMAL GAMATION, WESTERN INDLA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD, SHALL STAND DISSOLVED)  Annesune F1

F securities

1. Name of Listed Enty: WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL GO, LTD. {CIN:- LE7120WE1928PLC092824)

2 Zerip Code 33038, Class of Securify Equity

3. Shars Holding Pattem Filsd under : Reg. 31(1)a)/Reg. 31(1Nb)Reg. 31(1)c )
a. If under 31 {1)(b) than indicate the report for Cuarter ending: 3002022
b. If under. 3101 }e ) then indicale date of allsimentfextinguishment

4 Declaration - The Listed entity s required o subrril fhe _.u-u_...._.:munmmnmﬂm—ﬁ_._ Iy thie extent of subrission of Information:-

Particutars Yes* No®
1|Whether tha Listed Enity has issuad any partly paid up shares? Mo
2 [Vheaher the Listed Enity hees issuad any Convedible Securifies or Warrants? = Mo
3| Whether the Listed Enlily has any shares agains! which depository receipls are issued? Mo
4| Whather the Listed Entity has any shares in Locked-in? Mo

Mo

5{Whether any shares heid by promaoters are pledoe or oiherwise encumbened?

 If the Listed Entity selacis the option "No' for the questions above, the columus for the partly paid up shares, Qutstanding
Convartible Securties’Warrants, dapository recaipts, Iocked-in shares, No of shares pledged or ofherwise encumbered by
promotars, as appliceble, shall not be displayed at the time of dissemination sn the Stock Exchange websibe Also wherever
thers is Mo’ declared by Listed Entity in above table the values will be coneidered as "Zar' by default on submission of the

fnrrnat of holding of specified securfies.

& Tha tabular format for disclosure of holding of specified securities is as foliows:-
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PRE AMALGAMATION SHAREHOLDING PATTERM Annexure FZ (A)

1. Mame of Listed Entity: N.B.1. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE ©0. LTD. {CIN:LE5823WR1936PLCOBSS5HE)
2. Serip Code 014018 Name of Scrip MBIFIN, Class of Security Equity
3. Share Holding Pattem Filed under : Reg, 31(1)a)Reg. 31{1)ib)Reg. 31(1)c )

5. Hunder 31 (1)) then indicate the reporl for Quartar anding: 30V0B/20ZE

b. i under 31(1)(c ) then indicate date of allctmant/extirguishmant

4. Daclaration ; The Listed enfily s required o eubmit the following declaration to the extant of sudnussion of nformation.-

U.’-ﬁin_.mﬂd s
4 [Whather the Listed Endi sharas?

2 |Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Corarlible Securities o Warranis?

AlWhather the Lished has arny shares Inat which depositony recaipts ane issued?

A Whaether the Listed Entity has any shares in Locked-in?

z|Z|Z|312|8

5 [Whather any shares held by promaters are pledge or oterwise ancumbered?

fermat of holding of speclied securities.

5. The tehular format for disclosune of holding of specified securiles iz a5 follows:-
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POST AMALGAMATION SHAREHOLDING PATTERN Annexure FZ (B)

of hol

1. Mame of Listed Entity: M.B. INDUSTRIAL FINAMNGE CO. LTD. Aﬂzurmm_ﬁmwﬁqm."_umﬂu_lﬂammmﬁu
2. Serip Code 014018 Nama of Scrip NBIFIN, Class of Security Equily
3. Share Haiding Pattern Filed under - Reg. 31{1){akReq. 31(N)(b¥Reg. 31(1)e )

= If undar 31 (1) then indicate the repart for Quearter ending: 30/06/2022

b. If undes 31{1)(c ) then indicate dals of lotmentiextinguishment

4. Daclaration : The Listed enfity is required o aybhmit the fallowing daciaraticn o the extent of submisston of information:-

Particulars Vet

irainer he Lisind Entity has msued any partly paid up shares?

Whathar thi Listed Enfity has issuad an Comvertible Secufities or Wamants?

Whathar the Listed has any ahares against which deposiery receipts are issued?

war e Listed Enfity has anmy shares in Locked-in?

z\z|2|7|3|E

=TWhather arry shares hekd by promolers ane pledge o cihenyiss encumbared?

* f the Listad Endity selects the opion 'No' for the gquestions above, tha eolumus for the partty paid up shares, Cutstanding
Convartible Securtias/W arrants, depositary receibls, \ocked-in shares, Mo of shares pledged or olherwise encumbersd by
promoters, as applicable, shall not ba dispiayed at the time of disseminalion on the Stock Exchange websie Ao wheraver
there i "N’ declared hy Listad Enfity in abeve table the values will be considered as ‘Zery’ by defaull on submission of the
format of holding of spacified securities.

5. Tha tabular format for disclosurs of helding of specified securities is as follows:-
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WESTERN INDIR COMMERCIAL CO. LTD. )

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC0Y3924

71, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 00

1
- 213 0RET, 2243 TTIS, 2230 TROS, 2230 9801/9604 (4 LINES), Fax : 033-2213 1650
E mal | westemindiscommancialcataggrmail.com

Annexure G1

The financial details of companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited statement of Accounts:

Mame of the Company: Western India Commerclal Company Limited (Transferor Company}

_(Re. in Crores)
Particulars As per As per last 1 year prior lo the | 2 years prior
Unaudited Audited lagt Audited to the last
| Financials Financial Year | Financial Year Audited
[Limited Financial
Reviewed) Year
T 30.08.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
| Equity Paid up Capital 0.18 0.1B 018 0.13
Rozerves and surpius 413,56 50337 526 B4 378.58
Camy forward losses . . = = al
Met Warth . 33.73 3972 28.97 73.15
“Miscellaneous Expenditura = - - -
Secured Loans = = .
Unsecured Loans - | - - -
Ficed Assats i - : S
Income from Cperatians 0.05 3.0 0.38 341
Total Income 0.06 301 0.38 341
| Total Expanditure 007 0.33 0.24 .28
| Profit before Tax {0.01) 2 68 015 3.15
Profit after Tax 0.00 145 0.68 . 315
Gash profit {0.07) 268 0.15 3.15
"EPS - Basic and diluted 385 803.77 | 383,00 1,748.84
| (INRY
Baok value (INR)* 2,290,857 27974702 | 3,31,678.33 210,422 04
hotes:

1. Summary for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and for the

guarter Jun= 30, 2022 are based on IND A5

2 Nat worth is calculsted as per section 2(57) of the Companies Act, 2013, |.e., aggregate value of the

paid-up share capdal and all reserves created out of the profits, securities pramlum acocount and debit or
gregate value of the ascumulated lasaes,
n off, as per the audited balance sheet,
but doee not Include reserves created out of revalugtion of assets, write-back of depreciation and

credit balance of profil
deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expanditure

amalgamation.

and loss account, after deducting the ag
not writte

3. Cash profit is Profit before tax plus depreciation and amor@ation.

4  Book value has been derived at by dividing the sharehoders’ fund by total number of ehares oulstanding.

* Represents per share value
For Western India Commercial Company Limited

_r,,,-["ﬁ' 4 .}1

Ghanshyam Maohta
{Company Secretary)




N. B. |. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED@

CIN No. LE5S823WB1936PLC0G5596

Regd. Office : 21, STRAND ROAD, (Ground Floor) KOLKATA-700 001

Phaona : 2230 9601 - 9603 (3 Lines), 2243 7725, 2230 TA0S, Telefax : 033-2213 1650
emall ; nbifinance@ymall.com

AnnoNare GZ
The financial details of companies for the previous 3 years as per the sudited statament of Accounts:
Mame of the Company: N.B.LIndustrial Finance Company Limited (Transferae Company)

{Ra. in Crores)
T Particulars | As per AB per last "1 year prior to the | 2 years prior
Unaudited Audited last Audited to the last
Financials Financial Year | Financial Year Audited
| [Limited Financial
Reviewed) Year
30.06,2022 31.03.2022 31,03.2021 31.03.2020 |
 Equity Paid up Capital 123 123 1.23 123 |
Reservas and surplus 1,757.69 7 937,30 2538.97 1,G16.68
Gairy forward |osses - ' : - -
Nat Worth 139,29 138,18 120.67 128 06
! Miscellansous Expanditune - - -
Sacured Loans : - ’ - | i =
 Unsecured Loans . - - =
Fixed Assels 0 004 0.004 0,009 0.008
income from Operations 0.58 12.26 2186 7T
Total Income - 0.58 | 12.28 216 1438
Total Expenditure 0.40 1.39 1.18 744
Profit pefore 1ax 0.8 10.82 0.88 1285
Profit after Tax . 0.10 7.4 181 1268
| Cash profit .18 10.80 0.98 1285
EPS — Basic and diluted 0.42 ' 32.34 .57 5276
(INR)
:B;:m. value (INR) 716061 70452 | 1034348 6,661.38
Nakas

1, Summary for the financial year anded March 341 2020, March 31, 2021, Mareh 31, 2022 and for the
guarter June 30, 2022 are based on INU AS,

9 Net worth Is calculated as per section 2{57) of the Gompanies Act, 2013, i.a., aggregate value of the paid-
up share capital and all reserves created out of the profits, securities premium account and debit or credit
balence of profit and loss account, after deducting the aggregate value of the accumulaled losses,
defamed expendiiure and miscellanecus sxpenditure not writen off, as per the audited balance sheat, but
doss nol include Teserves created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and
amalgamalion.

5. Cash profit Is Profit before tax plus depraciation and amortizatian.

4 Book value has been derived at by dividing the shareholders’ fund by total number of shares outstanding.

* Represents per share value
For N.B.LIndustrial Finance Company Limited

Ashish Kedia
{Company Secretary)
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: LATI20WRI1928PLCO93924

The Annial Report for FY 2021-22 is also available on the website of the Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The summarised results of your Company are given in the table below:- {Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended ¥ ear ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Profit Before Taxation (Before Other Comprebensive Income) 267.73 1498
Less : Provision for Curment Tax 123.05 (53.96)
Profit After Taxation (Before Other Comprehensive hm} 144,58 6894
Add: Transfer from OCI: sale of shares 330,64 -
Add : Balance of Profit from Previous year 235230 5297.15
Profit available for appropriation 152781 236609
APPROPRIATIONS :
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (a3 per RBI Guidelines) 28,94 13,79
Balance Carmed 1o Balance Sheet 2,798,588 2,35230
[Excluding Other Compeehensive Income)
1.527.52 2,366.09

WORKING RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Total income during the year under revicw amounted 10 2300.89 Loc as against 18.48 Lac in the
preceding year. Profit before tax amounted to #267.73 Lac as against ¥14.98 Lac in the preceding yoar.
Profit afler tax stood ol T144.08 Lac s against T68.94 Lac in the previous yoar (bofore Other
Compeehensive Inoome).

The Company continues to remain registered as 2 Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve
Bank of Indin.

No meterial changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this

&)



DIVIDEND

In view of the current uncertainty and thrent of pandemic looming large, the Board has decided to retain
the camnings and does not propose any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

'rhnmmmmmam*q-hyﬂmmpm.nmm.mmm
capital 13 o 31* March, 2022 was 235 Lac divided into 35,000 equity shares of €100/~ ench. The paid-
up equity capital of the Compamy stood at 218 Lac a5 af 31" March, 2002, During the year under
review, the Compnny has not isseed any shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND

Pursusat to section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of Indis Act, 1934, non-banking financial companies
(NBFCs) are required to transfer a sum not keas than 20% of their net profit every year o reserve fund
before declarstion of any dividend. Accordingly, the Board proposes 1o transfer ¥28.94 Lac w Reserve
Fund and the balance profit is retained in the Profit end Loss Account.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Company has not sccepted any deposit from the public during the year, nor does it hold amy such
deposits as of the end of the yvéar.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered under Chapter I1IB of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934), the provisions of Section |86 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to disclosure of loans are not applicabla to the Company.

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any associate.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into sy significantly muterial contract | srmngement /
tramsactions with related parties, attrcting the requirement of disclosure in this as per provisions
of Section Inufﬂnﬂdmhmhmhwnﬂuﬂpmmmum:pﬂ
1o directors in the ordinary course of business parsuant o Ind AS 24 which is suitably disclosed in Note
No.25 of the Financial Statements foeming pan of this Annoal Report, There were no transaction
requiring disclosure under section 134(3){h) of the Act except as aforesaid.

All relnted party tramsactions entesed during FY2022 were on arm’s length basis asd in the ordinary
course of business of the Company under the Acl & aforesaid and not material within the meaning of
the SEH| Listing Regulations or extant RB! guidelines. None of the transactions required members’
prior spproval under the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has formulatad & policy on mnteriality of related party transactions and on dealing with
related party transsctions. The policy is available on the website of the Company and alvo forms part of
the Corpormte Governance Report. Related Party Disclosures as required under the Listing Regulations
is annexed 1o this report. —




&)

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

2

The Company has in adequate financial comtrols commensurate with its size, scale, anture
hﬁmnﬂupmﬂmfﬁr“mhhﬂmhlmmumtmrmwnﬁfw
suditors who review the internal finsncial control system, These have been designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance about recording and providing relinble financial information, ssuring
conducting business, accuracy and completeness in maintaming sccounting recands and prevention and
detecthon of frauds and emmons.

%

Regulations),
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Director

The Company has peesently five directors on its Board. Detniled composition about the Boanl s
disclosed in the Corporate Govemance Repon. All Directors have submitted relevant declaratioas /
disclosures as required under the Act and the Listing Regulation.

Director Sri Arun Prakash Mallwwatl (DIN: 08209376) and MNon- Executive None
t Director Sri Sri Kishan Rathi (Din: 00407277) have resigned from their respective

Directorship due to personal reason. Their resignation was duly sccepied by the Board and they ceased
to be Directors on the Board w.e.f. 03rd March, 2022

He-appointment of Director

Smi. Ra| Kamal Devi Bangur (DIN: 0040343%), Director of the Company, retires by rolation ol he
ensuing Annual General Meeting parsusat to the provisions of Ssction 152 of the Act read with the
Companies {Appoiniment nnd Qualification of Directors), Rules 2014 and the Anticles of Associntion of
your Company and being eligible, has offered herselfl for re- appointment as Director,

Shri Ravi Goenks has been appointed as an Independent Directar on the Board on 24" May, 2022
sishject 1o Members” approval at the ensuing AGM for a continuous term of five years. Sari Goenka has
given & declaration that he meets the criteria of Iadependence and is independent of the Management.
Resolution seeking approval of the members at the AGM has been included in the Notice thereof.

As required by Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulutions and provisions of the Secretarial Standards,
brief resume and other details of the above-mentioned Director seek ing appoimmest/re-appointment, is
sitached 1o the Notice of the ensuing Annunl General Meeting.

The Directors” proposed for appointment / at the ensuing Annual Genernl moeting sre
not disqualified from being sppoinicd &5 Directors under the provisions of the Act, the
SEBI Regulations or any other arder, directions of MCA, SERI or any other statutory authority.

Shri Tapas Kumar Bhanacharya continues to be Independent Direetor of the Company appointed for 2
period of five vears from the date of his appolntment.




The Independent Directors have appropriste =kill, knowledge and experionce in their respective fields.
The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directars confirming that they meet the
criteria of Independence &3 prescribod wnder the Companics Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.
mmmwlhmﬁ-dhhyhﬂwﬁdeMWufdum
and the Company's Code of Conduct.

In the opimion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under the
mhﬁmﬂilﬁmnmmﬂwmm@:ﬂmmnlhmﬂ
of the Wﬂ. arg persois “'Ij“#r “F“ “ﬂlm Furiher,
Section 150 of the Companics Act, 2013 rend with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qﬂﬂhﬂ-mﬂh]mmmhﬂwiihhﬂhwu?mm
of the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and expertise in strafegy,
iness managensent, accounts & finance, suditing and txation and they hold highest standards of
inbegrity.

Independent Directors of the Company have completed ooline proficiency self-assessmeni test
mwuﬁhmﬁmhﬁh['lmﬂuﬂmmeMh@
data bank maintained by it in terms of Section 150 of the Act and the rules framed there under vide
Naotification No. GSR.T7T4(E), dated 18.12.2020.

mmum.wmmumuﬁmmmﬁpﬂmmmﬂm
Company effective from 1" June, 2022

Shri Ghanshyam Mohta is the Company Sccretary and also designaied as Compliance Officer of the
Company.

The Independent Directors, Directors and Senior Management inchuding the employees have complied
with their obligations as mentioned under Regulations 25 and 26 of the Listing Rogulations.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board commitiecs,
and individual directors pursuent 1o the provisions of the Act and SEBI Lisiing Regulations.

The of the board was evaluated by the Board afier seeking inputs from all the disecion on
the of criteria such as the board compusition and structere, effectiveness of board processes,
information and functioning, elc.

The perfonmance of the commitiess was cvaluated by the Board afler seching lnpuis from the
committes members oo the basis of criteria such an the compasition of commitices, cffectivencas of

conmittee mectings, ebe,

hlm-mh;nrmmmnfﬂhw#HﬂﬂmhMH
a whole and Chalmman of the Company was evalusted, wking inte sccount the views of non-executive
directors, The Independent Dirgciors revigwed the performance of non-isdependent dinectors and the
Doned ms & whole, ook inio accoust the views of non-executive dircctors amd to assess the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the management and te Board, The
Independent Disccions wore satisficd with the performance of the Board as a whole and timelisess of
flow of information,

Some of the key criteria for performance evaluation are as follovs:-

Performance evaluatfon of Divectors:
» Anendance n Board or Commitiee meetings.
# Contribution st Board or Commities meetings.

= Guidance / support w the mansgemont outside the Board / Commitlee meetings.




Performance evaluation of Bogrd and Commitices:
* Board structure and composition
* Degree of fulfiiment of key responsibilities
* Establishment and delineation of responsibilities 1o Committees
* Effectivencss of Board processes, infornmation and functioning
» Board culture and dynamics
. Mﬂnﬂmﬁbhﬂﬂhﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂm
* Efficacy of communication with external sharcholders.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT IMRECTORS

mMﬁmmmHMﬂimmmmmm
ﬂhﬂ:ﬂfﬁdﬂhﬂ-pﬂvﬂﬂmmlﬂﬂﬁﬂmhﬂﬂm-ﬁﬂplﬂ 16 of the
MIM;MLMMthhmMmmH

provisicns of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, a3
mﬂd,lﬁimhh:hﬁnndﬁhmhﬂnmﬂmm

wm-ﬁhmm#mhdﬁmwiﬂm”ﬂh
vemcity of the sume in terms of the requirements of regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ANNUAL RETURN

Statutory Auditors

MUs K. u-mammmmmmwm.smw
nmAdMurmcmm.mmym-comnm-w ral
Mesting (“ECM™) hald on 28* January, 2022, 1o hold affice from the date of pessing of resohition uniil
mmmﬂmwmummmhmmmmmmnmm
mﬂwbyhﬂnudnwm.lnmrhuwhhhlﬂlmﬂhm“iﬁhﬂt
mmmmmmﬂmmmwmmm
mummhmmmu.mhhtmnmnmm
of the Statutory Auditors for the finuncial year ending 31 March, 2023,

mmnmmmmmmwmnumwrmmmw
uﬁrhﬁﬂh&uﬁﬂﬂllmﬂhﬂnﬁﬂﬂhhhﬂdhﬁhlﬂﬂﬂtﬂtm
Accountants of India. .

Thndhupmh:lﬂh,hﬁmuilﬁmhh.fwihﬁ']ﬂﬂhmwﬂﬂ.lmidﬂﬂ
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretariul Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report
mmurmmmmmwwmy to wndertake Secretarind Audit and

annex with its Board"s Report a Secrctarial Audit Report given
the preseribed form,




hhﬂﬂnﬂﬂhﬂhﬂﬂhﬁﬂﬂhwﬁiﬂﬂﬂﬂmﬂ
of Personnel) Rules, 2004 read with Regulation 24A of the Listing

wmmmmu-,,umlammmmmmr-ﬂ

hmmwmmmrmucuwmm{m;

mwmmmmmmwn'mmmamuﬁhm
mmhmmﬂwmmumwmlnﬂuﬁuw

Pursuant o provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 cost audit as specified by the Central
Government is not applicable 1o the 3 -

Tax Auditor

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s K. K. Chanani & Assocines, Chartored Accountants, to cary
out the Tax Audit for the Flaancial Year 2021-22.

Internal Auditor

M;mmmmnmmmhmnﬁhmmmu
mwmmmnmummmzm.whmwﬂm
committed againet the Company by its officers or cmployees, and hence the requirement to mentios the
same in this report is not applicable,

NUMBER OF MEETINGS:

umdﬂmuhmnw-pmmrm—um-wmm
Due to business exigencies, the Board and Commitices have also been appeoving several proposals by

hhhﬂ.ﬁﬂﬂﬂ%mmmdhﬂ.ﬂndmlhnrﬂhﬂhn;hmhﬂ:

ﬂnwumlammmwbﬂmhmhpuwﬁhnﬂ
wmmmmrusmmenhmwnmﬂcmm
of Indin and Listing Reguistions.

The Company has the following four (4) Commitives, which have been established in complignce with
mmmfwemwuwwm:

L Audit Commitiee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committes

3. Smkeholders” Relationship Commitiee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

&)



AUDIT COMMITTEE

mamcmuwwwmm;huﬂuﬂuwmmpnhmmm
from the boaed w.e.f. 3% March, 2022, comprises of two Independent Dircctors namely, Shi Ravi

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The CSR Comminee comprised of four members during the year, of which two were independen
directors and two non-executive directors namely Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat, Shii Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharys, Shri Jagdish Prassd Mundrs and Shri Subhay Jajoo (Chairman) respectively, The
Commince met once during the reponting period. Following the resigantion by Shri Arun Prakash
Mallawat from the Board w.ef. 3 March, 2022, the Commities has been reconstituted by the Boand
with induction of Shei Ravi Goenka (Independent Director) as & member w.e.l 24" May, 2022 and Shri
Subhas Jajoo has been appointed Chairman of the Committee,

The CSR Policy of the Company is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Reporl. The same is also
avallable on the website of the Company vz hitpfwww western-india co.in'policies WICCL-
CSR_Policy.pdrl

More detuils sbout all the Committees of the Board, including details of the role und responsibilities of
Commitices, the particulars of mectings hedd and attendance of the Members at such meetings are stated
ia the Corpornte Governsace Report, which forms part of the Annual Report.




POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Mhndemm&hHmhdmtlmﬂmﬂm-imhndnwlty,
mnhmm.ﬂmdmmmwumm
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors which is annexed hensto
and forms part of this Report. Further, Policy relating to rommmeration for the director, key managerial
personnel and other employees i also anncxed hereto snd forms part of this Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company hi“hmmmm.ﬂﬁﬂ
sttributes, independence of Direstors as per applicable policies of the Company.,

Direciors are appoiated /re-appointed with thve approval of the Members for o term in scoordance with
the provisions of the law and the Articles of Association of the Company. All Directors, other than
mnhm;wﬂnﬂuhthrMHHMme provided usder the
Articles of Association or uader any statule or torms of appointment.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have not been any material changes and commitments in terms of Section I 343K0) of ihe Act,
affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financiol year of the Company
a8 on 31" March, 2022 and the dabe of this report i.c. 24% May, 2022,

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Compamy hos always provided a congenial stmosphere for work that is free from discriminathon
and heressment, including sexual harassment. Keeping in view the problem of sexual harassment the
company has fremed a policy w0 prevent [ncidents of sexunl harssment as required under Sexual
Harassment of Women st Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013 and rules
framed there under. However, constitution of Imemal Commitice as required ander the Act s not
lﬂﬁumuhﬂmrﬂmhmhhﬂﬂunlﬂmmﬂphﬂmm
mmhhh.thhwuﬁmﬂnﬁ.hmwhmmdemuimﬂ
sexial harnssment, hence no diselosares are applicable, This Policy is availnble on our website.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS FASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

There arc oo significant & masorinl orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would
impect the woing concern staus of the Company and its future operstions,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The financial staterments mre prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standords (Ind AS)
wﬂnMHmmuﬂmﬂmlhhmﬁruﬂnmm-ﬁhhm
m:ﬁitﬂummﬂumiﬂmdhﬁﬂ-&yﬂﬂimInndhy!EBl.hmuliq
policies have been consistently applied where a newly issued sccounting standaed is initially
adopted or a revision to mn existing acco standard requires a change in the sccounting poticy.
These form pan of the Notes to the financial staiements,

In accordunce with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
of the Company hereby states and confirms that

i} In the preparation of the Annual Accousts for the financinl year 2021-22, the applicable
accounting standurds have been followed aleng with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if eny

&g



i} they have selocied mwrﬁ:hﬂ-ﬂdMWMMIW
nnd estimates that are reasonable and prudest so &8 to give a tree and fir view of the state of
lmi?dﬂuﬂﬂupn}-uh end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for FY
212

iv) wmmt-wlmum:mmhdn

¥) mmmmmmmmhmwhwumm
hmﬂﬂ-nﬂﬂm“ﬂqmﬁmmmm

vi)  they have devised proper systems 1o ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
wmmmmm-ﬂmmmﬁm

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

Noag of the employees is drawing remunertion in excess of the Himits set owt in Rule 3(2) of the
M{MLthMMMHHw»m

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABDSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO .

Since the Company has no manufacturing sctivity, disclosures relating to Conservation of Encrgy and
Technology Abeorption stipulated under Section 134(3)m) of the Companies Act, 2013 rsd with Rule
B of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable.

There were no foreign exchange eamings and outgo during the yeur,
LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

The Company’s equity shares wre listed the Calcutta Seock Exchange Limlied. The Company has
;-Hh-mmhhmm“ﬂ:muﬂuhmw!m.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

E&:ﬂtﬂmlmmu imegral part of this Report, as annexed hereto, togellier
Euﬂ!mﬂmhhﬂlﬁqﬂnpnyﬂuﬂyﬁpﬂimwmmlhmﬂm
dmmmnwhmnumvnmmmmhﬁmm“m
hmmmmmﬂnmhMHﬁsmﬂwh&thF
of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Mw%!ﬂdhi%hlmmmmmm.ﬂﬂﬂﬁh
Report is set out hercunder and forms part of this Annual Report




BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REFORT

The Business Responsibility Report as required wader National Guidelines on Responsible Business
Conduct formulated by Ministry of Corporate A ffiirs, Govemment of Indig, and under Regulation
2N of the SEBI Listing Regulations, describing the initiatives taken by the Company from an
envirnmental, social and govermance perspective, is not spplicable 1o the Company,

mmmﬂrmmmwmmLm
PRACTICES;

mmm.nmmnmnmhwmm-uMimm
Policy”, in complisnce with the provisions of Section 1T7(10) of the Act snd Regulation 22 of SEBI
Listing Regulations, is in place. The detnils of the Whistle Blower Poliey is explained In the Corporate
ﬁm@nﬂpﬂmhﬂihdmw.

Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and report trading by Insiders

hmurﬁmﬂmﬂﬂhunﬂnﬂwww“ﬁ]immudﬂd&mﬂmmmn
hﬂmwyhdnpﬂlﬂﬂndﬂwdmh?muﬁmﬂﬁhwwmkﬂdﬂu
wwnwummmwummmm

TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT MODE

A.-lmEEImmnllthdlmhhmmmmmthimdmﬂ
be processed caly in dematerinlised form, Further vide Notification no. SEBVLAD-NROYGN/2022/65
Hh‘JﬂmHﬂ.EﬂﬂlhmﬂﬁdMﬂmh‘dﬂpﬂmmW}iﬁqmﬁ
munl‘ldnﬂuhnniﬂhmilﬁummm.

UPDATING KYC DETAILS

mnmmmmwuﬂmwm and bank mccount details of
WQHMHMWM.MW.%MMMMJHIM 15th
December, 2021, has mandated fumnishing of PAN, KYC details and nomination by holders of physical
securities by 3ist March, 2023, Members are requested fo submit their PAN, KYC and nomination
details o the Company s registrars, wherever pending.

Pursumnt 10 eforesaid SEBI Circular, in case u bolder of physical securitics fails to furnish (hese detsils
or link their PAN with Asdhar before the due date, our registrurs are obligated to freeze such folics. The
bolders of securitis in the frozen folios shall be eligible to receive payments (inchuding dividend) and
Hp#hmﬂlﬂwﬁrﬂihhnﬂmphdwmﬂ.hﬂﬂﬁ:mﬂlmﬂnhrﬂﬂn
Mnu&l:hmﬂﬂhwm'ﬂmﬂ refer such soeurities to the
administering wsthority under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, andior Prevention of
Money Laundering Act, 2002

o



POLICIES

In addition 10 its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been sdopted by the
website are as under:

Py
of the

Web link

Policy
Policy for selection and
sppoiniment of Directors,

httpetfwww western-indinco. in/policies WICCL-
Appointment_Policy.pdl

http:fiwww western-indin co. in/policiesWICCL- Archival_Policy. pdf

mmﬂaﬂ:mb
Determination_of_Masteriality pdf

httpewww. western-india.co. n/polickes™WICCL-
Familiarisation_Program, pdf

httptiwww . western-indin.co. Infpolices™WICCLL-
lnsider Trading Code.pdf

Htpwaww, muh;-mhmu
Muterial%205ubsidiary.

Jwesern-indin oo, inpolicies " WICCL-
_Farty_Transactions_Policy.pdf

hittpedfwew, westem-india co.in/policies"WICCL-
Remuneration_Policy.pdl

http/wwaw. westom-indin co, in policies WICCL-
Whistle Blower Policy.pdf

hitpu/fwww western-

india.goin/policles20170529_WICCL_Prohtbition_of_Insider_Tradi

o o

nttp://www. westorn-india co. I policies WICCL-CSR_Policy pdf

ey — E=— .
Prohibition_of_Sexual Harassmen:_Policy.pdf

E

The Directors place on record their appreciation for the suppont the

the Company.

For and on behall of the Board

continues To receive
from its Bankers and Shareholders and acknowledgs the valuable contribution from the employees of

DIN: 00711665
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Annexure to the Dirsctor's Report
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Format for disclosure of trasactions with related parties ns reforred ts in Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015

Details of transactions with related parties:

Nature of Name of related party Deseription of Amount

| Remuncration m%‘ | Key Management Personnel | 1668 |

 Remuseration | A t Personnel 1.80

Payment of Rent Shree Capital Lad. % related 0.1
__party

For and on behall of the Board

Place: Kolkata
Mﬂ‘ﬂq,lﬂn
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(Form MR -3)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
[Prurwams fo Section 2041} of the Compuanics Act 2043 and Rule No.9 of Comparnlest Appointment and
Remumerartion of Managerial Perscumel) Rules. 2014]

To,
The Members,

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED,
(CTN: L6T120WB 1 928PLC093924)
21, Straed Road, Kolkata — 700 001

| have condected the secretarial audit of the compliance of spplicable statutory provisions and adherence 1o
ood corporate practices by WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED (hereinsfier called
as “the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a ressonable basis for
evalunting the corporate conducts/statutory complinnces and expressing my opinion thereen.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and otyer
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized represcntatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, 1 hereby report that in my opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31 March 2022, complied with the
applicable statutory provisions listed hereunder and alvo that the Comparny has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place sabject to the reporting made hereina fter:

| have cxamined the books, papers, minate books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
hmwhmmﬂimuﬂuilm-mﬂﬂn;m&pmrmnﬂ

(1) The Companies Act, 2003 and the rales made there-under;

{11} The Securitics Contracts (Regulstion) Act, 1956 (“SCRA') and the rales made there-under,

{iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-onder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules, and regulations made there-under to the
extent of Forelgn Direct Investment, Oversess Diroet Investment and  External  Commercial
Borrowings - Not Applicable;

Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act”) to the extent applicable:;-

a} The Securities snd Exchange Board of India (Substantisl Acquisition of Shares and Takgovers)
Regulaions, 2011

b} The Securitios and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulutions, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India( lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indin ( Employee Siock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not Applicable

€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obfigations snd Disclosuwre Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

[} The Securitics and Exchange Board of India ( Registrars 1o an lssue and Share Transfor Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client:




4] Thﬂmmmuﬂhuh-pnminrhﬁmﬂm:ufﬂqﬁy Shares) Regulations, 2009 Nt

Applicable;

h) mmmmmamwdwﬁu}wmzm.mu
Applicable;

i) Efﬂuﬁunﬂ&“ﬂuﬂnfhﬂhﬁ“hﬂ%ﬂmﬂhlﬂw!mnlt

1] MMﬂMMﬁmﬂnﬂMHmwm
2008; Not Applicable

Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013, Not Applicuble
) The Bann;i;lm and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participunts) "Regulations,
1996 and 2018

hﬂmm“hm-hhnundmﬂmwﬂrmﬂhﬂnmﬂiﬂnspwﬂmh

applicable to the Company based on their sectorfindustry are
a) Reserve Bask of india Act, 1934

IhwﬂnmhdmﬂiunhhwﬂmnlmﬂutﬂmmHHmmtrTh
Institute of Company Secretories of India.

mmmmmmmmﬂmmmmmimﬂmmm
Regulations, Guidelines, Stancards, etc. mentioned shove.

1 further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Direciory
& Independent Directors. Though the Company has no Exzcutive Direcior but they have Manager/CFO and
c&mmaumaumamuwmmmmmmw
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

mmiﬁﬂmﬂﬁWbMﬁﬁEMHmm-lh“ﬁmm
wmmuummhmmﬂummmmdmmmw
hhuhmduhﬁuﬂuuuhnmmmthnmh‘mfwmhﬂhlmﬁﬁﬁhﬂh
meeting.

All decisions st the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously &5 recorded in the Minutes of the Meeting
of the Roard of Directors.

I farther report that thers are udequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the stre

nd operutions of the company to monitor and easure compliance with applicable luws, rbes, regulations
guidelines.

Fince: Kolkata Slgnature:

Dmte: 02.06.2022 Name of Company Secretary n practice - Mukesh Chsturvedi
FCS No.: 11063
CF No.: 3390

UDIN: FO11063D000455078

1h
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIRILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Brief cutline oa CSR Polley of the Company

In today's context, the “Corporste Social Responsibility’ (CSR) is defined s o mandatory way for a Campany o balance ity
Eeonmmic, Social and Environmental oljectives while enhancing the Shareholders’ value and Stkebolders expectuticns.

The Company aims to focss on environment preservation, spreading education, sports and sopporting needy people of he
sccicty for their overall upliftment. Though its social activities are 1o focus primarily on aneas surrounding its opertions.
which may inctude people / programs which may not be so related mrictly comidering overall wpiiftment objectives.

2. Compesition of CSR Committee:

The CSR Committes comprises 4 members, of which two are Independent Directors. The Committee met once during the
repaning period on 23™ February, 2022. The details of members and the meviing are as under:

51, — Desigaation Nutare of | ' umbEr of muetings Number cf mestings of Chit
Na. Akiar Diresterstlp of CSR Committes mn-::::m-q
hE A T8, Bl namt -
Chalrmaan
' m&!!ﬂ“‘ (Intependens Director) ! !
Slember (Mon-exeoutive
i hir | F Mundm Non-lnd dent DI ) i i
Meinber
i hir. Sulbhas Jajoo i Mon-oxccutlve 1 1
MNon-Independent Direcror]
Mdzmiber
4 | M T K Bhsnscharya !| sorit DA \ 1 |

3 Web-link where Composition of CSR commitice, CSR Policy and CSR projecis approved by the board are
disclased on the website of the company.

The Company ha framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the said Policy along with composition of CSR Committee and CSR Projects are placed on the
website of the Company and the web link for the same is: hupofwww.western-indin.co.in/pollcieas/WICCL-
CSR_Policy.pd!

4 Details of Impact pssessment of CSH projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3] of rule 8 of ihe Companies
(Corporate Soclal respousibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (sttach the report)
Not Applicable

5 Details of the amount available for set off in punuance of sub-rule (3) of rele 7 of the Companies (Corperate
Sogial responnibility Polley) Rubes, 2014 and amount required for sot off for the financial year, [ any:
)

{Fs Laca
L Financiad Year | Amount available for set-off | Amoun! required to be set-
Ne, from proceding  fnancisl | off for the Snanclal yeur, iIf
any (in Rs)

MIL

6. Average nct profit of the company as per sectlon 135(5) : Loss Hs., 48.70 Laca
7. {a) Two percest of average net profit of the company as per section L35(5) : Rs.(0.97) Lacs

(b) Surphes arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of ihe previous Masacial years: NIL
{€) Amount required 1o be set off for the fiaancial yoar, I any: NIL
{d) Total CSK abligation for the Moancial year (Ta*7h- Te): NIL

15



8. (8) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

@

Amount Unspent {in Ri.)
Total AmBust "yl Amount tramsferred to Amount transferred (o any fund specificd under
Spent  for  the Unspent CER Account s per Schedule VI us per second proviso o section 135(5)
rinanclal Year | yeerion 135(6)
(in Ra.) Name of the
Amaunt Daie of iremifer Fumil AmuEni Liete of transter
Nat Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable |Not Applicable| Mot Applicable
{b) Detulls of CSR amount spent apainat ongoing prajects for the finanelal year:
w] & i ™ o W i W L (] iy
TE.' Ten =TT TR ey p— :—q-ll-n— ot | leds of ipira— -
e o rerear— - Ry R | s vt | et | Sats | Tt et
i e m Baj e ] Bt
e xiui .
Y -
e £k
- -l

NIL

fe) Detnils of CSR smount spent agalnit other thun ongeing projects far the finsnslal year:

s

Ié

b
| {1 i A1} (5 ) ] i
SL | Nameof | Qiem frem | Local Locution of the project, | Amowst | Mode of | Mods af implemesinilon -
Mo |t the list ol | mrea speni fer | implrmentati | Through mplomentiag
Project | activides In | (Yes! = the o6 = | mpeaey.
ncheedhabe Mol Mgy
V11 to the (n B} | (YesNok
Ait,
CSR
Stase. lm Name, registration
sumbir,
NIL
iy Aunokinl spsivd in Adiinlsbrative Dewhesds — ML
) Aoy s o Empact Asscrmony, if spplicable = NIL
(0 Tots! smount spent for the Finsnicial Yesn(B+o+ 8 +8ck Not Applicile
B  Exosswmes for s aff, if sy ’
. Particular o o
% Two percent of average net prodit of the compuny 08 per Seaton 135(5) | (097)
(ii) | Totl amount spent for the Financial Vesr NIL
(i) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(i0-(1}] NiL
(iv) | Serplus arising out of the CSR projocts or pragmmunes or activities of the | Wil
previous if
{v] | Amoun ol hnuuuﬁ;l-:htm{ﬂ_ﬂmﬂ NiL



¥. () Detatls of Unspent CSR amount for the proceding three fimancial yewrs:

S | Preceling | Amowsl Amcunt spent | Amoant irambrred fo oy fand specified | Amoarl
Nu. | Fimsincial iramiferred  da | e the | wnder Schedule VI a5 per section 13806}, I | remaiming by
Year, Umgent CSR | repoviiag my, be spend ls
Account under | Fimameial Your [ suceeiding
of yrary
Fand Amwunt (i Rl | Dwiw of ransfr, i Rx. Laex)
L | oy NI 1011 NIL Nl Nen Applicahie NIL
2 01820 WL 1045 NIL NIL (P —— MIL
3 | a0zen ML NIL NIL NI, ot Applicable NIL
TOTAL .86

mmwmmmmmn-ﬂy-hmmﬂummm

m[ @ fin ) [ (] (4] ] )
"BL [ Prajoct | Name of | Finandal | Prapedt Teisl | Amsumt | Cumulative | Giwuaofthe
Ne. | ID. the Year  in | durstion. | amount | spest os the | smount spest | prejest -
Project. | which the H E:i“ Im | @i ihe end of =i
m L.j ] ﬂ
{im Ra.). Yoar. {in Rij
Yiar (im
Rak
NIL

] 8

10

I carst of creation o scquisition of capitl meset, farmish the deail rlaing ta the akiet s crested o soquired hrough CSR gan
In the fmancisl yeur (asses. wise detnily).

in) Date of crearion or scouisition of the capital awsciis): Ned Applicabio
) Amoms of CSR spont for creation or scquisition of capimdneet ; Net Applicable

%) Bﬂﬂﬂauﬂﬁhrmmm-ﬂﬂqﬂmuwﬁﬂmm
Hui Applicallc

{di ?}:Hﬂhﬂ!ﬂhw winca|s} cronbed of soquined {mchading somples sddem mnd socstion of 1B el sawet)
Applicnble

Specify he reason(s), if the campasy has filed % spesdiwes per cont of The nverage nel profic s per section L355)  Nat

Place: Kaliats Par Wirstern imfia Commoreial Ca. Lad
Dhaie; 34™ buy, 2022
Kilbas Jajou T.K. Bhsitackarya
Cranseman off bl
CER Comemitiee DB BT1 663
DA
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Western India Commervial Company Limited (WICCL) believes that for its operation and growih o
be sustainable, it has to be responsive to social needs, Its progress is thus underlined by strict
adherence o emvimomment presorvation, social uplifiment, development and promotion of sports,
education, healthcare, rumal end urban development etc. WICCL believes in making social

as an integral part of its business activitics so as to bring about o meaningful change in
the lives of people. WICCL considers social responsibility as n voluntary act rther than an additional
activity mandated by statute,

WICCL has in line with / in conformity with the swtutory rquirement, prepared its CSR Policy.
WICCL will maintain thet ail the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the

policy and that the peojects and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with Schedule
VIi of the Companies Act, 2013,

The contents of WICCL s CSR Policy are given below:-

1. Vhion, Objective and Scope of the Policy
WICCL Progremmes will focus on development and promotion of sports, education,
healthcare, neral and urban development and supporting necdy people of the society for thelr
overall upliftment. Though its soclal activities will be focusing primarily on areas surrounding
its operations, it may include people / programs which may not be so relsted strictly
considering overall ohjectives.

1. Mandate of Corporute Socia] Respoasibility

WICCL s committed to spend 2% of its Avernge Net Profits of last three fimancisl yesrs
defimed i the Rules towards itn soclal initintives,

3. DBoard Commitiee

The CSR Commitice of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by the
C oy

4. Idesiification of Projects snd Modalities of Project Execution

The projects to b underiaken by the Company shull conform 1o the guidelines formulsted or
lnid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VII to the Companies Act
2ma.

& Organisational Mechanism

WICCL has co-promoted a Section 3 Company alongwith other Comspandes to undertalie
ﬂvﬁndﬂhmhh;nwﬂmhmﬂﬂh;hmm "

. lmplementation

C5R Commitiee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities / initiakives
and establishing a monitoring mechanism In fine with the policy of the company.

7. Budget - CSR Corpas
WICCL will allocate necessary budpet afler the beginning of relevam nccounting year for

social initintives, Fund allocation for varous activities will be made on suitshle andior
progressive basks,




8 Perfermance Management
WICCL will adopt suitable spproach for measuring the sctunl performance of the projects
undertaken and Audit Committee of the Board of the Compony shall review the performance.

9. lolermation Mssemination and Policy Communication

The Company’s engagement in this domain shall be disseminated on its website and throagh
its Annus! Repors elc.

10 Management Commitment

thMMHHJWMHthF
compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and compassion, characlerisad
by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the comerstone of aur
C5R Policy.

11. Review of Policy
EEWMMMJWHIHME“E—HMWW

the policy from time to time based on the changing needs and aspirations of the targel
beneficiaries and make suitable modifications es may be necessary.

Place: Kolkam For Western Indin Commercial Co, Lid.
Date: 24™ Muay, 2022

Subbas Jajoo Ravi Goenka

Chairman of Inddependent

CSR Commitiee et

DIN: 08209376 DIN: 01393012




Policy far selection and appointment of Directers, Senior Management including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the directors

Intreduction

MMME&L&ML}HMMHMMMM
a cubure of leadership 10 provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
EOVErmance.

WICCL recognizes the importance of mdependemt direciors in nchieving the effectiveness of the
Board. WICCL aims to have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

Scope and Exclusion

This Pobicy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remunerstion Commitiee for
identifying persons who are qualified to become Directons mnd to determine the independence of
Directors., in case of their appointment as independent directors of the Comgpany.

Terms and Refercpoes
In this Folicy, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director™ means a director appointed 1o the Board of the Conpany.

“Nomination & Remuneration Committee™ means the committes constituted by WICCL s Boand
in accordance with the provisions of Seetion 178 of the Companies Act, 2013

“Independent Director™ menns a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Campanies Act, 2017,
Eoliev

COnalificetions and Criteria

The Nomination & Remunerstion Committee, and the Board, shall review on an sonuval basis,
appropriste skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board 18 & whole and its individual
members. The objective is o have a Board with diverse background and expericnce that are relevant
for the Compamy's business operations,

[n evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Comeminee may take iato accoun
[octors such as:

* Generisl undcistanding of the Conipany s busimess dynnmics and soclal porspective;

= Fducational and professional background;

= Standing in dw profession;

® Persomal and professional ethics, integrity and valucs;

* Willingaess 1o devote sufficient time and zeal in canrying out their duties and responsibilities
elfectively.

The proposed appaintee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

* Shall possess @ Director Identification Mumber (DIN);

= Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013,

» Shall give his written consent in prescribed form 1o sct as a Director;

* Shall endeavour to attend all Board Mestings and wherever he is appointed as a Commities
Member, the Committe: Meetings;

* Shall abide by the ethics policy established by the Company for Directors, employees and Senior
Monagement Personnel;




* Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies corporate, firms,
or other association of individuals including his shareholding ai the first meeting of the Board in
every financial year and therealter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already made;

* Such other requirements as may be preseribed, from time fo time, under the Companiies Act, 2013
and other relevant laws.

mmmmuwmmqﬁmumnmmmm
the success of the Company®s businest.

Criteria of Independence

The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of sppointment / ro.
appoimtment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess determination of
hﬁmﬂmnﬁuuym“u%mﬂlnﬂwmnmﬂ.

To fellow the criteria of independence as laid down & the Companics Act, 2013.

mmmm%w&mhwﬁm’umﬁdh
Schedule IV to the Companies Aot, 2013,

AR R CCHTIARITT e Fiasibl eradpln

The Board members are supected to have adequatc time, expeniss and expericnce 10 contribute
effective Board performance, The Committee shall take info account the nature of, and the time
invalved h.w-mmmmhmmmmﬂruwu
Director and making s recommendations to the Board.

A Director shall not serve as Director in more than 20 companies of which act more than 10 shall be
Public Limited Companies.

A Dircctor shall not serve as an Independent Direcior in more than 7 Listed Companies and not more
hjlhhdﬂmmﬂuhilmhgnnwhhdmﬂlmhwww.

A Direcior shall not be & member in more than 10 committees or net @ Chairman of more than 4
committees across all companies ia which he bolds directorship.

Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the Cominittees, Audit Commitiee and Stake
Wmmmammﬁmemmwwmmh
Wﬂmmmummwmmhﬁpmmm
Companics under Sectlon 8 of the Compunies Act, 2013 shall be exchaded.

Tl



Palicy relsting to remuneration for the directors, key managerinl personnel and other

employces

Introduction
Wmhﬁtmrﬁiﬂnlﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂmmnmh-dumﬂﬂmhw
objectives with specific and measurable individual objectives. The Company has therefore formulsted
':*I':I F&I:l:y' hdhmmhymmrﬂml-ﬂmrwwmh

-Enmrtn;dmhhvﬂ and composition of remuneration is ressonable and sufficient w0 aimet
retaln end motivate wlent 1o run the Company successfully.

* Ensuring that relationship of remuneration w0 performance is clear and meets the performance
benchmarks.

* Ensuring that remunemtion involves a balance betwoen fixed and incentive pay reflecting shon

and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.
However, there is no incentive pay st present.

Terms and Belerences
In this Poliey, the terms shall have the following meanings:
“Director™ manns a director appointed 1o the Board of the Company.

"Hey Managerinl Personnel™ means
i) the Maraging Director or Chiel Executive Officer or Manager and in their sbsenoe 1 Whole-
time Dirsctor;
i)y the Company Secretary:
fii} the Chief Financial Officer; and

iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

“Nomination & Remuncration Commitiee™ means the committee constituted by WICCL's Baoard
in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Polley

The Board, on the recommendstion of the Nomination & Hermunerstion Committee, shall review and
approve the remuneration paynble to the Executive and Nou-Executive Directors of the Company
within the overall limits subject 1o spproval by the sharoholders of the Company where required. Mon-
Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the mestings of the Board and the
Committees thesenf In nddition 1o the sitting fees the Mon-Executive Dinsctors chall bo entithed 1o beo
paid their reasonable travelling. hotel and ather expenses incarred for mtending Board and Committes
meetings or otherwise Encurred in the discharge of thelr duties as Directors,

and approve the remenecration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees of the
Company. Employee individual remumeration shall be determined according to their qunlifications,
and work experience as well as thelr roles and responsibilities and shall be based on various facions

such as job profile, skill sets, senfority and experience.
The remuneration structwe of the Exccutive Directors, Key Managerinl Personnel and other
Employees shall mainly include the following:

a) Basic Pay
b) Perquisites and Allovwances
¢} Ratiral benefits

p B
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Disclosure pertuining 10 remuneration and other detalls as required under Section 197(12) of
ﬁhrﬂnﬂﬂnlt!{litﬁtf“[ﬁm& Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014

i) Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the finaseinl vear
Not Applicable, as none of the directory draw remunemtion except sitting fbos for Board /
Comminee meetings,

iif) Percentage Increase inthe meding remunoration of employees in the financial year
Not Applicable.

iv) Number of permanent vmployees on the rolls of Company
2(Two)

vl Armmnhlmdmdynﬁhm-hrhduﬁymmrm
umﬂmdhhhnwmidhummﬁﬁ:m
“hhwﬂmmﬂmwﬂmuﬂuﬂuﬂ
any exceptional cireumstances for increase in the managerial remuncration
Not applicable,

tﬂﬂhhﬁymmm-mm-pmhumhm-mrﬂmrh
directors, key managerial persoancl and other employces.

3

©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT Bl

The Board of Western India Commercial Company Limited (“Company™) is pleased 1o present the
Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 1% March, 2022. This Repont
Includes a review of how corparate governance scts as the foundation for our corporste sctivity and s
embedded in our business and the decisions we make. Corporate governance is shout promoting
faimess, imnsparency, sccountability, commitment o values, cthical business conduct and abowt
considering all stakeholders’ interests while conducting business. It bs prepared in sccordance with the
provisions of the Securities and Exschange Board of India (Listing Obligations snd Disclosure
Requirernents) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Rogulations), and amendments thereto. It contains the
Corporuie Govemanee policies and practices of the Company.

(A} COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We believe that corporste povernance is a continuous journey towards sustaimable valoe ereation for
all the stakeholders, which is driven by owr values and built on the foundation of Assurance. It
encompasses & sct of systems and practices 1o ensure that the Company™s affairs are being managed in
a manner which ensures nccountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions in the widest
scnse. Our Corporate Governance principles are a reflection of our culture, our policies, our
relationship with stakeholders and our commitment to values and built on the foundation of assurnce.
The Board of Directors (“Board™) helps to ensure that we have approprinte govemance in place, both
o suppon our operations and protect our Members' inlerest. As a good carporale citiven, the
Compamy is committed 1o sound corporate practices based on conwionce. opesness. faimess,
mhtnﬂ'u-dmﬂiiqrhhllﬁiqm&hmummmmhlm
paving the way for its long-term success. The roquirements under the Listing Regulations mandated
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™) have been fully complied with. We believe,
Corporate Governance is mot just n destination, but a journey 1o constantly improve sustainable value
mltkuwmmhnmlhdwmum.mﬂmhw
commitied o the principles of tmnsparency, imtegrity and sccountability in all spheres of s
operations and bas been pructicing the principles of good corporate governance over the years. W are
committed to meet the mapimations of all our stakeholders In keeplng with this commitment, the
mmmmmmmlwm-ﬁmmmm in iits
denlings and continuously endeavors to review, strengthen and upgrade its sysiems md procedures s
as to bring in rransparency and efficiency in its business.

{B) Boeard of Direciors

The members of the Board of the Company are eminent personalities from various fields. We believe
that an cnlightencd Board consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide 8 long-term vision
and policy approach 1o improve the quality of governsnce. Keeping with the commitment to the
principles of mtegrity and transparency in business operntions for good corporate governance, the
Compary"s poficy is to have an approprime blend of independent and son-independent directors to
muintain the independence of the Board und to separate the Board functions of govemance and
management. The Board's actions and decisions are aligned with the Company's best interests. The
Board {3 entrusted with the ultimate resporsibility of the manage




the Company.The Board i committed to the gonl of sustainably elevating the Company's value
creation. As its primary role is fiduciary in mature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance,
Mmmwm:hmﬂmﬂwmﬁmm
thus ensuring that the management adhores 10 ethics, transparency and disclossres,

Compositicn

hnmﬂhuiﬁhmﬂﬂnm:flhﬂqnn'.ﬁ&iﬂ!ﬁhh}ﬂhﬁmuulm
Regulations, the Board comprives of Independent and Non- Independent Diroctors. The strength of the
Board as on 31" March, 2022 was four members sll of whom are Nos- Executive Directors. Ol af
them one s lndependent Diroctor and three are Non- Independent Directors of which ooe is 8 Woman
Divecior. Ehiﬂﬁuhhnihtﬂnmdﬂnﬂud.ﬂumhﬂq—iuﬂlmm.
h'ihlﬁlﬂhhbﬂﬂdﬂlﬂﬂhhﬂtﬁﬁ!ﬂ‘ﬂlﬁ.ﬂﬂ,ﬂhluhﬂﬂwﬁf
the Board to five and Indopendent Directors to two,

I terms of the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Directors of the Company
wibmit necessary disclosures regarding ihe positions hold by them on the Board and/ or the
Commitices of other companies with changes therein, if any, on & periodical basis. The directors are
persons of eminence in aness such 8s profession, business, industry, finance, law, administration, eto,
dhﬁumMMﬂuﬂvﬂmhhmuﬂhMJHd&m
nﬂnﬂmﬁunﬂ:hﬂ:inﬁ-ﬁhudﬁﬁmhﬁm“uﬂmﬁdmmn
nationnlity.

ﬂuumniwmmﬁnﬂn-ﬂh-mﬂwhnahm“pumm
finance, |nvestment and other allied fields. The Indepondent Directors make annual disclosure of
MHHM,TMMBMWﬂMEMhWHrM
Manager subject 1o the supervision, direction and control of the Board of Directors. The Independent
Directors have made disclosures to the Board confinming that there are no meterial financial andior
mmmmwmwﬁmummﬂum
potentinl conflict of interest with the company at large. In the opinlon of the Board, the independent
mmmmmm&nmmuwmmmanuuﬁ
are independent of the management.

EBoard Meetings and Attgndance of Directon:

ﬂxh‘hhﬁ:mhﬂdhh:hﬂmﬂﬂmﬂﬁﬂmhﬂhwhm

Date of Baard Meeting ""::-‘f'"'
30* Jumw, 2021 .
13* August, 2021

15* November, 2021
31 December, 2021
14" Febnuary, 2022
4™ March, 2022

'l-ml-uﬂ—liﬂ
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Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships

Particulars of the Board's Composition, Directors® Altendance at Board Mectings and st the previous
Annunl General Meeting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committee memberships beld as
om 31" March, 2022, are given below:

L] Mumbe of ihe Cutégory Mo ol | Atiended Pl af Nambser of other
Na | Dvrector Bsard [FLT] ather Board Commbties
Mestings ACM MHrectorshilp posidinns ()

nitended =) Ax Ay
Chalrman | Member

H fe== e =

] ef | B
i
L
i

s

(*) includes directorships held im public Emited Companies only.
(Directorships held in Private Companies, Forciga Companies and Companies registered
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded)

(@) includes only positions held in Audic Commitice and Stakeholders' Relationship Comminies of
the Board of Directors as per Reguiation 26 of the Listing Regulations.

Nene of the directors held offics as o director, inclading as an ahornate director, in mors than bwenty
compamics ai the same time, None of them has directorships in more than ten public companies. For
reckoning the limit of public companies, directorships of private companies that sre either holding o
subsldiary companses of s public company are included: while directorehips in dormant companies are
excluded. For the purpose of reckoning the directorships in listed companies, only equity listed
companics have been considered,

Mﬂ“““m%m-uhﬂwﬂﬂ“lummmm
lisied companies or in more than throe equity listed companies if heishe (s a whode-time
director'mannging director in any Fsted company.

None of the directors was » member i more than tet committees, nor a chairpersom in more than five
commitiees across all public companies in which he/'she was a direcior.

Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as highlighted herein, the outstanding attendance record
and participation of the directors in Board/Committee mectings indicstes their commitment snd
ability to devole adequate time to their responsibilities ax Board Commities members.

14
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Name of the other listed entity where the director is a director along with category of directorship:;

‘81 | Name of the Direcior Name of the Listed Entity | Category of Directorship
No.

1 | LP, Mundrma N. B. |. Indusirial Finance Noo-Executive Non-
Er L e Co. Lad Endepandent Director

2 | Raj Kamal Devi Bangur NIL NIL

3 | Subhas Jajoo NIL :- NIL

4 | 7K Bhamacharya N.B. . Indusirial Finance | Non-Executive-indepondent

Ca L. Director

Mone of the directors of the Company are related fuser.dp,

Skill/Expertise/ Com petencies of Directors

As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified the below
mentioned skills / expertise / competencies in the comext of the business and the sector in which e
Company is operating. for the Company to function effectively:

Financial, Regulatory /| Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance funchion of

ilft an enterprige, resulting in proficiency n financinl management, capital

e allocation and fnancial reponting process or experfence in nctively
supervising various fanctions

Eﬂltp'lﬂw Ability 1o think strategically, identify and sssess strategic opportunities &

plansing threats and contribuie twards developing cffective simtegios i the
cantexi of the Company's policies & priorities.

Business Exposare Eaperience in driving business success with an understunding ol diverse
business environments, economic conditions, cultwe, regulntory
fameworks and a broad perspective on domestic market opportunities
im¢luding exposure in the socondary market.

Leadership Extended leadership exporience for n significant enterprise, resulting i 1
practical undersianding of organksations, processes, strategic plaming and
risk management, Demonstratod strongths in developing talent, planning
sisccesshons and driving change and loog-tenm growth,

Mergers and A history of leading growth through scquisitions and ofher busimess

Aoquisiticos combinations with the ability 10 assess *build or buy’ declsions.

Corporate Governance mul;ﬂhmhﬁrﬁuﬁwlmiﬂﬂmmm

board nnd managemen! accouniability, protecting sharcholder interesty
and observing approprinie governance practices
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The shove skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Company are also actually svailsble with
the Board a3 under.-

[ Name of the Direstar F:T‘ E m Lesdership | Magersand | Corporate
HL plonning

Sabhas Jajoo s s 7 ’ v ¢

f"#r"-" e I, s / / /

1P, Mundna s v s i /

T.K. Bhamacharya v/ v v Vv

Other Directorships

None of the Directors is a director in more than 10 public [imited companics or acts as an mdependent
director in more than 7 listed companies. Further, none of the Directors acts as 2 member of mone than

10 committees or acts as a chairman of more than $ committees across all public limited companics in
which hefshe is a director.

Code of Comliuct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct snd Our Code (the Code) is spplicsble
o the Directors and employees, The Code gives gukdance and support needed for ethical conduct of
business and compliance of laws, The Codo reflects the core values of the Company viz. Ownership
Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellemce, All the diroctors including Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have affemed compliance 10 the Code of Conduct as an

March 31, 2022. The code is mvailsbie on the official website of the company: www. westem-
indiaco.in

(C) Commitees of the Boand

In order o cnable Board to focus on specific arcas and make informed decisions within the sathority
delegated 1o vach of the Commitives, Doard has sonstituted following commitiess. Each Commities of
the Bowrd s guided by hs chamer, which defines the scope, powers and composition of the
Committee. All decisions and recommendations of the Commitices are placed bofore the Board for
information or appraval

The Boerd has constinered following Commitiees of Directors:
1 Audit Committee,

2, Momination and Remunerstion Comminee,
3 Stukcholders Rolationship Comrminee, and
4 Corporate Soclal Responsibility Committee

28
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L Awdlt Commities

The Audit Committee ss on 31% March, 2022 comprised of ose lndependent Director and one Mon-
Independent director. All members of the Audit Comminee are fnancially literate and they have
sccounting or related financial mamagement expertise. The Audit Committee was reconstituted
fallowing the resignation by Shri Arun Prakash Mallawst from the board w.ef. 3™ March, 2022, by
inducting Shrl Ravi Goenka, an Independent Director on the Board, Presently, the Commiitiee
comprises of two [ndependent Direcioes namely, Shri Ravi Goenka (Chairman), Shri Topas Kumar
Bhatiacharys and Neon Independent Director Shei Subhas Jajoo. The primary purpose of the Audi
Comminee is (o wssist the Board of Directors (the "Board”) of Western Indla Commercinl Company
Limited, (the “Company”) in Fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect te:

a) the pccounting and financial reposting processes of the Compary. including its intemal
control procedures, the integrity of the sudited financial results and other financial infosmation
provided by the Company to ity stakeholders, the public, the stock exchange and others,

B) the Company's complinnces with legal and regulatory requirements,

e} the Company's independent auditors' qualification and independence,

d) the sudit of the Company's financial stsements, and the performance of the Company’s
internal sudit function and its Independent Auditors.

Terms of Reference:

The mole and lenns of reference of Auwdit Commitioe covers arcas mentioned under Pan C of Schedule
Il [See Regulation 1B(3)] of the Listing Regulations und section |77 of the Companies Act, 2013,
besides other terms as may be referred by the Bosrd of Directors. All the Membars of the Audit
Commites are qualificd and having insight 10 interpret mnd understand (inancial starcments. The briel
terns of reference of the Audit Committee are outlined here under:

. Review of the company's financial reporting process, adequacy of internal conirol systems
nnd the disclosure of its financial information;
. Reviewing, with the management, the annua] financial statements and anditor”s report thereon
before submission to the Board for mpproval, with panticular referonee 10:-
. matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement of the Boward's
Report in terms of clause (¢) of sab-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
b. changes, il any, in sccounting policies and practices and reasons For the same;
major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exarciie of judgmem by
management;
significant sdjustments mode in the financial stateaments arising out of audit findings:
complisnce with listing and other legal requiremvents reluting to financiol stntements;
disclosune of any related party transactions;
maodified oplnson(s), if any, in the drafl audit report.
* Reviewing the quarterly financial stslements before submission to the board for approval;
* Reviewing, with the management, the stalement of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, eto.), the smement of funds utilized fior
purposes other thin those stated in the offer document / prospere d

& mpp
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Hhmmﬂhjﬂnmwmnimﬁnilhﬂmhqﬂm&apﬂhnﬂm
“mmmwmhhﬂnﬂu@nphﬂﬁm
wnmLm.ﬂmu{mmrmum
company,

mmwmnmmmmmmmhm;

Reviewing and monitoring the suditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of

wudit process;

Mnﬁhmmﬂmhﬁumﬂmmmmmﬂwd

sucht ai well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concem:

Approval (including omaibus approval) or any subsequent modification of transsctions with

related partics,

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including frequency of intemal sudit repors;

Eﬂw}qhﬁdhpﬂq-mh'hiwmmmwmu

anMMMlmwwwmnrlmﬂmmnﬂ

reparting the matier to the Board;

Evaluation of imemal financial controls:

mmmmmﬂmmmmamman

U internal control system;, .

Tnlﬂimmnmhnmuuhhmﬂmnmmw

bolders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and crediiors:

Approval of appointmeat of chief financial officer sfter assessing the qualifications, experience

aind background, i, of the candidae;

Munagement discussion and analysis of financial condition wnd results of operations;

nmmmhmrmummmmwmm

aud itors;

Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal muditor:

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findiags and follow up thereon;

Ta review the functioning of whistle blower / vigil mechsnism:

Scrutiny of irter-corporute koans and investments:

Reviewing valuatlon of undertakings or assets of the compasy, wherever necessary.

Sutement of deviatdons:

(2) Quarteely statement of devistion(s) including report of monioring agency, wherever
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1} of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regslations, 2015.

(b) Annual Statement of funds utilised for purpose ather then those stuted in the offer docoment
! prospectus | notice in terms of Regulation 3(T) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclossre Requirements) Regulations, 2015, wherever applicable.

Carrying out amy olher function as is mentioned in the terms of reforence of the audic
commities.
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Constitution of the Audit Committes
The Composition of the Commintee, iogether with the details of the sttendance of ench membor during
the fimancial year 2021-12 is given below;

Sr. Meetings
 Ne. sume of the Director Designation Attended | ﬂmrl
| AP Mallawat el Non- Executive
iresiged w o { 03-03-2022) ~: Independent Director |
b | TR iy Member | 6 | independet Dl
Non-Executive Mon-
3 Subbas Jajoo Member b m_“

Meetings of the Audit Committes
Six Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2021-22 on the following dates;

5L | Date of Andit Commitiee
|_MNo. | Meecting
| 30* June, 2021

13™ Auguae, 2021
15* Novembes, 2021
31" December, 2021
14* Fobwuary, 2022
04* March, 2022

o | | E | s | o

1. Nomination and Remuneration Commities

The Nomination and Remuneration Comm|tiee (NRC) of the Board is constituted in compliance with
the requirements of Section | 78 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The
committee (ormulntes the criterin for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of & direetor and recommends o the Board a policy relating o the remuneration for the Dirscton wnd
Key Managerial Fersonnel. The Commitee reviews and recommends puyment of sonual satarics,
commigsion and other conditions of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The remuneration
policy is directed towards rewnrding performance based on review of performance ! achlevements on
a periodical basis. No Stock option has been granted 1o any of the Directors dunng the finencial year
2021-22. The remuneration policy forms part of the Directors” Report The Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiee was reconstituted following the resignation by Shei Aran Prakash Mallawat
from the board w,e.f. 3™ March, 2022, by Inducting Shri Ravi Gocnke, an Independent Director on the
Board, Presently, the Committee comprises of two Independent Directors namely, Shri Ravi Goenka
(Chairman), Shri Topes Kumar Bhattacharya and one Non Independent Director Shri JF. Mundra,
The Company doesn’t have any pecuniary relationship or transaction with amy of the nen-cxezulive
directors. None of the Directors have been given any remuneration during the financial year under
review except Meeting Feca.
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C)

{2) To formulate and review the criteria that mest be followed for determining qualifications,
positive atiributes‘experience for appointment and independence of a director,

(&) To recommend 1o the Board a policy, relating o the emuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees and 1o ensure compliance with the remuneration
policy set Farth by the Company;

{¢) To identify persons whe are qualified 10 become Directars and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in sccordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the boand for their
appointment and’or remaoval;

(d) To formulate the ¢riteria for evalwtion of performance of indopendent directors and of the
board of directors as a whole;

(¢} To extent or continue the Werm of appoiniment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

() To roport on the systems and oa the amount of the annual remuneration. in whatever form, of
direciors and key managerial/senior management personnel 1o the Board,

(g) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
dutics

The briel terms of reference of the Committes are as Tollows:

Constitution and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and Remueneration
Committer

The Composition of the Committee together with the details of the attendance of each member during
the financial year 2021-22 i given below:

Sr. | Name of the Direetor | Designation | Mestings Category
_No. Attended
AP, Mallswal Mon- Executive [ndependent
L | imaigned was o1-op:202z) | Cuinman | Director
Non- Execalive Non-
3. | LP. Mundrs Member 2 R

Meetings of the Nomination nnd Remoneration Committee (NRC)
Two NRC Mectings were held during the linancial year 2021-22 on the following dates:

v 26%April, 2021
v 04 March, 2022

Ferformance evaleation eriteria for Independent Directors
» Attendance at Board or Commitice meetings.
» Contribation at Boand or Commities meetings,
» Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of the Campany,
= Meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the Board’ Committes meetings.
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Details of meeting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31" March, 2022

Director Category mﬁ““
Subhas Jajoo Non- Executive Non.Independent Director 23,4080
Raj Kamal Devi Bangur Mon- Executive Non-Independent Director 7.500
1P, Mundra Noa- Exccutive Non-Independent Diroctor 18,600
TK. Bhattacharyn Naon- Executive -Independent Director 25,800
A. P, Mallawst Non- Executive -Independent Director 20,500
S. K. Rathi Non- Executive Non-Independent Diirector 10,000

Total 1,06,200

1 Stakcholders Relationship Committec

The camposition of the Stakeholders” Relationship Committes {SRC) of the Board is in line with the
prescribed provisions of Section | 78 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations snd the
Committes imber alia approves transfer & tramsmission of shares, issue of duplicate’re-materialised
shares and consolidation & splitting of certificales, review measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by sharcholders, review the adherence 1o the service standards adopted by the Company
in respect of various services being rendeted by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, redressal of
complaints from Investors including fmier-afia nos-receipt of annual reports ond non-receipt of
declred dividends etc. The Stukehalders” Relationship Commitice was reconstituted following the
resignation by Shri 5. K. Rathi from the board w.e.L 3" March, 2022, by inducting Shei Ravi Goenka,
an Independeni Director on the Board. Presently, the Commitice comprises of two Independent
Direciors namely, Shei Ravi Goenka (Chalrman), Shei Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya and one Non
Independent Director Shri 1.P. Mundm.

Constitution of the Stakebolders Relationship Committer
The Composition of the Committee during the year 2021-22 fs given below:

| Sr. No. | Name of the DI Desiguation Category
1 | 1P Mundra Clalmaan: | 70 O B
5. K. Rathi Non- Executive Non -Independent
2 | resipiedt we f 03.3:2022) e Directar
3 T.K. Bhattscharya Member | Non- Executive Independent Director

Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Commitice
No Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting was I:Hdh'hl;ﬂ:um year 2021-22.
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provided here under:

Address 21, Strand Road, Kolkats- 700 001 (West Bengal),
Telephone No | 033- 2230 7908

E-muil westernindiacommercialcohd@gmail com

Details of Pending Investor Grievances und Compliance Officer
mhmmmwﬁrﬁHMﬂhﬁ the stakeholders. Further there
were no pending transfers for the year under review.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

MMWMMMMnmmm the Boand for formulating
and overseeing the exceution of the Company's CSR Policy as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thercunder, The CSR Commitice was reconstituted following tive resignation by
nﬂmmmmmmuwﬂrmmmwwmmm
-MMmhMMHm:mdmhﬂpm
mmm*mmmmmmm;mmﬂmm
Directors Shri Subhas Jajoo (Chairman) and Shri 1P, Musdra.

The Compasition of the Committee together with the details of the atiendance of cach member during
the financial year 2021-22 is given below:

Sr. | Name of the Director Designation | Mectings Calegory
No. Altended
| resigned we. 03-03-3022) e DRI
2. | T.K. Bhaitacharya Moember I Nwﬂmﬂmhﬂ”!ﬁﬁﬂmﬂ
3, | 3P Musdes Member : m
4 | Subkes Jajoo Member i mﬂwm‘f

The CSR Repaort as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended 3™ March, 2022
Is amtached to the Board"s Report.

Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committes
Oine C5R Committee Meeting was held during the financial vear 2021-22 on 23 February, 2022,
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Details of General Body Meeting

Amnual General Mecting
The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings wogether with the details of the special rosolution, if
asy, passed thereat is provided hereunder:

31"March, |  Sutunday, 25" September. 21, Strand Road, :
2021 2021 m 10.30 AM Kolkata - 700001 *
31" March, | Wednesday, 30™ September, 21, Strand Road,
2020 2020 at 1:30 PM, Kolkata - 700001 o
31" March, | Saturday, 7 Septomber, 2019 21, Strand Road, Yes
2008 ot 1030 ALML Kolkatn - 700001
Estraordinury Geacral Mecting

An Extrsordinary General Mesting of the members of the Company was called for appointing the
Sututory Awditors of the Company, on 28" January, 2022 at 10.30 A.M. at 21, Strand Road, Kolkaty
=100001 tw comply with the roquiremenis of the Circular no. RBIZ021222%5 -
RefNo.DoS.COARG! SECON 08.91.001/2021- 22 dated 27 Apel 2021 [(Guidelines for
Appointment af Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercinl Banks
(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs)] lssued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RU
Guidelines’). The members have asppointed M. K. K. Chamanl & Assoclates, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Regisration No. 323232E) as the Stamstory Auditors of the Company 10 hold
office until the conclusion of the 95th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Remote e-voting and ballot nt the AGM

SEBI has insued a circular dsted 9 December 2020 fir increase in the participation by the pablic noo-
instinutional shureholders/'retail sharcholders. It has been decided to enabls e-voting to all the demat
nccount holders, via o single login credential, through their demat socounts'websites of Depositories’
Depository Participants. Demat necount holders will be able 1o cast their vote without having to
register again with the e-voting serviee providers (ESPs), This will not only facilitate seamles
authentication but also enhance the ease and convenience of participating in the e-voting process.

The Company has engaged NSDL to provide e-voting facility to all the members. Members whase
mames appenr on the regisier of members as on the record dute shall be eligible to participate in the e-

voting.

The facility for voting through baliot will also be made available ut the AGM. Members whe have not
el their votes by remote e-voling can exercise their vose ot the ACGM.
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(D) Meues of Communication

The Cuarterty, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Resalts of the Company are forwarded 10 Stock
Exchange immedintely upon wlhdeMﬂm:iwm
i newspapers in WHWWM}mEHmwﬂHﬂhﬁ

Anaual General Mecting | Saturday, tho 20° Augesi, 3033 5t 1030 A M. u

21, Surand Road, Kolknza - 700 001
HMMILWW!MJ&HMMHMM
E-voting Dates: 17.08.2022 10 19082023

Finmncial ¥ ear 2021-23 _
Dividend payment date "No dividond has been recommended by the Board fhis year
Listing on Stock The Equity Shares of the Company ars linisd gn-

Exchange The Calcwnta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE),

7. Lyons Range,

Kolkata — 700 001
mﬂumhupuh“llui;hnfﬁuMWﬁrh
financial year 2022-23,

Stock Code Code: 10013036

Code No.: 7401

ISIN INES2SMO1013
Tranxfer of shares 1o [EPF

Mumanﬂmmmumm—umuﬂmmﬂm
MMMHﬂWMH]EHMH}MIanM
dirﬂnih-mhpﬂWuHmdhmmuuimﬁnumﬂdlhhﬂmﬁbrh

Company to the Eﬁ.nﬁh]ﬂmﬂmmm&qdﬁhm. As provided under
MMhMMEwmmmwmﬂhm
Wuhmmwmmmmumhﬂ1wmﬂ,m¢
mmmm"mmmuum
Tnuﬁ-unphruﬂﬂlhhrhh:wﬂﬂ%}

| Financial Year 1¥April, 2022- 31" March, 2023
?Emruh Within 45 days of the end of the quarier

MMM Eﬂu_l!ﬂﬂl

Third
Eﬁr 'm-_h: Emmm Within 60 ditys of the end of the financial yoar
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Corparate [dentity Number (CIN): L67 1 20WBI928PLCORI924

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Maheshwari Datnmatics Py Lid. acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Campany
having its registered office mt 23, RN, Muokheree Road, 5 Flpor, Kolkata = 700 001, Contact
No.033-22482248, 22435079, Fax: 033-22484787. Email M mdpldciyahoocom ETA alo
maintains & website: www.omdpl.in

Ehare Transler System

a)  Tramsfer of Securities held in physicnl Mode

As por SEBI nowms, all requests for tramsfer of securities including trassmission and transposition
reguests shall be processed only in dematerislised form. Further, vide circular dated 24th Jamuary,
2022, SEBI has natified that all request for duplicme issuance, splitting and consalidation requests oo
will be processed in a demat mode oaly.

b} Nomisation facilicy for sharcholding

As per the provision of the Act, facility for making nomination is svailable for Members in respect of
shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form may obisin 8 nomination form by
writing i the Company Secrotary of the Company or RTA. Members holding shares in
dematerialized form should contact their Depository Participant (DP) in this regard.

¢l Pormanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account details:

As required by SEBI, the regulstor, vide circular dated 3rd November. 2021, and | Sth December,
2021, has mandsted Mamishing of PAN., KYC details sod nomination by holders ol physical
sccurities by 3ist March, 2023, Members are requested 1o submit their PAN, KYC and nomanation
details to the Company s regisirars.

d) Rezonciliation of Share Capital

As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), quarierly audit of the Company’s
share capital is being carried out by an independent external Auditor (Practicing Company Secretary )
with & view to reconcila dw totnl  share capital sdmined with National Secusities Depasitory 1.
(NSDL) and Cenvral Depository Servives (India) Led, (CDSL) and shares held in physical form, with
the issued and listed capital, The Auditors Certificate in regard to the same is submitted to CSE.

Distribution -I;IMI a8 on 310372022
(Shargboldies | NoellHolders Hosne
| Upo 500 3| a0

01 bo 1000 . 1 1000

1001 10 2000 | 10.00
| 2001 @ 3000 3 30.00

3001 5 4000 | 10,00

4001 o 5000 1 10,60

Grand Todal W 100, 0
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Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

As on 31" March, 2022, 99.81% of the Company"s total equity shares representing 17,965 equity
shares were held in dematerialized form and the rest were in physical form, The Company™s equity
shares are available for trading in the depository systents of National Securities Depository Limited

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
Status of 10tsd number of shares dematorinlized and in physical form as on J1™ March 2022:

Depositary No. of Shares % of Pald up Capital
WEDL 15,490 B0
CDSL 2475 1375
Physical 35 0.19
Total 18,000 E 100,00

Outstunding GDRy' ADRs' Warrants' Coavertible Instruments
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRyWarrants or any Corvertible Instruments.

Secretariel Audht

Pursuant 10 Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, Mr, Mukesh
Chatervedi, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed by the Company to conduct Secretarial
Audit of records and documents of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Raport confirms that the
Compasy has complicd with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Depositories
Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, and all the relevant Regulations and
Guidelines of the SEBL, as applicable 1o the Company, The audit also covers the recenci|intion of
shure capital on quarterly basis o reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and total
paid up aad listed capital, The mudit confirms that the total paid up capital is in agreement with the
total number of shares in physical form and the toml number of demmterialized shares held with
HSDL & CDEL.

Risk Masagement

The main identified risks a1 the Company are Commercial Risks, Finaneial Risks, Operational Risks
and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The Risk Mansgement is overseen by the Audit Commitiee of the
mm.mmmnmmmmumnhm':m
cximence a5 & going concern and 10 its development are identified and addressed on fimely basis,
However, constitution of Risk Management Committee I3 nod applicable to the Company (n terms of
Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations.

ﬂwmﬁﬂ
Secretary

Ghonalyyam Mohta

21, Strand Road, |
Kolkata - 700 001
Tel: (33-22307905
Fax: 03322131650

Email [D: westernindiscommercinkcolid@gmail com
Website: www.westem-india.co.in
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Share transfor sre processed by the Repistrar & Share Transfer Agent and mpproved by the
Stakeholders Relationship Commitice, if the documenis are complete in all respects, within 15 duys
from the date of lodgment. The same s examined by a Practicing Company Secretary on halff yearly

basis and a Certificato as required ander Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations is obtained and
forwarded 1o CSE where the Company s shares are listed.

Credit Rutings

Mo instances have ocourred during the Minancial year 202122 which warmnt the Company 1o obtoin
Creclit Rating.

(E} Other Disclosures

5

k)

€)

€}

During the financial year 2021-22 there was no materially significant HRelsted Party
Transaction, with the Directors, or the Management, their relatives ete. having potential
conflict with the intercsds of the Company ot large oxoept those disclosed in the Board's

Repor.

There was po non-compliance by the entity, penalty, strictures mmposed by stock exchange or
the: board or any statatory authority, on sy matter related fo capitnl murkets, during the last
twee years.

The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members of
Board and senior management persoanesl.

The Company has sdopted o “Code of Conduet for Prevention of Insider Trading” (“ihe
Code™) in sccordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of Indin
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended upto date. The code expressly
lnys down the guidelines and the procedure 10 be followed and disclosures 1o be made, by the
directors and the seaior management personne] while dealing with the shares of the Company
on the bourse and cactioning them on the consequences of non-compliance thereof. The
Company has also formed Whistle Blower Policy. Further, vwe affirm that no personnel have
boen denied socess o the Audit Commitiee. Emplovers can report 1o the Management
concems regarding unethical hehvior, act or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct Palicy.

The Company is in compliance with all the mandstory reguirements of the Listing
Regulutions,

Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

Mukesh Chaturvedi, Prcticing Company Secretary, bis issued & contificate as required under
clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, confirming that mone of the
directors on the Board of the Company have been debamred or disqualified from being
appoimted or contimuing as director of e company by the SEBI ! Miwstry of Carpomsie
Affairs or sy such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed wiih this report.




[ 4] Dietails of wotal fees paid 1o statutory nuditors:-
The details of wtal fees for all services paid by the Company, on 8 consoliduted basis, to the
statutory auditor are as follows:

h) hmﬂﬂﬂﬂhhmﬂwmﬂdhwmﬂuhw
yenr under repon, henee no disclosures are applicable.

Non-Mandutory / Discretionury requirements of regulation 27(1) & Part E of Schedule 11 of the
SEBI Listiog Regalutions:

Sharcholders Rights:
The quantery/hall yearly resulis are not sent 1o the sharcholders. However, the same are sent w the
CSE and are also posted on the Company’s website,

Auditor's Opinion:
The Company’s financial statements for the financial year 2021-22 do not contain any sudit
qualification.

Reporting of internal auditor:
The internal anditors report 1o the Ausdit Committee,

Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading:

As reporied here in above, the Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, monitor
and report trading by insiders under the SEBI (Probibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, This
Foly also includes code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive
information, initial and continual disclosires. The Board reviews the Policy / Code on s need-to-know
basis. This Policy is available on our website. The Company Secretary is the “Compliance Officer”.

The Code of Canduct is applicable 1o all Directors and designated persons as defined in the Code of
Conduct,

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance

As required by provisions of Chpter IV of the Listing Regulations, the Compliance Certificaie on
Corpovare Gavernance is annexed to this Report,

CEQ and CFO Certification
mnm-mummarmcmwummwwmwu is provided
in this Ammual Report as required by the Listing Regulations.

Yo
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Centificnte from Company Secreary in Practice

CERTIFICATE
(pursucon fo closse 10 of Part O of Sehedufe V of LODR)

In pursuance of wib clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Seeuritics and
Enhnﬁudﬂ'hﬁﬂﬂl}mm-dmnﬂuhm}w
mlﬂﬂ,mﬂjhmﬂwmwhﬂmmﬂlmwmﬂﬁ
L67120WB1928PLCI91924) [ herchy certily that:

Um the basis of the written representation / declaration received from the directors and tken on
recoed by the Board of Directors, as on March 31, 2022, sone of the directors on the board of the
Company has boen debarred or disqualified from belsg appointed or continuing as director of
mhrdtSEﬂlJHhi-yuffmpunMnrwm-ﬁwM.

Place: Kolkatn
Date: 13* June, 2022 Sneha Agarwal
Practicing Company Secretary
ACS: 38284
CP No.: 14914

UDIN: ADGEI84D000486303
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The Mombers of
Western India Commercial Company Limited,
(CIN: L67 1 20WB 1928PLCI93924)

meﬂmmhmwumwmmﬁ-ﬂdmﬂhﬂﬂ
cmmwmmmmwmmﬂmm
yeur ended 3|t March 2022, as stipulated in Regulations 17 t 27 and classes (8) 10 (i) of regulation
46(2) and para C, Dmﬂﬂﬂ*mvdﬂ:&mﬂumdﬁmwm#hﬂlm
Obligations and Disclosure Roquirements) Regulations. 2015 a8 amended (colloctively referred 1o as

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility ilumhlmﬂmmhﬁmﬂnuwhhmmm
Emhﬁmﬂhdﬂﬂummﬂﬁm:uFMMn:uw{&dhmmug
Iﬂﬂiﬁ:nﬁrﬂmhkaim-mMmmﬂmmh
financial stutements of the Company.

lmMuuMMﬂmmmmm for the porposes of
mm&muhmmrmmmhmwm

Opinioe
Mmm%dhmlmmmmwhhfmﬁuﬁmum
Mummlmﬁmmmymmw&hmﬂiunﬂ
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 1w 27 mnd chioses (b) 1o (i) of regulation 46(2)
HmﬂﬂdEﬂM?Hhuﬂ‘mh'ﬂhmﬁdil'm
2020,

I stnie that

such complisnce Is neither an swsurance as (o the [ure viability of the Company nor the
Mwmmmmmmmmmﬁmmumy.

ACS: 18284
CP Mo, 14914
UDIN: ADIEIR4DOO04SE26]
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Mﬂ!ﬂ'ﬂﬂnﬁhﬁ-

Ta,

The Board of Directors,
Western |ndia Commercial Co. Lad.
Knikats

Desr member of the Board,

I, Ashish Kedin, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to the best of my knowledge
wnd belief, cortify that:

| have reviewed the financial stiements and the cash fow sttement of WESTERN INDIA
COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED and s summary of the significant sccounting policies
and other explanatory information of the Company and the Board™s Report for the finmcial year
ended March 31, 2022, | state that:

a these ststements do not contain any materially untrue statement or cmit any materinl fuct or
contain sinlements that might be misleading:

b these statoments together present a true and fair view of the Company”s affairs for the period
presented in this report and are in complisnce with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and reguiations.

There are no mansactions entered into by the Company during the vear which are frandhilont,
illegal or in violation of the Company”s Code of Conduct.

| mccept responsibility for establishing and maimtaining internal controls for finnclal reportiog
und that | luve evalented the effectivencss of interan! control systoms of the Company pertaining
to Fmancinl and confirm that there have been vo matertal weakoess in indernal controls
over financiel including any corrective actions with regard 1o deficiencies.

| have indiceted to the Auditors and the Audit Commitee:

a. that thore were no significant changes in internnl control over financial reporting during the
yenr;

b All significant changes in sccounting policies made during the year, if any, and that the same
have beon disclosed suitably in the notes 10 the financial stntements; and

t. that here were mo Bistasces of slgniflcast el tiat invoelve management or ther employess
who have a significant role in the Company s intesnsl control system over finuncial sepoiting.

I Frther declare that all Board Members and Sensor Management Personncl have alfirmed
comspliznce with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this Report

Place: Kolkata
Diate: 24* May, 2022

y3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND QUTLOOK

The global economy grew by 5.9% in 2021 following a contraction of .1% in 2020. Couniries scross the

focused on vaccination coverage and implemented various economic stimuli to minimise the
impact of COVID-19 and hasten sconomic recovery. The growth momentum started slowing towards the
end of 2021, as the effects of fiscal and monetary stimuli dissipated along with the onset of the Omicron
variant of COVID-19,

mmﬂwmm#ﬂmﬁwmﬁhlmmmmm-d
conflict in Ukraine will weigh on global growth projections and also lend to high inflation in the shon
term, The conflict is a major blow to the global economy that will hurt growth and raise prices.

The International Monetary Fund in its recent report slashed its forecast for global economic growth by
nearly & full percentnge point. citing Russia’s war in Ukraine, and warning that inflation was now a “clear
and present danger™ for many countrigs.

The war is expected to further increase inflation, the IMF said in its latest World Economic Outlook,
warsing that o further tightening of Weslem sanctions on Rutstn 1o tarnget energy exports would casse
another major drop in global oatput.

Aceording to IMF, other risks w the outlook include a sharper- than expecied deceleration in China
promiped by a flare-up of COVID- 19 lockdowns. Rising prices for food, energy and other goods could
trigger social unrest, particularly in vulnerble developing couniries.

INDIAN ECONOMY

Among above global economy backdrop, strong cconomic fundamentals will likely help India svoid the
long-term impacts of the oagoing conflict in Ukraine. However, the crisis has clouded India’s growth
nuthukumﬂ.ﬂmﬁhuﬂpﬁ:ﬂmllﬂlﬂﬂtMMLﬁIMwwmmnﬂpﬁ-mm
207 - all of which are critical lmports from the twe warring naticss, India also partly moets s fertilizer
needs from the region. For India, which hes boen baitling inflation for & while now, this simation s
making matters worse. Higher fuel and fertilizer prices will increase subsidy costs, Funthermare, capital
m;ﬂ:ﬁqMMHﬂnﬁmhmmhﬁnﬁmm

The successful rollow of the world's largest vaccination drive, pick-up in govemment expenditure and
better preparedness compared with the first wave of the pandemic limited the negative cconomic impact
of the second wave,

India's gross domestic product (GDP) 15 expected to have grown around B.7% in the financial vear 2021-
22, which is the bighost among the leading cconomies, and the growth is likely to be around 7-7.5% in
the carrent Emﬁlrw.tmdhummﬂuummhdh':mwnm
to remain steady in 2022-23, barring longed geo-political tensions, supported by various dymamic
reforms undertaken by the government the past few years.

i



NBFC INDUSTRY & BUSINESS UPDATE

aifects it ,mmummmmwumuhuuh
M%huﬂﬂuﬁhmm&hm&ﬁ etum.
OUTLDOK

uncertaintics and challonges for the cmerging market economies like Indin, However, the Company has
mmqmumhmmmmmlmm.Mﬂu-ﬂ
pmﬁlhwhwﬂlimhndhmmhum.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

mwnmﬂw.mmmuumhwmm-wm
mﬂhhﬁmwnﬂmhﬁrqﬁ:m:.lhn!mnhhhmm
Hmﬂﬂm:hlmnmuﬂmnﬂﬂumam:mﬂbm
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the details of

af 25% the
;w‘w;wm or more as compared o the immediately previows financial year)

Particulars Fimaucial Year
GNPA (%) Eﬂﬁ__%.l_'
NNPA (%) NIL NiL
Return o Assets (%) 027 (AT
' Return on Fauity (%) T i
Net [nterest Margin (%) 100 100
Cuvent Ratio 30 T T
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00
| Net Profit Margin (%) .08 179,15
"EPS (Rs.) 80377
Price Eamings Ratio NA. HA,
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Western India Commercial Company Limited
Report an the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial ststements of Western India Commercial
wuwmw.mimmmmmﬂmmmmh
Sutunmuﬂmﬂtmdmu{lnnluﬁmﬁhmmhmhm},ﬂuﬂuhﬂmm
mthmmnfﬁmguthuityﬁrhmlhmmﬁd.mdmmthHﬁﬂ
&mﬂﬂmﬁuﬂqnwufﬂgﬂﬂmmﬂmpﬂiﬁuﬂuﬂu
explanmory information,
hmnﬁnbummhhﬂﬁfmiﬂrmﬁmﬂmﬁqmduexﬂnmhmﬁmmﬂ,
hﬁﬂdﬂhﬂﬂuﬁmﬁummmwhm
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™ in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
mhniwﬂh&mﬂnnﬁmﬁumwuwhIlin.ufl:hnstHunflﬂihnf
hcmyummal.m.hh{immqurmmimm its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial staternents in accordance with the Siandards on
MM{&&!LHWEHWMMMHS{IE}&I&AH.WHMMWM
Standards are further deseribed in the *Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
mw*murmm.mnwmnrmc«mmmm
with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indis together with
the ethical requirements that sre relevant 18 our sudit of the financial stabements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thercunder, and we have fulfilied our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
ﬂnulﬂtﬂﬂﬂmwhwﬂﬁﬂitmﬂhwmdwﬁuhm&lhuhhmmﬂh
opinion on the Ind AS financinl statements.

Key Audit Matvers

quﬂi:mwhnmmnhmpmﬁmmmdnm#ﬁﬁsm
mwﬂuf&:lnﬂﬂﬂﬂnnﬁlﬂmmhthﬁmﬁﬂmmﬂhﬁmhll,im
These matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements a5 a
m.ﬂhmmminh&umm“tuwﬁntmnﬁmmm
matters, For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matier is
provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below o be the key audit matiers 1 be communicated
in our report. We have flfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for




Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit
manfier
Ind AS 109, Financial [nstruments Our audit procedures included the following;

Refer Note No 6 of the Investments. The | ® We  have  obwsined  independeni
carrying value of the investments as ut 31* confirmation of the number of units and
March 2022 wes Rs. 50,762.57 lacs net assets value for ench unit of the mutual
comprising investment in equity , preference fund units and market shares as at the year
and debt instruments end units of mutual end date,

fimds

* Also obtained the most recent audited
foor ted i

- A financials unguoted imvesiments

represeats  97.78 % of the total assets of the | Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures

Company. made by the Company in this regard in the

Ind AS financial stalerents,
Considering the significance of the sbove
trunsition with respect to the financial
tatements, the complexitics and eofforts
involved, this matter has been identified as a
key audit matter for the current year audit.

Other Information

mcm'.am&mhmummmmmm
hﬁtmﬂlmm&whﬂﬂdhﬂmﬂmﬁﬂﬂimﬂm
detmmghmhﬂmﬂ‘lﬂmtmﬂmmnﬂ
M'llﬂm.hdﬂuﬂﬁﬂu&&hﬂﬂﬂﬂmﬂmm“
auditor"s repart thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[nunmﬁmwiﬂluwnﬁtuﬂhhuhIMmumﬂﬂtrﬁdehuﬁ:
hﬁmﬂmﬂhhﬁ'nmmmmhhmahhmﬂﬂnurMM
mhMmWWMDmmunﬂwm:mmh
miaterially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is o

4e



&

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statemenis

T&Eﬁmpanr‘lHu-dul’ﬂiunmi:mpnng‘hhfuuummﬂdinmﬁmlid{ﬁnrdu
Mmmmhpmﬂﬂmwﬁm&mumwnumudﬁ:
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
ﬂthilﬂd-whquhydmm?hmwudmhmmﬂup&m
generally accepted in Indin, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
scction 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
m-mwmmmmnrmmmin
mtﬁhmmﬁﬁmnﬂmmmm#hmuﬁufwrﬂh
MMMMdMMHMNMHW
mmh;pﬂhimn-ﬂqjuwmﬂmunmhhmdmmh
mmmmamumwmum
mmmmmWﬂwﬁnmd&u:mﬂum
rﬂmuuthumpmﬂmndpumﬁmﬂunhmnsm-nﬁumm:m-m
and fir view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due 1o fraud or ermor,

hm&u&shﬁﬂmwhmmnhmnu
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers relsted to
going concern and using the going concern basis of sccounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic aliemative but 1o do so,

Those Boand of Directors are also responsible for overseelng the Company”s financial reporting
process,

Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonsble wssurance sbout whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emvor, and 1o jssue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
hmumhuﬂw&mﬂMMﬂlmmm“m
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggrogate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the
cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an sudit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughowt the sudit. We akso:

* Idemify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
mdnhﬂnmﬁlwiﬁumdmhmmmmpmﬁdelm&rw
apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations. or the override of intemad control.

. meﬂmmmmmmwﬂlinmﬁimwmﬂ
procedures thut are appropriste in the circumstances. Under s¢
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on wiet

hY
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intermal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the sppropristencss of accounting policies used and the rcasomablencss of
sccoumting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the approprimencss of management's use of the going concem basis of
secounting and, based on the audit evidence obtnined, whiether & material uncertninty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability o
contimee ns a goimg concern. If we conclude that a maierial uncenainty exists, we are
required 10 draw attention in our anditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ane
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company o cense 1o continise a5 a going concern.

* Evalmte the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial stalements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial siatements represent the
underying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair preseatation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the mudit and significant sudit findings. including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

Materinlity s the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements thot, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable thit economic decisiors of s reasonably knowledgeable user of the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider gquantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i) to evalunte the effect of any identified misstatements in the financinl satements.

We also provide those charged with povernance with o statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we detennine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial smtements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or reguintion precludes public disclosure abowt the
matter or when, in extremely rare ciroumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonzbly be
expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matter

The figures of the year ended 31" March, 2021 are hased on the mnnual financial statements that
were audited by the erstwhile uﬂ]lmi“ﬂnuupmdmd!ﬂ“lm 2021, expressed an




(n) anmmmmthmmumbhhmnf
wwmwﬁmmfwhmnfnwuﬁu

ﬁ}hwuﬁﬁmmhﬁhdmuuww law have been kept by the
mmhuummmmmmdmmm

{n]lhﬂﬂmuﬂ:ﬂﬂ,hm&mmmluhduﬂghm:ﬂﬁhr
cwwmmcmrmmmmufmmﬁmiu
Mﬁmwmhﬂmnhwmhwﬂmm

tﬂhwmhlwhﬂﬂswmmﬁyﬁmhﬁWmuq
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
mﬂmw}mma.um;

(e) On the basis of the written representatlons received ftmnlhﬂlrm::mh{uﬂiil.
Mﬂmmmﬂhhﬂmﬁﬂﬂhnlnmﬂ&ﬁmhwﬁdum
m&aliiﬂﬂmhﬂnsqﬂpdmﬂulerhmufﬂﬂhnlﬂmnrm Act;

read with Schedule V 10 the Act;

(k) Wlﬁrqucthhdwmhhindudﬂhﬂnam'nﬂwmumm
with Rule 11 nl‘thtﬂmup-hi{.&ummﬁudim;ﬂ Rules, 2014, as amended in our
mﬂuhwﬂwmﬂnuﬂmmum#mmlz

iL mﬂmmq-humpmﬂnglhlsﬁuumimﬂﬂciﬂpﬁﬁmhi:lmns
financial statementy

it ThaCumpmydidnmhwrmylum-mmmuin:luﬁqdﬂimhu contracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses;
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iv.

&3

Mmmmﬁ%mmhumﬁm:ﬂhhw
mmmmmmcm,

a) mwuhw&muhhﬁlﬂiukmﬂpwmﬂm
MMMWWMM{:EW{EMHMMMW
htmhumurnhmmmwkiuduffmdu]byhmmmwinw
mm:]nummmq foreign entities (“Intermediarics™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thot the Intermediary shall,
wﬁhr.dhwﬂywiuﬁmbhﬂuhmh other persons or entities identified in
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 urﬂwueﬂnm"ltmrtunhhplaﬂ
mmwﬂdnurumdmhnumlhdﬂm“mhd
Wmmhﬂnmmrﬂﬂumulihd

(i

(i)

(i)

() M]Th:ﬂumpln;rduumlhuldnrhum,thdequipmuﬂwupiWIHd
any intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022 and accordingly, the
rnﬁmhmpmmnhmmm{ﬁ}mm]nfﬁ:ﬂwﬂummlappﬁmuem

the Company.

(b) The Company dnwmhum?mpmy,ﬁammuﬁmimln the books of the
Gmpmnﬂw.hmmmundmmmrﬂum
is not applicable to the Company

{e) Mhmwmmmwmnh&miﬁh
Imﬁﬁhmmmﬂyamﬁhﬁmwafﬁemmﬂdby

(d) The Company does not hold any Property, Plant and Equipment (incloding  Right
of use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022 and
sccordingly, the mﬂmmnpunmchm]{i!d]nfuwﬂnh‘hml
upplicable w the Company.

(e) MMMMim“mmmmﬂﬂwﬁrhﬂu
uyhmnmlpnpmyundwlhu?mhﬂiﬁmufm&upmyﬂuummL
1988 and rules made thereunder.

(=} Thnﬂmmylusmmmudmnﬁnly,ﬂwhqu&mmmmpmm:hm
3{ii)(n) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) mtmqnnyhunmhmumﬁnmdws capital limits in excess of Rs.five
crones hwwmmwﬂMWMMypﬁnnfﬂmui
the year on the basis of security of current assets, Accordingly, the requirement 10
mmhﬂﬁj{h}ufﬂu&dmhmlugﬁhﬁhumm.

Mmhﬂhcmmmmmﬂbmmmhhmﬂm
mudmmﬂmﬁdﬂm@mfmrﬂmnunhﬂmhmq
Partnerships or any other parties). Accordingly, the requirement to report on clouse
![Hi]{.]mﬂ}uﬂh:ﬂﬁumnm-pplmhhthﬂmm.

and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are ot gpplicable o the Company end accordingly,
the requirement mmnmdmuuiv}urhnﬁhmw:umcmu}u




(¥)

(vi)

(vid)

(viiD)

(ix)

(x)

mﬂmhﬂmmw@nﬂuﬁmhmﬁnmmw
mﬂnﬂuﬁndﬂhﬁhh%ﬂtﬁhﬂumﬁqnfﬂhﬂﬂh?ﬁ#h
mmammmm.hhuummw.m
mmnmm:hul{ﬂnfh&hi;mmplimhhmﬂucmm.

The Ceniral Gﬂ*ﬂmnﬂrﬂhhﬁmprmmm:mlﬁﬂmmufmmﬁ
uﬂ:lﬁ-uﬂhn(l}n[ﬂﬁmlﬂﬂm.ﬂﬂfnrmmmdnudwh
Empq.hmmﬂhgmﬂnmtﬁ:mmmnnmxﬂ}ﬂﬂu%isﬂ
applicable to the Company.

(a) ThCmmhmmuyhmﬁumhpuﬁugﬁﬁnmmhmﬁm
undisputed statutory dues including goods and sorvices wx, provident fund,
mﬂwﬁmmmmuuﬂum.muﬂmm
ﬂﬂda.ﬂulﬂhmm&ﬂhrmm&uquﬂﬁhuh
A:mrﬁnamﬂ:llﬁrmﬁmmw;immulﬂbmdmmdh
wmﬁmpuhmﬂh-mmmdilpwmmﬂelumufhm
mﬁmmﬂmmhmmmrlwﬂﬂmmlhﬁ:
months from the date they became payable,

(b Aw«dh;hﬂumdhﬂmmy.mmmmmnufmmuﬁm
twies, provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales- tax. service
mdmﬂmwﬂucinmmmmmmmwmn
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute as on 31° March, 2022

mcmyhmmeWmﬂnmmﬁuﬂymm
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196] & income
during the year, Accordingly. the requirement to report an cliuse I(viti) of the Order is

mlhmdmmwhdwﬂuﬂhywhmdhﬂy.hnqﬂmmwm
on clause aﬁl}fﬂhlﬂﬂfﬂ!ﬂ!ﬁmnmqphhkmﬂhﬂw

() Amﬁqmmninhunﬁmnﬂmphﬂimﬁmhyﬂwmhth
thmﬂdwmwmnrmiﬁwtﬂcnﬂﬂmpﬂhnﬂh
:mmw-ﬂmmummmnmm-mum
s not applicable to the Company.

(b) Amﬁ;gmumhﬁlnmimmdmiﬂi{mﬁmhyﬁ:mmmmﬁ
Ewhmnﬁur#ﬂhﬂﬁhwmmmﬂumﬂmm
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the yesr under audi
ﬂhmmmmmmﬂmmjﬂh%thE
1o the Company. & '_ _--‘\\




(i)

(xiid)

(xiv)

{b) During the rw.mmpmm:hrﬂmhuflziufmmlﬂ of the Companies

(<) mmmummmm-umm blower complaints
received hyﬂhﬂompuq-dm’mgﬂ:]m-.

hwnphhn.ihcm is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
I(xii)u) tofc) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

(b) Wﬂhﬂmnﬂhﬂdﬂuhhnlﬂuﬁlﬂpmufﬂummhndﬁﬂﬂ'm




(xvii) ThCmIpm,rhuminnmudmhhmhlhemmlywundlnhdu

(xcix)

(xx)

(xxi)

immediately preceding financial year respectively,

for appointment of Statutory central auditors (SCA"s) /Sutuory suditors (SA's) of
commercial bank (excluding RRB's), UCB and NBFC's {including HPC) dated *Tih of
April, 2021 and no objections, isstes or concems were rised by the outgoing nuditor.,

For K. K. CHANANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountunts
ICAI Finn Registration Number: 03222325

Krishna Kumar Chanan|
Partner

Membership Number: 056045
UDIN: 22056045 AJQLOF8E24
Place: Kolkata

Date; May 24, 2022




Weﬂﬂﬂhmwmmtmmwﬁﬁ_dﬂ:muf
wﬂnmhﬂhﬁnmudﬂtmlhthd{‘hﬂunmﬁuufﬂuﬂihlﬂnh
Wﬁmw-ﬁihlﬁ&ﬁﬂmwﬁﬂmﬂuﬂmfﬂrhm

Management's Respomsibility for Internal Financial Controls

mcm'-umminmmmmﬂmm linmneial
mhhﬂmhmﬂmlwﬂmwmwﬁﬂhﬁ
mwmmmnrmmmummﬁmm
mMﬁmwmmmwmwhmMmur

Anditor's Responsibility

Dﬂfﬂpﬂﬂﬁﬂlfiﬂh:ﬂ:ﬂ:mnﬁnimmhﬁmpnﬂm financial controls with
ufnmmﬁuahdhsﬁimﬂﬂmhuﬂunwudh. We conducted our audit in

adequate imemal ﬂm:ﬁllmmﬂuwilhuhmﬂrmﬂu:!rﬂasﬁwmmmm way
wmmuﬁmmmumumy{um material respects.

mmmulmmmummmmmmmﬂ-
mwmumMmmmuaswmmduﬂr
operating effectiveness. Our audit of imernal financial controls with reference 10 Ind AY
Mmmimmmwﬂm financial eontrols with
umummmmmﬁtmmmmm&m.mlm
mmlﬁﬁuﬂmhﬂmIthipnanmﬂn; effectivencss of internal control

e
— o




N A0

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selecied depend on the auditor's judgement,
mcluding the sssessment of the risks of material misststement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or emar,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and nppropriate 1o provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company”s intemal financial controls with reference 1o these
Imd AS financial statements.

Meuning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference fo these Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference 1o Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of finaneial statements for external purposes in nccordance with generlly
accepted sccounting principles. A company's imternal financinl comtrols with reference 1w Ind
AS financial stwements inciudes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, sccurstely and fadrly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the sssets of the company: (2) provide ressonnble assurance thm
rmnsactions are recorded as mecessary t0 permit prepamstion of financial statements in
accordance with generally nccepted accounting principles, and that receipls and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with suthorisations of manapement and
directors of the company; and (3) provide ressonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unsuthorised scquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have & material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Relerence (o Ind AS Financial
Stalements

Bevause of the inherent limitations of imtemal financial controls with reference o Ind AS
financial sutements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management ovemide of
controls, material misstatemnents due to ermor or frond may occur and not be detected. Alsa,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference 1o Ind AS
financial statements 1o future periods are subject 1o the risk that the internal financial control
with reference o Ind AS financial statements may hecome inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, ndequale intermal financial controls

with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with

reference to Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as mt March 31, 2022,
e :

com
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based on the intermal coatral over financial reporting criteria estabhshed by the Company
mmmmurmwmmhamwnwh
the ICAL

For K. K. CHANANI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
mmwmmm

Krishna Kumar Chanani
Partner

Membership Number: 056045
UIMN: 2205604 5AJQLOFE624
Place; Kolkma

Diate: May 24, 2022
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED @

MOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2022

1. Corporate Information

Western India Commercial Company Limited (“the Company™) Is a public company limited by shares,
incorporated on 13™ August 1928 and domiciled in indla. its shares are listed on the Calcutta Stock
Exchange [CSE). The Company is carrying on business as 3 “Non-Banking Financial Company™ (NBFC).
The Company is engaged mainyy In investment in shares In securities & financlal activity, The
Company is registered with Reserva Bank of India as NBFC. The Company’s registered affice Is 21
Strand Road Kollkata — 700 001.

The financial statements of the Company as on 315t March, 2022 were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24th May, 2022.

1. Basls of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of compllance

The Ninancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) metified under section 133 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended from time to time, and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act™).

b. Basis of Measurement

The financial stetements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an accrual
method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and labilitles that are measured at fair
value/ amortised cost as expiained in the accounting policies bolow.

€. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statemnents are presented in Indian upaes (INR) which s also its functional cufrency
and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in locs and rounded off 1o the
nearest two decimals, except when otherwise indicated

3. SGHIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Financla| inFtrements

A financial instrument |s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
lkability or equity Instrument of anather entity,

{1} Financial Assats -

# Recognition And Initial Messurement
All financial assets are recognised initially st falr value plus, in the case of finandlal assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributabie 1o the acquisition
of the financial asset. Trarsaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at
falr value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¥  Clossificotion ond Subsequent Measurerment
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
= Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost;




§a3)
WESTERN INDWA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED 2
mmmmwmsmmmmmamn“wmmn

«  Debt instruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income IFVOCH):;
. Mtlmmmnlrmmmﬂmmgmmm
. mwwﬂnfﬁmmmrMpmlmmm

wmammMthmﬁlmw.mHIMhm
wmmwmwmﬂmmm“

o MMHWMAMWHManﬁﬂMHw
the following conditions are mel:
. mmummammmmﬂummmmduﬁ
contractual cash flows; and
«  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and Interest {SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding.

Efter inltlsl measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured 3t amaortized cofl
uging the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

o Debt instruments ot FYOCK A debt Instrument is measured at the FYOC! if both of the following
candinions are met:
. mwdmm%t-ﬁﬂw:ﬂmmauﬂlnﬂld
seding the financial assets; and
s The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL

Debt Instruments meeting these criteria ore measured inftially 3t fair value plus transaction
costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with eny gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized In Other Comprehensive income. However, the interest Incomi,
losses & reveraals, and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. interest calculated using the EIR {Effective Rate Interest) method i recognized In
the Swtemant of Profit and Lots a3 Investment Inoome.

o Megsared of FYTPL: FVTPL Is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument,
mmm;mmmmmmnmmmﬁwmnmmu
EVTPL in additicn, the Company may elect (o designate s debt instrument, which otherwiie
meots amortized cost or FYOCI criterla, as FYTPL. Debt instruments included within the FYTPL
mmmmdﬂﬁmmﬂwwhﬂummu{mm“d
Loss.

mwmumummmmurmm-mw
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as FVTPL For
ﬂmmmmw“mmmmmm»mmnm
mwmmwmmmmmmm:ﬂMm
on an Instrument-by Instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and Is
irrevocable. In case the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as  FVOC, then all fair
value changes on the Instrument are recognized In the Other Comprehensive income, Thare Iy
ng reclassification of the smounts from Other Compeehensive Income 1o profit or loss, evan an
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH,2022

o Equity investments: investiments in subsiciaries, assoclates and joint ventures are carried at coR
less accumulated impakrment, iF any.

¥ Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financlal asset on trade date only whan the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

# Impaoirment of Financial Assets

The Company aisesses 3t the end of the reporting periad whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets i impaired. |nd AS = 109 requines expectad credit losses to be maasured through 3
loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ or all
trade recelvabies that do not constitute a finencing transaction. For all other finenclal assets,
expectod credit losses are measured ot an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses o
at an amount equal to the iife time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

¥ Recognition And Initiol Measurement
Financial llabilities are initially measured at falr value. All financiz| labilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in tha case of financial llabllites at amortised cost, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.
The Company’s financlal llabilithes indude trade and other payabbes and borrowings ncluding bank
overdrafts and derative financial instruments.

*  Subsequent Measurement
Financial labilities are measured subsequently 5t amortized cost or FVTPL

A financial liability ks classified as FYTPL If it ks classified as held for-trading, or it Is a derivative or it s
designated as such on initlal recognition. Financial liabiiities 8t FYTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains end bosses, including any interest supense, are recognized In profit or loss.

Afer Initial recognition, intarest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measwred at
amortised cost using the DR (Effective Rate Interest) method. Gelns and losses are recognised In
profit or loss when the Gabilities are derecognised as well a5 through the EIR (Effective Rate Interest)
amaortisation process. Amortised cost s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on scquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The BIR amortisation is Includad
as finance costs in profit or loss.

¥ Derecognition
A financial liabllity Is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
of expires, When an existing financial lability Is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terma, or the terms of an existing Fabliity are substantialy modified, susch an
exchange or modiication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
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WESTERN INDUA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 1022

of 2 new abllity. The difference In the respective carrying amounts i recognised |n the statement ol
profit and loss.

¥ Offsetting Finonciol Instruments
Financial assets and labilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheat when
Hmh:hﬂh-ﬁ-ﬂlﬂnﬂumﬁnﬂ-mmmmumhmﬂnnm
mmlmhﬂnmmlﬂelhuutmdmﬁlhuﬂlwﬂmm.mum
lnl'nrmﬂlrhhtmmnﬂblmnﬂl'nrlmhmllmlulnﬂmnithtlnﬁmmﬂriﬂﬂuml
mnrwmmhhmﬂﬁmﬂhwmmufwm.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand, 1erm daposits with original maturity
of jess than three months, which are subject to ingignificant risk of changes in values.

3.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

mmmnmaummﬂuhﬂmhMrﬁﬂﬂunaammm of impairment,
hased on internalfexternal factors. If any such Indication exists, then sn impalrment review s
mummhumnhhmh:ﬂnﬁtﬂnhlﬂhlﬂhkﬁmhumuﬂ
dijposal and the asset’s value in use.

3.4 Employee Benefits Expenses
3.4.1. Short Term Employee Benefits

mmmmﬂmmmmmmmﬁmmfwm
services rondered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees tender the
service, These benefits Include performance incentive and compensated absences. which are
mmmmmmmmmdmwh-ﬁmnmmm
the related service,

3.5 Tawes

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tx and defermed tax.
5.5.1 Current Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the yesr under the income Tax Act, 1961, Current tax
assets and labilities are measured @t the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation suthorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or subsiantively enscted at the
Balance Sheet date,

3.5.2 Doferred tax

Defurred tax Is recognized on all tamporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
Gabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initisl recognition of an asset or labliity
in & transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable
profits or loss at the time of transaction, Deferred tax assets and llabilitles are measwred at the tax
rates that are oxpected 1o apply In the pariod In which the llabllity is settied or the asset realised,
based on tax rates |and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Eheet date. ."----""




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH,2022

Deferred x assets are rocognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax eredits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits wik
be avaBable against which the deductible tempaorary difference, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax |ossas can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asssets (including MAT crodit avallable) is reviewed at each
reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that It is no longer probable that suffickent taxsble
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and lisbilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assels and Nabiitios on a net
basts.,

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and o the extent there
Is conwincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset
is writzen down to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified perind. Section 1158AA provides a domestic
company with an irrevocable option to pay tax at 2 lower rate of 22% (effective rate of 25.168%),
The lower rate shall be applicable subject to tertain conditions, including that the total income

should be computed without claiming specific deduction or exemptions, MAT would be inapplicable
] to apply the lower tax rate.

Current and deferred taz are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same
refate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive income or directly In Equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognited in Othar
Comprehensive income or directly in Equity respectively,

3.6 Provisions, Contingent Uiabilities and assets

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise hat a present obligation (legal or constructive) s a
result of past events, and 1t s probable that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits
will b raquired to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt af the
obligaticn,

A contingent llabiity Is 2 posible cbilgation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or nan-aecurrance of one or more uncertaln future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it i not probabie that
an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation. A contingent llability also arkes in
extremely rare cases whore there Is 2 Bablity that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably, The Company does not recognize a contingent fability but discloses Its existence
in the financial statements,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not
wholly within the contral of the entity.

-
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WESTERM INDiA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LINITED @
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2022

3.7 Recognition of [nterest income

interest income for all financlal instraments measured ot fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL) &
recognised using the contractual interest rato.

3.2 Recognition of Dividend Income

Dividend Income (Including from Investments measured at FVTOCH i recognised when the
Company's right to recelve the payment is established. This is established when it is probable that
the economic benafits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

3.9 Leaias

I} Arrangements where the Company is the lesses

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is,
or contains, @ lease If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified aset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a Right-of-use Asset and 2
corresponding Lease Liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for loases with
@ term of twelve months or less {"short-term leaset’) and low value leases, For these short-term and
law value lesses, the Company recognises the rent as an operating expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Certain leate arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lesse before the end of
the loase term. Aight-of-use Assots and Leose Liabilities includes these optlons when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exsrcised.

The Right-of-use Assets are Initlaily recognised st cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease labilities i.e. present value of future lease payments adiusted for any lease payments made at
or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease Incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumilated depreciation and impalrment losses. The
lease poyments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease Bablities are
remeasured with 2 comesponding adjustment te the rplated Right-of-use asset If the Company
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or o lermination oation.

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated from the commencernent date on a stralght-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

ii) Arrangements whare the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company is a bessor Is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 1o the lessee, the
cantract i€ classified as a finance lease. All other laases are classifled as operating leases,

The lease rentals under such agreements are recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Lass a3 per
the terms of the lease.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH,2022

3.10 Segment reporting

The Company fs primarily engaged in the business of investment In Companies As such the
Company's financial statements are largely reflective of the investment business and there is no
separate reportable segment.

Pursuant to ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, no sopmen! disclosure has been made n these
financlal statements, as the Company has only one geographical segment and no other separate
reportable business segment.

3.11. Earnings per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the waighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Dilstad EPS &5 determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the affects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

3.12. Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect methed, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of & non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cath
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activithes of the Company are segregated,

3.13 USE OF ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ADJUSTMENT

The pregaration of the fingncial statemnents in conformity with ind AS requires management 1o make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policles and the
reported amounts of assats, labilities, income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and
abllities at the dete of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting
period end. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowladge of curremt
events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Aevisions to acoounting
estimates are recognized In the pediod in which the estimates are revised and In any future periods
affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of sssets and labifities within the next financisl yoar are discussed in the
paragraphs that follaw.




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED @

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2022

(] Fair Value Megsurements ond Voluation Procesies

Some of the Company's assets and Rebilities are measured at fair value for financlal reporting
purposes. In estimating the feir value of an asset or 3 Habdity, the Company uses market-observable
dats to the mxtent It is avalable. Whers Level 1 Inputs are not available, the Company engages thied
party valuers, where required, 1o perfarm the valuation. laformation about the valuation techniquid
and Inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and labllities are disclosed In the
notes 1o the financial statements.

{ij  Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carvied Forward Tox Losses and Unused Tax Credie
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised s based on an sssessment of the
probability of the Company's future tmable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utillsed. In addition, significant judgement |s required in assessing the impact of any legal or
ecotomic fimits,

¥



WATENN PR (LA RCLL DDA LRTED
et 90 Pl S b ety Linss pae gl 09N sberihy, JERD
R e p e B BT, e b b

A i Hin Mmie |
.. &
LS

Lk s

At 1y e e A

E T AEwa |

LiEa
Hure

sonsa
- —

1 0% hn T ik i St s by e Rl BT PRTIVER Y PRl SeSTLESEE ot FVDD R4, B JdLssL
[Previss o A A5 Laci | i et B vl st g sl dhat s B9 fearitsd aned R L8 D8 Lan, | P fveccs vrat fin
B L et BT Sy e Rl B R Rl o T

B Toar covhum gl ool g Lo ewlof dret ek iy iy fruem el o sa 2y iow sl v bt im 3 F e

B Sady & rovacimaniT avw a Sl -
= T T
- 100 o 1877 128 e
Areiuge bong Raguler pas 0 e o . i
e e o s0me e w2 e .
I

32



TR e A CT AT CIAL LOWRART LT

e R b, s e [ el s |

%E

.

TRa1

B
2=

i

— ﬁ==._7

& TR AR A

LE ] k] (&} FIN Y

E ; %0 wHar

L L% . 2

* : LA urs

R 00 Tara ELt ] ISas

LR ES] ELIR= pAL (2]
o |mal T
nin . TE 3
faLt T i
Pl Le 14 foo JLTY 14,008
Upepuam et Rl ERE N e
Pyt oty P, Lish HEE < s 10800
sialiogy For 13 1300 0 1500
Sharirteng 1. o LM W
B oyieriay Bor Las LD M 10w
Earrils [ orepany i 1] ERLY L]
Pt Tuulii ey Bt e ar -
e 1060 -8 H L0

Ce

:

!

E

|

IJ uj 5 |1 liu::u:uf Ep——

T2

JY



At it R Rk,

T

4, ]



35




WES TR INDEA SOMMTRIEAL COMIANT LMETED
Ptes b Finsschal Ststemant fos e yaar eaded B1ul Rerch 30K
L&E @il inAn, Loy, Pleil Sherwing itate dl

Bt L (e Capra
18 Dty Sl res Cxginal
o KL e, | i Lk haeih,
% -
Sty W ofia SO0 b [Popemim Peas: 100000 B fLE
Thavw o 40 100 guuh [Preede Tea 18000 B1E] AR
Fuilly Paid
Arsrm ol By WM asib Salty gl wp (Preai Teee BRG] LREQ
B P eighite e i ke Bl By Broeyy

i Corsgrsty Fn isidy oo whies o sty ofuiss hieimg o par vied of M. 1007 e b | Privosa yow By 1008 gk | Rarky
Past ol ity Wi bl 10 co vl pa ahiie Deslerd o Wiy, prmmened fry (e Sant o DRTIO S st 10 aporoul
ol Vo wtmneuslinrl o b emueng AT 05 U avenl SV Sguidlibion of 1he fiberpery, the bakien of momy 1hal v wl S sl bu
Wy O P e meetn o the ongeess Wb ibreilunes of Wl et o R pregarTics i the s ol vowty e
o g Ty

203 Bunmeadislan of Uhe resried of kel S ire of Iguey Basni Captal smaurl spianding ot 1% Seginmeg a=d 21
ot ol Wl ot

i g g e
8 Bt Niwroh, MOES
iy Pl vier

- .
]

©



WIATERN INDUL COMMERTLAL (OSAPART LURSTED

Ieutes bo Flaanclal Ststsmam lor the vesr sdded 5lay Mar, 313

1ES I Searwhaiding of Promoturs-
B
SharanpiEng 8t the begnring of the | Shareholding st the =nd of The yasr
vt i o0 Blet Apeil, 2001 @3 an Jist haey, I0LT P
W coas! Fhares ol % of totad Hhares of e
Faar
s o Mharmy AT b o Exaren
138 -
% _iLi] -
—s| =
154580 .
Srarehoting 1t B tegircug of

Sharhoiing a1 the snd of the year | PRSP

g Prameees's Samae \ e 1251 Bkargh, 107 s
Ho. of thares weth o o, of Svares ‘
| SHEEL CAMTAL SERVICEI LTD T g | i
__ b _,_,“m 1% 15 s
HARACHAN BANGLI :
SRS R = s :
T ARSI SIVEST 5 -
e -




S T TR i i b ReAL DM LiRTLD
lnml-—-_h“-n-ﬂ_.-t
Il memeanatba b B busa, = lam g e s ]

R T e,

N
S
: Gy
‘mal v
o
uME| ume)
e S|
|
s

e ad e

Tt Bl TR AT e s e Finm e el ! Egary (i iy PeLuned Faragn, TR B, nil ey e
U of (e DT e il Mo s e b #l iy Cprmpumesam A 3055
u.“

T eprs R IR el e BF e Lm0 PR LS STl e iy ) e i prduse i
Pl Covapaman et JEUT

e T L L S el T S e T T e

T v ab | rrstn e ol ad ER (R 0P ] araieg m OF Fiataleen of fald Eltaers) Bl o Ta) seten

mlm b el Y -
RITETIFTT o R g

T Ty B lTUTp g S e mireging b

Pt (W Sttt She SIS R [T W s ] B T bt ol Byl o0 e s el #
i Vgt D {ammprrtenpey bimme ool of (o Fee rmm b B9 Wikcdeied S ol om ey whes S
srrfiomarE e & W

T



R WA SRS AL TP A AT
i (5 Fagnsl STIEFsSs o Ve pagy P ikl Waech, FIDD

LA prrtsentn o fm LBE G wieddl e GRCIPCS

Ve Ervlad 3200
LU

I}

E

WEE

0 LA

b i

S



VTET R PP CORETR L £ ORAPLYT LSaTTT
Tigtan b Feenrucin] Sinbmsgn e (e bt erstesd 118 Wavih FRID

R T ]

ool Srar Tmad 31 el 1 |

.21 ol

g1t L 11 ]

LRl 1)

(§11 asi

1. K

L (4]

oM Wi

2 i

Aok 1

. 1)

(T il

%!#l
ey B S | P ivdied Kal
EEmiery [P F ke, JERE
il remarwl D e igea 0 1 Srremee s e vy T P
e oy tha Yo
T i i
o R e g Tl
gk Y reeifel & =3
= glietn @l N mbarly . [

o TH P S e R BN g Al

B TR 1 P Wl gl B LRy Ml el by devierr nd B DL Sead
o e T 1 B e e TR TR p T et e P e




T EAN Pl [ORSAS IR (MR AN LANTID
et i Finsailnl Tikhivee bt e molnd 120 Marce X553

v 30 TEE S
i i o T el e e

M ED | s 3t
L b
LR Y f
[RE-] L
TiN L]
Slar
)

18] Beurk
T gy

FURET CEEEehr s e
I i T B e TS 28 (e Rl LR ) s

21ah sdarsh, K

s ';Ei




ATV A COLATR 1A COMPANT DATID
v 1 Fisamrinl funsrmenl tes Bl pisn #ddid 11k blarah 325]

e B Load S8andil bl i n‘-: hiF
— e

. s e
Fatpewd faa anarp

aplerrwor i G B e Py 0 bty oponm Bk 5P, oo i [y bamn o legalsy avvkos, et oghe! b vt o Comred Las
Wi T P T S DTN s P b ik @ | BT Dbt el D bt R S A B Taary bl by P e

[ duthiry
i L0~ Crvky CaiFige Furmmd v smcutresn.
S
aded _ﬁmw
1

Qe



Bl g T g e Slanpmsh il Feafs bl Le
e ety of Doy Uinrem Gumd 1 e EeTEr e Co e g s |

Sema 1% Eetwel Bty Framsiimes
A Ferteralan
LELE RIF e st Mgy il B tid Pt o
Ny Bl grial Barpeens B S R | w w0 el SE3ET) g s
Tacgy R U Pt N e aki on e B
By Rt D En D
R i
ALY T i
A B Chiiid = @ POGA Wsae 03T ey b
LmaE il e gy Sere iy

bl

B et Dkt Ted ik Lt Bt (o s i, it ¢t D b, o W1 ol el sl Redinar pa:

oo Vo e i | Voar B o |
T T
i

L

e

L ]

1=

ain

an

L5

[-Fi 1

Frnaia s wih eelated sife

Koty 1
ErEEE Ry Peas

ol

ME| LTgl B Bampar
T gy

T L gy
LA

& P Mullaaw

EiREEE 55 &

J e e R e
Rt Paid

P [

ot LA CELEN W REGARL FO D 7O RarCh L] TRPISES S Spdds L TLRPFRILLS.

Baprd i T colpermgton ge e batan w10 (oangiey, P & sk pupple o Bee stermuped parepiey THiy i Bastieee g da s
T e S B B R el 1100 Mach, SEIE pe M0l el JOUT Eojelien with iviveail e frepalie v releesl 18
N el

£3



v AT e CORERAINVCIAL COReFART LTI
SEEEN LN PR e A iy e psbes B B nnd

ke [T SRR LHMT U RGRN 1] P 1 L

HE—— i L -
AT T raep— § b W
T L1
el T Lﬁ' 7]
Pl Wt |rmsag® 003 s
L Lt ] LA R
¥ P P
i 06084
Tl Tulel [TTE ﬁ'
| i el w1 il Wikew [t Frpdn Bl s FVTRL|
| e it s . e 151
e Tl =T} L
Pl Frsrcial sasts BT Y
st o Ao ot
T — 8 ™ L
— ] an eT)
B P b P g Py

Ehip ERTEN Pepla O ipEmeTl i suleet <l 0 deleree B (e siberi ol vF Teasul seiurrest thil e i)
ringeiied el Alanesd B vl o [l eeaiesd 5l Eagriyed rond el 't whok b vese g Susand = ke leas s
R 15 e g e ] P etk o e Pty wied e by, far s, P oy P et AL
Bl s o pnt ol Ut Ul e i Sl el wahen (ha amaostey Landeedy

Erenth casp B bty oy Ineer st cant o we i e wil weey e pren

vl & P e el o) Boumasl mwt mmmeds B ied el Pided o on S market @ Sebwrreed weg aalaten levieines
whech e e aan ol crenaks e des and iey @ iy = ke o iy ypenks. gl 7 61 EpEtTAn s
il b A e A S T OUER wilst, TN PRl 3 Skl o e L

epenl 1 ¥ sy i F ] Py ety s AL b AL e o p praaie ke didn Few n e o acaoled e e b

Bty et b it b i -

P e cafiam ] e i e g s s el bl Lo ) e e o s e b

T | g Py [ kovening

That Fay widot i Poianal inivaimesta Vit prw e reced noss e marl B RIS uling veaser (e [
ST SR TR 10 Ml @ ey B ewihosh el ey aneTgEeeY C e ey e o ek sl o
b 1R med ol Rl ot g pevad Jor st o v by amsegic e woend e o s of g o P arcasptinen

g



R TR B SRR RCLAL COTRAAMY [IWSTERI
Py g sl Ton et 4o the past @ndesd 3101 mhanh, O
ITEPTIPRE Y Sy, = e ]

TP Bareaken Musisivsmiv (o i
191 Fabrwglie ol @siiTn Bnd kst i iSeme & oo, s ROUEED (0K

T Lty B oF BRARCe syt s TERCC Gibbins MRS B0 ol SIVL P 8 IOl Rt o S
valsn 1= thir [ofiieny Ofm Aol aAanany inal it s ey Sriind sold e slgpibisnit, ddevan) s W silurs Thit il bie
s nially rrewverd i sertiad Esagir et igimd Bl sl of (s ini DE6 s, albir s Seleees, D1 dinos
winary pr o fnenoal Ralamm s ossue |hee carlying ameums o Thive Farimees, in fiDaned Wy

el
T

Lo ol (i e 153047 LR L8 AL W
ek Balarry @Ay (o caet b e bR urea 0o ol 31k
o Ll mnes fL R ] mn [E ] Lt
i Tl fiain.

Tt frargtaf plnlien ar -1 1] 15 1] (BT

Domit Ralarow ovoni g cgsh i caak pouessah
Cliinr Srairide did#T1

Bl fasrin
Carrgni es dsirmi M)
Tetad o Foried kst

Cafap Wrptii0] Ll
Eeal Mingedial Llsiebrai

e o i Llaldinie,
Cgmrepay bp laghdmnd |

Bty I bl i
T Agefinnsg dglpilin
Tt Mot Pl | bty

et Rty

&S



TV FCUA COMRTRIAL (IR ifi] 1D
tm fn Anargksl pratemmr s ko 01 wiEl eated ke biand, JEET

[T vy o W WOk whleis exberries ifaded)

N Fanmsl sk ramag e

Thr Cimmpary & o Moo fensieg ivgssy LPwaey gimed sl e Smeres Sad o Fda Ue e pf 0 Bl
Ol A P L8 e Temegl R EE0RES ST Laanoly piodort S m ool or defeal oyl san REL,
eI PHE Tk, Sduifny ik e rolaticnary b Hou, B Cnpany by o cobuil Ueaesld v essmpaeme ples o
e e ently, reslege manags Bl PSR i P4 a00ated sl D fantdl @O0 18 Feurk P druel
Francd chieris®l BE e Tea Cofgdsy's e rangETEd B eapaie S giesiley sl ssborey e ol
Sitapeart et wilhen 0 el i Pt it 5o ErEtepa. DY Tree Dy The B o eeclan
Guath 1k ARG 0 B el ORIRTT-RY Bl BB el BB ey b et gttt ks Vi b e Dy, we
g sl AR b BT ed oeoly, gennoly e he clangm in marie conditioes Bnd mena ok
LI B e ey U A TS 1 e S ey ECT BT DIBE S ASCE [ele i) o o) B
o D

M e i
This f b Coreries 1o &l ifrerstery wha rrant o panih gl debt mRAeeeel) and ety b g ek ShEE B Rl
bendferent oy taue & rable Ta Mike B rae el Erenios st elaind ke Epmn o bus SmidEiea e
ey B I U LR B ey et e geyeey of COTRILG T B9 1 il 2 i bl aligetue, ar Sosa
i iy (EPRE | e ety o B oS BTES PR [T ae Ay B e e il iedvregnse min o0
e AL pmepl

™ s i
et ik o e F pEATEL P OGEE wTh T ey Sy Tasentan i ha marier P BF FSo P Sl B
W ™ e ride PECTS al i 8 R U P e e, Frarin e T taanond (8o i S sl
TSy R TN W R T e e (TR B0l LETE A Rehteserial, iad many B teen, 0 may she e
PR S 5 et ek Sl sy G s of Ty b e i v Seal G GG 118 S B ey
Erira il ieal wivhnlity ok Keuerrial Fasremerty EICIRE e PR ik £ b B P sl W S

rimewh vaw A

TR T ek e e e ek S e by £Se Rl e debs vminesesl s ey il SeSenien (e
vl o i Regdd 180 S8l sairarme prraredy deviesdus 1 S0 o eesfet ree ool ore e The semonEe 5 Wl i boad
v ey ol & Gvsrs Ve of peyerts, Bn AveiRs Wil 0% beid A 4 bl hat et B 8 1 R R T daim
e b 19 EUVTESS MHETREL. A A i rale lalnanin das a0 Hh Chrmany'y edstey] pupendtenn o7 kel

T Cirmmaarry vamrutiers e stamsi§ St b smenn 00 @ PEgule haan sl dsiedeyl) HEET eI didieses as it 15
il 8 B o rln deDE Tl BANEL N AL T Ul g o pene

Pricu rish

P rak @ g s Nl S fas vatd o § fogsetul! et sl fociosls do 17 aisgmi = e sded pop 4 e e
Eraedll B i1 ) TR Aty Pt e S, sl bl B1C The OBy o dedsil #il i @R ORE By
gy from EepTneeEs el uh FVDD wliDs By vaiord el guatesl (HHES 1 S{Fve MBkety b geegiinity snahan
FEET S T AR SF IR ERurgR AT e B TR B tromendy o el 0B deofbig ) al P rpppeie S A
Ewen Db,

Femare [T S ———
e yp—— e —— v ———— AL
Famauan Sty sy a0
Leralnie e cpan T sl
of markmi e
T T
T I WTI Y LSS S berevicar o Bor e e 1 Bkaeih B CE T L]

Rty S BTy 8 D ) b i ¢l 0 LR gty s roresn e rsaie B B ELAT o ERet s cnaseily
v s claySed i 19 sl Do Bagh D Toemgaredvmgen RO




WAL T I EUANMRERC LA DORAPRNTY LIMTTR D
aE e el nlaeetarEy for the yrar sl Bl Masms, Bk
A g o B L, el S Tiates)

] sty Fiskc

Ligusiey reles 18 Bt rewarin of the Comgary 10 bel and reaing £3 Snarcs JEete Loy Fak o dvs OF [be v orma ol v
MHMH ltioap o snewa by b eL Beal o T ) b B Fiih al i D alde by rmplbg
b S prige ol 8 REET FEL & 0 AOY Den g el |0 ez sl 41248 49 @ B it of on- rewtstny OF U

Ll i I ool D bealii b larmting v s sl B EToman! BETRAI Sy B it iy R e R el

Ty Ly maro e & el Peeiilod pafine of somdsrni o hEes, sod i o Tee & defbrmecd 16w aF REAE ey
W i P S E 00 ) D Bl i SC T T TG A [ty s (7 N o LB The
U TR T L el 3 L Forany B S LAl iR A b ddi o IR 1R Trige al chegatiuems e ceb bt o
Sarmiy —ErTE

Vit Pk, Lhb b P e e g (oA |l et e o s LS g7 S et il e b ek
g =il Sauy

Agreeen i d Oeer By

-_-.mw__‘l.mm ]
e b ) ﬁ ; : g

o 13 Mareh G
e dmaegial Lt 1M : - kbt
—tt : - iya
Il i Ratipery sk

PSR v TRt DOWE T ST I I G W R s rasael ffy sSEaan B i The Al Thae et
it ol W gl o i e parsem which |nLM O Serene o parhdEsy Sose o mevy, b kel negElisy
bract (v aades uf shantealy TR §o SRS (U O Plgon e AEng tosil O ERoduitin wed s i s
e woel ey e e e T upits SRR e SR g rl 1D S 1y A G il T ey gL
wity eligiioe,

Vhar Ly wdukly mivwioes Tor wlflnpr. Soye pl 57 T RN T wede s femtng TRk B G PREY A W
B0 B B rR . Thed Fie Lo ) 1 ek efgtioras w il @ sconrdegly ThaT in QI 3 Pel AEliathl
Ul provictes Bighn elainy B raERIRd 10 B aflatioe g

O Felagueent
Far i aepian o Corpiery Cepdsl RARRESSRAL Lapdl s ey awerd pEStY I CEGE, DTHY 80T Cmlaiee e
i Lo T iew L0sh el Linh egeseieriny, [ha gy phpa ol B L I Ranapereat] @ B3 TaimEs B9 PSS CaglE
AT S el P ol SR CAEE NS PO SR SR MR Al B ARl arrholtey’ s vpler

il VIR = 1Y Gl TN il roiepy IS TSN I RERD ] N n e oens, s A T faar T
ol s e 1p] DT, T L o adlpl the Lapskal s kst s, (6 Fy My adunk e dvidens gy
afmlrilry, 1P rapm il 1 sl b e O P e e B DB aR A i PRSI e, mfe o e
it dhdnl by il rapae! phod mer i Qe ity s po g 10 R b4 ot g g, W5 Tl el P well) o
| Eaar it b ) DR AT e AT e e e

Dy i s, el Al e of we Comgery
Fariauanry

Bemingy

Lt L wd Lol wprealem
Sefpemmadl rar Sein ihag g
Tl ity ) — RI
Tt b 10 eguty te
%] Bty ot e EB1 Dol 9 R O [ieh Edrporng that sy managnd 49 sl
iy wage apt & R

£y



hEs

MRS sl CORARMIRCI AL OO0 AN Y LIBNTED
Mtus oo Francial 1AM fne e piar sodel § 1 March, 3011

i el Thin L pairsy mrn e Brlg o i skl Ioict i | SafiveRlon, far o i af Rl Tereis GF SriFy il O il GRS O Nty Ty 21

ety i Gl e, arhon b feAEYE S0 el Sfleei saresy and e ane oo ol b IS B wech B smmgpmseets. The Compasy kil
arger] - ‘phard <1irfa s’ eates il bsi P e iewees, Fermal rurmnmr roumel o @i bivimd = Move 20 m Beed

Msms 1] Vg for the pemenis jriviad R Bebsn 7 msped s rrcumelied g colors 1o 1 Caenteamon o funeend gering whsisaes AR

Curreal Tar

N ——: Wi phariar® | Nk Wosightnd w1 umia| s WA

. W dCign [y 1138 x| e WA

Tiertl sl T nCaghal | R b am| a8 NA
Bt arkh

el br D age Banig z"“ -—-: L ELITS S TN 1] M.

Wit b el ol [ b TR ETORCT ] B Vv pmnkaiury sy

st 1Y; FarSrnsiars regurml et Para rap® 18 2 the MIEes Hrecios Mo B fouens Compery: Berk VpLemriy UTEOorTest Mar Uesis | jaeg
Commmpuy (Fwmmve Bank) L6 eclin, FOLD se given 61 P AARESTT BDESTEE TAPIRD

T e ing St b i SR FIT 0 e s LLEEEeT
iy bmivrsg i oY SlEiaitd]

K KK e B A Fur el e bt F P ! Do e
Diartsred Adzouniant

Faim bmgaiation rg. TIZINIE

Klafva amar Cnanan babhas b T AL Bhattachaeyn
P Chasrman Ierrtor
Wb i b M N T L
Pur Kilas Auriah Mot A4 M

£33



T s i s e AT RATTER
A O sl et 1 b kgl Dot Pl It

151 i) o] by sl L . WEFLG
i b

LR T ]

e P Sl mems ey
I8 Dl el
i By

e e |
e ey Pasis

———

EEEER

Ll L ]

TITTE. El

£s

ER 3R BE

iR EE K5




|
|

e
il
perzzf  mEfanr ammes

i
l:l[;;

B i el
s Ol (] ke

Means
Wesns

m Iﬂi". H presEs aseess mnsem wssnas |

90



LT S (e e, O BATRE
s e bl 1 i ] ' e P e | ey

mwm

L] s Wity ey Batil L
[ N
L D e el

- [ S
(o] e
"m

Be

[F T sty kel R e

e at Bl e i g eeets
P L R i sl

Dl bswarisniy

ey B e, LELRLIE

Wik bomar ] buimai b dld
i it e Ll e et

i i

11



Anmecire Ha

&Y

N.B.I Industrial Finance Co. Ltd

87th Annual Report 2021-22 CIN : Lé5923WER1936PLCOGS55%
" h
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ASHOK BHANDARI - CHAIRMAN & INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
B. L GAGGAR
RIYA PUJA JAIN

PRIYANKA MOHTA - INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
T. K. BHATTACHARYA - INDEPEMDENT DIRECTOR
DEBASISH RAY - INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
J. P. MUNDRA,

MANAGER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
S. P. KUMAR

COMPANY SECRETARY
ASHISH KEDIA

BANKERS
STATE BANK OF INDIA
HOFC BANK LTD.

AUDITORS
CHATURVED! & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KOLKATA

REGISTERED OFFICE
21, STRAMND AOAD
KOLKATA - 700 001
Phone ; 033-2230 8601-03
&-mail : nbifinance @ymall.com
CIM ¢ LEES23WE1338PLCOBEE0S
Wabsite : wewnbi-india.co.in

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
MAHESHWAR| DATAMATICS PVT, LTD.
23, R.N. MUKHERJEE ROAD [5TH FLOOR)
KOLKATA - 700 001
TEL : 033 2243 5029
e-mail : mdpldc @ vahoo.com




&3

N.B.1L Industrial Finance Co. Lid,
87th Annual Report 2021-22 CIN ; L6S92IWEBI1236PLCO6S596
i B

DIRECTORS REPORT
Daar Sharshclders,

your Board of Dineclors have pleasuns inpresenting the 87° Annual Repar of your Company
along with L Audited Financiel Statements of the Companvy for the year anded 31% March,
2022, This rapon resd with e Managamant Dizsesslon and Gnalyals incuds datails of the
macro-aconomic seanarno, Compamy's performancs and B's approach to risk managamant,

TheAnnuel Report for FY 2021 -22 s aleo avallable on he webeite ot the Comparny.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Thesumirarised results of your Company are given in the table below:-

{Fe. In lakhs)

Yaar ended Year ended

a.0a.2082 21,0820

Prodit bafara Depreciaiion & Provisions 108525 8845
Less | Depreciation .44 0.4
Pralit bafers Taxation 108881 §7.59
Lesz : Prosision for Currént Tax 6524 -
Proafsion lar Dafermed Tax 29.08 {6336}

Profit aftar Tax TO4.48 16135
Add; Transfar from OO =ale of shares 156.80 -
Add : Balance of Proft from Pravicus year 10,258.25 1C268.17
11,34953 1043052

APPROFPRIATIONS

Transfar 1o Fesarve Fund (g2 per RBI Guidelines) 158,60 3227
Batance Camiad to Baiance Shaet _N,180.63 10,386,265
11,349.53 10.430.52

WORKING RESULTS AND STATE OF CONMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Toted income during the year under raview amaunted i3 71,228 24 Lac as-against 1216060 Lac
in e pregeding year, Profil before axamounted to ¢ 1,088.61 Lac 35 ageinst £497.89 Lacin the
priceding yoar. Proft ater tax stood at ¢ 704,48 Lac as againat £161.35 Lac in the previous
Yo,

Tree Company condinues to ramain registarad as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the
Aaserva Bank ol India,

Mo material changes and commitments have occurred after the Gose of the year i the date of
i ragor, whichafect the Enanclal position of the Company

covip-19

Trie COVID-18 pandemic, continued 1o bo a global chabengs, creating disrugtion across tha
ward, In the firs three montha of FY 2022 the second wave of the pandamic ovarwhalmed
irdia’s medical infrastructirs,

(€}
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HVIDEND

In view of the cument uncartainty 2nd real of pandamic looming lange. the Board hes dacided
b retain the earnings snd does nol propose any dividend,

In termg of Regulation 434 of SEBI Listing Ragulations, the Company has atdoptad Dhidand
Destribaition Pollcy as approved by the Company's Board. The Policy 18 hesied on tha
Company's website and can be accessed al hitp:/lwww.nbi-
india.ao.inpoliclas 20211227 _NBI_Dividand_Digtribution_Policy.pdf.

EHARE CAPITAL

Trm Apthorisad Shane Cagifal of tha Company Slands at 710 crora divided inta 2 crore equity
snanes of 155 aach, The paid-up equity sham capital of the Gompany slood &1 © 12284 Lag as
af 31" March, 2022, During the yéar under review, the Compeny has not ssued any naw
SEGS,

TRANSFER TORESERVE FUND

Pursuant 1o section 451G of Raserve Bank of India Act 1834, non-banking financiad
companies (MBFCe) ara raguined to transfar a aum nod lees than 20% ol thair net profil evedy
yaar to raserde Iund before deslaration of any dividend. Accardingly, the Board proposes o
tranesfier ¢ 158,80 Lac to Resans Fund and the bekance prabil s retained In tha Profit and Loss
Accounl.

FUELIC DEPOSITS

Yaur Comparny has not aeceplad any dapasit (fam the publis dumkng tha year, ndr doss & hold
any sich daposis &5 al the end ofthe yeer,

PARTICULARS OF LOANG AND GUARANTEES

The Company, baing a Mor-Banking Financlal Gompany (NMBFC) reglsterad undar Chaples
B of tha Resare Bank of India &ct, 1834 (2 of 1834), is exsmpt fram complying with tha
provisions of Section 186 of tha Companiae Act, 201 3 with resperci toloans

ASEOCIATECOMPAHIES
Tha Compasny daes not have any associate.
UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Members are advised fo note that, dividands Il et encashed fora peried of 7 years from the
date of transfar fo Unpaid Dividend Account of the Compary, re Eabla to be iransferad to the
Imwestor Education and Profection Fund [|EFFY]. Furthar, al the ehams in respact of which
dividand hag semained unclalmsd for T conssculire yasns or moe Inom the date of ranstar 1o

unipeid dividand account shall alse ba transfamad to IEPF Authority. Inovlew of this, Mambars
are requested to clalm their unpald dhidends from the Company, within tha stipulates livsalina.

Heemenrar, mo auch ot of unpeid Serclaimed dividend and sharas were irensferabla by tha
Cormpany to TEPF" dufing tha yaar baing nat applicablato it prasanthy.
AELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the yaas, the Company had not entered IMo any significantly msledal conract J
arrangamant | iransaclions with related parias, attracting tha reguiramant of disclosurs in this
repor as per provisions of Saction 1848 of the Act except far remuneration fothe key managerial
personnel and siting foos pakd 1o dirgctors in the ordineny course of Business pursuarnt o Ind
AS 24 which 55 suitably disclosed in Note No. 25 of the Financial Statemanta forming part of this
Annual Report. Thers ware no ransaction raquiring discioeurs under saction 134(3)(h) of tha
Aot axceplasaloresakl.

Al ralabed party transaciions enterad duning FY20E2 wena on am's langth basis and in- the J
(3)
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ordinany coursa ol business of the Cospany undaer the Act as atonesaid aed nat reatecisl within
ihe meaning of the SEBI Listing Regulations oraxtant RBI guidalinas. None of the transactions
raquired membare’ prior spproval under e dcy or SEBI Lieting Reguiations,

Thie Compary has fermudxied a policy on materiality of related parly transactions and on
daaling with ralstsd party tremsactions. The poflicy is awaltabla on tha wabaite of the Compamy
end also forms & part of the Corporaie Governance Reporl. Related Pardy Disclosures as
required Undes the Listng Recgueations s annexsd o this repon,

INTERMAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Compar has in place adequate Francial conbrols commensurabe wilh s size, scals,
raiura of businass and oparations with referance ba ils financisl siaternents. Tha Company has
eppainted intarmal auditors who review the intemal finarcial control systam. Thases have baen
oesigned 1o provide reasonable asswrance Sbout recording and providing reliable financial
ifformation, ensuring integrty in conducting busness, accuracy and complelengss n
malrtaining sccownting reconds and preventlon and dedection of freuds end amaors.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Beard of Directors have adopted a risk managemant pobcy for the Company which
provides for identification. assassmeant, contrsd and govarmancs ol risks which, inthe spéndon of
the Bloard, rmay pose algnificant ioes or threat 1o the Compeany. The Pollcy ls formulated in
compliance with FRegulation 21 and Pard D of Schedule || of BESI [Listing Obligalions &
Disclosurs Raquiremsants) Regulstions, 2015 and refevant provigions of tha Companies At
2014 The policy |8 avellable on the websaite of the Campany and &lso forms & pant of tha
Corporate Governance Report,

The main identified Aeks at the Company ars Commenclal Rlsks, Financéa! Risks, Operational
Risks and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The constiution of Risk Managamant Commities has
bacomsa mandatory for tha Company as par Regulation 21 of tha Listing Regulstions sz the
company has coma wihin the lop 1000 Tsad endilies based on market capitaization,
Accondngly, the Risk Managemsant Committes has been constituied and the detalls of tha
Committes ara givan in the Corporate Gevemance Repart.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL FERBOINNEL
Directors

The Company has Seven direciors on = Board, Datailed compesilion about the Board is
disciosed in the Comporate Governance Report. All Divecioes have submitted redevent

declarstiona / discloswrss as required undertne Act and e Listing Regulations,
Re-appointment of Director

Shri Bankat Lal Gaggar (DEN; 60408123} and Smi. Riva Pyja Jain (DIN 01568454), Direcions
of the Company, ratine by rotation ol the ensling Annual Ganeral Magbng pursian to the
provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with the Companies (&ppointmeant and Cualification of
Direciong), Aules 2014 and the Artickes of Assocation of your Company and being allgible,
have oiferad themsehes for re- appoiniment as Diraciors.

Az required by Regulation 36(3) of the Ligeng Reguialions and provisions of the Secratarial
Standards, bref resume and ofher details of the above-mentioned Directon(s) sesking
sppainimentre-appoiniment, le attached to tha Motkes of the anaulng Annual Ganaral Meeting.

HNona of the Dvecions propessd for appointment [ reappointment al the ensuing Annual
Ganaral masating e dagueliiied from baing eppointed freappointed sa Direclors undar the
provistons of the Act, e SEBI Listing Reguiationa or amy olher ander, directions of MCA, SEBI
or any oihar siatutony authorntias.

4
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S Asbok Bhandar, Snhii Tapas Kumar Ehallachanya, Shri Debashis Ray and Smt. Privanka,
Mohta continue ko Be Independant Direciors of the Gompany appointed for & period of five
years from thalr reapective dateaof appodniment.

The Indepandeni Dirggtors have appropriabe skill, kmowiedge and exparence in their
ragpactve fisdds, The Company has recaived deciarations irom Sw independart Directons
cordiming thal thay meet the eritasda of indopandence &s prescribed under the Compansss
Act, 2013 and SEB1 Lissing Ragulatons. The indepandant Directars have also confirmed that
tingy henee complied with Schadule IV of the Actand the Company's Coda of Canduct.

I the opinion of the Board, the Indepandent Directars 1WA the conditions sgacilied undar the
Companies Act, 2013, the Rules mada thataunder snd SEBI Listing Regulstione and are
indepandent of tha managemant, and &re pareons of high inlagrity. sxperise and axperience.
Furtrar, i terms of Saction 150 of the Comganles Act, 2013 readwilh Bule & of tha Comparnies
{Appointment and Calification of Diractors) Aulas, 201 4, the Board |5 akso-of the opinion that
the Indegsendent Direciors of 1he Company possess mequisita qualificationa, aspardance and
oxpeattisa In tha fialde of strategy, business nanagement. accounta & fnance, audiing and
taxation and thay hodd highest slandands of integriby.

Hegarding proficlancy, the Company has adopted requisile sieps tiowards the Insiysian of the
namas of all Indepandent Direciora in the data bank maindeined wilh the dian Institule of
Corporate Affairs (NCAY). Accordingly, ail the Indepandant Diractars of the Company have
registarad thamsehves with IICA for the sald purposa. In tarms of Sacton 160 al the Act read
wilh the Companias (Appainimant 8 Cualifeation of Dirsctare] Rules, 2014, 4s amanded vida
Notitication Mo, GSA.774(E), dated 18.12.2020, wherever required, Indepandeant Direchors of
The Comparny have undarsken o complate anline proficiency sel-assessment test conductad
by thie sald Inatibuts,

Shri 5.P. Kumnar s the Manager and Chief Financial Cificer of the Company.

Sudha Jain the Company Sachetary resigned from (he serices of the Company Trom 31 May
2022, Tha Board has appointed Mr. Ashish Kedia, an Azaoclate Mombsr of the nettuin of
Comgpany Sacretaries of ndla aa e Compeny Secretany of your Companm;

Tha Indepandant Directors, Directors and Senior Management including the smolayees have
pompilad with their sbigasions g3 mentioned under Reguletions 25 and 26 of e Listing
Fegulations.

ANMUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF TS OWN PERFORMAMNCE, ITS
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Tha Board of Directors has carried 0wt an annual evaluation of its own perlormancs, board
commitieas, and individual directors pursiant to the proviaions of the Act end SEBI Listing
Meguistans:

The parformance of the board was evaluates by the Board after saeking inputs from alf the
diractare on fhe besis of crtere such as the boaard composition and struciure, efectvenesgs of
board precesses, Informaticn and fenclioning, sto,

The performance of the commitiess was evaluated by the Board after seaking Inputs from the
pomimitiee meambars on the basis ol critera such a8 Ihe compasition of commitiess,
affRctivenees of sommitteo meetings, elc.

In a separate meeting of mdepandem directors, pedormancs of nen-independent direciors,
tha Board &8 & whole ang Chasmman of the Comgpany was evaliated, taking into actount the
viawa of non-exacutise directors. The ndepandant Diractors neviewed the pedommanos of
non-indapandant dirsctors and tha Bosnd as a whola, ook into accoun the wews o ron-

-
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execulive dirsctons and 10 assses the quUaEy, quantty and lmaness of fiow of informeion
babaeen e managenment and the Board. The Independent Directors ware satisfied wilh e
parformance ofthe Baard as a whale and timelnees of flow of information,

Some of the key crdana for parformeunce evalisation ane as IBowe -
Parfarmance evaliation of Directons:

+  Attendance al Board or Committes mestings.
= Corfribution at Bosrd or Commitbad madlings,
=  [Busdanca) suppor to the managameant outside the Bodard / Commmites meetings.

Parfommanes evalvation of Boand snd Commiftees:

Bagnd siruciure and composition

Dagras of fulfilment of key respensibilittes

Establishment and dalinaation of responsibiifes 1o Commitass
Effectivenass of Boand processas, informatanand functioning
Bognd cudiure and tynamics

= Quslity of relationship bobwesn Board and Maragsmeani

= Effisacy of sommunication with extemal sharebolosra,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Tha independent directors have submitied declarstion of independencs, slaling that they meat
the crtera of ndependence provided under section 14906) of e AC, a3 amenced, and
reguiztion 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The independsnt direciors have alae confirmed
compdance with the provisions of ke & of Companies [Appointmant amd Cualifications of
Diraclors) RAules, 20714, as amendoed, relating to Inclusion of thadr name In the datebens of
independant dimciors.

Tha Boand ook on record the declaralion &g confiration submitied by tha Indesendent
direciers reganding tham mesting the prescribad critena of indeperdance, after undartaking
dus assacamant of the veracity of the same in terme of the requiremeants of reguiation 25 of the
SEBI Lstng Reguialicns,

ANNUALRETURN

Fursuant to the provislons of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended uphs date, the exiract of
annual retum i no longaer requirad to be part of the Board Report. Howaar, in Compliance b
the provisions of Section 92 and Sactlon 134 of the Act read with Aule 12 of the Companies
[Managamant and Administration] Rules, 2014, the axtract of B Annual Rabum of tha
Company for the financial year ended 3181 March, 2022 and other policies of the Company is
placed on tha Company's wabsitg af wwiwnbi-indiaco.in

AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditors

W's Chaturvedi & Co,, Charersd Accountants having Frm Reglstration No, 302137TE, who ane
Statuiory Audiors of the Company, were appainted by the Company at the Extraordinany
Ganaral Mosing "EGM) held on 27 January, 2022, to hold offisa from tha date of passing of
reaciution uniil the conclusion of the 857 Annual Goneral Mesting fo ba held in the year2024. In
pooordance with the RBI dreclivas, the Board end the Awd? Committes have reviewed the
perormance of the sietutory audibors and recommended thair continuation & stantory
sutfitors for the year 202223 Tha Mombars are requinad o fix remun oraticn of the Stasutary
Aurdisore for thefinanclalyear ending 31" Manch, 2023,

The Statutory Ausiflors have conSimed that thay satisty the aligibility ¢ independeance cibeda

(8}
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e .
required under the Campanies Acl, 2013 and The Code of Ethics ssusd By the Inatilule of
Chanarad Accountanls of Inda.

Tho audit raport by b's Chaturvedi & Go., forthe FY2022 |8 unmadified, e, It Soes not contain
any guasfication, resarvation o edverss remark or discigimer,

Secrotarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report

Seclion 204 of the Agl, inter-glia requires every lsted company 1o undarake Saoretaral Audit
and anneo with {ts Board'a Report a Secretarial Auwdit Repon given by & Company Secretary in
pracics in tha prescribed form.

It ling with the reguirement of Secfion 204 of the Act and the Cormpandes (Appointmant and
Rarmuneration of Managadal Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with Reguiation 244 of the Listing
Feguiatons end othar applicable provisions, if any, the Secretarlal sudit lorthe financial year
2021-22 hes baon conducted by Shi Mukesh rvadi, Pracicing Company Sacretary
{PCE).

The Secretarial Audit Report Tor the finanoial year enoed 31° Marnch, 3022 is snnexad fo this
Fapdrt. The report does not contain any quadification, maenvation or advense samark reguiring
explanaton ordarlication irom the Board.

Cost Audit

Purguant i provisions of saction 148 ofthe Companios Adt, 2013 coat audit as specified by the
Cenlral Govermnmani is not apolicable tathes Company.

Tax Auditor

The Board of Direciors has appointed Mis Chaturved! & Co., Chartered Accountants, b earmy
ot the Tax Ausdit for the Assesamant Year2022-238.

Indarnal Audktar

The Board of Direstors on the recommandation of the Audt Commitlae had appoinfed Ms 0.
K. Parmanandka & Co., Chartenad Accouniants, o carmy oot the intamnisl Audit of the Company
forthe Financial Year2021-22,

REPORTING OF FRAUDSBY AUDITORS

Dwring the reporiing pefiod. nebher the statubory suditors nol the secraians’ aUdRor has
reparied io the-audit committes/Board, undar saction 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any
ingtanca of fraud corrmitted against e Company by Bs officers or employesa, and hence tha
requirarmient ko mantion the sama in thia repart |s nst applicabla.

HUMBER DF MEETINGS:

Meafings of Board and its Comminens am held & par statutory reguirernents and a8 par
business neads, Due 1o business axdgancies, the Board and Commitess nave &lsa been
appraving several proposales by clreufatian from time b tine.

Board Meeting

Dugrimeg the year, flve Board Mastings wona convensd and held. the detaits of which am given in
thi Corporate Govemance Rapor. The intersening gap between the meslngs vwas within the
perod presoibed under the Act, Secretanal Btandards—1 (E5-1) izsued by the Instinte ol
Company Secretanasof Indla and Listing Regulations.

- -
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The Company has the following fve (8) Committess, which have been esteblished in ]
cormpiance with the mievant provisions of apphcable laws and as per business raguirements;

1. Audit Commities

2, Hominationand Femunerstion Commilles

3. Ausk Managament Commitias

4, Siakaholdars’ Aelationahip Committes

5. Comporate Social Responsiility {CSR) Commitlesa
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Tha Audit Committes comprises of thres Indepervant Directors nemely, Shri Tapas Kumar
Bhattacharyn (Chalrman), Shd Ashcl Bhandari and Shri Debasish Aoy end a Mon
Indapandant Direstor Shd Jagdish Prased Mundra. The Committes mal five timea during the
year,

MOMBIATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nominailon & Remuneration Commitiee compriging of fhree indepandent
direciors and one nof- independant drector namaely, Shi Tapsa Humar Bhattacharya
IChairman), Shri &ghok Bhandad, Shri Debasish Ray and Shei Bankat Lal Gagger. The
Cammittes met thice during the year

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Pursuan to Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations your Company was reguirad to
conatiute Risk Monagement Committes, Accordingly, the Fisk Maenagerment Commifies was
formed comprising of thras mamicas, namaly Sha Ashok Bhandan (Chairman), She Bankat
Lal Gaggar (Direcior) and Shid 5 P Kumar, The Commities met twice during the year.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMAMMTTEE

Stekeholders’ Relationship Commilise of Directors comprises of theee mambars, namaly Shri
Bankal Lal Gaggar (Chairrman], Shri Jagdieh Pragad Mundra and Shei Tapas Kumar
Bhattachanda, The Commities hald our maatings during fhe year

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPFONSIBILITY (CER) COMMTTEE

The CEA Commitiee comgrises of four members, of which two are indepandert direciors and
o non-axecutive directare nemaly Shei Tapas Humar Bhattaokarya (Chasrman), Shil
Dabasish Ray, Shi Bankat Lal Gegger snd Shei Jagdish Prasad Mundra respactivel. Tha
Commiites med once during the reporling period.

Thisyaar the Gormpany wis not required to spand sny amount as the average net peofils befara
1ax of the previous three financlal years calculstad as par Section 158 of the Cormpanias g,
2013 was negative.

The Annual Report on CSRA activities of FY 2021-22 with requisite details in the specifiad
fnrmat as reguined Under Companies {Compaorate Soclal Responaibility Policy) Awes, 2014 s
annaxad herato and forme part ol this repor,

Tha CSA Palicy of tha Company (s also annaxed harelo and torme part of thiz Repost. The
same ls also available on the website of the Company wiz. hitpdisawnbl-
media.co. nvpolickes @02 11 108_NBI_CSR_Polioy_202 1. pd

More detalls about all the Committess of the Board, including datalls of the role and
responsibilites of Committeas, the paricudars of meatings hald and alendancs of he
Members at such mostings are slated in the Coporate Govemance Report, which forma part

ofthe Annual Repart.
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board kas on the recommendaiion of (he Nomination & Ramuramnation Commidtes framed
a palicy, inter alia, for selaction and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including
erfteris for determining qualifications, positve atiributes and ndspandeanca of diractans which
i annexed hareto and forms part of this Fiepodt. Further, Policy nelating to remanaration for the
direciors, key managerial parsonnel and other employees is also annexed herelo and forms
part of this Repor.

The Board of Directors of tha Company folows the criteria lor determining quatiication,
posiive alfributes, indepandence of Direciors as par applicabia policias al the Campany.
Directors are appoired /re-appolnbed with the epproval of the Mambers for a lem in
accordance with the provisions of the law ard the Aricles of Assoclalion of the Company. All
Diractors, athes than Indepandent Directora, are liable to refira by rotation, uniess ofhanwiza
specifically provided under the Aricles of Association or under any sieiute or famms of
appoinbmant

MATERIAL CHAMGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have not been any materisl changes and commitmants in tamms of Sachion 134360 of
the Act, affecting the fnancial position of the Company betwean the end of ihe financial year of
the Company as on 31 March, 2022 and tha date of this raport Le. 31 May, 2022,

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
[(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has always provided a conpenial atmosphers far work that e free fram
dizeniminalion and harazamend, incleding secual harassmeant. Kaaping in view the problam af
sexual haressmant he cormgany has Iramed @ policy 10 prevent ncidents of saxual
hemasmeant A5 requirsd undar Sexual Harasament of Woman at YWorkpace [(Presamtion,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and nules framed thara under. Howaver, constitulion of
Internial Committes as required under the Act is not applicabls to the Company snca the
oormparny his less than 10 employees. All employess ars covared undar this Policy. During the
yaar under raview, The Company has nol received ey complaints of sexual harassment,
hance no discloswras are applicabia. This Policy is availabla on our wabsits.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS

Thareare no slignificant & material orders passad by tha Regutanars / Courts | Trinwnals which
wiouldinpect the going concam status of ihe Company and s frure operations.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Tha Enancied stalemants are prepared in aseardance wilh ihe indlan Ascouniing Standards
(Ind &5) undss historical cost convention on atcnual basis axcept for cerain financal
inafrumants, which are mazsured af fair velees pursiant 1o e provisions of the Act 8nd
guidalnes isswad by SEBI. Accounting policlas hawva been conslstantly apphied exceptwhars a
newly lesued ascounding standard ls Intially adoptad or a revision to an existing accounting
standand requires & change In the acoounling policy. These form part of the Motes o the
Mnancal stalements,

In ocordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Comgpanies Act, 2013, the Board of
Diréctorsof the Caompany haeraoy stiies and confirme that:

[} Inthe preparstion of the Annual Accounis lor the inancial year 2021-22, the applicable
atcounfing standards have bean followed mlong with proper explanation relating to

h, &
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makerial dapariuras, [lany

Iy they have selacied such accounfing pobcies and eppéed them consistantly and made
|udgmentsand ectimates that are reasonable &nd prutent 50 as to give & ke andfalr view
of the state of altairs of the Compeany i the and of the firancial year &nd of fhe profit ol the
Company for Y 21282

i} by mEve laken proper and suffickant care for fhe malimenance of adecuate actountng
reconds in accordrnce with the provigiona of the Gompanles Act, 201 3 for safeguanding
tha assataoftha Company and for pravanting and datecting fraced and othar imaguianitias:

W they have pragened the annual Bocounts on & geing congern basis

V] thay have [aid down interal Bnancial controls to be followed by the Compary and that
guch irtemal inancad controls are adecpsate and are operating electively; and

i} they have devisod proper syvalems to ensure complience with the provisions of al
applicable kaws and that such systems ware adaquata and ane oparating atiactively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

Mo of thiy smployvees is deawing remuneration nexcassof the limits sel outin Aule 52) of tha
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Parsonnal] Rules, 2014 appanded
o the Companiss Act, 2013,

Dischosure peraining o the remuneratian end other details as required under Sectkon 197(12)
of the Act read wilh Fute 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remunaration of Managerial
Perscnnal] Aules, 2014 are annexed hereto forming part of this repert.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARMING AND DUTGO

Since the Compemy has no manufaciuring activity, disclosures mefating fo Consenvation of
Enargy and Technalogy Absorpdion stipulated under Section 134(3}(m) of ing Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounis) Aules, 2014, are nol applcahla,
Therewera no foreign exchange aamings and ouigo during the year,

LISTING OF EQUIMTY SHARER

The Company'a oquity shores ans isted an the Natienal Sioek Exchangs of Indka Limitad

{MEE}. The Cempany has paid the anrual [Eting fea to the stock exchange upto the financial
year2022-23,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporale Governance Repon forms an inegral pan of this Reparl, as annexed heneto,
iogethar with tha Cartficeia from the Practicing Company Sscratary regarding complistca
with tha canditions of Coporain Goverrancs as stipuiated in Pat Eof Schedule V' o tha Listing
Aegulations. Thane are no damat suspense account’ unclaimad suspenss account as on the
diate of this Report as requiredin Part F of Schedube V of the SEBI Listing Riegulstions,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Aga per Regulstion 34 of the SEBI Liating Regulatione, the Managemen! Diecwaston and
Analysis Rapodt s sal oul heraundar and farms part ol this Anmal Rapart.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Business Aesponsibility Report as reguired under Mational Guidelines on Hespansible
Business Conduct fonmulated by Minisiny of Corporale Affairg, Sovermment of India, andunder
Ragulation 3421y of the SEBI Listing Regulations, describing the initiathes taken by tha

(10}
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Ciompany from an snvimnmantal. socisl and govarnance parspactive. (s annaced harslo and
formis an integral part of thisAnnuet Regor.

MAMAGING THE RISKS OF FRAUD, CORAUPTION AND UNETHICAL BUSINESS
PRACTICES:

Vigli Mechanism (Whistic Blowor Policy) and Code of Conduwa

Creating a fraud and corruption frea culure has always baan tha corg factor of yowr Coenpany,
In view of tha potent@al dsk of freud, cormaption and uneiical behavior thet could advarsely
impact the Compamy's busingss operations, perormance and reputation, NBI has
amphagized even mora on addrassing thesa dsks. To meet this abjecdive, a comprahensha
“Wigll Mechentem and YWhistlie Blower Palley”, In complianca with the provisians of Section
177010 of the Act and Regilation 22 of SEB| Listing Regulations, 18 In plese. The details of the
Whistia Blowar Policy is explained in the Carporata Governance Report and postad on the
s o tha Camgany

The Company's “Codao of Businass Condust and Ethics {Code of Cenduct)” is applizablaio the
omployaas including drectors of the Company and e avallable on the Company’s webette. All
amployaes including dirgclors of the Company hawve aftimed comoiance o the Code of
Conduct ason Mach31, 2022

Codeof Conduct to Regulate, Mankor and report trading by inskders

Ir basrne of SEBI (Prohikbitions of naidar Trading) Rogulatisne, 2016, as smanded frae thma 1o
e, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduet for Prevention of Inssder Trading (Inskder
Code) as approved by the Company's Board, Insiders (as defined in Insider Code) including
designated emplovess & persons and their relalives are, inter-alia, prohibitad from lrading in
the shares and securities of the Compeny or counsal any person during any pariod when the
“unpnlieed price sansiive informalion” are avakabla wikh tham.

The Insider Code asso requires pre-clearance lor deslng in the Company's sheres and
prohibits deading In Company's sharas by the Directaors and the sesignated employeas whie in
peaaasaion of unpuldished price sansitve inlsrmalion in redation to the ﬂmpunj and du:‘lng
the parod when the Trading Windsw (s dosed,

TRAMNAFER OF SHARES ONLY IN DEMAT NODE

Az per SEBI norms, off reguests for transler of securifes Including tranamission and
transpostion shal be processed only in dematenalised foerm, Furlher vide Maolilicaticn no,
SEBVLAD-NAC/GM/2032/6E dated 24 January, 2023, BEBI has notlled that all requests for
duplicafa issuancs, splitting and consolidstion requesis oo will ba processed in demat mode
anly,

UPDATING KYC DETAILS

Efforts ars undersny 1o updala Parmanent Accouirt Numbar (PAR) and besk account detalls of
sharaholdens) as requived by SEBL The reguitator, wide cireular daled 3sd Mevambar, 2021
and 15th Decomber, 2021, has mandated fumishing of PAN, KYC details and nomiration by
holders of physical sacurities by 31st Masch, 2023, Mambers are requastad to submit thair
PAM, KYC and nomination detalls to the Company's regisirars,

Pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Gircular, in case a holder of phwaleal ascyriiies fals o furnish these
details or link thair PAMN with Aadhar before tha due date, our registrars ane obligated Io fraaze
such falios. The holders of securities in tha frozen folice shall be efgible o recaive payments
fincluding dividand) snd lodge grevances only after furnishing the complete documents, In
sase Fue seourities contines to remaln frozen as an 31at December, 2025, the registra ! the
Company shall rafer emch securlios o the sdministedng auibonty under tha Benami

Transactions (Prohib#on) Act. 1988, andfor Prevenion of Money Laundaring Act. 2002,
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In addifion o ks Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key paliciag thial have besn adophad by
the Company and wplcaded on s welsibe are as snder

Nama of the Policy Web lnk

Policy for selection and eppointmaent TR T

of Directors, Senior Management | inde.con/policiesNBLACpeimment_Poilcy.pdl
including criteria for delermining
| qualicakons, posithva atiibutes and

indepandence of twe directors

Archivat Policy for Website content | LB Aavee.nbLndla. oo Infpolicies!
: N iR o poRs

Policy on Determinstion of Materiality | pfiBsw notindia. o _Mm

Familiarisation Program for rbina.co, Wpﬂhdﬂa’

hwnmm NEI Famillasiation. Program g

insider Trading Code ribi-ndia.co dndpolicies’

[ insices Tradling, Code pa
Folicy for Detérmining Matarial En’.hmnhl india,co.Inpolicies’
Subsidiary MBI Materia_Subsidan, g

Policy on Materiailty of Related Pany | Tp//www.rbh /20220518 N8I_Poley.

Pualicy ratating to remuneration for the wammn:ﬂam n'mi:iw
ﬁ?ﬁ:rs, kay marageral persannel ME| Ramunaration_Policy.pdl
and oiheremployaas

i 7] ribi<nda
Wigil Mechanlem and Whistle Blowar Rﬁ “% Em,‘“g‘&ﬁﬁ&ﬂ

hardrw.nibi-India.
Prohivition of Insider Trading ?ﬁm,b&m’&h;ﬂ% T
Corporste Soclal Raspansiblity lﬂgﬂs"-mmﬁ-m:ﬁammmm

Palicy | CSR Policy.pdf

Pronton of Sewial Harassment | K8 grcL on of Gexial Harssement Polcypd!

| Dividand Distriuticn Policy %ﬁmﬂn:;ng ClewEnziigey NAl |
.HﬂﬂMﬂmgamnrﬂFullw Hﬁmmmwggwﬂwma MBI
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The DCirectors place on maord thair eppreciation for the support the Company coninues ta
receiva from |13 Bankers and Shambolders and scknowladge the valuable contribulion rom

the employess of the Comparny, For and on behaF of the Board
Flaca: Rolikata {M%E:::lﬂ

DCiatad: 3181 May, 2022 DHN: DO012210 J
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Annexure to the Director's Report
AELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Farmat for disclosure of iFanssctions with related pariles as refermed toin Schadule V of
tha SEBI [LIsting Obligations and Dlsclosurs Requirements) Regulations, 2075

Mature of Mama of related party Deacription of Amount
Transactions Ralationship {Rs. in Lacs)
Famunaration| Mr. 5.P. Kumar Kay Managemant 2260
Personine

Farruneragon| Sudna Jain Kay Managameant 0.7a
(irarn 18th December, 2021) Parscrinal

Famuneration| Migha Laddn ey Managamen 0.38
| {upta TRt June, 2021} Parsonnal

Place; Kolknla
Crated: 315t May, 2022

For and on behad of the Board

(Ashok Bhandari)
Chalrman
DiM: DOD12210
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BECAETARIAL AUDIT REPORAT

(Form MR -3)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31,08.2022
{Purgiant to Section 2041} of the Companes Act, 2013 and Aule No.B of Companias
iAppointmant and Remunsration of Manapariad Pasonnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

Thia Moambears,

MB. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED,
(CIN: LESE2AWE1836P LCO6S58E)

21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001

| hava conducted the sacratartal audit of the compliance of applicable satutany provisions and
adherance 10 good corporate practices by M.B.. INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY
LIMITED{harainafter called a3 ‘the Gompary'). Secrataial Audit was conductad in & manner
that provided me a reasosasble basis for evalusting the comporate conduecis’stEitony
aumpliances and exprassing miy opinlon thispeon.

Based on my veriffication of e Company's books, papes, minuta books, forme and retlims
filed and ofhar records mainiained by the company and also tha information providad by the
Company, ita officers, agents and suthorized rapresantatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit. | heraby rapost 1hat in my opinian, the company has, during the audit pariod covering tha
financisi year ended 31 March 2022, compded with the applicabie stafuiony provisions i=led
hereunder and also that the Comparny has groper Board processes and compliance
machanism in place eubfest ta the reparing mada heralnaftar

| have sxamined the books, papers, minute booke, lorms &nd retunns filed and other raconds
malntained by tha Company for the financial year ended on 31032022 seconding to the
provisions of:

{lj TheCompaniss Act, 2013 and the rules made thare-undar;

(il The Securitios Gontracts (Regulation) Ad, 1956 {SCRA") andthe rulee mads thone-undier

{i5) TheDepositories Act. 1896 and the Regulations and Bya-laws framed thers-undar;

(v} Foreign Exchange Menggament Act, 1898 andthe nies and reguiationg mada thara-under
1o the exant of Foredgn Direct Imsstment, Oveorseas Diract Inveatmant and Extermal
Commanaial Bormowings -Mot Apgplicable;

{w] The following Regulations and Gueadelines prascrbed under the Sacuriies and Excisangs
Board of indla Act, 1882 {SEBI Acl') (o lihe extent applicable;-

a) The Secauritlea and Exchange Board of Indla (Substantial Acquistion of Shares
and Takaaovers) Regulations, 2011;

b} The Secusilies and Exchange Board of inda (Prehbition of Inaider Tmding)
Regulatians, 2045:

o} The Securities and Exchange Board of Indis (Esus of Capital and Disclasure
Requiremenis) Fegulalicns, 2018;

d} Tha Securitles and Ewchange Board of India( Emgloyes Siock Opfion Scheme
and Employes Stock Purchase Schame) GuldeSnes, 1008- Nat Applicabie

@) The Securifles and Exchange Boamrd of inda (Listing Obfigations and Disclossre

L Fequremants) Regulaiions, 2015

{14)
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fi  Tha Securlies and Eschengpe Boasd of indés { Registrars to an Issue and Bhars
Transler Agenis} Regquiafions, 1383 regarding the Companies Act and doaling with
chient;
g) Tha Secaritias and Exchargs Board of India (Delsling of Equily Shares) Regulasons,
2008, Mot Applicable;
hi  Tha Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Secunties) Regulations, 2018
- Mot Applicable;
I} Tha Securifies and Exchanga Board of India [Shares based Efrployns Banafis)
Ragulations, 201 4; Not Applicable
i The Securitles ard Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Aaguiations, 2008, Not Applicable
ki The Securites and Exchange Board of Indla {lzsue and Listing of Non-Converiible and
Hedearnable Praferance Shares) Hegulations, 2013; Not Applicable
I} The Securitiee and Eschanga Bocard of India (Depostones and Paricipanis)
Reguiations, 1986and 2018
(i) FAules, regualions and guidelines sauad by the Aesarve Bank of India as are appicabds ko
M- Banking Financial Companigs, which arg spacifically applicab e io the Company.
| have alse cxamingd complance with the applcable clausss of the Secretarial Standards
ingasad by Tha Insfihda of Company Socrotarios al india.
During the pariod undar review the Comgany has compliad with tha provisions of the Ao, Fules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentionad above,
I further report that
Tha Board of Direciors of the Company is duly constifuted with proper batance of Mon-
Execuihve Directons & Independent DHrectora. Though the Company has no Exscutive Dirscior
but they have Mandger, SFO and Company Secralary, The change bn the cormposition of the
Board of Diraciors that took place durng the period undaer review wars camad outin complance
with tha prowiskons of the Aot

The compllance by the Company of applcable financlal laws Bke drect and Indirect {8 laws
and maintenance ol finznsial recards and books of acocount have nod been revigwadn thes audit
sincathe ama have bean subjact to review [y statutory financial audidor and other designated
professionls,

Adaquate nofice & glven to all direciors o schadule the Boand Mesatings, agenda and dedalled
nefes on agenda warggent at leas! seven dayesin advance, and a sygtem exiets Tor seaking and
chiaining lurther information and darfications on the agenda fems before the mesting and for
meaningul panicpation st the maating.

All dactslons at the Board Mestings are carred out unanimousky &8 recorded in the Minwes of
ihe Mesting of the Board of Directora.

I further report that there Bre adeguale sysiems Bnd procasses in the company
commensurals wilh he sreand opamtions of the tompany to monilos and enauns compliance
with apclicable Bws, rules, regulaticns and guidaelings.

Place: Kodkaia Signature: Sdi-

Date: 10.05.2022 PractisingCompany Secretary - Mukesh Chatunveos
FCE No. 11063
CP No:3390

LIDIN : FOT10630000EaTaE

{15}
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ANMNUAL REPOAT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. Brief cutline on CER Policy of the Company

In today's condend, the 'Corporate Soclal Responsitliity’ (CSR) is dafined a3 a mandalory wey
for s Comgpany to balance s Economic, Social and Envircnmantal objectives while erhancing
the Shaneroldans valis and Stakeholders sxpecialiong.

Tha Company alms to focus an ervironmant presansalion, spreading education. spons and
sipporting naedy peopie of the sodisly for their overall wplitmeant, Though its social activities
and 1o focus primasity on ameas sumounding ils operalions, which may inchede pecple [
progrms which may not be sa related atricty considering ovarall upliftmant cbjectives.

2. Composition of CSA Commitioes:

The CSA Commities comprises 4 mambens, of which two ame Independent Dirsctars. The
Commitiee met once during the reporting period on (2™ February, 2022, The detalls of
members and the masting are as under;

ol msaifnga | Murmber ol meslongs of 038
5l Huena al Dmsignation (Mamrs | Plumber
Ha. Directar o Bireslorahip ::’mw mm-‘“_rf_“m
1 | Mr Tepas Kumar Charman 1 1
Brattacharya {Indepardant Cirecior =
Mamber
2 hir. Debesiah Rey Cirvcda fant Dhirebar) 1 1
Member [ Nonsxetuive
3 | M BLGapggar Nork-Exiepandsnt Directar) 1 1
Mersbar {hon-executhe '
4, | Mr J P Nungra K | Diracter) 1 1

3, Web-ink where Composilion of CSR committes, CSA Pollcy and C5R projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the wabaite of the company.

The Company has framed a CSR Palley In compliance with the provisions of Section 135
of fva Companies Act, 20135 and the sald Policy along wih composition of CSR Cammibiea
and CSA Projects are placed en the website ofthe Company snd the wed link for B samia
la: Wttpownenv.nbl-india.co.infpolicies 202 1 1108_NBI_CSR_Palicy_2021.pdd

4, Details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried oul In pursuance of sub-rule
{3} of rule @ of the Compankss {Corpomrte Social responsiliity Polloy) Rules, 2014, il
opplicable (attach the report]
Mot Agplcable

5. Detalls of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule{3) of rula 7 of tha

Companies (Corporete Soclal respongibliity Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any:

(R Lacs)
g Arnount ausilabin ot set-oft feom | Amount required to be st off for
Mo, | TinenclalYear | o eding financis years in Rs) | the financial year, if any on Rs)
HIL 3

(16)
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6. Averagenelprofitofthe company as per section 135(5): Rs. (134,78} Lacs
7. |a) Two perceni of average net prefit of the company as per sestion 135(5) : -2.60
Lacs

ib) Surplus arising ot of the CSR projects or programmes or aciivilles of the
provious financial years: MIL

i) Amount requirad tobe et off far the nancial year, fany: NIL
(d) Toim| CSA obligation for tha financial year (Ta+Th- 7c): ML
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Amount Unspent (In As.)

Tolel Amount | Tolal Amaunt transferred 16| Amount transhermed to any fund specilied
| Bpentforthe | Unspent CER Accountes | under Schedule Wil s per second proviao
Financial Year per section TI5(E) to mection 136(5)

(inRs.)

Amount | Datn of ranster| MO '“I'“' Amourt | Dute of transher

Mot Applicable | Mot Apslicabis | Not Apslicable | Not Applicable | Mot Applicable | Mot Applicable

b} Detsils of CSA amount spent sgainal ongaing projects for the financisl yoar:

LI L] 16l & "l 1] L] m "y I
8 [Mpre | mive | Leesl | LocxBmiol | Pealett | Awoanl | hewiemd el in| Amousd iromslm)  Mada Mice
Mg | et | WaE e | Swpamedl | dowiwn | pllawied | Seomes | @ UmaECER | Impemiet-|  mplaneitilion
[Prjel] B |(Peele ) forthd | Paweh Voo | dersen o fien Throug:
Einh prjeel | [mbn) | Gepmietas | Db kg lrroeniing
a5 kel (111, peviesine | (Teatd) gesgy
L) o H]
U1 TE] R

NIL

(o) Detalls of COR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financlal year:

| &= 3 L] L L] £n &)
:In.- Hama lnfl'q; Lcn Loeation of e prajest. Amourt | Mool Hﬂﬂm
oftha | tha sl i spand | bplemanta: | Impiasectl
Profect | actvitles | [Veabla) foer ez o Theough
i Bohed sl pmrcr Diract imgiementng
Wi {mRe) | (Feaid) Agmry
ot Act,
et Disirizt Marre ll%m

HIL
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( @) Amount spent in Administrative Ovetheads - HiL

(e} Amount spamt on Impact Assasament, # applicable - NIL

i Total amount sperd dar the Financel Year (Bh+Ac+AdsBa)- Mot Apclicabiles
g} Excess amount for 584 off, Fany

=, Arrmung
Na. Mol (Ae Lacy)

i | Two percant of sverage nat prodit of the compary &5 per section T35(5) | (2.69)

{ii | Total amount spent for the Fisancial Yaar NEL

(i} | Excess amount spant for the finsnclal year [[i)-(] MIL

| (i) | Swrplus arsing out of the C8A projects or programmes or activiies af HIL
'lh&pm'rluu finenoial years, i any

() | Amount availabda for sal off in succeeding financlal years [il)-{fu)) MiL

8. (n) Detalls of Unspent CSR amount for the precading three financial yewsrs:

5. |Preceding| Amount | Amount | Amount transforred to any fund |  Amount
Ho. | Financial | transtered | spentin | specified under Schedule Vil &3 | rermoining to
Year. | 1o Unspont e por saction 135(8), if am b st fn
C5R repoting succeading
Agcound Financial financial
.:En:. Yot yEars
o His. Lacw).[ RAs. Lacs)!
138 (§) i Kama .f::hl Diate of g !
n R Lacs) af tha g} translor
’ Fund
1. | 2048-18 HIL Eg. 1 MIL MIL | Mot Appiicable MIL
2, 2018-20 NIL 2870 MIL i Ked Appicabla ML
3. 200021 MIL ML MEL ML Bicl Appheakie KIL
- =l
|
TOTAL 118.81

(1)
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F |} Details of 3R armount apent agalnet ethor than anpaing profects for the Hinanckal year;

-

@l ®m ] @ | & | @ m 1#) =)
1 Pa?rl Wamed | Financinl | Prajec Totni Kot Cimuil ative. Shaius ol Ba
e, ] the Yearin | ceniion | et apart om BF LT Spa] fofact
Prajsst | which the ullocied | she projact | ot tho and of Comphiny
'F";""m ""E; tn tie reparting Ongaing.
rparting Finzntisl Yoar
commancad l;ul-.l-. Rl s s
Wenr
B (i s}
NIL
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10,  ineaes of creation or acquisition of capital aasst, fumizhthe detals relatingtothe  assat

socrastad or aoguned through CER spent in tha financial yeer (assel-wise detalls],
(a) Dateoleraation oracguisition o the capital assat(s]: Mot Applicabls

th) Amount ol CSA spant for creation or acquisition of capllal asset: Not Appicable

¢} Dwetails of the ety or public-authortty or banelcary under whose rams such

capital azsat Is regiagtered, thalf addresaats.; Mot Applicatse

(d) Provida datails of the capital asset{s) created or acquired (mciuding complete
Appicabie

addressand Incation of the capifal asset):

Mot

Spacily the reason(s), il the company baa lallad to spend twa  par ool of the aweage
netl profit ps parasction 135(5) : Mot Applicabila

Fiacs; Kolkata
Dhater 3@t May, 2022

For N.B|. ndustrial Finance Co. Lid,

P Mundea

Ciracior

DNz DEI0E TS

T.K. Bhattacharya
Chairman of

CSR Compmittee
DIN: DOT11665

(1€)
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Corporgte Socisl Responsibllity Policy (CSR Pollcy)

W.B.L industrial Finance Company Lirited (NB1 believas that for its operation &nd growth o
be susiainablae, B kas to ba reepanaive 1o soclal naads. iz progreae is thug undarined by sirict
adherance to anircnment presareation, sodal upibment ete, NBI beligves in making ml
davetopment as an intagral pan of its business adlivilies so as 12 bring abou & meaninglul
changain the fives of people. NBI conelders $ocial responailbility as & valuntary act raghar than
an addiforal sctivity mandated by staiute,

MBI hias Infine with /in cordomity with the stalutery raquiremant, prapared its CSA Policy. NBI
will mairitain that all the activities 1hat will be undertakan by it will be in accordanca with the

policy and that the projacts and activities that will be undertaken ane In full complianca wilh
Schadula Vil of the Companies Act, 2IM 3.

Theconlants of NBEI's CBR Pollcy ane given balow:-
1. Vislon, Objective and Scope of the Palicy

MBI Pregrammes will focus on supporting neady paopia of the saclety for their oversl|
uplifimant. Though ks social acivities will be focusing primanily on areas surcunding
s cperations. It may include people / programs which may not be so related strictly
congidaring overall uplifimant objsctives.

2. Mandate of Corporate Soclal Responsibility

MBI s cormmitted ta spend 2% of its Average Mat Profits of last three financial yaars as
defnad in the Rules lowans ils social initiativas,

3. DBoard Gemmithes

The CER Commilias of the Boam will averses the soclal nctivilies to be undartalen by
the Gompany,

4. kdentification of Projects and Modalities of Project Execution
Tha projects 1o b undertaken by the Company shall conform to tha puidelines
tormulated or laid cown by the Govemment from time 1o time under Schedule Vil 1o
the Companilas Act, 2013

5. Organisational Mecharviem

MBI has eo-promoted a Saction 8 Company alongwith ather Companies o undertake
activities ralating to devalopment of sports in fulfilling e CSF objectives,

6. Implamantaiion
CSH Committes of tha Board is entrusted with implementing the social activifias !

inttiativas and astshilshing a monitoring mechanism in line with the palicy of the
COMpETY,
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7. Budget-CS5RCorpus

NEI will allocate necessary budgel aftar tha beginning of relevant accounting yeer for
goucial Inigalives, Fund allosation for various activitias will be made an sultable andior
progreashe basls,

8. Perormmance Managamant

B! will adopt suitable approach for maasuring the actual performance of the projects
inolertzken snd Audit Commmittee of the Board of the Company shall review the
parformanca.

8. Information Disseminationand Policy Communicathon

The Comgsany's sngagement in this domain shall be deseminated on s websie and
thepughiita Snnual Reponts sic,

10. Mansgoment Commitment

Our Board of Directors, Wmmﬁmﬁmﬁaﬁx
philasophy of compassionate care. We balieve and act on ethos o genarcs

W.Wmummm-mmmum-
This is the comerstona of our CSA Policy.

11. Aeview ol Policy

ﬁﬁmﬁmwﬂﬂal.lmwmmewﬂw
mmmmmMMmmmﬂqmwmmﬂww
mmmmmﬁnmﬁam

Far LB Industrial Finance Ca. L1d.

Placa | Kolksta e T. K. Bhattacharys

Date: Jnl Moy, 2022 J.F. Mun Chaiman of GBR
DIN 00830475 . o

OiN-D07 11005
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Poiloy for selection and appoimmént of Directors, Senior Management includ 5
lor detarmining qualifications, positive sttributes and indapendence of the lﬂlmr?i:f"m

Imtroduction
N.B.Y. Industrial Finance Co. Lid. (MBI baliaves that an enkghtened Board conscously

creatas aculiurs of leadanrship to provsda B long-tenmm weion and policy approach 1o
Auality of govamance. " i

MBI rezognizes the importanca of independent dirsctors in achiaving the offectianess of the
mﬁﬂl alms 1o have an optimum combination of Meon-Exseutive and Indapandan

Scope and Exclusion

This Policy sats oul the guiding principias for the Nomination & Rerunsration Cormitiee for
identifying parsons who are gialfied 1o becarse Diraciors and to determire the indapendencs
af Cirgotans, it case of thair appaintrnent as ndepandent diractors of the Comparny.

Termsand References
Iri thils Policy, thetesms shall have the following maanings.
“Director’ means a direchor appoiniad to the Board ofthe Comparny,

“Nomination & Remuneration Committee” means the committes corstiuted by NBI's
Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

;Hﬂiﬂplmnt Director” maans a director referred tain Section 148(8) of the Cornpanies Act,
13.

Eollcy

Quelifications and Critgris

Tha Nomination & Remunermtion Cormmittee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis,
mopropriate skills, knowledge and experience required of the Board as & whols and I
inclividizal mambears. Tha objective i 1o have & Board with diverss background and axpadoncs
thatare ralevant for the Company's business cgarationa.

In evaluating hesutabilly of individual Board mamisans, tha Carpmities msy (e inbe aosount
fectors auch ea:

Gieneral understanding of v Comparny’s busnmss dynamice and social parspective;
Educationel and professionsl batkground.

Stanvding I the profession:

Pareanal and profesalonatethica, integrity and veiues;

Wilkngness to devole sufficient time and zaal i camying o thair dutiss and
responsioiities aftectivaly.
mmmﬁmimﬁmﬂmmllmmmmmm

. Shall posesss a Director dantification Murmber (DING;

® a2 & & &

\

]
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Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Adt, 2013,

. Shall givia his written consentin prescribed form to act as-a Director;

* Shall endeavour 1o sttend all Board Meetings and wherever he is eppointed 88 a
Commities Membar, e Commities Meetings;

] Shall abide by the athics pollcy estatiished by the Comparry for Directons, empioyess
and Senlor Managorrant Persannel,

. Shall disclose his concern or inferest in any Company or Companias oOr bodies
satporate, firme, or other association of individuals Includlng his alaretviding ai e
firgl meating of tha Board in every financtal year and thereafter whenever hera |s a
charnge in the disclosuras already mods;

] Such other requirements as may be pressribed, from ime to tims, under the
Companies Act, 2013 and ather rebevant lxae.

Tha Commities shall avaluste sach indvidual with the objective of having a group that best
gnzbles the suscess of fwe Compamy's business,

Croloria of indeoandsndi

The Commates shal assess tha indeperdance of Directors st the time of appaintment / re-
appaintment and the Bosrd ghall assess the sama annually, The Board $hall re-sssese
detarmination ol independanse whan any new nterests or relationships are disclosad by the
Diracior.

Tatoliow tha critana of independence as [ald down in the Companies Act. 2013,

The Indegendant Disaciors shadl abide by the “Code for Indegendant Dirsctors” as apaailled in
Sehaduia |V totha Companies Act, 3513,

Qi dirgctorships / commities memberghips

Tha Board mambers are expacted 10 have adequate time, expertise and experience 1o
contribute o effestive Board pesformance, The Committas ahall ke inte sooound the netura
of, and the lime invoived in @ Directar's service an othar Boards, in evaluating the sultability ol
thia Individiual Director and meking #e rescommandations o the Bosred,

A Director shall nol séve as Director, Including any afsmats directorship, In morg tharn 20
companias of whichnot more than 10 shal be Fublic Limited Companias,

ADiractorshall m serve as on bndependent Dirscior in mons then ¥ Listed Compeanles and not
mare lhan 3 Uslad Comzanias in case he is eerving as a Whola-tima DirsctorManaging
Dérecios iy any Listad ety

A Dinaofor shall not be & memiser in mang than 10 sommitiaes or act as Chaimerson of mars
than & committess across all Estad entltbes In whichine//she is a diractor.

Mote: For the puiposs of considerng the imit of the Commlaas, Audit Committes and Stake
halders’ Ralatonship Committes of all Public Umiiad Companies, whether Bstad or rof, shall
ba mcleded and &l other companies including Privale Limited Companies, Foralgn
Companies, high valus debl Ested eniitles and Companies undar Sacton B of the Companies
Ast, 2013 shall ba axcluded,

(23
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Policy relating ta remuneration for the diractars, key managerial personnel and oiher employses |

Introduction
M.B.I. Industria Finance Co. Lid, (N81) recognizes the importance of aligning 1he business
objoctives with speciic and massurable indvidual objectives. The Company has therafors
formutated the remunedmtion policy for its directors, key managarial parsorme! and other
smployses keeping kn view he following obiectives:
+  Enauring that the level and compoalion ol remunasation is rsasonabie ard suficiant to
attravct, relain and mothvate talent to e the Company sucorssfully.
+ Ensuring that rolationehip of remuneration to parformance is clear and meels he
parformancea benchmarks,
 Ensuring thal remuneration imvolves a balance between feed and Incentiva piy
reflecting o and long term performance objectives appropriata to the waorking of the
coempany and its goals. However, thane i3 no incentive pay at presant.

Scopa and Exclusion

This Poloy aots out the guiding principias for the Nomination & Remunarason Commites fod
recommanding to the Boand the remunaraten of the direciors, kKiry managersl pErsonngd and
othar employeas of tha Company.

Terms snd Referances
Inthis Policy, the teems shall have tha fallowinig maanings:
“Dlrector” means adisscior appolnted 1othe Board sfthe Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” maans
il  the Managing Direcsor or Chist Executive Officer ar Manager and in their absence a
Whole-time Déractor;
the Company Secralany;
iily tha Chiel Fnancial Ofticar and
i} suchotherofficaresmay be prescribed under tha Companias Act, 2013

“Nomination & Remunerattan Commithes" means the commitiea constiiuled by MBS
Board In ascordance with the provisions of Saction 178 ol the Carmpanies Acl, 2013,

Polisy

Tra Board, on the recommendstion of the Momination & Bemuneretion Committes, shall
reviees and approve tha rermuneration payabla to the Execubve and Non-Executive Diracions of
the Comgany within tha ovarall imits subject 10-aporoval by the eharehoiders of e Company,
Mern-Exscutive Directors shall be entitied w0 sitting fees for aitending tha meestings of the Boaid
and te Commitiaas thereol. Inaddition tothe aitting fees the Non-Exscutive Dirsctors shall ba
antiled o ba paid their reasenshils trmvaliing, hotel and ofher expansas incumed for atlending
m Committes meptings or otherwise incumed in the discharge of ther dutes &6

Thei: Board, on the recommendation of the Momination & Famunaration Committes, shall also
réview and approve the emuneration peyabls to the Key Mamagerial Parsonnel and otiver
Employess of the Company. Empioyes individual remuneration ahall b= deternined acconding
b i qustitications, ard work axoerence as wall a8 thair nolae and responaibiliies and shall
b based on various fachors such as |ob profle, skill sats, seniorfty and expenience,
The remunemtion structure of the Executive Directora, Key Manageria! Parsonnsl and othar
Employeas shal mainly inchide the following:

aj Basio Fay

b} Parquisitas and Allswances

c) Retiral Bonatia J
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informatlion pursuant t Section 197(12) of the Companles Act, 201 3 read with Rule 5(1)
af the Companies {(Appolntment and Aemuneration of Managerisl Personnel) Aules,
2014

i} Ratlo of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the
employees of tha Gompany for the financlal year :

Mot Appicable, &% nona of the directors dreny remuneration except sitling fees for Board /
Committes maatings

i} Percantage increase In remuneration of each Director, Chiel Executive Officer,
Chiaf Financial Officer, Compeny Secretary or Managaer, if any, inthe financkal year
B.52%.

H) Percentageinersass in the median remuneration of employees in the finanokal year
10.13%

] MNumberof permansnt employess on the rolks of Gompany
& (Fivah

v] MAverage percentile increase siready made in the salaries of employees other than
ihe manageral personnél In the last financkal year and its comparison with the
percentlile increasa In tha manageral remuneration and justifceion iheneo! and

polnt out i there are any exceptional circumstances for incresse in the managerial
remiinergbion

The svarage increase in ealaries of employeas other than managerial parsornel in 2021+
22 was B.80%. Percertags incradse in the managerdal remuneration kor the yaar was
5.82%.

wi] Itis haraby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as parthes Remuneration Policy for
directors, key managearial parsonnel and other empioyess.

{25}
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Businass Reaponsibility Report

Bection A Geners| Information about the Company

- TR - T - I I R

o

E

I LA M =

Efwmm:m Hurnbar (SN}
Hama of the Company

Ragizterad Address

W ehaie

Emadl id

Financial yeer raported

Raciena) that tha compary |8 engaged in
iy pervices provided By the company

Total numiber of kacations whene businsss
acthvity Is undarakan by tha sompany

Markat serend by the compaey

Financial detalis of the company
Paid up Capial

Tolal Turnowar

Prodit afler tax

Todal spending on CER as percentzps of
Prodit after Tax {%a)

List of the acthities in which expandiung
in 4 above hies been Hcurad

Cther datails

[Doas the Compaty hae any Subsidiany
CompanyCompanes?

O the Bubsidiany Company'Companias
paricipeie In tha BR Initiafhwas of the
parent companyT ¥ yas, (hen indicale

the numbiar of such subsldiary companyis)

Do anyy ather entity'entilies (a.g. supalien,
ohsiribiibore ebe.) that the Gormpany does
ezinasa with, paricipate in the BR
initiativies of the company? If yes, Ban
indizate the parcantage of Such antity /
amitizs? [Lass than 30%, B0-60%,
Mara than #0%)

LESSZIWBTISEPLOOSE53E

BLB.. INDUSTRIAL FINANGE GO, LT0.
&, Strand Road, olkata 700 001

woirwi. rll-inilie, oo, in

it framon 8 ymail.com

185 Agril 2021 to 315t March 2022
Mon-Barking Financial Activiey
Irmvestmisnt Acthvity

Kalknin

leidim

Ha, 122,84 lncs
Hs. 1228.24 lacs
Rs. 784 28 lacs

Thig vear there was ni nead for
spanding on CSA aciviiea,
Fofer Armund Regart on CER activitioe.

ot Appicatia this year,

kot Applicable

Mo

(26)
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Sesilon D BR informailon
Detals of dirpctons)y Officer responshie for BR

{a] Detals of the Direcice/Tirectars responsibig for
implementation of fha BR plicypolicies ;
e pooizEin
Memis Ashok Bhandar
Designation Chairman
(k) Diataida of BR haad -
AN (if applicabla) Mot Applicabhe
Hama Agniah Kedia
Diesignation Company Seonatary
Tabephona numbear 033-22300601-03
E-rmatl I ribifinance @ymail.cam
2 Principla - wise (ae per HGRBC) BR Included i this repon
polizyipolicies
3 Govemanca rilated to BR Inciuded in this report
Sectlon E Principle-wise performance
1 Principle-wise parformance Included in this repor




N B. I Indusivial Finance Co. Lid.

&7th Annual Reporr 2021-22 CIN : L65923WE1936PLCH65506
r =
Preface

As mandated by the Secunises snd Exshange Board of Indla (SEB), Indla's top 1000 listed
aniities based on markel cépitalisation on BSE Limited (BSE) and Mational Stock Exchangs of
Inia Lirritad. {NSE), are regquired ta submit a ‘Business Responsibility Report’ (BAF} along
with thair Annual Report, Your Company's Business Responsibility Report follows the National
Guidstines on Responsible Business Conduct (NGRBC) ae forrrudated by Minstry of
Corporate Aalre (MCA) and Includes Company's rasponeas & questians on sur practices and
parformanca on kiy principles defined by Reguiation 34(2)(1) of SEBI (Listing Coligations and
Disclesura Reguirements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), covering loples Across
arvironmant, povarnance, soclal rsesponsibility and stakeholder ralabionghips.

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern thamaslves with Ethics.
Transparancy and Ascouniabilily

NEI endeaveLirs ta adopt high standards of norponmte govemanca and adheres to all applicable
guidalines with transparent disclosures shout e Company's performance. The values of
athics, fransparancy and asccuntabiity are ingrained into s dally cperations. NEI has a Coda
of Conduct for the Compary's Directors ang Senior Management, which suppons the
functioning of the Company in an ethics! manna:, NBI foliows the Code of Practicon and
Procedures 1or Fair Descicsure of Unpublished Price Senstive Information (UPS]). TheCoda of
Conduct apphes bo the Direstors and the Semor Management and all amployess of the
Comparny.

A Whissie Blower Pollcy/Vigel Machaniam s also Ih pisce, which provides opportunity 1o ai
siakeholdars to report any concemaissuesincidents about unaethicel behaviour, actual or
sispecied fraud arvialation ol the Code and Palicies of the Canspany.

Any employes can repon 1o the managament regarding Instances of unethical behaviour,
suspecied fraud or viaiatlon of the Coda of Conduct ar edhics policy. I erdar to safegusrd
amployess, who rapor any unethicnl behadour, against viclimization, sulficent measuras
hava siso baan pul in place,

Prinziple 2 Businessss should provide goods end services that are sale and contribute
1o sustainability throughout thelr e cycle

MBI & an Investmant company and & net involed in any manufaciuring sctivity or sevicas
undar the purview of BRA.

Prinolple 3: Businesars should promole the wall-bsing of all employees

Tha Compary did not haws any specially-abled smpoyes or rocognized amployea
assccialion. MBI la aware that emgloyses an an sesantial pan of a company’s seecess. Tha
Campany sime to attrast gualified pereonnsl and imsests n thelr growth and devalopment. NBI
megudarky engages its employees and sponsors them to athand various seminars and othar
educational programmas lo keap them updated. NBI has vanaus policies and procedures in
placa to pravent any king of decrimination, The ‘Palicy on Prevention of Sexual Harassmant at
Woskplace' ensures the safety and security of e fermals employeas. The Company did nog
hawm-gruhli:l labour nor did it recabved any cormplaint relaling 1o child labour, lorced sabour,
imsoriany labour or sexcual harassmant in Fr 2021-22 and none ane pendingas ol 315t March

(28)
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Principle 4: Businessss should respact the interests of, and be reaponsive towards all
stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vuinerable and marginalized
NBI ks an egual oppornturity amployar and ensures thal is remuneniion practioes are based on
medit, imespecive of the persor's efhnic tackgrourd ar gandar. These ane regulady updabad
and are in line with the markat benchmarks. In addition, the Cosrpany practices alfirrnative
action and ensurea there ie no disermination of any type against socialy disadvantaged
sections af the workplace, The Company hae a wall-esablishad CSR palicy which refiacts the
ahjactive of stanamic and social development to create & paskhve impact.

Principle 5 Businesses should respect and promole human rights

MEN ansungs strict compliance with all appliceble lows of the land thal perain 10 human dghts
and & dedicaled to safegisarding the human rights of all e employaes. The Cormgany did not
recehveany complaing ralating teviolation of human rights in FY 2021-22,

Principle 6: Business should respect, protect, and make efforts fo restors the
environmeint

NBI endeavours to manags its business (n & manner that conserves tha amvionment, The
Cormgany doss not have any sigrficant direct ervironmantal impact a5 # |8 an investment
company with no mendlaciurng operations,

Frinciple 7: Businesses, when engaged in Influencing public and reguiatory policy,
should do 50 ina responsible manner

The Cormpany s active in putling lorward its viaws on formutation of new industry standards
and reguiatony cevalopmants partaining to the non-banking fnance secter. Farthenmans, tha
Company stives 1o balanok the interests of various stakeholders while proposing any
racommendsations.

Principle§: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development
MBI beliaves thal mensurement of growth sad success liss bayond balanca shaets and
conventicnal aconomiz indicas, rether it is best rafiestad in the dlllerence that buginess and
nadustry maka in the lives of peopis. The CSA inltiatives of the Compary are almed at overal
devalopmant of the soclety.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value tao thelr customars and
oonsumers in a responslble manner

Being an investment company, MBI doss not have any direct cLetsmen or consumear
marfaoe.
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CORPORATE GOVERMANCE REPORT

Tha Boaed of M.B .1 Industrisl Finance Gompany Limibed {*Company™) is pleased o presant the
Company's Repont an Corporata Governance for the year ended 31 March, 2022. This Repart
includes & review ol how corporate govemance acig ae tha feundatian lor pur conporate activiy
pnd 13 amisacded in cur business and the decisions we make, Comporale govamancs s abou
promoting faimess, transparency, Bccountabiity, commitment to values, ethical busnass
condisl and abeul considerng all siakeholdens’ interests while conducting business. It 18
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Listing Qbligations and Digclosure Requirermnants) Ragulations, 2015 (Lising Ragulations),
and amendmants therats, It contalns the Corporate Gowamancs policles and practices of
BLB. Indusitsial Finance Co. Lid,

{A] COMPANY'SPHILOSOPHY ONCORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Wa bebeva thal corporals govermance is a comdinuols jounnay fowands surtamabbe valls
crealion for & the stakshobders, which Is drivien by our values and bl on tha foundation of
Assuranos. It encompassss g sat of systens and practices to ensurs that the Comparny's
offairs are baing menaged In a manner which ensures accountsb@y, Iransparancy and
talmass in &l transactions in the widast sense, Cur Compomale Governanca principlas arm a
raflection of sur cufture, aur polisies, our relationship with stakeholdens &nd our commitment o
values and bullt on the foundelicn of aseurance., Tha Board of Direclors (*Board™) helps to
engune thal wa have appropriale govemance in plece, both bo support our oparations and
profect our Mambars' iMerest. A5 agood corponate-citizen, the Company is commithad 1o 2cund
torpofate  practices based on congoiance, opennass, faimess, professionaksm and
accountability in building confidence of its various stakeboldens in it thereby paving the way for
%5 long-term socoess. The raquiremants under fha Listing Rogulations mandated by the
Securities and Exchange Board o Indie {"SEBT) have baen fully complied with, W balleva,
Cosporate Governance is not just 2 destingtion, bul a joumey o oonstantly Improve ststainabls
vislue creation. It is an upwand-moving tergel that we collectieoly sbive to achiave. Tha
Company ks fufly commitied to the principles of ransparancy, iMegrity and accountability in 2l
sphares ol its operationa and hag been practicing the principles of good componate goverance
phvar the yaars. We arm commiited to maat the aspirations of all our stakehaldens, In kasping
with this commitment, the Compary has beer upholding fai and efhical business and
comanale pragices and transparency in @S dealings and continuously endEavars 1 review,
strangthen and upgrada Its systems and procedures so as te bring i transparency amd
effictencyin its business.

(B} Boardof Directors

The members of tho Board af tha Company s1e aminant peraonalities from varous fields. Wa
baligva that an anlightanad Bownd conaciousty creaias acultuss ol leadership lo provide a long-
tarm vizlon and policy approach to improve the queity of govemance. Keeping with the
comrrifrreni to the principles of ntegrity end ransparency in business operations Tor good
gorporate governance, the Company's policy 12 to have an epproprate biend of independent
and ner-ndapandant dractons o maintaln the indepeadence of the Board and e separats the
Board funclions of govemance and managemant, Tho Beard's aclions and decisions an
aligned with the Cermpary's best Intereets. Tha Board is anfrusted wah tha ullimate
responaibility of the management, diraction and perfformance of the Company. The Board Is
eommetied to the gaal of sustainably slevating fe Company’s value creation, As e primany role
ie fiduciary in natura, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidencs, cbjectwe and
indopendant view to the Cormpany’s managemeant while dscharging s responsibiities, thus

ensaring that the managamant achames 1o ethics, transparency and disclosures. )
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Compaaliion

The composition of the Board i in conformity with Ragulation 17 and Regutstion 174 of the
SEBI Listing Regulatizn: read with Section1 49 of the Compandas Acl. 2013, In tarrs-of he
provisions of the Act and the SEEI Lsting Regulations, the Directors of the Company submil
nacessary ciclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Beard and’ or tha
Committeas of other companses with changes therain, § ary, on & paripdical basis. The Board
comprises of Indepandant and MNon- Indepandenl Dirgcaors. The direcions are parsons of
eminenoe in areas such as profsssion, busswess, indusiny, Bnance, low, adminréstration, oo, and
bring with them exporience/skills which add value fo the perdormance of the Board, The
ﬁ.rnntuu aro selected purely on the basis of merit with no discimination on race. colou,
refigion, gender or rafionakty. The present compositicn broadly masts this objscthre. Tha
strangth of the Board as on 51" March, 2022 was seven (7] members o of whom are Non-
Exacagiva Directors. Dul of tham four 4) are Indepandant Directors (including ang-wosman
independant directar) and 1hree (3) ane Non- Indepandeant Diractors (INcluding ong Yoman
Director), Shi Ashok Brandar an ndopandoant Directar is fwe Chairman of the Board.

Tha Independant Directars on the Boars are compatant and respecied professionals from their
respaciive fields and have vast expedence In general corporele management, finance,
irneasteent &nd other afed fiakds which enable them to contibute effectively to the Company.
All Indapendant Diractors make annual disclosure of their Independence 1o the Company. The
day to day managament of fhe Company k2 conducted by tha Manager subject o tha
supanvision, direction and contrad of the Beard of Directors. Tha Independent Direciors have
made disciosures 1o the Boerd confirming that there am no matedal financlad andior
commarcal fransactions batwaan ham and thedr relatives and the compeny which could hase
potential conflict of interest with the company a large, In the opinion of the Board, the
independant directors Al e condtions spacitied in ihe Usting Regaiations and the
Companies Act, 201 3and are independant of themanagamant.

Fiva &:m:l HHMMIIHH I'H-Idlmliﬂ; the finencial year 202122 on the folowing dates:

::L Date of Board Masting m:nw
1 188h Juns, 2021 &

2 14th August, 2021 g

3 18th Hovamber, 2021 8

4 16th Decamber, 2021 8

5 14th February, 2022 7

)
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Detalls of the Board of Directors and External Direclorships

Pasiculars of the Bosrd's Compesttion, Divectors” Aftendance at Board Maatings and st the
previous Annusl General Mesting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committes
membarships hald as on 31"March, 2022, are given balow:

Si| Mameofthe | Cotegory | Mo.of | Attendsd | Ne.of | Mumberof ther
Mg, Director Board lest olper | EBeard Cemmition
| Mestings| AGM |Diroctorship| POsitions ()
siended L] M Ag
Chairman | Mambsr
1 | Asksk Bhardar depecdent [ Yoa Ei 1 T
2 | B.L Gapgar Mon- Executive 5 Yo 3 - 1
!3 Fitya Puja Jain Hon-Exscuive 1 o
| 4 | P Mundra Non-Exscubve| 5 Yes 5 1 -
| & | T Brottacharya | hdependent | 5 Yoo 1 | ]
& | Debasish Ray | hdependent | & Yes
7 | Priyanko Mobin Indepandant B Yag 1] -

Mobas;

™) includes directorships held in public Ewited Companies onfy.
(Directorahips held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies
registared under Section B of the Companies Act, 2013 are axcluded)

(@)  mcludes only postions held In Audit Committes and Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committes of the Board of Directors as par Regulation 26 of tha Lating Reguletians.

Mone of the directors hold office as a director, including as an alormate direstor, I mara than
taanty cormpanias al he sarme ime, None of them hag direciorshipa in mosa than ten publio
companies, For reckaning the Bmit of public companies, directorships of privale companias
thal ane efther hoiding or subsgidiary companies of a public compary. are included; while
directorships In domnont companies ore exciuded. For the purpose of rackoning the
directorships in ligted compankae, anly equity B=ted companies heve besn considarad,

As perdaclarations raseved, no direclor serves as an indepandent director In mone then seven
ey isted companies or in moe than thaee aguity Bstad companiss if halshe is awholg-HEma
director'managingdirector in any isted compary,

MNone of the direciors was & mamber in mare then tan committeas, mor a chalrpersdn inmora
than five commiteas acroas all public companies in which hefshe was a dinaclor,

Motwithatanding the number of directorships, as highlighted hecein, the outstanding
afiendants moord and parlcdpation of the directors in Board/Commitles mesatings indicales
their commidment and ability to devele aceguate lime o their responalbliies as
Bpard/Committes membars.

Web Onk for Farmdiaisaton PFrogram for Independent Directors s hibpcfwaw.nbi-
india_co.infpoliciesT™B1_Farmiliarisation_Program,pdf
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Namas of the othar lsted entities where the direcior |e o direcior alangeith calegony of
direatorship:

51| Hemeofthe | Category |
Mo | Directar
1 | Ashok Bhandari 1) Meharashira Searnless Lid 1indepandant Director
2y Maithan Allays Lid 2ikrdependant Direclor
3) Rupak Co. Ltd Fjindependant Director
4) Skipper Lid ajindependcant Diector
B) IF8 Industries Lid, Bindependant Direcior
2 | Riva Puja Jain HiL ' L
3 | B.L Gaggar HIL MIL
4 [P Mundra Westermn India Commarcial Mon-Exscutive Mon-
Co. Ltd. Independant Ciractor
5 | TK Bhamachard | Westemn |ndia Commarcial Mon-Expeutive-
Co. Lid Indepandant Cirector
& | Debaslsh Ray HIL NiL
7 | Priyanka Mohta NIL ML

Mone ol the Mon-sxecidive Direclors holds any shares or convertible nstrurments in the
Comipany

MNone of the drectars af tha Company ana related infarss
Skila/Expartisa/Competencias of Directors

As per the SEBI Listing Reguiations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified tha
balow mantioned skills / expenise fcompatancies in the contad of tha blusiness and tha sacor
in wihich the Company is oparating, for e Compeny (o lunction efactivaly:

|r Financial, Raguletory / | Leadenship of a financial irm or managemant of the financs lunction
| Legal & Risk of en enterprize, resuling In proficiency in financial manegemert,
Marmgamn capliel alliccation and finandal reporting: process or xpenance N
actvaly supervising vaious funclions

Strabagy and strategic | Ablily %o think siategically idently and assess straeglc opporunibes
plarning £ theeats and conlibude fowards developing e¥ecive sralegies n
the corded of the sbabagic objacives of fha Company's palicias & priodas.
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Business Exposura Expaniance in diving business sucoass with an undersianding of
divarse businass eamvironments, economic condi$ons, culiure,
reguiatory Tramework and A brond perspective on market
opporunitios including expoaurs In 1he secondany markal.

Leadarship Extended |lsadership experienca for a slignificant enterprise,
rasulting n practical undarstanding of efganisalions, processas,
stratagic pranning and rigk managament. Damonstrated strengihs
Ir devaloping talent, panning succassiona and diving charge and

leng-term growih,
Mergera and A history of leeding growth through acquistions and othaer
Acruisitiong business combinations with the sbility 10 assess Bulld or buy'
decislans,

Corporate Govemance | Servica an & public company bawd to devalop insights abat |
mairtaining bagrd and menagement accountablity, protecting
lshami-u:lda interasls and ob=sring Eppropriate  QOVETIANGE
praclices

The above skills / expertise | compatencias iantified by the Company are also actually
availabla with the Board as under:-

Mame of the Financial, Siratagy | Businees | Laderahip Memgem aed| Comporals
Director Regulatony /| and Exposuns Amulstions | Sewemance
Legal & Risk | strategic
hManagement | pEnning
Ashox Bhandar g v v v v v
Alya Puja Jain v e v
B.L. Gagger v v v v v
AP Mumdra 4 v v W "4
T K. Bhattacharya 4 v s v
Dabeslsh Ray v v v |
Privanka Mohta W v o v
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Independant Rirectors

Eminent peapla hidng &n independent standing inthelr respective profession. and sho can
effactively contrbwie 1o the Company's business and policy dacsions are considenad By the
Momination end Aemumesation Committse (NRC) of the Company, for appointmenl as
Indapandent Dirgctor on the Board. The NRC, inter-alla, conglders qualibcations, positive
attributas, arga of expertise, dutles as Direciors or Commitien members,

Qther Directorshigs

Mona of the Direclors s a diractor s moss than 10 publia limiled compinags or acis s an
independent director in mora than T sted compandes. Further, none of the Oireclors acls asa
meamber of mone than 10 commitiess or ects as a chaimman of mare than § committess across
all pubdic imiled companias in which he/ehe s a director

Code o Conduct

The Company haa in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and the Code (the Code) s
applicabie to tha Drestos and employees. The Cods gheas the guldanse and support neaded
for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. Tha Code reflects the cona values of the
Company viz. Cremership Mindssl, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excsellenca. Al iha
dirgctors neluding Senior Management Personnel of the Company have aflirmed compliance
fo the Code of Conduct as on March 31, 2022 A declaration io fis effest, signed by The
panagar and Ghief Financial Ciicer {GFO), annexed narsks forms part of thes repart, Thecodae
Is avaitable an the gfficial woebshin of the cormpany: wew, nbi-imiia.co.n

{A) Committees ofthe Board

In ceder to enable Board 0 focus on spacific araas and make infermed destsions within tha
autharky delegated to each of the Comenittees, Board has constituted loflowing comméttaes.
Each Commites of the Board & guided by its charier, which defines the scope, powers and
composifion of the Committes. All dacisions and recommendations of e Commitiees arg
placed belons the Board for Inforrmation orappeoval

The Bosrd nas conatiuted following Committess of Directors;

1) At Commilttes,

20  Momination and Remunaratian Commities,

3)  EBtekaholders Relationship Commiites,

&) Rigk Managemant Committes and

§  CorporateSccial Aesponsibiity Commities
1. Audil Commithes

The Audt Commities of the Company i&oonstitubad in linewith the provisions of Regulation

18 of SEBI Listing Reguiations read wilh Section 177 ofthe A, The Awdit Committes as an

31" Manch, 2022 comprisas of thres Indepandent Direciors and oné Non-Indepandent director.

All mambars of the Audi Commiites ara financially litarate and have accounting or ralated

finarcial management expertsae. The primary purpose of the Audit Committes i to assist the

Board of Directors (the "Board’) of MBI Industial Finance Company Limited, (the

*Campany™) in fulfiling its ovemsight responaibilities with respect to:

a)] o accounfing and financial repeiing processes of e Company, incfuding the inkegsty
af the audited financial results and othas firansial inormaticn provided By the Company
io Its staksholders, the public, the stock exchangeand others,

] e Company's compliances wih lzgal and regudabory requiraments,

(35}
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¢  theCompany'shdapendent audiors’ qualification and independence,
dp  theaucs of tha Company’s Rnancial etatarments, and fhe perfermance of the Company's
internal audit function and (ta Indepandent Auditons,

Terms of Referance:

Tha rola end tarms of referenca of Audit Commibiee covers areas mantioned under Part C of
Echadule I [See Regulatian 1843)] of the Listing Regulaticnsand secllon 177 of the Comganiag
Act, 2013, besidas other larma as may be relared by the Basrd of Dimclors, Al tha Mambaens al
tha Audil Commitisa are qualified and having ingight to intarprat and undaretand Francial
statamanis. The brief k2ams of relerance of the Audit Commites are outined here under:

= Feview of the company”s finangial reporting process, adequacy of intemal contnal systems
and iha declogure of s financlal information;

=  Revlewing, wih the management, the annwal finerscial staterments and aedior's reapart
theveon before subrmission 1o the Board for approval, with particular reférence boc
a. maliers required to be intluded in the Direclor's Responsibility Statermer of fha
Board's Asport in tesma of clause (o) of sub-section (3) of esction 134 of the
Companles Act, 2013,
changes, Ifany, in acgounting palicies and pragiices and ressons for the sama;
rajos accacrting entrits irvohdng sstimates based an the exemsiss af judgmant by
maragament;
d. aigniflcantadusiments mada inthe financlal statements ansing outol audll findings:
a, compliance with isting and othar legal requilnarmenis refafing to inancial statamenis;
f.
a-

LT =
Ml

diselasina of any related party transactions;
meddied colnion(s), dany, Inthe draft audit report.

Fesdewing th gunrerly inancial statermants before submission fothe board for approval;

*  Reviewing, with the management, the slalement of wsas / applicaion of funds raised
through an EBsus (public issus, nghts issus, prefarantial isswe, aic.), tha slatament of funds
utillzed for purposes other than thoss stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and
the repo submitbed by the monoring agency monitodng the utilization of proceeds of 8
public or rights tsswe, and making appropnaie racommendetions to B board to teke Up

EHEpEE i [ matier

*  Hacommandafion for agpointment, remuneration and tasma of appointmant of auditers of
tha comgany;

#  Approval of paymaent to statutony auditors for any other sarvices rendarad by Bham;

*  Raviewing snd moniiaring the auditers indapandenon and pedformance and effectivenoes
of audit process,

= Discusaion with statdory auditors balors the audit commances abots the nature and
soops of audit as wall ag post-audit discusslon fo ascartaln any area of concem:

*  Aporoval (incleding omnibue approval] ar any subsequant madiicalion of iransacions
with relntad padias;

*  Reviewing the adequacy of infernal audd function inchudng frequency of infamal s
neporia;

*  Ravigwing the lindings of any observetions by the inflemal auditors into matters whare

there e saspactad frawd of iragutanty or & feilure of intamal controd system of a malarial
Aarfure and raportng the matter ta the Board,
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(k)

Constitution of the Audit Commilles
The Composition of the Committes, tegathar with the detais of the sttendancs of aach mambar
asat 31" March, 2022 s givan balow:

—
Evaiation of imtemal financls conirps;

Feviewing, with fhe mansgement, performance of staluloey and infernal auditons,
adequacy of the intemal contrl systam;

To look Into the reasons for substantiel defaulls in ithe payment to the depositors,
debentise holdars, sharahol3ers (n case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
crediions:

Approvel of appointment o chisf financial officer aftar sssessing the qualifcedlors,
sxparience and background, ate. of thecandldate;

Radawing the utiization of loans and‘ar advancas (invasimant by thi hilding company in
tha subsidiany company(les] axceding A& 100 crore or 10% of the assel size of the
subsidiary, whicheves 13 loveer including exlsting leans  advances finveatments;

Managarrent discussion and anatyzis of financial condition and resufls of aperations;

Reviewing mansgement fetiens / letters of inlarmal contral weaknessas issued by the
statutory audilors;

Reviewing the appointment, removal and lens of remunaration of the inlamal auditor,
Diseussionwith mtarnal audilers on any significant findings and folow uptharean;

To raviaw tha functioning of whigtle blowsr  vigil machanism;

Seruting of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Ravigwing valustion of underakings orassols ol the company, wharavar necessary,
Statemant of deniations;

Cluarory statemart of deviation(s) including rapon of monttoring agency, wharaver
applicahla. submilied 1o stock exchanga(s) in kerms of Aagulation Z2(1) of SEBI (LEstng
Obligations and Dissloaure Requirements} Regulations, 2015

Annunl Statemend of furds utised for pumpess other than those siated in the offer
documant ! proepacius | notice in terma of Regudation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disglogure Requirements) Regulaions, 2015, wharaver applicabile.

Carrying cul any other funciion as is menlionad In the terms of refarenons of the sucdl
carmmities or asmay ba referadiassigned by the Board.

sl Name of the Designation | Mestings Categary
Mo, Direcior Attended
1, | T.K. Bhatiacharya Chairmgn 7] Mery- Exacufive indapanden| Directar
2. | Ashok Bhandar Member 5 Pian- Execuiive Indapendent Dirssor
8. | Debasigh Ray Membar 5 an- Exzcuthvs Incapendant Cinector
4, | JP. Mundra Mernbac 5 Non- Executive Norrindependont
Directar
L J
37
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Meatings of the Audil Commities
Five Audit Committes Meekngs ware held during the nancial year 2021-22 on tha following
datos:

18 Jung, 2021

14* August, 2021
15 Movambar, 2021
16® Degambaer, 2021
14* Fabruary, 2022

LR RN

2. Momination and Remunearation Committas

The MNomnation and Remuneration Commitios (MR of jhe Board & conatiuted in
compliance with tha requiraments of Saction 178 of tha Act and Regulation 18 of the SEBI
Listing Paguilafions. The committed formufates the critern lor determining gualifications,
pasilive attribuies and independance o a drector and recommends to the Board a policy
relating to the remuneration for the Directors and Kay Managerial Parsonnal, The Committee
rewizvie and recommends payment of annuel salaries, commission and athar conditions of the
Directors and Key Managadal Parsonngl. The remunesation polioy (8 direcled fowands
rewarding perfermance baged on reviaw of performance ' achisvernants on a pariodical basie,
Mo Siock opdion has been granted to any of tha Directors during the finemcial yaar 2021-22. The
remunaration policy lorms part of the Dirsctors Raparl. Tha Compary doesn’t have amy
pecuriary relationshis or ransacton with any of tha non-exesutive dirsoors. Nore of the
Diractors kave baean ghen any remunerafion during the financial yosr under review except
Meating Fees.

Tha brief1erma of reference of the Commitiae are as follows ;

fa] Telormulae and review tha edteris thet must bs followad for determining qualfications,
posfive atiributes/exparience for appointmant end Indeperdancs of & direclor,

B} Toresemmand tothe Board a paficy, ralating fo the rérmuneration fortha dractons, loy
rranagerial perscongd and other amployess and to ensura compliznee with the
ramunsration policy set forth by the Company;

(=) Toldentfy peracns who are guadified to becarne Directars and who may be appointed in
Sanlor Managemeant In socordance with the cribara laid dewn and recemmand o the
board forthairappointmant andior rermosal;

idy To larmulabe the ertena for evaluation of perdarmanse of Indepandent directors and of
tha board of directons as a whila:

&) Toextent or santinus tha tarm of appointmant of the independent director, on the basis
ol tha raport of parfermance owaisation of Indepantent direciors;

N To repon on the systems and on the amount of the sEwual remuneretion, In whaieyer
form, of dimaiors and key manageralisenior managemen personned to the Boara.

i@) To perfonm such other lunctions as may be nacessary of appropriate for the
perdarmance of s dules,
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Constitution and Atendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and
Remunaraiion Commilisa

The Comgesition of the Commites tagetner with tho dotalls of the atendance of asch mambar
althe meetlings during the financial year 2021-22 is given balow:

o el e T
1. | TK. Bhattacharya Mlon- Exacuties Indapendent Diecsor | Chairman 3
2. | Aghok Brandari Mon- Executive Independent Dirsctor | Mamier 3
3 | B.L. Gaggar o Mmﬁfmm Mambas a

4. | Debasish Ray Nan- Wmmmm Member a

Mectings of the Homination and Remuneration Commttes {(NRC)
Thiree NRC Meatings were held during the Snancial year 202 1-22 on hae follcwing dates:

v 267Apil, 2021

v 14" August, 2024

¢ 15" Nevembar, 2021
Parformance evaluation eriterla for Indepandant Direciors
Attandance at Board or Commitbes maakngs.
Contribifion at Board or Committes maatings.

Adharance o athical standards and coda ol conduwct of the Company,
Meaningiul and construciive contrdion and inputs in the Board! Commiieemestings.

Detalls of meeting fees paldto the Directors for the yearended 31" March, 2022

Directar Category Gikting Fees

(Rs.)

Ashok Bhardan Hor- Execulive -Indapandant Directos 5,000
B.L. Gaggar No- Exesulive Men-lndependant Director B5,000
Fiya Puje Jlain Mor- Execuiive Men-incapendant Direciar 5, 00y

~ J.F. Mundra Hon- Exeoutive Mon-independent Director 5,000
" T Bhastacharys Mon- Executive -Independent Director 77,000
Debasish Ray Non- Executive -Indepardent Director &1,000
Privaria Maohta Ko Exgautive -Indapendant Dircotor 25,000
Total 3,563,000

3. Stakeholders Relafionship Commities

The sompasiticnof the Stakeholdors’ Relatorahip Commites (SR ofthe Board fin

Era  with tha presaribed provisions of Section 178 of (ke Companies Act. 2013 and tha

-
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Listng Regulations and inter ais apodoves transfer & transmission of shares, Beus of
duplicateire-materialized shares and consolidation & splifing of cerfifcatea, resew
measuras taken kor efective oxorcise of voling rghts by sharehokders, review the
adherance > tha sanvice standards adoptec by ihe Comcany in respect of vaslous
sarvices baing rerwiered by the Ragistrar & Share Translar Agent, redreseal of complails
from imvestors including Inter-alla non-recoipt of annual repors end non-réceipt of
daciared dividenda etc.

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Commiites
The Compoaltion af theCommities during the year 2021 -22 ie given balow:

8 Hame of the Designation Category

No. Dérector
1. | BL Gaggar Chalrman Man- Exacuthvie Non-Independari Direclar
2. | J.F. Mundra Marmier Mon- Exacuiea Mon-Independant Diraclor
4. | T.K Bhaltacharya hdamber Non- Executive Independen Dineclar L

Maetings of the Stakcholders Melationship Cormmiltes
FourStakeholdars Relationship Committes Masatings were hald during tha finansial year 302 -
22 on-

1) 21" June, 2081

2 14" Auguet 2021
3 21"October, 2034
4) 18"Daecembar, 2021

Furihar the deteils of tha Complianca Officer designated for hendling of the Imvestor grevances
i providad hem undars

Name Ashish Kedia

Address 21, Strand Foad, Kolkata- 700 001 (West Bangal),
Telophone No 033 2230 7908

S ribiinancs Symall.oom

Detalls of Panding Investar Grisvances and Compilance Officer

The grievanoes racaled wera regoved during ha finandsal vear and all the gqueries fram the
shakohciders wera altended prampdly éxcept in cases of defliciency in documeta. Furthar ihare
warano pending fransfers forthe year under review,

4. RiskManagementCommitea

Tha Rizk Manegement Committes has been constituted inline with Regudalion 21 of tha Listing

Repgulations. The Company has come within the top 1000 Gsted entifles by mamsel

capitalization as en 315t March, 2081 and thia requirarmant to comgdy with Ragulation 21 of he
Listing Aagulaticons has beooma mandaton.

-
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Constitution of the Alsk Mansgement Commitles
The Composition of the Commities durng tha year 2021-22 is given balow:

& | Mame of the Designation Catagory
Mo Member
1. | Ashok Bhandari Chalrman Hone Bxscutive Irdapancant Diractor
2. | BL. Gapgar Membar Mon- Execistig Non-ndepandent Dieciar
4. | 8P Kumar Wembar Manager & CFO =i

The primary role and responadiliiny of the Risk Manegement Commitiesis:

l. Tofermuinie rsk managament policy which shall includs:

¢ A framework for ibentification of internal and external risks specifically faced by listed
antity, in pariculas including financial, operational, sactoral, sustainablifty (panicutary,
ESG miated risks), information, cybat securdy risks or Bny other risk as may be
detarminad by the Comdmilfes,

= Maasures for rsk miligation Inchiding systems and processes for Intemal conpl of
iEndiFid rigleg..

 Businasscontinuity plan,

i To review that appropriate mathodology, processes and systems ara in plags bo menitor
anvd evaluate reke associated with the business ofthe Company;

fii. T monitor and owersed Implemantation of the rsk managameni policy. Including
evalualing tho adeguacy of nekmanagemant systame and processes;

I, To pericdically rewiaw the ek management policy, al isas! onca in bwo years, including by
consldaring the changng industry dynamics and evoling complaxiy;

v, To keep the board of directars Informed aboul the nature and content of its discussions,
regommendations and schons 15 ba taken;

vi. The appointment, removal end terms of remunamation of the Chied Bisk Oficer {if any)
ghai be subject to reviaw by the Rigk Management Commithee; and

Wil Such ciher aspacts es the Board may consider eppropriale and required from the
Committes from tmea tatima.

vil The Rizk Managemeant Commitiea shall coordinats ite acthities with other committess; in
instances whene thera is any oversp with astivities of such commilaes, ds sar tha
framesork aid down by the board of direchans.

Tarms of Retarenos:
Tha brial terms of reterance of the Risk Management Commities ang outlined here undan

- rawiew Of sirategic raks arlsing out of adversa businass decisionz and leck of
reaponaiveness tochanges;

= review af aparsianal msks;
=~ roviow of financial and raporting risks:
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- raview of compliance fsks;

-review or disouss e Company's risk philasophy and the quanturm of sk, on a broad
lenval that the Company, as an organization, iz willing %o acocepl n pursuil of stakehcldar
value;

- Inquiring abeut exisfing risk management processes and raview the ellecthanacs of
those prooesses noidentilving, assessing and meragng tha Company's most
significant grbempise-widé risk axposuras;
- rewiew paradically ey sk indicatars and management reaponss tharsto,

5. Corporate Sockal Responsitiiity (CSR) Gommines

Comporate Soclal Reeponsbily (C5R) Cormmiltes has bean constifuied by the Boand for
formulating and overseeing the execution of the Company’s GSR Policy as prescribed under
the Compianies Act, 2013 and FRlules made thareunder. The TSR Committae comprises of two
independent direciors and two non-execubiive dirsctars. The mambars of the TSR Committes
e

sl MName Desigration in | Status in the
HMa, Company | Committae
1. | Shri T.K. Bhatacharys Independer: Director | Ghainman
2. | Shi Dobasish Ray Independent Diregtor Member
3. | ShriBankat Lal Gaggar " Director Member
4. | Shrl Jagdish Prasad Mundra Director Mermiber

The Annual Report on CER Activilieg as requiced under tha Companies Act, 2013 for the vear
endad 31 March, 2022 is attacied 1o 1hs Board's Hepadt,

Mesting of the Corporate Soclal Responsitiiiity (CSR) Committes

One CER Commilkes Meating was hald during the financial year 2021-22 on 27 Fabreary,
2022,

(D) Detafls of Goneral Body Mealing
Annusl Gensral Mesting

The detalls of last 3 Annual Genaral Meatings togathar with the detads of the special resolution,
ifany, pasaed tharoat i provided hareunder;

Yoar Special
Erded Day, Date and Time Venue Resolutions
Passad
3tsl March, | Thursday, 23rd September, 21 Strand Aoad, Yoo
2021 2021 81 10:30 AM, Fotkasa - 700 001
I1el March,| Monday, 28th Seplarmbes, 21, Strand FAoad, Yoe
2020 2020 af 10:30 A.M, Kalkata - 700 00
| 3181 March, | Saturday, 14 Seplamber, Eshf'shr:tw ?ﬂmﬂd- e
L 2018 2018 of 1030 AWML .4H'I1I'_|ﬂ'|:l'h“ﬂ = TOO 017 i
= F
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Extracrdinary General Meating

An Extracrdinary Genaral Meeting ol the members of the Company was caled for appainting
ihe Stalutory Auditoss of the Company, on 271h January, 2 at 10.30 AM, atl 21, Strand
Road, Kolmta -700001 bo comphy with the requirarments of the Cireular no. REL2021-22/25 -
Ref.MNo. Dol .COARGS BEC.O1S 08,91.001/2021- 22 daiod 27 Aprl 2021 [(Guidslings lor
Appointmant of Statuory Central- Audiiors (BCAs)Statgory Auditors (5As) of Commarclal
Banks (excluding ARBs), UCEa and NEFCs ncisding HFCe]] lasued by e Reserve Bank of
India {FEBl Guidelnes’). The members have appainied Ms. Chaturvedi & Co., Charterad
Accountants, (Firm Regstration No. 308137E) as the Stattory Audiiom of tha Gompany io
hodd effies until the conalusion of the 80th Annual Ganaral Masting of the Company.,

Remata a-vating and ballot at the AGM

SEBI hae lssued a circular deted & Decamber 2020 for inorease in the participation by the
public non-inetitutional sharshodders/ratail sheraholdess. [ has boan decided to enable &-
woling io ad the demal account hokders, via a single login credentis!, through el damat
accounta/webaites of Dapositories’ Depository Participants, Demat account holders will be
abla 1o casl their vole without having fo register agaln with tha g-voling service providars
{ESPE). Thia will nat only faciliteie spambses authantication but also gnbance the ease and
eorsansancs of participating in the e-vating procoesa,

The Company has angaged COSL ko provide e-voting fagility b all the membars, Mambers
whase names appear an the mgister of mambers 22 on the recerd diate shal be sfigible 1o
paricipate inthe evoting.

Tha facility far threugh ballot will also ba mede avaiabie st the AGM. Members whohiave
not already cast thelr votea by rermaie 2-voling can exarciae thedr vods at the AGM,

{E) Means of Communication

The Quartery, Half-Yeardy and Annual Financiel Feeulis of the Company are farwardad to
Stock Exchange immediataly upon approval by the Board of Directors and ane smultanaously
publighed m newspapera in English and Bengall (regional language) namely Business
Standardand Sukhabar.

In accordance with the Listing Regulationa, data pariaining to Shareholding Patiam, Quartedy
Financial Resulis and Othar Detalls are forwarded 1o the Siock Exchangs and are also
disseminated on the webaite of the Company,

During tha year under ravigw, no presentston was made 1o tha Institutional investors or
BNAENYSE,

Ganaral Shareholders’ Information
Annual General Mesting | Tuesday, the 30h August 2032 at 4,00 PA. &t
21, Btrand Foad, Kolkata - 700 001

Book Closune Dates: 24082022 bo 30,08 2022 (bath days inchushe)
E-vating Dateo; 27.08 2022 to 20.08.2022

Financial Year 2021-22 B
Dividand paymer{ date Mo dividend has bean recommended by the Board this year,

Li!ﬂl'l; 'EI'IE‘H:II:#E:I:'hmw i il =y
Nehong Stk ol India Limbad (NSE],
Exchiange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Gomplex, Bencke (Eagi), Mumbai - £00 051
Tha Company hias peid the annusl isting fes of e sxchanga T

e inancizl year 202223,
Stock Coda WEE SymbolNBIFIN
158 IME3GEIA 020
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Urelaimed Dividand

Pursian: to provisians of Secton 124 of the Compandes Act, 2013 and nees framed there
under, the Cormpany has ranalered the tetal amount of dvidend which remained unpald or
urlaimed for theyear 201617 tosha Urgaid Dividend Account ofthe Campany.

Further, 85 per provislons of Seclion 124(5) of lhe Comrgpanies Act, 2013, any monay
Irenadarmd by the Comparny fo ha snpakd dividend acoownt and remelning unclaimad foar a
pavtod of seven yedrs from the date of such trengfer ghaill be transferred io a fund called the
Irveetor Eduoation and Probestian Pund [the Fund’| sat up by the Central Govarmment. The
migrmbars who have not yet oncashed the: dividend warrani(s) for the year 201617 (Final
Dividend) are reqiested to apprasch the Company with thair warrents for resvalidationTresh
isguanca,

Tha detriis of unpaid dividend andlast date of trangfer lo IEPF e given harsundesr:

Yaar Typa of Dividand par Dals ol Dividersd | Last dete for

Divedend share of dacaration A fransber of

Tl of Dividend | wnpaid as on ungaid
iz} 31.03.2022 | dividand in

({41 [rwsmster
Education

and
Protegtion
| | Fund
2016-17 Fndl | V- 16.09.2017 | 163458 | 2 .1n.mm+
Transter of shares fo [EPF

Pursuant 1o Seclion 124(6) of the At anatha Invasior Ecucation and Prafection Fund Authority
{Actounting, Audit, Transfer and Refnd) Aules, 2016, as amendad, all shares in respact of
which dividarid has not bean paic or claimed lor seven conseculhve years or mare shall be
tranafarred by the Company to the IEPF, within 30 daye of such shares becoming dua for
tranefor. As provided under these Rules, the sharmhalisr would be allowed 1o cleim such
unipabd dividends and e shares transierned to the Fund by fallowing tha procedusa prescrbed
undar the sald IEPF Rules, 2018,

GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Teniative Financial Calpndarforthe yaar 202223

Financlal Yaar

Firal quartar resulta

|_Second Quarter and Hall-yearly resulls |
| Third quartar resulls

18l Aprll, 2022- 315t March, 2028 |
Witnin 45 days of tha and of the quarter

Fourih ousder & AI'!l'_|_|._1_EH resulls

Listing of Sharas:

Tha Equity shares ol the Compeany s isted at the Nations! Steck Exchange of India Ltd. (WSEL
The Company's Steck code s : NBIFIN

The security of the Company was néver suspended from frading during the year 2021.-22.

L Corporate identity Number (CIN): LESOZ3WE1936PLCOGE596

Within 60 days of the end of the financial year

y
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Market Price Data during financial year 2021-202%: W
Aprl, 2021 2040 1625.45
May, 2021 3200 1660 1
 June, 2021 2475 2050
Juy, 2021 2384.10 211515
August, 2027 287545 2249
Septambar, 2021 2808 2601
October, 2021 2798 366,65
Novamber, 2021 2590 2065
Decarmber, 2021 2797 2065,10
January, 2022 2685 2181.15
Fabruary. 2022 2360 1979
| March, 2022 | 2325 75 207S
Parformance In comparison to broad-based Indices .8, NSE
Indices MSE ity 50) NB| Quote 81 NSE
01.04.2021 14631 1934
1,03.2022 17465 221980
Ineraase / (Dacreasas) om3d 285.80

Reglstrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA)

Maheshwar Datametics Pvl. Lid, acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent [RTA) of the
Company having is registered office at23, AN, Mukherjee Road, 57 Floor, Kolkata - 700001,
Contact No.033-22482248, 22435029, Fax 032-22484TAT. Emas! id: mdpids @yahoc.com.

FTAals0 maintaire & webaibisd www.mdpl.In
Share Transfer Sysbam
&) Tranglerof Securities held inphysical Mada

Ao per BEBI nonmia, &l requasis for  transier of securiles InCiuding trenamission and
fransposition requests shall be  processed only In damalaraksed baem, Furher, vide
cireutsr daked 24th January, 2022, SEB has noliffed that all requeat for duplicete issuance,
splitting and consolidation reguestatos Wil be procesaed in & demat moda anly.

b} Nomiration fasility for ghaeholding
As par the provision of the Adl, Taclity for making romination = evaliabia for Members in
respect of chares hald by them. Mambers holding ahares in physical  form may  obtain &

nomination lorm by writing fo tha Company Secratary of the Comparmy of ATA. Members
holding shareain damateriaiized lorm showld contact their Dapositery Padicipant (B9} in thie
regard.

@) Permanent Sccownt Numbar (PAN| and Bank Accownt datails:
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Az regired by BEBL The reguiator, vide circuler dabed 3 Movember, 2081, and 15th
Decambar, 2021, kes mandated fmishing of PAN, KYC detalls and nomination by holdars
of phwslcal securitles by 31at Merch, 2023, Mambars are requasiad (o submit their PAN, KYG
and nomination ceteils o the Gompany ‘s reglsirans,

dj Reconciiation of Shara Capdal

As required by the Securities & Exchanga Board of [ndia (SEBI). quartery audit of the
Company's share capital is baing camied out by an ndapandent extemal Audor {(Practicing
Company Secralary) with a view to recongile the tolal - share capital admitted with Nalional
Becurities Depository Lid. (NEDLY and Central Depositery Services (Indla) Lid, (CDSL) and
shmres hald in physical form, with the izaued and iketed capkal, The Auditors Gestilicatn in
regard io the eame is submitted fo MEE.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31/03/2022
Share Halding Noof Holders | % age Mo of Shares % age
Upho 500 | &se7 7,44 2,652,085 10.26
501 10 1000 | 85 149 65,388 258
1001 to 2000 29 051 41,128 187
2001 ta 300D 10 048 24, 446 1.00
3001 to 4000 1 ooe 3,642 0.15
4001 to S000 2 0.04 8,800 0.36
| 5001 to 10000 B 041 2430 | 173
Abave 10000 13 0.23 20,20,869 8226 |
Grand Totsl 5713 100.00 24,56,806 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

Az on 31" March, 2022, 88.55% of the Company's total equity shares reprasenting 21,75,560
equity shares wore held in damaterlaiized fom and the rest were in physical form. The
Company's Bquity shares am avelable for trading in the depository aysterns of Nuticnal
Securities Deposhory LimSed (NSDL) and Central Depository Senices {India) Liméed (COSL),

Statuig of toal number of ehares dematesfalized and In phosical form as on 31st March 2022

Depository Mo, of Sharas %of Paldup Caphtal |
NSDL 21,00,284 85,43
CDSL 76,006 3.08
Physical . 281,248 1145
Total i | 24,56.806 100.00

Outstanding GDR\' ADRs/ Warrants/ Canvartible inetrumente
The Company hag not izeued any GORs/ ADRs [ Warrants or any Corverdibla Instrumanta,

(46}

LR




MBI Indusmrial Finance Co, Lisl
87th Annual Report 2021-22 CIN @ L6S923WER1936P L0655
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Pursuant to Saction 204 of the Companles Act, 2013 and Aulas framed thereunder, Mr.
Mukesh Chaturvedl, Practicing Company Secratary was appalrbed by the Company o conduct
Gacratarial Audit of records and documents of the Company. The Secratarial Audd Report
cordinns that e Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Campanies
Act, 2013, Depositories Act, 1938, Lisling Agresment with the Stock Exchange, and all the
raisvant Fegulations ard Suidalinas of the SEBI. as applicabiie o the Comparny. The audit algs
coven B raconolliation of shans capital on quadery basle o reeancile the tolal adrmitted
capltal with MSDL & COSL and iodal paid up and ligted capital. The sudit confirma that the total
paid up capial fs in agreamant with the tolal number of shares in physical o and the total
niumber of dematenialized sheres hald with MSDL&A COSL.

Address for Correspondentcs
Company Secratany
Ashizh Kedia
21, Strand Road,
Kaolketa - 700 001
Tal: (33 -22300601
Fax: D33-22131650
Emall IC: nielinance @ymall.com
Wabsita: www.nbl-irdia.oo.in J

Shara transler are procassad by the Registrar & Share Transher Agend and approved by the
Btakatwldens Aelationship Commitien, if the docurmsnts ane complate in all repects, within 15
days from the date of lodgmeant. Tha same is examinad by a Practicng Company Secelany on
halfyearty basis and a Certficate as required under Ragilation 4008) of the Listing Regulatians
Is colained and forwarded by NSE where the Company’s shares ara lisled,

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

SEBI vida circular dated 3% June, 2011 infroduced SCORES. Le., *SEBI Complaints Redrass
System” the sysiem ol processing of investora complaints in 8 centraized wab based
compleints redressal porsl known as "SCORES!. The salient features of this ayatem ara:
centrefized datsbase of gl Gomplaints, online upload of dction Taken Reports (ATRE) by the
poncamed Compary and online viewing by Investors of scion takan on the complaints and
thelr eurreni status.

The Company is reglstenad with SEBI under the SCORES syatam.
Credii Ratings

Mo ingtances have occumed durirg the financial year 2021-22 which warani the Company to
obtain Gredit Aating.
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{F] Other Disclosures 1

a) During the finarcial year 2021-22 there was no materially significant Related Pary
Transaction, wikth tha Directors, or iha Manegemant, their refatives eic, having potential
conflict with the intereats of the Company &t bangpe except thoee disclesed in the Board's
Raport.

b} The Company has adopted thi Code of Efice and Business principles for the membee of
Board and saniormenagameant parsonmnel,

¢} The Company has adopled a 'Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (the
Code*) In angordance with the requinernents of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulatons, 2015 as amended uplodate. The code
expreasy lays down the guidelines and the procedure 10 ba followed and disclosures 1o be
rrade, by the direclors and tha senior management personnal while deating with tha
gharas of the Company on the beerse and caullening tham on the conasguences of non-
compliznca thereof. The Company has elso formed Whistle Blowar Policy. Further, wa
affirm that no parsonnel have been deniedaccass to the Audit Commities. Employees can
regod to the Management concems regarding unethical behavioe, act o suspected fraud
orviciaiian of the Company's Codaof Conduct Policy.

dy The Company is in compliance with all the mendatory requirementz of the Listing
Regulalions.

@} Certificate from Compeny Sacratary in Fractioe

Mukesh Chaturved|, Practicing Company Secretary, has issuad a cartificale as requirad
iartar claugs 10 of Part & of Sshedule \ of the Listing Feguiations, confirming thal nona of
the dirsetars on the Board of fhe Company has besn debarrad o disqualified fom being
appointed of continuing a8 dacior of the comprny by the SEBI / Minisiry of Compomte
Aftalry oramy such stalutory authority. The cartificate ls enclosad with this report,

i Dwtalls o total fees paid 1o statutany audions:-

The datails of total foes for all sarvcas paid by the Company, ona consolideted besis, (o the
stahutony auditer ore as follows:

Type of servica FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Audit Feas 80,000 46,000

Taal Audit Pees B,000 8,000

Oithaes - = 1

g Mopomplaint peraining to sexual hamssmant was filed by any woman during the inancial
year undar raport. hence nodisciosunss are applicabla.

Hen-Mandatory / Dissretionary regulrements of regulation Z7(1) & Part E of Scheduls N
of the SEBI Lisling Regulations:

Bharehoiders Rights:
Tha quarterhyholf yearly results ane not seni o e shansholders. However, the sama are
santlethe MSE sndare also postod on the Company's website,

Audiior "s Opinlon:
The: Company’s financlal siatements tor the fnancial year 2021-22 do nat contaln any audit

gualiication,

i
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Reporting of intermal auditor: )

The intermal auditors repart o the Audit Commitiea.

Codefar Prohibition of Insider Trading:

As reporied hers inabove, the Company has adopted an Insidar Trading Polley to reguiate,
menitor end report trading by naldars under the SEBI (Prohibibion of Inzider Trading)
Aeguiations, 2015, This Poliey slgs indludes cooe of prectees and procedures for bair
disctosure of unpublished price sansilive nfommatian, inllal and conlinual disclosures, The
Board reviews the Policy / Goda on a need-ig-knaw bagis, This Policy ls available on our
wobsSe. The Company Secreiary B the "Compllance Officer’. The Coda of Conduect |
applicable to all Directans and desigrated pereons as dofined in the Code of Canduct,

Complisnce Certificate on Corporate Governance
A requirad by provisions of Chapter [V of the Listing Regulations, the Complance Denificate
an Corpongle Govemnanca s annamed i thie Repon,

CED and CFO Cortification
The CFC acte as Managar of the Compary as well, The Manager gnd CFO CorliNcalion is
prowvidiad in this Annual Repart &s requined by the Listing Aeguiations,
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CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQGUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORSG

(Pursuant to Rogulation 34(3) rapd with Clause 10 of Pad G of Schedule V' of the SEB
{Listing Obdipations and Discioaure Heqikerrams) Hegulations, 2016

Ta,

Tha Mamigrs

M.B.E Industrie! Fosnoe Gompany Limited
{Cil:LeRa2IWB1936PLCOBERSS)

In pursuance of sub elause [ of clause 10 of Pad C of Schadule W of The Sscurities and

Exchenge Board of Indla (SEBI) (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Aequirerments)
Ragulations, 2015 (LODRA), | herely cedify that:

On the bagk of the writan representalion [/ datlaraton receivad from the dinectorz B8 on
March 37, 2022, nons of the directors on the Board of the Company has been dabarrad ar
disqualified from being appointad or continung as dector: of the company by the SEBI ¢
Wintstry of Corporate Aflains oramy offer stslusony autheniy,

Mukesh Chaturvedi

Fractising Company Secratary

Plase: Kofkata FGCS No. ; 11083
Date: 10° May, 2022 CP No. : 3360

DM : Fot 1 0630000287801
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CERTIFICATE ON_COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

To
The Mambers of MBI Industrial Finance Company Limited

I, Mukeshy Chaturvedi, Company Secreiary In Practice, fhe Secretarial Auditor of NAB.L
Industrial Fnance Company Limited (*the Company™, have examingd e compilance of
conditions of Corporate Govamanae by tha Company, kor the year endod on 31st Manch 2022,
as stipulated in Regidations 17 0 27 and clauses (bf to {l) of regulation 48(2) and para C, D and
E of Schedule V of the Securifies and Exchanga Board of indis (Listing Oblgationa end
thmngl}aqulmm&rm Fiegredations, 2015 a8 amended {colleclively ralermed o as “Listing
Regulatians"}.

Menagement's Responslbility

The complianca of canditions of Corpovate Governange is the responsisiily of (ha
Managemant of the Compary incleding the prepanition and maintanance of all resrvant
supporting recorda and decurments. This responeiility also includas the design,
implemaniation and maiMtenance of intemel confral relevant o the preparation and
presentation of the Corporats Governance Report as sfipuated In the Listing Regulstions,
isa1ed by tha Securitiss and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor's Respansiblilty

My responebilty is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether, e
Company has complied with tha conditions of Corporate Sovermance as specifiad in the Listing
FRegulations reterred (o in ebove paragraph. ItEs naither an audil nor an axpression of opindon
antheinancial stetsments of the Company,

| hewve examined the nelevant records and documants maintaned by the Company for the
purposas of providing reasonsble assurarce on the compllience with Corporate Governanca
raquiremants by the Company.

Dpinion

Based on my examination of the redevant secords and according i the informason and
explarations provided by 1he Managament, | carify that the Company has complied with the
conditons of Gorporase Governancs as stiputated In Regulations 17 1027 and ciacsas (b) ba (1)
of ragulation 46{2} and pares G, D and £ of Schedwe ¥ of tha Listng Reguiations during the
year anded 31" March, 2022,

| state that such cormrpdance iz naither an assurancs ag t2 the future viability of the
Company nar the efficlancy or effectivenass with which the Managameni hes oordisstad the
affairs of the Comparry.

Mukaah Chaturved

Praclicing Company Sacretary

FCS: 11063

Plage:; Kolkkaia CP No.- 33820

Data: 10° May, 2022 LIDIN 1 FO410830000298308

L il
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N.B.1, Industrial Finance Co, Ltd,

Managersnd PO Certification

To,

The Board of Dirsctors,

N.ELL INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO, LTD,
Kaolkata

Deer membars of the Bosrd,

L 8P Humer, Mansger and Chiol Financial Odficer of the Company, 0 ihe Best of my
Inowledge and ballst, canifythat:

y

1

I have reviewed the (inanciel steamonts and e cash flow staternen of MLELL
INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO. LTD and & summary of the significant accounting policies
and ather axpianatory imarmaton of the Company and the Beard's Reportfor the financial
year endied Manch 31, 2022. | state that

thase statemaerds do not contain any moterally untes statemaont or emil &y meterial fact
or contain stibemants that might be mislesding:

these statemants together present & true and fair view ol the Company's aftairs bor the
pesdod prasentad in this reporand are in comollance with existing scosurting standards,
epplicable lews and regulalions,

Thera are no fransactions anterad inte by the Company dunng the year which ang
fraudulant. Bagal or in violationol the Company's Code of Conduct.

| accept responsibility for eelablishing and mamiaining Intemal controls dor financial
reportng and thet | have evalpated the efleciransas of intermal control syetams of the
Company pertainimg b3 fnamclal reparting and cordiern that thare have Been no materdal
waakness in infornal conlrols ovar financlal reparting including any cafractive actions with
risgarnd to deficlancias,

{havae indicalad fo the Awditors anditha Audil Cermmittes:

&, that thero wena no significant changes in Intemal gontrol over finenala repording durina
e e

b. All igrificant changes [n accounting palicies mads during the yaar, if any, and that the
wime have baan disciveed suitably in 118 noles 1o 1he inancial slatements; snd

£. thal thera were ne instences of elgnificant fraud that vohes managemen: or other
employees who have a eignificant rale in the Company's Intamal cantral syatam cver
financial reporting.

Ifuriher dectare that all Board Membars and Senior Manegernent Parsornel have affirmad
compdancs with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for tha year covarad by this Report.

Place: Modnta 5.F. Kurrar
Dafe: 31adday 2022 Manager
Chigs Financal Oficer
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ECOMOMIC SCENARID AMD QUTLOGCK

Tra globhal aconomy: grew by 5.29% n 2021 follewing & contracBon of 3.1% In 2020, Countias
Acress fhe globe focused an vacciration covarage and Implarmanted varous economic stimull
b Frinbmise the imgact of COVID-19 and hasten aconamis fracovary. The growth momenturm
startad slowing lowards the end of 2021, a5 the effects of fiscal and monetary stimuli dssipated
along with theonset of the Omicron varant st COVID-19.

iWhile the anrly forecast for glabal sconamic growth in 2082 tha recant geo-political tensions
and eorfict in Ukraine will weigh on global grawth projactions and alss lead {o-high inflatlon in
ihe short tesm. Tha confict is a major biow ko tha giobal econarmy that will huet growih and raise
prices.

The Imernational Monetary Fund in its recent report siashed as foracast for global econamic
growth by naary & full percentage poinl, ciing Faussia’s war in Ukraine, and waming that
Inflaton was now A “clear snd present danger” fof many countrias.

The war ks expected to further incréase inflation, Ihe IMF sald in itz falest World Economia
Ouitleak, waming that a further tightening o Wastermn sanciions on Russie to farget ensngy
axponts would causaanathes majar deogin global output.

Aecording o IMF ot ricks to the ouliook include- o sharper- (han expecied decalaralion in
China prompled by 2 flare-up of COYID-18 [ockdawine. Rising pricas for food, enangy and other
goods could fripger social unrest, paticulady i vulnareble davaloping countriee.

Downgrading ita foresasts for the secand firme thia vear, IMF said it now projecis glooal growih
of 3.6% in both 2022 and 2023, a drop of 0.8 and 0.2 pementage paint, rispactively, from ils
denupry forecast due ko the war's direct Impact on Auasia and Ukaine and global apiliovars.
Meadium-tern global growth s expectod to decling 1o atoat 3.3% aver the mwsdiem= tamm,
companid 1o an averags of 4, 1% in the perisd fram 2004 to 2013, and growth of 6.1 %0 2021,

INDIAN ECONOMY

Amanrg above global economy backdrop, slrong soonomic fundementals will likely help India
avald the long-larm impacts of the angeing confliot in Ukraine, However, the crisis fas clouded
Intia'a growth autinok as well, Crudeoil pricee are ingoring much above L55100 per bamel &nd
adihla i prices am up 205 - all of which ars oritical imports fam the twa warting natcns, inda
also party meets its fartizer needs fram the regian, For indéa, which has baen batiling nflatian
fizr @ while now, this siuation ia making mafers worse. Higher fusl and feriizer prices will
incragse subsily costa. Furhermars, capital oullows and rising Import bills will walgh oa the
aurrant account balance and currency valuation,

The succasshd rollout of the world's larpest vaccination drve, pick-up I govemment
axgenditure and batter preparvdness compared with the first wave of the pandemio lmited the
napalive sconomic impast of tha secand wave,

Indla's gress domestic prodect (SDP) s expacied to have grown amound 3.73% in the financal
yoar 2021 -22, which is the highest among the lsading economies, &nd tha growth (s kel 1o be
argund 7-7.6% in the cumant financial vear, assonding fo same of the |atest estimaies, Inda's

Y B
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growth trajectony I8 expectod to remain sbeady In 2022-23, baring prolenged geo-palitical
tensions, supeoied by varkous oynamic reformes underiaken by the govemment during the past
fawy paara.

The overall Consumar Price Index (CP) inflation has bean hovedng around 7%, i.e. bayond
the uppar and of RBIs Inlerance and could remain alevatad n the near future dus bo high Inpul
cos! praseures, |argaly stemming from supply chain disruptions end upward pressure on crude
il

MNEFC INDUSTRY & BUSINESS UPDATE

india's financial seotor s a highly diversifiad ore comprising commercial banks, [nswrance
companies, non-banking inancal companies, co-opemEtives, pansian funds, mutual funds and
cthar smallar financial entiies. The seclor is predominantly driven bry banking and non-banking
financlal cormpanies (MBFCe'). Over the pait few years NBFGCa have emenged as imgortan
fingnclal infermedianas, particulary for the smal-ecale and retail sectors in Lndersenvad areas
and wnbarked sactars, The seciar lumed out to be growth engine in an emdonrment whera
ggnificant importarce (B exsigned o financial inclagion end have aided the economy in
employment generetion and wealth crealion by meking credit available to fa rural sagment,
Howsrver, in récent timas the secior is bacoming & wedkar segment n indian financlal &ystem.

COMPANY"S POSITION

The Company NEL 5 registered with the RB| a5 a Non-Banking Flnancial Instifulion and is
categorized as "Won-Deposll taking NBFG® (NBFC-KD). The operations of he company
during the year weare centared mainly around invesirsdrta In sheres and pecurilies.
Agditionally the company wasirvesiing In Mutual Funds (oo, The main income af the Gampany
ta dividend incorme on long-term invastmants, interest on fixed depoait and prolll from sale of
investments. The results of the Company’s oparations lar the financial yaer amsdad 31° March,
2022 have been doal with in the Difector's Heport.

Tha Compary, being imo fimance and invastment activity, the mpact of movernent of stock
markate affscis its profiability. Tha Compeny has long-tan orentation In s Fvestmeants and
mainly invests in lletad aguities. The objective of investrnants portiolio ks to balance sk with
adequats refim.

QUTLOOK

A algnificant portian of tha Company's income adses from invesiment and shsre frading
eparation, which ara largely dapandent on the condilion of the eleck msrkat, The stock markst
acthity depands largely upon the azonomic prowth momeanium and a eambination of other
factors like inflation, domestic savings, surging porticlo investmants inte Indla mic. Tha
unusual devidopments in the global economy may posa uncertainties and challanges for the
emerging markel sconomies like india. However, the Company has mvesiment palicy wherain
it invests in thoae seocurities which have esay Bouwdlty, betier vield snd potential for price
appraciation inmedium ta leng fun,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has implemented & system of intemal controls and sk management for
aohigving opemdional afficlancy, optimal utilization of resources, cradible nancial regodting
and sompliance with lacal laws.
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The sysiam is aimed at covaring 8l gréas of cpeeationa, All iransactions entared info by ihe
Cormpemy are duly suthorzed and recorded comectty, The inbernal franclal controls within the
Company are commensurate with the gize, sdale and complexity of A opermtions, [t has
implamantpd suitable controle to ansara that inancial transactions ana reparted with accuracy
andl that thare is sirict compEance with applicable laws and regulatons. Theas controls are
regulady resdevied irdemally for efieciveness. The Company has robust policies end
procedures which, inter alla. ansure inbegrly in conducting iis besinoss, fhe safaguarding o its
assnts, Umely praparation of nediabée financial Information, accuracy and complelanass in
maintalning Becsuniing reconds and the prevention and detection of frauds and Brmors,

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
In accordancs with SEBI (Listing Dtligaions and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, the

detalls of significant changes .4, change of 25% of mone @8 comparad to the mmadiately
previous fisancial year) inkey Bnancls raios ang as folows:-

F'lﬂlu.uhra ﬂﬁlm&hl “'rm1
GRPA (%) R L
HINPA (%) il MIL
Aatum on Asseis (%) .38 006
Riatum on Eguity (%) 0.37 0.06
Mt Interest Mangin (%) 100 100
Current Rafo 65 543
-“DEbt-Equrty Radics 0.00 .00
Mot Profit Mergin %) 64.68 74.70
EPG 32.34 B.57
Prica Earnings Rsllo Bo 298 J
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Carlain statements under "Management Discussion & Analyaiz® describing the Comparny's
objectives, estimates, axpectations or predictiona may ba fersand looking staberraers within
the: meaning of applicable sacurities laws and requiations. Although the expectations are
baszed on ressonable assumpbons, he acual rescits could raterdally diffar from those
exprassedor implied, aince the Company's oparaticns are influenced by mary extémal factors
beyand the cantrod of the Compam Imdestors are caulioned that the Company assumes ng
responsbifity to publichy amend, medity, revies or updata any forwand looking statemant ar
cpirion, onthe beaie of amy subseguent developments, avants orinformation,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To,
Tha Membears of

M. B. I. Industrial Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Dpinion

We hava sudied the sccompanying financial slatements of KB B, L Industrisl Finance
Company Limited (tha Company'), which comgrise the Balance Sheet as at 31"March
2022 theStetamant of Profit and Losa (ncluding other comprahenalve incoma}, Statermant of
Changes in Equity and tha Statement of Cash Flows for Ihe year than ended and notes {o the
finandal statamants, incluting a summarny of the signifisart eccounting policies and other
explanatony informaton (haminadbar efarred k2 as “Financal Sialamsanis”).

In our opindon and to the best of our Informaticn and sccaeding 1o the explanations given to us,
iha ateresald financial stalements give tha indormation required by tha Cormpaniss Act, 2013
[Mbe Act”) in the menner 5o requirad end glve a true and fair view in confenmity with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) prescibed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (indian Accounting Slandards) Rules 2015, ae amandad, and ofher accounting
principes generaly eccapied in India, of he atme of abalre al the Company as at 31"March
2022, the profit and ciher comgrahensive mcoms, siatement of changas in equity and s cash
fows for the year ended an thal data,

Baelefor Opinkan

We canductad our sudit of the financial statements in accordance wish the Standards an
Auditing ["8As7) specified under Saction 143 {10) of tha Act, Our responsiadities undar thosa
SAs ara furher describad in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Flnancial
Statermerts section of our report, We are Independent of the Company In acsordance with tha
Coda of Ethice izaued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI") together
with this ethical requiremants that ans relavant to our audit of the financial Staterments under the
provisions of the Act and the Aules thersunder, and we have fulliled ous other ethical
reeponsibilflesin accordancs with thase requiramente and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the: audil evidence we have obtained 18 sullicient and appropeiam o provios a basls far owr
oplnkon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Confinued) 1

Key audit mattors

Wey auwdil mattars am hozs matiars that, in our proleealsnal judgment, were of imost
sigrificance in our awdiz o the finencial satarments of the current pariod, Thaee mater wers
addrasaad in the contesxt of our audit of the fnancial siabermends as a whiole, 2nd in farming our
opinion thereon, and we 92 not provide & separabe apinion on fese malfers. Wa have
daterined 18 maters described below 1o ba 1he bey aust mattens to be comemunicated in aur
raport.
Sr. matier
Br. The Kay audit

—_——

Auditor's Respanse

Valuation and Existance of Investments - Wa otained indepandent conlimafon of
the rumber of unds haid and nel assat
'We have foousad on the valustion and axdsiencs | value per onil Tor each of the mutual fund
of tha Invagtmants in Equéy, Prafarence Shares urﬂmmwfﬁmlgﬂm
and Mulus Funds because Ihese represerd a | veer-end debe, confirmation of shares
principal lemanl on (he net assals in the | And its market value.

S i¥ We have alsc obtained tha maost recant sat.
of financial m
Refar kiote & 1o 1ha Fnancisl 2asemsnis, wlmtlmnﬂf'“;ﬁ statemeants far

Infarmation Other than the Financial Statemants and Auditor's Report Thereon

Tha Company's manggamarnt and Board of Directors are rasponside forthe praparation of th
othar infornation. The ofher informaton obtaines at the data of this auditors mpart is tha
Diraciors raport but doas nold inchuce inancial statameants and olr audior's report tharmaon,

Cwer ppinion: on e linancial statemants does naf cover the other Inlormation and wa o not
express any fom of assuranos conclision thereon.

I conmaciion with our audit of the inancial stafarrents, our rasponsily 18 0 read the athar
Infarmstion and, in doing so, conaldoer whether Be other information iz maleriaty inconsistent
with the finantlal stalamants or ourenowlsdge sbtained inthe audi, orothecwise agpears to ba
materisy miestaban,

I£, bessd on the work we have performed, we conclude that thers i a material misslalemant of
this oiher infarmation, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing o report In this
regard.

Managemaent respons/biElty for the finencial statements

The Company's Managoment and Board of Directors are responsile Tor the matier staked in
Seotion 134(8) of ta Aot with regpest lo preparalion ol theas fnancial statements thel give &
s and fair view of the atate of aftaire, proft and other comprahansva incoma, changes in
aquity and cash ows of the Company in aceardance with indAS presarbed under sedtion 133
of the Act and ether sccounting prirciples genarally accapted in India. This responaibility also
ircludes malnienance of adequate sccounting recands in accondanca with tha provisions of the
Agt lor safeguarding of the a3sets of e Compeny and lor preventing and detecting lmuds
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IHDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORAT (Continued)

and ather Imegularities; selaction and appiication of approprate accounting policias; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonabée and prudent; and design, Imglementation and
maintenance of adequats intemal financlal corntnols that were oparating affectively for ensuring
jhi seeurcy and compieteness of the accountng records, ralavant te the preparation and
presaniabion of the finencial statemsents that give a rue and L&l vigw and are free from matanal
mieatatamant, whethar gue bo fraud or amaor,

in preparing the financial etatemants, managamsnt and tha Boand of Dirsabons are respansitla
for assassing the ability of the Compamy to confinus B8 a going concam, disclosing, as
applicabda, matters redatad to poing concem and using the going concam basiz of ascourting
unless managament eithar intende ko Souldate the Company or ta cease operations, of has no
raalistic stemative but to doso,

Board of Directors aré algo responsible for ovarsaeing the Company's Fnancial raporting
process.

Auditor's Aesponsibilities for the Audilof the Financial Statamants

Cuir ob|ectives are to oblaln reasonable assuance about whether linancial stalaments as a
whale are fres from meterial misztatament, whether due to fraud or emror, BRd o Bsie an
audor's report that Includes sur apinion, Aassonable assimncs 8 a high level af assuranca,
bt is not a guarantes that an swdl conducied i accordance with Sée will always dolect a
malarial misstatement when & exists, Misstaiements can arise from frawd or emar and ane
considered malarial if, individually or in the aggregate, they coud reasonably be expected 1o
nfleence iha aconomis docisions of users taken on the begis of Ihese lmancia statements.

As part ol an swdlt in accordance with SAs, we axercise professicnal dgment and maintain
professional skepticism thraughout the sudt. We also:

= |dentity and acgoss the risks of matarial mizstaternient of the financial statemants, whathar
dua to fraud af arrarn, design and perdonm audil proceduras respenshia to thoae rsks, and
obtaln audit evidence that (2 sufficlent and sppropnate io provide a besles for our oginion. Tho
riskof not detecting & material misstatermant resufting from Irmiud is highar than for ome resulting
from emor, as frawd may involva collusion, lorgery, inMentional omissions, misrapresantafions,
o the ovamida of intarmal aantral;

Qistain an undersiznaing of intamal conimil resevant to the audil in ander ke dasign audit
procedures thal are appropriate i the cioumstances. Under section 143(3)() o the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whsthar the
company has adequate inemal financiad controle systern with ralerence to the financial
statamants in place and the cperating affecivanass of such controds.

= Evaluate the sppropriateness of accounting polidas used and the reassnableness of
acgounding estmates and relaled dscioswes i the financial slafements mada by
manage me,
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Conclude on the appropriateness of menagemeant's wse of the going concam basis of
accounting and, basad on he auct svidance obiained, whether a mabtedal unceriainty
axists relatad o evants or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability tocontinue as a golng concam. I we concluda that a material uncerainty exigis, we
are required o diay attention in our auditors report to the relatad decosures in the
financial statermenis o, If such disclosuas are inadequate, fo medify our opinion. Cur
conehssions are based on theaudit evidence obiained ugto the-date of our audior's repoet,
Howavar, lufure events or condiions may causa the Company 10 céase 1o contingg #s &

going Gengem,

Evaluate the overall prasentation, structure and cantent of the financial statemens,
including the discisgures, and whathar the nancial statements reprasent the underying
iransactions and svents ina mannar thal achievag falr presamation.

Materiality is the magniuds of miasiaternents in the financisl statemants that, individually
of in gggregate, makes it probanie that the sconomic decisions of & reazonably knowladgeabie
ugar of the financial statemeants may be nfluanced. We consider guantitalive maleriatity and
qualitethve factors In () planning the scope of curaudit work and in evelsating the resulls of our
waork: and (7} o svaluate the efech of any idantiflad missiaterments in the financisl etatemeants

Wa communicate with those charged with governance rsgasdng among othar meftes,
e planned scope and timing of the audht and significant sudit findings, Includng any
gignificant deficlencies inintermal condrol that wa identify during our audit.

We also provide those changed with gevemance with & statement that we have complied
with relevant ethicel requiremants regarding independancs, and o communbcate with them all
redadionships and olher matiers that may reasonaky ba thought 1o baar on our indepandeanca,
andwhera apolicable, relaled safeguards.

From the maiters communioated with thoss changed with governance, we delaiminig thosa
matters that wore of most elgnifizance In the audit of the financal statements of 1he currem
parod and are therelore tha key audit mattons. We describe these mattars in our audtor's
repart uniess lsw or reguletion preciudes publio disclosurs aboul the matier or when, In
rodramaly Famn droumstancey, we delerming thata mater showld ot be commundcated in ouar
repot pecalss the Adverse consaquencas of doing a0 would rexsanably be expecied o
outwedgh the public mtarast banafs of such commuricalion.

Other Mattar

The figuree for the year anded 31" March 2027 are basad on the amnual financial
statements that were audited by the erstwhile auditors whase raport dated 18" June, 2021,
enpraased an unmadified cpinion. Our opinian is not modfied in respect of this matter. Qur
appointment as Statutory Audors wes approved by the shareholder on 27" January, 2022,
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT [Continued)

Reporton Other Legal and Regulstory Requiremaents

1. As required by the Companies (Auditer's Bapart) Ordar, 2020 ('the Oeded’) Esuad by the
Cantral Governmant of Indla in lerms of saction 143 (11) of the Act, we giva In the
“Annaxurs A", & slatament on the matisns spactfed in paragrache 3 and 4 of ths Ordar.

2. Asrdquired by Section 143(3) of tha Act, we repar thet:

Wa have aought and oblainad & the information and explanations which ta the
bist of our knowiedga and belief ware necessary forthe purposes of my audi,

I i opinlon, proper hooks of account 85 required by law heve baan kept by the
Company so fer a8 it appears from cur examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profl and Loss including Other
Cernprebersiva Income, the Statemant of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow
Etatemant dealt with by this Rleport ara in agressment with e books of soooun;

I our opinlon, he- alsresqd financlal stalemants comply wWith e ndian
Accounting Standards specified urder Secion 133 of the Aciread with Rukes
mede thenaundar.

On the basiz of tha writhsn reprosantations received from the directons as om 317
March 2022 laken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the direciors is
disqisalified &8 on 317 March 2022 from being appoinied as & dicactor in tanma of
Saction 184(2) of th Act

With respect to fhe adequacy of the internal financal santrale over financial
saporting of e Company and e operating effectivenass of such controls, refar to
our separais repord gheen In 'Anresure B, Our repon expressas an unmadified
opinion & ihe adequacy and operating effactivensss of the Compary's inamal
inancial cortrols ovar financlal reporting;

WWith respect 1o the other matters to be ncluged in the Auddor's Raport in
apcordance with the reguiremients of section 19716} ofthe Act. In our opinicn and
ta ihe best of our information &nd according 1o 1he axplanations ghven b us, the
remuneration pald iy the Company to |is diecions during the year s in accondance
with the provalons of saction 187 of the A<, and

With reapsct 16 the other mallers ko be incluged in the Auditors Report in
accasdance with Rule 11 of the Compandes (Audii and Auditors) Rulea, 2014, as
amendisd, in our oplnion and to tha beat of my information end according o tha
meplanations ghven fo us;

(60)

)



87th Annwal Repore 2021-21

N.B.L Industrial Finance Co. Lid.

CIN ; L65923WB1936PLC065596

ii;

Pariner

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Contlnued)

The Comgany has no pending litkgations which would imgact it financial paaliton
Inits standalone inancial statemants;

Tha Campany did nct haveany bong banm coftracts including darivativeconfracts
o which thare were any mataralforessenblo lnssas;

Thara has been no delay i fransfering amowns. required o he transferad, ta
tha Invesior Education and Protection Fund by tha Company during the year
andad 31" March, 2022.

A per the menagemeant represenelion provided, we ngport,

no funds havae bepn advanced orloanad orinested By the company bo orin any
other peraon(g) or enfitiea, including foreign enflias (Mintermadiaries”), with tha
understanding that the intermadiarea shal whather direclly or irdirecty land or
Iveast in othar parsone of enilies identilied in any manmer by or on behalf af tha
company (Utimate Benaficianes| o provide any guaranies, security af tha ke
an behal of ultimate beneficiarias

rier funds have been received by the company from any personiz} or entifies
including ferelgn enfitizs *Funding Pariae”) with the understanding that such
company shall whethar, dinectly or indirectly, land or irvast in ather persons or
entiies ientified in any manner wheisoaver by or on behat! of the funding party
[uftimate benefciaries) or provide guarantes, seclrny or the (ike on bahalf of e
Uttirate banaficlariss,

Based on the audl procadures parfarmad, we report that nofhing has come to
out notice that bas capsed ua 1o believe thal the rapresentailong given by
managemant under the sbove sub-clauses contain amy material mis-statamant,

Az per the reconds of tho Sompany no dividend has been declarad or paid during
trg yiar

For Chaburvad] & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Ragistration: 302137E

Hilima Joshi

Mambarehip Ne, 52122
UDIN 22052122 AISFZBO326

Place - Kolkata
Cate 07052022

)
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPOAT (Continued)

Annexure-'A" io the Indepandent Auditor’s Raport for the year
ended 31" March 2022

[Faferad toin paa 1 of the heedng 'Papart on other legal #nd ragulatony requiraments’ of

our repor]

i {alA) The Company i malrtaining proper reconds showing full particulars, including

guantitntive datails and situssion of propesty, plant & Equipmant.

(B} The comgsany has no ntangile assets, hsnce para 3{){a)(Bia of the Ordar Is not

applicable o fu Company,

Acearding 1o the infarmation and explenetion gven §o we and on the basis of our
examination of tha records of tha company, 1he Company lues & regular programme
of physical vardfication of iz Propery, Plant and Equipmant by which all Property,
Prant and Egulpameant aré vorified every year, in accordancs wilh this programim,
al the Prepedty, Plant and Equipment have been physicaly verfled by the
miznagement duiing tha year and na material discrapancios have been noticad on
guch ‘warficatior. In our opinion, this pedodiclty of physical vedfication e
reasonabie having regard fo the size of the Company and the natuneof iz assats,

The Compary doss nothave any immovables properies. Accardingly, pare 3{0(c) of
the Crderig net appicable o the Company,

According 1o the information and explanabons given to us ard on the basts of our
exarmingtion of the records of the Company, the Company hae not revalued ila
Property, plant and equipmant {inciuding Right-cf-u=a assets) or Inlengible assets
arbath during the year.

In our opinion and accoeding to the information and explanations given 1o us, thara
are rex proceedings (nitated or ana panding againg the Company Tor hodding any
benami propedty undear the Benami Transections (Frokibitlon) Act, 1508 and nifag
madea tharaundar,

The Company hag na inventons hance pare 3(i){a) of the Ordar is mot apploabie to
the Comparmy.

According 10 1he Information and explanations gyven o us, the Company has not
baen sanclloned working capltal imils inexcess of Hva crore nepess at any paint of
tirme of the yesr In aggragete, irom banks or linancial institutions on the basis of
aseuty of currant assats. Accordingly, the reguirement to report on para 3(1ljib) of
the Oedaris notapplicabie totha Company.

dccording b the inlomnation and explarations ghvan to us and hasad on the audit
procadures pedarmed by us, we are of the apinion that since the company s n the
Buslness of making imvestments including granting loana in the narmal cowse of it

N
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{ix} {a}

fvil] (2}  Agcording to the infarmation and explenations givan o us and an tha basls of our

—

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT (Continusd)

buginess and further, as if has not provided any guaraniess or securlty to
companias, lrmas, limited liabllity partnanshis or eny othar parties, the provisions of
paragraph 3{Eja) to if) or the Ordar ere not appiicabla.

Ancording 1o the Inforsation and axpianations given to ua and hassd on the awdi
procedunes parformed by us, the Gompany being a Mon-banking Finance
company, provisions of saclion188 and 186 of the Al i not applicable. Thus
paragraph 3ihv)of the Crderla notapplicabls,

Acoording t¢ the informaticn and swplanations ghean to us and tased on the aodit
procadures parformed by us, the Company has not accegled any depasita from the
putiic during thie wear fo which the directives Bsued by the Resarse Bank of Indla
and the provisions of SectlonaT™ o TE or any other frelevant provisiors of ihe Act
and the rules famed thereunder apply. Thus paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable tothe Company.

Acoording tothe infermation and explenations given to us the Ceniral Governmeant
hias nol presoribed the mainisnance ol cost recorde under eub seotion (1) of ssction
148 of the Act for any af the sanices renderad by the Company Thus peragragh
Sivl) of the Order is not applicable.

examination of records of the Company, In respect of amounis daducied /faccrued
in the books of account, the Company is regular In depositing undispuied statutary
dues including Goods ond Sorvices Taex, provideni lund, emplopdes’ siete
ingurance, inzome-tax, soles-tax, service tax, duty of customa, duty of excise, value
added tax, ceas and any athes slatutony dues, as applioablo to the Company, g
tha year with the appropriate authonfes, There ere no undispuied statutory dues
pavable in respect of sbove statues oulslanding aa &1 311 Manch 2022 for a period
of more than six months fram the date thay became payabla,

Apcording %o infarmation end explanations given 10 us and on tha basis of our
pwamination of the records of the Company, thera areno dues of income tax, Goods
& servica Bx, cess eic which hawve nol bean deposited as at 31 Manch, 2022 on
accownd afany dspule

Accarding to inlormation and explanation given o us ard on the basls ol our
sxamination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrandered of
disclosed any trensaction, praviously unrecarded in the booke of account, in thetax
assesaments wundar fhe Income Tax Act, 1561 85 Income dunng tha year
Asoordingly, the fequiramant to report on para 3wl of tha Onder is ot applicebls o
1 Cormpany

According 1o the information and explonations given 1o 1= and based on the E6
procedurss perlormed by um, tha Carrgany doea not have any loan or cther
barrawing, hence there ik na equiremant to report undar dassa {b){a} of the Drder,
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B} According to the information and éxplanstions ghian i us and based on the audil

(e}

()

(&)

) )

{b)

ia}

i

[{=t

proceduras parfermed by us, the Campany has not been declamd will ful defautier
by amy bank arfinancial institution or othar iendar,

The company has not raised sy funds by way of t2rm boan, hance para 3{lx){c) o
the Ortar is nol appicacie to e Compsany.

Ag o fundz have beaf raised during the yaar, hbenos no reponling is reguiced undor
para3(ix)(d) of the Order.

According to the informetion and explanations ghven o us and on an overal
meaminstion of the lnanciel sietements of the Company, we repor that the
Company ¢oes not haue Aty subsidiary, asecciate of joint venture, Accordingly, the
requirament ko report on paragragh 3(ix) (e} and if) of the Cndar are nod applicabts to
the Company.

Azcording b e indsrmation and explanation ghan 1o us and based on ha aodi
procaduras parformed by Us. the Company has nat raised any manay during tha
year by wey of further public ofter (Including debt instrumental. Herce reparting
unear giauss (x)a) of the Ordier is not applizable 1o the Company.

Accarding o the information and explanalions given 1o us and on the bazis of our
axamination of tha records of the Company, the Gomgany has not made any
preferantinl allotmant or private plasameont of shares of commericis debentures
during the year. Hanca reparting undar paragraph 3ixi(b} of tha Ordes la nol
applicabla o tha Compary,

Based on the examination of tha books end records of the Company and asconding
to the informaticn and explanation givan o us, considesing the principies of
materiality oullingd in e Standands on Auiting, we repost that no fraud by thi
Ciompany or on thé Company has baen noflced or reportad during the coures of
audit.

According to the information and ecplanstiong given 1o u£, no raport under sub-
seclion (12] of secticn 143 of the Companies Act, 201 3 has bean fed in Form ADT-
4 a5 prescrbed under Rule 12 of Compenies (AW and Auditors) Aules. 2014 with
the Cenmal Govammant, during $he vearand up to the dateofthis repon

Acearding to the informalion and explanation gven 1o Ug, there were no whists
blower complaints recabved by ihis Campany during lhe year while determining te
natura, ming ands estart of our sudit procadurss,

Agoanging i the Infermation and explanations given to us. the Company s nat 8
Midhi Company. Accordingdy, cause (i) of the Order s not applicable.

According B0 e Information ano explangtion ghivan to u= and based on the aodit
proocdures performed by us, transactions with the related paries are in
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

compliance with saction 177 and 188 of tha Act where applicabla ard [he detaiis
have besn disciosed in the inancial statamants, as required by the appliicable
accounting standards,

In our apinian the Gompany has an adequate infemal audit system commensurts
with fhe size and (he neture ol #s biusiness and report of the Intenal Auditors have
baen congidened by us.

¥ cur cpinion and aceording to the informatlion and explanation ghean 1o us, e
Company hes nol antered into any non-cash fransactions with it diractars o
persans connected to lis directors and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of tha
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable othe Comparny.

Tha Company has obfained registration undar Section 4544 of tre Reaerve Bank o
frwia Act, 1654,

Acconding o the information and expianabion given to us and based on the audit
procedures parformed by us, the Company has not condusted amy Mon-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activiies without a walid Certificate of Registration
{COR) froen the Reserve Bank of India as per the Aesenve Bank of India Act, 1534,
Henée reporting undar paragraph 3o} of ihe Crder s nod applicable.

The Company is not o Cors mvestment Company (GIC) as defined in Fw
ragulations made by the Raserve Bank of india, Hence reporing urder paragraph
Afxvile) of ¥wa Orderls not applicable.

Accomding 10 he mlormaton and asplanation ghen to us, none of the group
companies ane CIC and hance repoding under paragraph 30od)(d) of tha Order ls
nalapplicakle.

The Company has not incerred any cash losaas i the linancal year ard in tha
immeafiataly preced|ng fnanclel year,

According o the information and explanation given o us, durng the year, the
outgeing auditor has given thelr resignation pursuant o guidelines igsued by
Aeserve Bank of Indla for appoimment of Stafulory central awditors (S0A')
fStatutory audiiors (SA's) of commensial bank (excluding AAB's), UCB and NBFC's
{moluding HFGC) dated 27" of Aprll, 2021 end no objections, kBsues or concerms
ware raiaed by the auigoing auditer,

Aooarding fo the Information and esplanation given 1o us and on the basis of tha
finencial rafics, ageing and expecied dates of resllsalion of financial assels and
payment af fnanciel Uebiflies. other Flommation accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examication of the evidends supporing he assumplions, nothing has
COrm to oUr attenlion, which causes Us 1o believe thal avy matarial ungertainty eulafs
as on the date of the audlt repon that the company is not capable of meeting

T
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i85 liabilities axisling &t tha data of balance sheel as and when they fal dus withina
pariod of one year from the balance sheel date, \Wa furthar state that this is not an
assurance as o the (utwre vigbdsy of tha Company. We furher state that ol
raporting le Based en the fncts up to the date of furaudit report and we naiiee give
any guarantae nor any aaguranons that all iabiltbos tallhg dus within a peried of ane
waar fram the balance shial date, will ged discharged by thia Company as and whan
thay falldue.

) In our opinign and accondng to the infiormatlion and axplanation given 1o us, with
respec (o obligations undar Coponate social responebiity (TSR, the company &
nof requirad fo spend sowards GSR based on gritaria as specilied under section
13445} of the act durng the year and thare ara no such ongeing projects Bnd
unspent amount ratiled io i, henca no reporing (s required to ba repored undar
theclause () (a) and (ke(b) of the-order.

[xxi) Tha preparation of consolidabed financial stalaments i not apphcable to the
Company. Hence reporting under parsgraph [od) of the Order is not applicatla to
the Comgany.

For Chaturvedi & Ca.
Chartered Acoountants
Firm Registration: 302137E

Milima Joshl

Parinar

Membership Mo. 52182

UDIN : 22052122A18F7B9328

Plaze : Kolkata
Date - 07052022
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Annexura B to the independant Auditor's Report

Report on the Intarnal Financisl Controde under Clauss (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 ofthe Companies Act, 201 3 (“the Acl™)

[Referred to in para 2if) of tha heading "Repan on oiher lagal and rogulatory requirements’
al our report]

Opinlen

Wa nave awdited the intdmal financial controls over finencial reporting of N. B. |, Industrial
Finanee Co. Limited {'the Company') as of 31" March 2022 In sorjunction with our auditof the
Enanilal atatemants of the Company forthe year than ended.

in our epindon, the Cempany bas, inoall materdal respects, an adaguate intamal firencial
controiz systam ovar financial repoting and such Indernal financlal controls over fmancal
maparfing were oparating sffecthvely as a1 31" March 2022, based on the Imemal condral ower
fiwancial raporting critaria establishad by the Company considenng the essential components
of intemal control stated In the Geidencs Mole on Audit o Intemnal Finanzlal Cantrols Ovar
Financial Aeporing issused by the Inafitule of Charersd Accountands of India (the "Guidence
Mote"},

Management's and Board of Directors’ Aesponsibility for Intermal Financial Controls

The Gompany's management and Board of Cirectors &re responsible for establishing and
maintaig intemal firancial contrals based on the ntamal control over financial reparing
criteria egtablshed by the Company considering the essental companerts of iamal condil
atated i the Guidance Note. These responsibiites include the deslgn, implementatian and
maindenanca of adaguate intamal finarcial controls thal wers oparating etfaciively lor ansuming
the ardarly and affciert condud of s businass, including adherence to company's policies,
tha safaguarding of ite aesets, the prevanilon ard detection af fraasds and armoes, e accuracy
and complabaiess of the accaunting records, and the timaly preparation ol rekabie financisl
irdormation, s requinad Undaerthe Aot

Auditors’ Responsibifly

Our responsibility iz 1o express an opindon an the Company's intemal financial conirals owar
financisl reporting based on cur audil, We canducied our eudd in secordance with the
Gubdancs Mota on Audit of irtemal FAinancial Contrals Cver Financizl Reporting the "Guidancs
Mote') and the Standards on Auditing, issuad by ICAl and deamed o ba prescribed undar
section 143010} of the Act, to the extant applicabls 16 an awdi of intermal financlal controks.
Thesa Btardands and the Guidancs Note raquire fat we comply wilh ethical requrements and
plen and pedarm the sudi fo obialn ressonable assurence about whather adeguate intame
financial controle sver financial rapering was estabished and malrtained ard if such comrols

openated effectively in sl rmaterial respsects.

_
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O mudi involves performing proceduses 1o oblain audit evidence about the adequecy of the
intarnal financial controle syelom aver financial reporing and thoir operaling effaclivensss.
Our audit of intemnal financial comirole ovar financial reporting Included obtaining an
undamstanding of internal financhal conirols ovar financial reporting, Beaessng ths riak hat &
matorial weakness exisits, and testing and avaluating tha design and cperating effectivenass of
intermal control based on the assessed fsk. The procedures sélactad depend on the auditar's
judgmend, incliding the assessmant of the risks of matarial misstetement of the financal
atatemeants, whather dus 1o fraud or anar.

e ballove that the audlt evidence we have chigned g sulliciant and appropriaie to provide a
basss Far our audi opinion an the Gompeny's intemal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Aeparting

A company’s intemal inancial contral over financal reporting I8 a process designed to provide
reasonable assurancd regarding the refiabllity of financil reporting and the praparafion of
firsanciel staterments lor exlamal purposes in acolrdance with penarally accented accounting
principlas. A cormpany'a internal financial control over financial reporting Ncledes those
policlas and proceduras that (1) pertain 10 e maintenance of records that, in reescnable
datall, accurately and fairy refloct the transactions end dspositions of the asseis of the
company; (2) provide reasonebls assurance thal trensactions ang recorded as nacessary to
panmit preparation of financial etatements in aceordance with ganarally actapiad accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are Deing mede only i
accondance with authorzations of managemsnt and dinectiors ofthe Comparny; and (3} provide
reasonable assurance mgardng prevention or imaly detecilon of unpuihorized acquisition,
use, or dispastion of the Company's assets that could have a material efect on B financal
statemanta.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financkal Reporting

Becausa of the inherent limitations of Intemai financial controls over fnancial repording,
Inciuding the posedhiity of colluson or Impreper management override of controls, matadal
mEsstatements dup Io eror or fraud may cccur and not be detectad. Alss, projections of any
evaluation of the intamal financlal cortnals over financiel reporting i future parods are subject
b the rigk that the irtarmal financial gontrgl over linancial reporting may besome Inadeguate
because of changas in conditions, or that the degrea of eomplisnce with tha paliclas ar
procedures may dataiomie,

For Chaturved! & Co.
Ghartared Accountanis
Firm Raglstmtion: 302137E

Hillma Joshi

Partrar

Memioership No. 52122

LIDIM 22062122 AMEFZBO326

Flace : Kolkala
k Ddn (OTMER002
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022
|All asnoumin in B, laos, unloss csharsiss siatsd)
Particulars Mok As at Hst AR A 31a
March, 2022 hdarnch, 2021
A ASSETS
1 Finanzial Assats
) Cashand Gash Equivaiants 4 B10.20 A dmass
(b Bank Salance pther than cagh and cash oguhaiprs B 153 s B
(¢ Imeastmenis =) 210,533.43 e SraTe
(& Ciher Finencial Asgals ¥ 17.56 BEA1
TOTAL 220,162.81 268, 30041
] Kon-Financlal Aassis
{a}] Cumant Tax Assate (Met) E 40,56 60.08
B} Propady, Plonl & Eguipmerd E oir naz
{g] Othar-Non Flinancly Assats b1v 0.4 4.7
TOTAL 4160 B5.7E
TOTAL - ASSETS ZM20481 26645517
B LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 LEnkifitian
Finanekal LEsklinles
a) Poyables
Trade Payables 11
i Totl ootstandisg Suwes of micrg éntempdises and small
mleprises
iy Totel outstending dums of eradiloes other than micro
orierprises end small antapeises 1.04 -
bl OMher Financhal LEabiliies 12 B.T0 6.52
2 Hon-Financial Latilities
(a) Prowiskons 13 53.53 8522
M) Dafered Tax Lishilty (M) 14 5, 2B0.03 1227108
fm]  Sihar Mor-Financiad Linbilitas 18 4.18 147
TOTAL &.351 .96 12,335,749
Equity
{#} Sharm Capial 16 122.84 122,84
{h] Osher Equity 17 213,730.41 25356654
Total P E‘Iﬂ.ﬂ #.Ellﬂl.u
TOTAL ECHUITY ILITIES 220, 204.51 17
Tha accompanying nolis s an integmal part of the fingncial statemans. AR
Inv barrie of o
Far Chaturvesd] § Con
Chartemd Accountanis
Firm Feegisiragon Mo. 302137E
& L. Oaggsr T. K. Bhottacharys
Milbma Joshd EIIHTIHDHE:I ﬂﬂm
Porar 0711865
Mambership ho. 052122
Flace : Kokala 5, P Kumar Sudha Jain
t Date; Tih May 2022 Marigger & CFO Compasy Sacralary
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

Fariculars Noio Asal 3isl g ol 3st
March, 2022  Mamh, 2021
Revenus froam Operations
{m) interasl ncome 18 £3.37 41.74
by Dividand Income T8 1,068 T8 14718
fg} Mt GEin an Fel Vaile Chandas 20 a4.02 2708
1 Tolad Revanue from cpertions 122612 215.99
I Other Imcoms 21 212 091
I Totfal incoma (1) 1,238.24 21600
Expanses
(@) Employes Benaffl aipanses 22 2240 a0
i} Dapreciation, Amarisatisn and Impairment ] o4 0.44
fe] Ofher Expanses 21 5068 40585
IV Total Expensss 138,43 11804
¥ Profitiloss) before Tax jili-V) 1,081 Br.ad
WVl Tax Expensa 24
(B Gumee Tex fra L &
i)  Dwferred Tax z8.09 (63 36)
254,15 (338
Wil ProfitiLess] for the Yesr Ted48 161,35
Wil Diner Comprabenslve ncoms
i Bemo that wdl not be redssalfed o Profti{Lose)
{is} Exquity Insruments through OC 28 (46,007.68) 104 400,62
{b} Too mpacts on above 808848  (12,330.78)
(i Earne thal will be reclessified lo ProfittLoss)
i} Dol Instrumants throusgh 003 24 4.3 115:12
b} Fan imamcts an ahaywe 9.35 BN
Oiner Comprabanstva Incoma fior tha year (1 + 11 (4. B78.09) B2 266,84
B Tolsl Comprahsnslve Incoma far the Yoar (V+V1) (410,184.51) 03 438,23
¥ Eamings par aqulty shara (FV Fs. 5~ each)
Basic & Ollutsd (Fs.) 6 52,04 B.67

The accompanying notes e on inlegral part of the firencil stalemants.
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Cash Flow Statement! for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(Al mmouns in RE. Ines, unless offierwiis sosied)

Patikars Ag ot ol hE &1 3181
Margh, 2022 Forah, 2021
&, Cash Flow Froem D Mctiwitog
Bl Prodi mn:‘""ﬂ 108881 ar.a4
Adjustmants for -
Deprociacion Qs iy
Ml Ganon Far Veiue Changes {68,025 {2T.05)
Lishikties nolorges reguined wrillen back (1485 ::
imarest incemna on irvessman=-FyTOC -
§ (8. 58
Opnrating Profii(Losa) befare working Capitsl Charges ; THAD
Adstmants for ;
(IncremseWDacreanss in Ciher Financial Assats 37.546 {21.36)
{Incresse)Decmass iy Cther Mon-Financial Assels 402 [3.23)
Incrapsa | (Decreasa) in Trade Payable 104 .
Iineraasa § (Docmace) in Other Financial Labiilss 023 [2.41)
Incraasa /| Decreasa) In Pravision (1.79) 655
Incrapsa /i Decreass) in unpaid damed dyidend aocount 0,083 -
incraasa i Deorsase) in Cibar Nan=Fndncal Lisbdilies &8 1.249
44.18 E'IE.'I ’j
Cash Genarated fom Operadons 1,035.8 5.3
Met Income Tax [PaidiRekind -] E_J' IEI-I'|
HNET CASH FROM/(LISED IN) OFERATENG ACTIVITIES [A) ;
B, Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of , Plant & rrvral - {0}
Ell--ufmdum . 66149 53007
Purchags af Mutual Funds - =
Purchass ol Shiwes {5.906.00) (1,120.07]
Bale of Ehams B63.EB 3062 0T
Redempbion of prelerence shane 14036 2436
RealEaton of Rued IT0.00 =
MET CASH FROMYLUSED IM) INVESTING ACTIVITIES [B) {3,B68.47) 362850
£. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
NET CAEH FROM (LUSED M) FINAKSING ASTIITIES (C)
NET WCREASENDECREASE) IN CA8H & CasH
EQUIVALENTS [(A+24+2) 13,078 38} 3,630.61
Cash and Cash Equilvalects o the baginning af the Year __:ﬁgﬁ T4
Cash mnd Cash Eguivalosds of the and of thi Year I LR
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Statement of Change In Equity for the year ended 31sf March, 2022
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HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 20322

. Basisaf Preparation of Finenclal Stetemants

Corporate infarmaiion

M.B.I. industrial Finance Company Limited {“the Compiany™} s & public company limted by
sharas, incoaposated on 21t Decamipar, 1836 and domiciled in india. lis shares ara latad
on tha Mational Stock Exchange (MNSE), The Gompany |s camying on business as a "Mone-
Banking Financial Gompany” (NBFC). The Comparny is engaged malnly In investment in
ghares In securiies & financial activity. The Company is registered with Resarde Bank of
India as MBFC, Tha Company's registered oice 5 21, Strand Road Kolkata= 700 001,

The financial statemerts of the Compary 4s on 375t Manch, 2022 wera aparovad and
authesiaad forlssue by the Board of Dimctors on 7ih Mey, 2022.

Siatement of compliance

Tha linancial stelemenis have bean prepared in accondancs with ndian Accounting
Standards (Ind A5) notifed under saction 133 resd with 1he Gompenies (Indien Accounting
Swniiards) Fubes, 2015, as amended from fima to tima, and other provisions of the
Compariles Act, 2013 ("the Act").

Basis of Maasurement

The linancial sietemenis heve bean prepared on historcal cost convertion and on an
ancrua] mathod of |:|.-|:.~|;a¢:¢||,:|rl.lIrl-lI l::mﬁFﬂ' for cartain finasaial aassls and llabllibes that ana
raasured at fai valia’ armodised cost as eplained inthe aczounting policies belaw,

Functansl and Prasantation Currancy

Tha finencial statemants ahe prasanted in Indian Aupeas (INR) which | aleo s functional
ciirrancy and praseniatien curroncy. All amounts have been dencminatad in laca and
rounded of fothe nenrest fwa decimals, sxeapt wihaon otherwise indicated,

SIGHIRACANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Finanalal Instrumants

Afinancial instrumnent is any confract il glves rise 1o a linancial asset of one enfity and a
financial Hability of egquity instrument of anctheraniity.

Financkal Assats -
Recogniticn And Inltal Measuneenan

Al finencial azsats are racognised nitially at tair value plus, in the case of finencial esests
nel recerded at fair value through prodit or less, rarsaction costs that are alirbutabée to the
acnuistion of thafinancial assat. Transaction cosle dirsctly altributakie to tha soquisition of
fmanciel assets at falr velue through peofit or losas are recognised mmedistely in the
Statemant of ProfitandLoss,
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#  Classification and Subsaguant Maasiums e
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets ara classified in four
catagaorias:
Debtinstrumants at Amortized Cost
Debt Instrumanis at Fair Valus Through Osher Comprenansive Incorme (FVOCH);
Debt instrumenisat Fair Velue Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and
Equity lstnements measuréd of Fair Valie Through Other Comprahensive Incomea
(FYOCH),.

Financial assets ara nol reciassified subsaquen 1o their nitiel recognition, axceps if and in
the pericd Ba Company changes its businass model ler managing financial assats,

o Dabt Ingtrermenta at Amorized Cost: Adebt Insfrumant is measured at tha amortizad cost i
both the following condtions aremet;
Tha assat is hald wikhin a businass modal whose objective =5 1o hold assals for collecting
coniraciual cashilows; and
The contractual tarms of the Snanclal asset give rise on specifiad datas 1o cash liows that
ara solaly payments ol principal and inferest (SPPI} on thaprncipal amaounl outstandng

Afar inilial measuramant, such fmancial assads ars subsaneantly maasuned at amorizsd
cost using the sffectve Interest rata{EIR) malhod.

o Dabt instrumants al FYOGCT A debl instrurmand is measursd at tha FUYOC] # both of ha
following conditions sre met:
Tha objectiva of the buainess modal s acndaved by collecting contractual eaah flowe and
galling tha financial assets; and
The assel's contractualcash Bows represent 3PP,

Cebt instruments meeting hese criigiles ae reasuradinitially @t fer il plus ersecion
cogls, They are subsequantly measured ai dalr value with any geins or Iosaes ansing on
rameaswramant recognized in Other Comprahansie incoma, Howaver, the Inbarest
incorme, losses & reversals, and foraign exchange gains and iossas ane recognisad in the
Statemant of Frofit and Loss. Interest ceiculsted using the EIR (Effactive Rate Intsrast)
mathad is recognized in the Statemantof Profit and Loss as investmant incoma.

o Measured at FYTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for dabt ingtruments. Any cebt
instrument, which does not maet Ihe criteria for categorizalion ss amortized cost or as
FVYOCL, Is claseified ag FVTPL, In addition, the Company may elect to designate & delbt
instrument, which cthenwisse meals amortized oost or FVOC! crteria, a2 FYTPL. Debt
nstruments Included within the FVTPL cxtegory ane maasured at lair value with all
chenges recognizedin e Statement of Prafil and Loss,
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Equity Instumants messured & FVOCH: Al equity investments in scope of ind AB - 109
ara mesaurad at {air value. Equly nstrumanta which arg, held fortrading are classifed as
FVTPL. For all othar oty insfrumants, the Company may miake an imevocable elecionto
presant i Othar Comprebenale Incoms subseguent changes in the fair valua. The
Company makas such alection on an instrumanit-by instrurmant besle. The classxlicabion is
maada an initial recognition and is imevecable. In case the Cormpany decides to classily an
aquity instrumeantas FYOCL then all fair value changes on the instrument are recogrized In
tha Othar Comprehensive income. Theng is no reclassification of the amounts from Cthar
Comprahangive Income to poodit or logs, even on sale of investment. Dividands on
invesimenits ara credited to profit orloss.

Eqiny investimants: Investments in subsidlaries, asgociates and joint ventures ana
carried et eogtless accumulated impairment, [ any.

b "
Tie Company derecognizes a inancial asset on trade date only when e contractual
rights to the cash fiows from the assef explre, or when { iransfers the financal ssset
and substantially al the risks and rewards of owrarship of the &sast to another enilty.

impeimment of Fnamncial Assels

The Company assesses al tha end of the reporting peniod whather a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. ind AS ~ 109 requires expected credit iossas to
bo measured through a loas allowance, The Company recogniess ifetime expectad
lcsses for all contract assets and’ or all Irade receivables that do not constilule &
financing transaction. For all other financial assels, expected credil losses are
measunad at an amount aqual to the 12 menth expectad cradit Icsees or at &n amount
equal to tha Ife lime expectad credil losses if the credit risk on the financial assat has
Incraasad significantly since initlal recognislon.

(il} FinancialLiabiitles
= HAecognilien And inffral Measurement

Financial Aabilites are inldally measured at falr vabkue. All financial lisbiliiles are
recogniead initially at fairvalue and, In the caze of inanclal llabiities at emortissd coet,
nat of dirsctly attributabla tranzaciion costs.

The Company’s Fnenslal llabiitles include ride and olher pavables.

Suhsagueant Measursman]
Financlal lakilites ara maazumd subzequantly &t amortized cost or FYTPL,

Afinancial BabilRy is classified as FYTPL if |t is classiiied as held for-treding, oril is &

h
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dedvative or i |s dasignated as such on mitial recognition, Financial liabiltas at
FVTPL are measurad at fair value and not gaine and lases, including any intecast

axpansg, ans roogrized in profl orloses.

After Initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings aro subsequently
measurad st amortiesd cost uslng tha EIR (Efective Rate [rterest) method. Gaing and
logsee ara recognised in proft or logs whan tha liabilifies arm deracognised as well as
through the EIR (Effective Rate Intorost) amenisation process. Amortised cost Is
caloulated by taking inte acesunt any discount or premium on acoutaition and fees or
eosts that are an infegral par of the EIR. The EIR amorisalion is included as finance
cogts in profit or loss.

¥ Derepognilion

Afinancial llabifty le derecegnized whan the obligation under the Rability s discharged
or canselled or expires, When an exiating finandal liability is replaced by ancther from
the sama lender on substantizlly different terms, or the terms of an exlsting labiily sme
substantielly modified, such an emchange or modification I8 ireated as the
derecognition of the original Eablity and the recognition of & new liabiity, The
differance in ihe respecihve carrylng amounis |5 recognised In the statemment of prodi
ar oss,

*  Offseifing Financial instruments
Finangial assets and fabiities are offset and the net amount reporied in the Balance
Sheet when there is a legally enlorceable right to offeat the recognized amounts and
thare ia an intention 1o setia on a net basis or realize he assal and sette the lisbility
simultaneously. The legally anforcaabie right must not be contingant on futura evants
and must be enforcaabbe in ihe normal course of buginess and in the event of default,
insthvency or bankruptcy of the countempany.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash egquivalont comprise cash al banks and on hand, tem deposits with
arlginal maiurity of less than three monihs, which are subject to insignificant risk of
ehanges in valuas:

3.3 Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expanses directly attibutable 1o bringing
the asset to s working condslion for its intended usa) less aceumulaied depreciation
and impairment losses, If any. Cost comprisas the purchase price and any
attribigablecost of bringing ke asset to its working condition for its intendad wsa.
Subseguent expendiiure refalad 1o PPE is capitalised ondy whan It Is probabile fhat
future economic benefis associaiadwith theee will fiow to the Company end the cosl of
tarm can be measured reliably. Other repaire and malntenance costs are expansad off
a5 andwhen incurned.

k
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Advances paid towards the ecquisition of PPE, autstanding al each reporting date are
shown undear céher non-inancial assels. The cost of proparty, plant and equipment nat
raady for iis Intended use af each reporing date are disslosed as capital work-n-
prograss,

Subsequent expendilura refatad io the assei are addad o ts camying amount or
recognised as a separate asset onty # it incresses the fulure bonoMs of tha existing
assat, beyond s previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be
measurad rellably. Other repairs and maintenance costs ara axpensed off &3 and whan
Ingiirred.

Property plant and equipmend is demcogrised on disposal or whan no future economic
barcfis are oxpacted from He use, Any gain or lass arging on dereocognition of the
assst (calculated as the differsnce belwaan the net disposal proceede and the carrying
amouwnt of the assat) is racognised in cther incoma / expanas in the sialarmant of profit
and loss in the year the essetis derecognised.

3.4 Depreciation

Depreciation on Propady, Plant and Eguipment i provided on writtan down value
methiod (WD) to write down thair rasidual valuss ower thelr estimeted usaful like
specified in Schedule Il of the Companias Aet, 2013

Tha residual values, wseful lives and methods of depraciaton of propary, plant and
equipment are reviewed al sach financial year end and adjusted prospecthaly, 1F
appropriate. Changes in the expected useful e are accountad for by changing the
amortsation pariod or mathodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
RGCOUNting sstimates.

3.5 impakrment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses ateach reporing date to datermins i thare is any indication of
impairnent, based on intemel'extarnal fectors. if any such Indication exists. then an
impairment review |8 undarizken and the mecoverable amount is calkculated as the
Pighuer of falr valua kass costs of dispose] and he assel's value n Use,

3.6. Employes Benelits Expenses

3.6.1. Short Term Employes Banafits
The undiscourted amount of shom-term emploves banalits axpactad fo ba paid in
axchange for the seevices rendered by amployess are recognizsed durlng the vear
whan the employees render the senvice. These benelits incleda parformance incentive

and compensatad absances, which are expected o ccour within twelve months after
wigand of the period in which the smployes randors tha related service,

4.6.2. Defined contribution schemes

A defined confributlon plan & a post-employment beneft plan undar which the
Company pays speciited monthly contributions t¢ Provident Fund. The Company's
contribution |5 recognized as en expeneain tha Statement of Profit and Loss during the
pariod in whish (he employes randars the relaied senvice.

A.7.Taxes
Incometas expanse reprasents the sumof curnnt 12y and defamed tax,
3,71 Current Tax

X Tha cumant tax I6 based an taxable profit for the year undar the Incorma Tax Act, 1964,
&
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Cumant fax assets and llabiities are measured at the amount expected 1o ba
recoverad fram or paid ko the taxation authorities, based ontax rebes and lews that are
enactad or substanthvely anaclad al tha Balance Sheat data.

3.72 Defarredtax

Defarred tax Is recognized on all temporary differences betwesn the tax bases of
aszals and liabilifies and their carrying amounts In the Campany's financial
statemants exceptwhen the deferred tax arisss from the inikial recognition of goodwill
ar Initial recognition of an asset or Bability in a fransaction that 15 not @ business
combination and affects naither the accounting nor taxabie profits of kes at the tme of
transaction.Deferred {ax assets and liabilities are measurad al the tax rales thal are
expected 1o apply in the period in which the liability |s zettled or the asset realised,
based on tax ratas (and tax laws) that hava bean enacted of substantively enacted by
1he Balance Sheet dale.

Daterred tAx assels 458 recognized for deductible temporary differences, e carnry
farward of unused tax credits and unuzed tex losses to the extent it ks probable that
future taxable profils will be avallable agakrst which the deductible temporary
difierence, the carry forward of enused lax credits and unused lax loeses can ba
utfisad

The carryng amcunt of deferred fax aseets (including MAT cradit availatia) is
reviewad at pach reporfing date and ix sdjusted o the extent that & i= no longer
profable fhal siffcient taxable profits will ba avaitablato allow all or part of the assét to
ba recoverad.

Deferred tax asseta and liabdities are offsat whean thoy relate 1o income taxes levied by
the same faxation authority and the Company intends fo sattie fds curenl tax assets
and lablitesona netbasia.

Minimum Albernate Tax credil is recognised as detarmed tax asset only when and io the
atent there is convinging evidence that the Company will pay narmal Income {ax
during the spacifiad pariod. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
the carrying amount of the MAT cradit assed is wriltan down 1o the: sxiant there ks no
longer convinging evidence 10 the effect that the Company will pay nosmal o jax
during the spacified period. Secticn 115BAA provides & domestic comparry with an
irevocabla option to pay tax at a lower rate of 22% (effective rote of 25.168%), The
lowar rate ehall be appkcable aubject to ceriain conditions, including that the fotal
Incorna ehould be computed without claiming apecific deduction or exempticns. MAT
walld ba Inapplicableto companies opting to apply the lower fax rata.

Current and defarnad tax are racognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
whan the sarme ralale to Bams that are recognised iy Other Compeehensive Income or
diresctly in Equity, in which case, the currart and defarmed tax relating io such ifeme ane
alsoracognisad in Cther Comprehensive eome of directtyin Equity respectivaly. J
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4.8 Provisions, Contingent Liablities and assots
Provisions are recognised when the entarprize has & present obligation {legal or
constructive) as 2 result of pest evenis, and i fs probable that an cutfiow of resources
embodying econemic benefis will be required to seitie the obligation, and a raliabla
gsfimate can be made of the armoumt of the obligation.

& oontingent lakiity 15 a possible obligation that arises from pest svents whosa
pxicterice will be confirmed by the ccourrence or non-oecurmencs o ona or mong
umcarain fuli e evands Bayond Fwe condral of the Company or s preseni obligation that
Is noi recognized becausae i la not probable that an outflow of ressurcas will ba
reguined o sofba the obligafien, A contingent liability alse arises in extramaly rare
casgas whors thare ig a lability that cannot ba recognized becaues It sannc! be
measured rellably. Tha Company doss nol recognize & contingent liability but
discloseas s axistence in the fnancial stalernents.

A contingent asset 18 & possible assel that arises from past evenls and whosea
existence will be confirmed only by the ocoumenca O NOn-CeoUmance of ane oF mone
uncenan future events notwhaolly within the cortrol of the sntity

4.9 Recognition of interest incgme
Inberest income for ai finandal instruments maaeuned at tair value through profit or
loss (FYTPL) Is recognised using the contrachual inferaat raie,

310 Recognition of Dividend Income
Divigend income (Including Irom Investments measured at FYTOCH) is recognised
when the Company’s right o recelve the payment is astablishad. This Is astablshed
when It is probable that the economic banefils associatad with the dividand will fiow to
fheentity and the amaown of the dividend can be measured reliably.

d.11Leases

il Armangementswhare the Companyis the lasses
The Company assesses whather a confract conteins a lease, at Inception of a
contract, A contract is, oF containg, & lease If the conlract comveys the right to control
theuse ol an identified asset for & period of time in exchange for consideration.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognisas a Right-ofuse
Asset and a comesponding Lease Liabllity fer all lzase arrangemeants in which [t = a
lasess, sxcept forleases with alerm of twelve montha orless ('shor-barm leases’) and
I value leases. Forthese short-termn and low value leases, the Company recognisos
tha rent as an opasaling sxparss in the Statement of Praf®t and Loss,
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Certaln laase arrangements include the options o éxdend or terminate the leass
before the and of the leass tarm. Right-ol-usa Assals and Lasse Labllitas ndudes
thesa oplions whan it is reasonably certainthat they will be exerclsad,

Tha Right-of-use Assats ane initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the leass liabiites Le. present value of Tuture lesse payments adjuated for
ANy sase paymenis made al or prior o he commencement date of the ivase plus any
initial direct costs less any laase incantivas. Thay are subsaguently measured at cost
lees accumudated depreciafion and impairment logsaes. The lease paymbnbe ara
dissountad using the increments! bormowing rates. Lease Babliiies are remaasunad
with & comeeponding adjustment io the refaled Right-of-use assal If the Company
changes its assessmant I whether itwill exerclse an extension ora termination oplion.

Right-ol-use Assats are dopreciated from the commencament date on a straight-line
basia overtha shortar of thelasse term and useful e of the tndadying asset.

Arrangements whars the Company is the lessor

Leases for which the Company s 8 leseor is classified as a finance or operating easa.
Yhernewver the {amma of the lesse transfer substantizlly all the risks and rewards of
cwnarship to tha lessas, the contract is claseffiad as a finance loaza. All othar loases
are classified as oparating leasas,

The hease rentas under such agreements ane regognised in the Slatement of Prolit
and Loss as parthe terma ol the leass,

3.12 Segment reporting

The Company ks primariy engaged In the business of investment In Companies. As
such the Company’s financial stalements are largely reflactive of the imvestmant

business angthers is no saparate raportable segment.

Purseeant o Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, no segment disclosume has beenmade
In these financial stalermants, as the Company has only one geographical segmant

and no slher separate repotable business segment.

313 Esrndngs per Shara

Baslc EPS ks calcUlated by dividing the proflt or logs alinbulable loequily shareholders
;;hl Campany by the welghted average number of eguity ehares culstanding during
VAT,

Diutad EFE fa determined by adjusting the profil or loss atiibulable o eguity

sharaholders of the Company by the walghted average nurnber of equity shares
outetanding forthe effects of af diutive potential equity shares,

3.14 Cash-flow slatement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect mathod, wheraby profil befara fax is
adjusted for the effects of ransactions of & non-cash nature and any deferrals or
acoruats of past of fuluse cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from reguiar
revenue ganecaling, investing and financing achvitles of the Company are
sagragated.
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419 USEOQFESTIMATES JUDGEMENTS AND ADJUSTMENT

‘The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
managameant fo make judgements, estimates and assumplions that afect the
application of accounting poficles ard the repored smounts of assels, [lablites,
Incarma, expansas, and disclosuras of contingant assals and llabiiles at tha date ol
the financial statemants and the rasults of oparations during the reporting penod and.
Although these esthmates are based upon management's best knowledge of currend
gwanis and actions, aciual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimales and underying assumplions are reviewed on an cngoing bagls. Revislons
b gooounting esSmates are racognized in the perod in which the astfimalas are
ravized and in any fudure perods affeciad.

The estimates and assumptions thal have a significant risk o causing 8 matenial
adjestmant 1o the carrying amounts' of assets and liabilifias within tha next financial
year arg discugaed inthe paragraphs that follow,

(1) Usetul Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets
The estimated useful life of property, plant and eguipment {PPE] is basad on a number
of factors including the effects ol cheolescence, usage of the asset and other
economic factors [such as known technological advances),

The Company reiews the usatul Ie of PPE al the end-of each reporting date and any
changes coubd affectthe depraciation rates prospactivaly.

The Company alsc reviews its proparty, plant and equipment for possible impaimeant
If thare are events of changes in circumstances that indicate that the camying valua of
ina assats may not be recoverabie. In asseseing the propay, plant and equipment for
impairmant, factors leading to-significant raduction in profits, such as thie Company’s
business plans and changes Inmegulatory emdmnment are {aken into consideration,

(i} Falrvalue Measurements and Vaeluation Frocesses

Some of the Company’s &ssats end llabdities sre measured al 1rlr vakue for finencial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fais value of an asset or a liability, the Company
uees market-obgeryeble data to the axtent itis avalkable, Wheara Laval 1 Inpais arenot
evailable, the Company angagas third party valuars, whera required, to perform the
valuation. Information about te valuation lechnigees and Inguts used in delesmining
fa fair value of various assets and Babllities are disclosed in fhe noles 1o the financisl
slatamenis,
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i ™

{lily Aecognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carrled Forward Tax Losses and
Unusad Tax Credil
Theextant o which deferred tex assets can be recognized s based on an asseasment
of the: probability of the Company's future taxabla income against which tha deterred
tax sasats can ba utifsed. In addition significant judgament is required in Rasessing
thia impact of any legal or economic lmits.
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Motes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

1Al gmounts in Ao, lacs, unfess ofarsvse shated)

Particulass

Mote: 4 Gash and Gash Eqguivailgnts
Zash oo Hend

Balances wilh Banks

@) in gumen! poogunts

b} i Meai Smod diposil

Moke: 5 Bank Belanca othar than cash and cash aguivalants

Fixed Doposils with Bank (maburing afer paiod of hees months)
Wngald [Uncdaimead) Chddand Account

Hele: 8 Invesbrments

Invastmant measured af FYTPL
Investment maasured ai FYOCH

i Fraference Shanes

iy Equity Bhanes
Todal

Irvestment cutalde Indla

Imvastmand in india

.1 Book valua of tha above investmanis ane as follows:

I} Debh'Equitty Mubaal Funds

i) Guoted Equity Irstrumands

W} Lingucted Egully Instruments

i) Quetod Profarancs [rstiuranés
Wi Unquoled Prefersnca Instruamants

As at 31t As d 316
March, 3022 March, 2021
m 20
068 20.78
BO7.50 256178
[T 3050 65
As at dist As af Ie
March, 3082 March, 2021
= 270,00
1,63 1,66
1,83 2760
A5 al 318t A5 sl e
Maoroh, 2022 Mamch, 2321
42,54 G07.64
18.31 254524
219,471.58 251 426.81
_ZO5334T T EFATNTE
219,53343 26237578
As 3t 3180 fgal 3
Mesch, 2021
40,00 &T0.00
1245620 T ita2s
Tag.0d FaEa4
- 180,74
25.00 2600

5.1 Of ine il dividend reccgrised dunng the year fmm imssiment in eqully shees desigrated 21 FYOCT R 3085 Locy

|Pegtviouts yuar Ra 1441 Laca) s relaing io imvastment

{Previous yaar Ra 104,66 lnes| pariaiva fo evesimend beid ai the end of mporiing pasion

.1 The alher diéciasune ngarding fakl wale and sk arisng irom finsncia insrune ms s explined in Nots Nod & 32

during o parivd ared As 107257 ls

3
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(4B amaunts in As. lacs. unkess ofharwiss steted)
6.4 Detals of investments any as falows @
Mlutiial funds-
Parsculars fipn [ g aaachame 1o o ota Merharet
Unquatd-FVTPL '
HDFG OVERNIGHT FLIND-Rogular Pian 1,000.00 |  1,356.40 42 54 1.353} 4100
HEFS Arbilrags Fund | 1000 . 27128000 65040
Sulb Tioitad 4254 au1.64
Equity Instrismin
(Qthers,Fully Paid Up, FYOCT
Cuoted
3 W irdla Lio. 1000 1,084.00, 2548 1084 53508
Blomah linl 1000 955000 138808 6568 136235
Eigha mosons Lig, 1.64 - 3 L[4}
Faseco lid 10.00 |  BBET.G0 123,00 B, B8 10159
Gillein jd 10,00 | 38,350.00| 1,B5E.04 . -
3E Pawer Irdia Lig 10.00 | 266,455.00 405,14 o
HOFC Bank Led, 200 s = 56000 B3gaa
Hincustzen Unilewar #o 100 | 11548100 236630 | 115451 280755
Humemeki PPL Lid. 2.00 |122,050.00 18497 | 122080 24172
1) Bank Lid 200 |1osecoonl  BO06.88 ;
[ITE Limiad 1.00 | 463,000.00| 1,165.52 - .
JK Pnarmacham Lid, 1000 | 250000 Q.04 2500 .25
Kanaal Neroiee Painte Lie 100 | 970000 4557 n.ch._ 58.30 |
Mestla Lid. 1000, 203060 35283 E.mt{ 249.45
Oiriar Cemant Lid 1.00 | $60,000,00 SE60.6B | DEO0O0 26429
Proctar & farmibile Hypeine & Heakth Gam Lid, 1000 | 189,9TOU0D 2,87T8.00 18870 2,532.00
Pftzar Lid 1000 | 17,177.00 T46.88 . .
Fégancy ndusties Lid 10,00 1,000.00 .01 1,000 L
Sanathana Dhamma Guiguiam Lid, 10.00 ) 1,000.00 oo 1.000 i1
Shees Comant Lid. 1L00 | BA5450.00 | 204,744,592 B3 450 250,260 A4
United Spirits Lid. 200 | asseon' doem0 | assoc  os3e
Wastam India Commenial Co. L. 100,00 2,108.00 a1eas 2,108 1.48
Whirpaod india Lid, 10 | B0000.00 471.85 | 30,0000 8AT.ER
Siits Todai{a) 820068 @ _J
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31si March, 2022
Al pnounts @ Fs. late, ovieas olsnwisn siabed)
.4 Datails & mvesmants are &8 lolows -

L Earckiars \Eﬁ; A.:]:‘laur 3 |hnat 3t rﬂj

Unguoted

#lfa Bulldnomss Pl Lid. 10,00 1,000 106.92 000 a7

Agus inlrs Projects Lid, 0.0 740,000 59045 | 740,000 B21.8%

Kammayog Properiios Py, Lid, Al ) 25800 ams.a7 | 253,000 2a0.85

Ramgopal Holdings Pt Lid. 10,30 0,625 248 | &D&35 21,24

Bhrea Camant Manzaling Lic. 10,00 i.ﬂﬂq 1.74 B0 158

Sarps Camanl East Bangel Foundation 1000 1000 (¥} ] 1,000 0.4

Sheeacap Holdngs P4, Lid. 10.00 7,000 0.54 7000 0.0

Tarushnss Logiios Pyt Lid. 1000, 9000 23088 | 98,000 ROTAE|

Sub Total(h) | 1,238.04 1.244 50

Bub Totalja+k) Jd 10,471,867 142001

; Fam | A at Disbiach 2022 | As at 3%l ddanch

Peetiihen Va9 [~ ws | Ameunt | Ukile

Prafarence Shanes |

Crikers, Fully Pald Up P00

Guicted

2.85% Ton Entoetalneneat Erdoaprises L10 - MOPS)  -42) - - 12,918, 23025

Unguoied

CEM Logistics Pyt Lid.-§ % NCNGRPS R 25,000 18,30 | 25000 2800

Sub Total ST} )

Ayl 398 Apat3ial
March, 2022 March, 2081

Mate: T Oiher Finencial Assots

Unsooured, Cansldared Good

Sacurty Dapasite ] fik:y)
Interaid aceruad an Bank Deposis. 213 210
DHyidand Racaivatnis on Invastmants - 1345
Adtrnce o Staff 15.05 1758

Wk - W6l

Hate: B Currenl Tax Assels (M)

Advance Tax 2B5.5% T4.88
Lage: Provision lor Tax [245.00) $14.80)
40.89 G0 A

w J
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Notes to Financfal Statement for the Year Ended 315t March, 2022
(Al amaunts in As. ok, unbass alherwise stabad)

et Ltbrs Fusriturn & Odtica TOTAL
Fsturas Enuépmants

Mote: @ Property, Plant & Equipment

As ol 18l April, 2020 0.83 .68 1.3
Additions - .83 0.83
Delebons - - .
As st 31at March, 3031 Q.83 1.61 2.1
Aw at 181 April, 2021 063 151 FRTT
Additiane - - .
Dalsliong = . .
&g at 31st March, 2022 0.63 1.51 2,14
Accumulaled Depreciation
As at 181 April, 2020 .24 147 Q.76
For tha waar .08 0.ae 0.48
#g at 31st March, 2021 0.a7 114 T2
Ba Bl 180 April. 2031 0.3 1. 1] 1.22
For th yaar 0,08 0.a% 0,45
Ag at 31st March, 2022 0.4 1.24 1.67
Mat Book Yalus
As ai 31si March, 2022 0.20 o2 0.47
Aa al 316t March, 2021 Q.24 T 087
A at ¥ist A oal et

March, 2022 Mpsch, 202
Mede: 10 Other-Mon Financial Asseta

Advance against Exgenss 0.61 1.25
Advancs Depodilary Changes i1 03
Motonal Sicok Exchange of Indm Lid, - 3.44
Batancas / deposits with govamment authoriies L] -

0.7 T A

AastItsl As at 3l
Mmch, 21 March, 2021

Mete: 11 Trace Peyables

@) Total cutstarding ciees of mico enarprsas and smel enterprses . -
bty Totef oabstanding dues of credibars oiher them micne enterprises and smed anlerprizes 1,04

— 1
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
Al amouris in Pls Inca, unhyes cthensiss sated)

Mota: 11 (a) Ageing schedula for Trade Payabies sa of Fist March, 2022-due for payment
Ok ristanding for folloaing pariods from dus dabe of peymend

Padiculsre Loscthan -2 yearse 2O years Mo han 3 years Tolal
1 yoar
{1} MEME - - - - -
i) Oitrsers 1.04 . . . 104

11T} Désputed diss — MSME - - : . -
(wiDésputed dues - Othess - - + . 5

Mete: 11 (b} Ageing schedule for Trade Payables s ol 3781 Wanch, 2027 -dus for paymant

Cutstarding for folowing pardods from due dabe of payment

lLumsscs Shaaty 1-2 ymirs 2-3 years Mo than 3 years Tisad
1 yoar

1) MEME . d : ’ :
) Othars ; A 3 - -
(I} Dimputed dues — M3ME - . 3 :
[viDiapuiied duss - Others - . ! :

Mirba: 11 {o) Disclosuro with regard e duss ts Micre Enterprises and Emall Entorprises

{f} Tha krdstry of micen, small and medium enberpises has jssued an affice mamorsndum dabed 29
August 2008 which recommands that tha micra and small entempises shadld mentan in Eair
oofaepontencs wilk its customers tha Enreprensurs Memarardum humoer as afocabed aftar fiing ol
the Mamorardum In pocondance with tha 'Micrs, Smad and Medum Entarprise Development Ac1, 2004
{'tha Aot Accondingly, the disclosune im respest of the amounls payable 1o such enieprisss Fas boen
machiin b finmnoinl eiriemants basoed on ke infarmatisn reoshved and evailabie with tho Doroany.

{ii} Based on the intoeration  decumants avallable with tha comgany, na inlansl provisions | payments
has 1nba mede by the Comaany fo microanfarprses and amall enlapeises crediors and thus, no malated
discinesires s required under Seolion 22 of tha Micre, Small ang Medium Erterprses Devalopmenl Ast,
2008 a0 made B these nooowrdo.

{B7)
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Hioln: 12 Dther Finapoial LisbHitkes
Pariolars

inclimed Disidand

Drhes aepansea payabis

Hiote: 13 Provialons
Employos Benafta:

u) Giratuty
b} Laave Salary
Contirgant Provision againat SlEndard Assets

13.1 Mavamant in provisione:

Balanca s al 3 Mangn 2020
Prowision Uiiiasd

Prossion Roversed

Prevision Cresied

Ealanca A5 At 315 Manch 2021
Prenizion Litiksad

Proveson Fewcgrsed

Provigon Croated

Bnlpnce Az A st March 2022

Mote: 14 Daffersd Tax Linbity [Met)

Deforred Tax Labllities
= On Falr valug Gakn of inveatmant [FyTOGH
- O Falrealua Gain of investmank (FYTPL)

Defarmad Tax Assats

- Property, Plent & Equipmant

= Provisicn for Geadutiy

=00 Prowision for Leave Sakany

O MIAT cfadi

=i Liang Term Loss Carred forward
0 Business Loms Cared foresd

Difareed Tax Linbidtss{Azaets] (Met)

Copitnl Fepoynble Under Capital Reduction Schems - Linelsimad

Notes to Elnancial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(4l amourrs in Fe. scs, unloss othersise shatod)

As at 3st A%k el
March, 2023 March, 50981
153 168
1.75 1.78
.32 a.40
E.T0 (B F
4286 4315
10039 11.82
_ bEs .66
5353 ES.00
Brovision for  Prowision for Prosnsion for
Grabsty  Leawe Sslary  Standand Aszsals
Jr.80 1031 0.56
835 1 -
i35.18 1152 [uGa
5,74 153 .
- 0481 =
5158 083 s
4288 10.31 0.85
Aspldlsl As gl ek
March, 2022 March, 2021
BABLD 1234786
.42 A.TH
—Bada  TESSTE
0.3 o1
11.84 12 .58
287 4.34
21.61 .38
BT
O35
1257 58
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 315t March, 2022
1A armaunls AR, lacs, unkess cibanvise siahed)
Hote: 18 Oiher Mon-Financlal Liabiitles As at 3151 g 2t et

St Mareh, Wmrch, 2021

Statulony Duss a8 1.07
a.10 107

Mals: 16 Share Capliai
16.1 Equity Shares Capltal

Authoread:
206000000 Equiy Shares of Rs. 5 each (Previous Year 2,00,00,0008 1,000,00 1,000
lzeuad:

24,659,058 Equity Sheres of Ra. 5- sach [ Pravious yaar As5- aach | 12255 12285
Subseribed & Pully Paid ©

74, 54,000 Equity Shanes o As, 5 sach fully pald up {Previous year R, & gach ) 123,84 12284
12254 122.84

12 Terma' rights stisshed 1o Equity Bhones

The Compeary has arly oneclads of aquiy akares kavieg a par valle of Fa. 55 per shars (Previous year
‘As.5- each) . Eash mﬂamanmnmﬁmmmnrmmmlranm propossd oy
tha Boord af Directorn s sibject b appeoval of the eharshalden ir the ensuing AGM. In e avant of
Trguidetion of the compasy, e holder= of equity shames will be entitied 1o any of e emaining asseds of te
campany aflardisicinution of all profarantis! ameants in peasadion to the . ol aquity shares haldiy hem,

183 Beconclilation of the number of Equity Simres and of Equity Share Sapial amound
autstanding at the beglnring and at the and of the Yaar

Paricudar In Murribes Beroaint
Az Bl 18t April 2030 24,508,508 12284
Aalct diaring the year . -
Ac gt 311 Manoh, 2081 B4 B5 B 122.84
Adct deting the yaar " i
Az al 31s1 Manch, 20232 &1, B8, BOE 122,84

164 Delalla of Sharsholdars Helding mara than 5% Equily shanes in the Company
Al & 318 Meanch HF2 Hﬂ:iﬂtﬁﬂt i, 20

ame Nn.u;ﬂm % halding w % heakdding
Ehree Capital Sandces Lid. 47000 19.21% 472000 19.271%
Digvijay Findaasa Lid, 471497 19.189% ar.4r8 19.18%
The Didwana Invesimsnt O, Lhd, 130,768 5.32% 130,788 532%
Amigh Cragthons Pyl Lid 124, 478 5.07% 124,478 5.07%
Shri Prashant Bangur® 08 200 847 208, 200 BATY
Mennaknahna Invesimends Pyt Lid 185,472 a.74% 15473 B.74%,

" Beneficied imerest in 2,048,000 Equity Shanas is hald by Shres Vencabesh Syurvadc Aushdhalaya.

{89)
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Notes to Financial Statemant for the

Year Ended 31st March, 2022

{7l Emvinis in A8, lacs, urieas ciharwise stated]

16.5
i} Sharsholding of Promoers-
T Sarbckiog o i1z bogioning | Sharshadng rfu esd el I
ot thape s e DU ]| e ko oo DUNSRRRE] Lﬂ-'mﬂ:i
3 N 3=arshalder's Hang Mool |5 ol Sl Be of |Solioel3ans
i Shaes. | olfptampiey | S | oftheCompay 2 st
1 SHAEEGAPTTAL SSRWWGES LTD grmon g | dTn00 T
¢ DL AINLEASE LTD 471478 1918 | 4rafh 1914 .
3 PRASHANT BANGLR o0E200 247 | 2pEN0 AT
4 MANNAKEISHNA INVESTWENTS BT LTD 185472 b4 | 16ETR B4 .
5 THE DATWANA INVESTMERT GOMPANTY LINETED 138vEd 5.2 | 13078= 532 -
B ASISH GREATIONS PIAMVATE LINKTED 124474 607 | 124478 507 5
7 MEWE INVESTMENTS FUT LTO 1 agn | 1ESEI 485 4.8
B DI0U INVESTMENTS FYT LTD | og0 | TER) o o
D RAGING FNAMCE LIMITED 427 nig 1873 n.ae 00
10 HARIMOHAN BANGUR 4 {1000 4 .00
11 FLAJKARANL. DEVIAANGLR | L0 ? .00 -
12 RAIESH VANISYA P LTD 2 i1 ' oo -
12 THE LAXEM SALT COLTD 4 0.0 ol oo .
14 THE VENETESH 00 LD ] 0.00 I ok .
15 MANU BANGUA 2 0.0 2 0,00 -
16 WESTERS INDIA COMMERCIAL G LTD 1720 (] i .00 <070
17 BEML GOPAL BANGLA 0 an ] oa -
18 SHAEF BAMGUR FAMILY TRUST o LN i} 0o .
15 SHREE BARELIA PAMILY WELFAHE TRAUET d {100 1] i1} ] -
0 SHAEE BANGLR FAM Y HERSTAGE TRUGT i} (1] il 000 .
| TOTAL weoi06 | e4T2 [1nore|  @ow | 4a1
il) Sharsholding of Promatars-
Shambadng il e bayoniag | Shassbolding a0 w0 e
o e [ LR o [ o Mz :ﬂm
Tt iokad Shars %
§ No Sharenaisar’s Name e | Tt [ i
i SHFIEE CAPITAL SERVICES LTD ATR000 1921 | 47000 9.1
2 DIGVIAY FIRLEASELTD 471473 1918 | 471478 a1
3 PRAZHANT BANGLIK el Bl BT | 20si0 AT -
& MANMAHRIEHNA INVESTMENTE PAT LTD 0405 a05 | 1657 874 468
6 THE DIDWAIS IRVESTMENT COMBANY LIITED | 130748 532 | 1307&E 5.3 -
6 A51SH CREATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED 124478 gOY | 12478 g.07 =
7 WESTERN I8DIA COMMERCIAL GG LTD 1725 G7g | 7RED (1| -
& RAGNI FINARCE LIWTED F fng 922 2
& HARMCHAN BANGUIR z Lo | (1] 51] -
0 RANU BAMELA z L ? 040 -
11 RAJSAMAL DEVI BRINGUR 2 {100 7 000 E
12 RAJESH VANLIWA P LTT 2 0aa 4 )
13 DIDU BVESTMDNTE VT LTO 2 .00 3 0
44 MEWN INVESTMENTS PUT LTD 2 .00 2 L]
5 THE LM S0.T 00 LTD 2 00 i .00 -
16 THE VEMKTESH GO LTD 2 000 i 040 -
7 BEMU BOPAL BARGUR L (8] ] ) .
TOTAL 14TER30 &l Dd |tB8E0E E4.T2 4 58
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(Al ameunits in Fe, B9, uniess cihersiss alaled)

Paricuiars

Nota: 17 Cther Equity Maren, 2022 Maren 2021
Rassrs & Surphis
L) Capilal Resarss 055 0.55
B} Saouriting Pramium 16.51 16.51
€} Btatuiary Reserve
Opening Balaroe 8,458 25 2 466,08
Ackd, Trangter from retained samings 166,80 32.27
Casing Balanca 2,506,168 242828
D) Gonersal Ressrve
Opaning Balarce 4.813.08 4.913.08
#Ackit Tramster from retained eamings . .
Cigsing Selance 5,313,008 & 813,08
E) Fetnined Earrings
Opaning Balarca 540818 EARA 11
Akt Profit bar fha yaar T04.48 181.38
Adg Transier from Equity instrumant through CCI an sealisation 186.00 .
Lass: Transfar io Statubory Rasenn (158.80) (227
Clgging Balance B&Tr.58 548514
Sub Total (41} 13,795.06 1284450
F) Daibrt instrements Through OC1
Opening Balarce #1.41 (45.83)
Addt- Falr Vialis GalntLose) dufing the Yaar (Mat of Tax) 1418 107,00
Liasc-Fecla=ilicalion of gain on sale of FYTOC] debt instnaments -B1.0E -
Ciasing Balance ) (8,08) B1.41
Gh Equity instruments Through OCI
Opening Baloron 241,080 58 14883070
Acki:- Fair Valua GainLoss) durlng the Year (Nat of Tax) (40,963,158) 82,150,656
LessTranfer o refainad apening o0 malzation [155.80) ‘
Cloging Balance {in 180,840.58  241,080.58

TOTAL (1l 213, 73047 38190684

(=21)
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A) Capital Aessrve
Thisrose res repraasnt the smcund of chans leeataltad

B) Securities Premium
Thiis resamne menesents e pranium on Bsue of shanas and can bo ubiired i accomanca with e
priveigions of tha Compenies A, 2373,

C} Statulory Resarva

Sxanfioey Aesarve represants the Resarva Fund cronted unde: Sechicn 45 IC of tne Resgnve Bank of inda
Act, 1834, Accordingly an amount repeesenting 0% of Prafit fortha pariad is renstecred 1o 1he kund foriha
yaar

) Ganaral nesare

This Feserve s oroaled by an apprepdation from one compone of siully {ganarally Retminad Eaming}
o mnobivar, ot Being an em of Cehar Comprahanss Ircarr. Tha eama can ba utilzed in apsordancs
with the provislcns ol tha Companiag Act, 2013,

£} Ratsinad Easnings
Thit raserve represants the cumulative profis of the Company, This resende can be uslized in accordarce
wiik fha pravisions af the Companies Acl, 2013

F) Db bnstruments throogh Other Comprehenelve inoome

This resara reprassris e cumuiative gaine (net of losses) arising on ta revalsfion of debtinsnements
maasurad Al fair value Firoagh Oiner Gomprahansive incame, net of ks, Tha amaunt s ransbered ion
i reiea rva £ g statarient of prof and iDes whanmadebt mstrument s desecagniaed,

&) Equlty Instrumants throwgh Othar Comprehensie inceme

This reprasents the comalative geins and lisses ardeing on the revaluation of sgulty ingtrumants
maasured af fusrralue theoigh other comprebansive income, natol bk, dhder an irevacablaopmon, net ol
pemourt roclpesifed o ratainsd aarning a whan such nsasets ore disposed of |, il any.

1
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Notes fo Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
[l amounts in Fs. lecs, unisss ohersise sated)
Mole: 18 indnrest ncome
. As ot 3ist Bg pl 3=
Farticlim March, 2022 March, 2021
COn Financiel Assets measured of Amertlsed Cost
Ipieroes on depewits wikn bank, 40,78 &1 TH
On Finsnclzl Assats maasured at EVTOCH - -
Irmteens] on invesiment 1.5 -
T am 4175
MetE 19 Dividend Incoms
s at 315k As at 318t
Mproh, Hi22 tanch, 2021
Dinidend Ircome 108873 14718
1,089.73 14T IE
Mote: 20 Mat Galn on Falr Value Changes
Az ot 31wl At 318k
Mareh, 20232 March, #2021
Met paln/ (loss) on financial isgtromenta at talr valse tirough probd or boss
On finencial instrarrents designated at fair valus rouph peofit or loss 12.38 2rod
Othars
Gaki{loss) on sale of debt Instrursent sl FVTOC! 8163 -
Total not gain on falr valus ehangss 8402 2705
Falr Valua Changes
Reaksnad Ll B8
Unraalisad 1.30 2068
9492 2705
Hota: 31 Othar Income
An ot Jiak AaEl =1l
Merch, 2022  Maroh, 2021
Limbifity no longer requinad wiithan back 1,95 =
IrTlerest on incoma A refunc aAr -
MipsallEngeus Inooma = 0.0
443 L
Mois: 22 Employes Benafit expenses
An ot A1l A8 al 31
Miarch, 3023 March, 2031
Sekaries and Allowences [ - Heit ) EQ45
Gantribution o Prowidant Fure and ollves fund 534 4,08
Girotuity g2 533
LaAva Salery 1,08 1.3
Sealf Wallera Expanses ] 47
B240 T3.80

(%3}
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
{4l amoues in R lncs, unlsss oferslsa sised)

Maotn: 23 Diher Expofsss
g @3NS A |t 3 st
Pariculors March, 2022 March, 208
Rang 127 1.27
Fiapains & Molntenanss - Chars .45 k]
Rates prd Taxes 0.05 0os
Goods & Sarvicas Tacjunder RCM) ERG 210
Cormmunicaticn Exponass . 203
Traeelling and Conveyanca 1.73 028
Prinifing and Statsanarny Sl 454
ATvariseani 0.aF 033
Cérpckees Sittirg Fea 3,53 ave
Legst and Frolassional 19.3%5 12AT
Cushadal Faga 04T oar
Listing Faeo A4 344
an m &
Far - Sinfulo gl.l:ll‘r A0 A8
Far - Tax Fops 008 008
Secyritias Treneaction Tax B.78 iﬂ
MiEzalianaaus E;q:ﬂm &,
__._ﬂﬁ __aggh

Mot 20.1-Datafle of CSH oxpenditore:
As gt Fat  Asaldlsd
Manch, 2022 March, 2021
@roes amours required 10 be spont by the Company curing the Year - -
Amaunt spent 1ha Yaar .
{&) Sharifell ot the anel of the yaar
total of the pravicus year shortiall
@) raason Tar ehoekal
natune of CER nobition
i) detaits of relatad parties transaction, &g contribution to  tast corsmiled fy fhe
eeergany i refation 1o the GER pensoibart ds per MBIVt BooUnTng slandarnd, . -

(i} wiiare 8 prevision Is mada wiln respect {n & Gabilfy Incurree by anbarieg inlo & conlrac-
heal ohilgation, the movemers in the peovisian ganng the year should b ehown separaiely, -

s 1 A

Mote: 24 Tax Expensa
i} Arsount recognlasd In profit or loss
As ot 8l s at 11
March, 2022 March, 2081

Currant tax:
irganya e for the year auE.na
Chargalicradi) in respest of currend iax bor sarlar years a0.24
Total Currert Tax Gxpensos L F
Defermed tox:

ireslicn and revarasl of tamparary dilanances 20.34 (32,00}
MAT Creds Lilisad B.75 &
Tolal Dedermad Tax Expenses![Beneiit) ___2a08 jﬁ:
Tolwl tax axpenses =483 {53.08

!'}I]Amqm'l tacognised in other compraharsha income
he

Daffarred lax
O iBgrmes thal will net be roclassedied to proft or loaa

Exquily Ingtrumants measured through OC (8,004.48]  12,330.78
O Beme that wil ba reclassified 1o proft of loss
Financinl Insirumends messursd Through SCI (8. 36} [ 1+]

(94)
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
&l arnedints in Az, lecs, uniess ofhenviie siaked]

{lif} Recornelialion of effective Lax rabe
As t 31al Azat 3

Farsoulare March, 2022  March, bl
Thea inceams tas sxpansa bar the year can be recontdad ba 1he
ancolnling profil as fisllowe:

Frolit batora ta 1, BB.8% oy e
Incamn lax expenss caloabes Iz 25.48
Expansss dealiowed 1.88 1.83
Efect of MAT credll {27.50) {30.35)
Efimd of camied sarwand bsiness Sos - (3337
| 1ax maiating to earfier yoears 2024

Effasl of rownding alf Taxas 335 -
Oihar 5 26,44

Tha affectie ncome tax rate for 51,03,2022 fs 27,08 %(31.00.2021: NA)
{Iv} Movament in defarred tax liabilithes for yesr ended 315t March, 2022:

Particulare Azt 182 Euhnl'ﬂnl' M-wpilulu Ka st 1t
April, 2041 Profk or Lasa Marca, 2022
Defarred tax Habilines for taxabie eamgomry

differences on:

- On Falr valise Galn ol investment (FUTOCE 12.347.88 X tﬂnﬂ‘rﬂﬁiﬁ ﬂm&ﬂﬂ
- O Enir vabos Gain of Imasiment (FUTPL) ATH [3.36)
Dmiwrred iax lEabilites “IEEH E:ﬂi l_l.ﬂ'l:.ﬂ! E
lsovemert in deferrod tax asss! for yenr ended Tiat March, 2022
culars Asaliw  Swemond nl--mprﬂ-rﬂn A ol 315t
il Apuil, 20 Frﬂlum: Margn, 2022
Dalerred tox assals for tRcable tempanary
diflarences on:
- Property, Plan! & Eguipmant 031 (000 . (1]
-0n Provelaon for Gratatiy 12.57 (LT3 - FHLT!
-On Provigion for Lewve Salary 238 (048 - 287
<O MAT credit oA {875 - 21,61
‘= Long Terrn Loas Gk foivwued - 1 Gkl - 10.88
-On Business Luss Comied Torward &9.37 33.37) . .
Tags  [3RA5) r 4751
Het Deferred Tox (Assats)ilabiitios b At 809 (6, 013.84) 6.286.83
Moveman in defarred tax liablities for year ended 31et March, 2021;
Porfioulars As B 18 Slalemant of :nwmlm As ot 28l
April, 2020 Prodi or Loss Masrch, 2021
Deferrad tox lisbilities for toxable tamporary
diffarsncas on:
- Dn Fadr value Gnin of imsestrmant [FYTOCT) - & 1234786 12,347.06
. O Fair vaiue Gain of imvestment (FYTPL) " ATE - 3,78
Dafermad tax abiikas = LT 12347 BE 12,3516
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Notes to Fimancial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
{All amaurds in P, lacs, Lniess offerwisa sated)

Movement in deferred tax asset for yoar sncded 315t March, 2021:

Partboulang sl 15t Sistemant of Ofser comprakansive  As 1 JTe1
Apell, 2020 Profil or Loas Irvctme Warch, 2021
Dafarred tix assets for taxable lemporary
differancas on:
- Praparty, Plant & Eguipmant 331 - . 0.3
0n Provieon for Gty 883 2.74 = 12,57
DO Provision o Leave Salany 266 06T . 3.84
- MAT credii - 5058 . 36
40 Loneg Tam Lasa Carried forward . - . "
«0in Bugiress Loss Gamiad forward - aEar - .37
Deferred inx assats i2e__ E7.1d o 74.96
Wit Deterres Tax (Assete)iiabilities [1282)  (63.36) 1234706 12.27T1.68
[V} Tax losses

fa ot el B al ATat
March, 2022 March, 2021

s Tax Lot & unabsorbed depreciation for which no
deferred tox assada has baon created

Busgineis LOss 171.53 -
“Urabsarbed depeaciation | 00 1.00
Proandal tax banell@ applicabis ax rals
-Busnese Loas 47.72 :
“Unapsorbed degraciabion 0,28 Q.28
Business lsses wil Ippee bebwoan Mg, year 02524 1
AgaL yanr 2020-30 [ B

Dalared lnx assats and delsrmad tax labilty have besn cHaat whansver ihe company Ras & logaly
enfoncanble right fo 50t off utent W assets againgt currend [Ex latilitios snd whera the delermad tax
sl and dafarrad 1 bebiities relate 10 income 1axes levied by the samse taxation sushorty.

HOTE 36:- Other Comprahanaive IRcome

Your Ended 3158 Year Ended 3181
Merch, 2022 March, 2021
it @ hames meaic & d hroasg KO0

Mt gain on sala of invesiman b 14446

Change in fakr valug 47 024, 104, 355,18
u.m.% _'ﬁi'l TR

(E)Fraterence Sharas rmaasured Hweugh G861

Year Ended 3121 Yaar Ended 318l

March, 2022 Ko, 2021
walyegd n rod ait it o giFelo ndar o ogi 1 onk. 1 2
Charge 0 fairvalus ﬁqg 115.12
L L

(95)
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Nofes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 315t March, 2022
(&K amounts in As. lacs, unlass ohanvise stabad)

Yeor Enced 3tel . Year Ended 3151

Hote 27-Basic and Diluled sarnings por shars March, 2003 March, 2021
Particidars

2] Nat Prafit alter Tax as par Statemect of Profit and Laze TR, 48 161.35
) Waightad Average number of Equily Shares used 88 demominaio

for codoulngng Besic EPS 2 A5E BOE 2 A5 A0G

&) Wielghted Awaraga Palentlal Eqolty Sharas
o Total Waighied Averape number o Eguity Shames usad as

denominator far calculaling Diuted EFS 2456 805 2,456,804
o] Bagic Enmings per Shares (A= felb) a2.24 85T
fi Diktosd Eamings per Share (Rs.] {e)d]] 2204 aEr
gl Faca Valia par Equity Shana (s, ) 200 5.0y

Mote ;22 Segmant Reparting

Thas Comiparny e ondy ond Eoe of business (.8 Mon Banking Francial aoliviss. Thana an no soparnaia
ruporitls segments ua per ind As 108

MOTE 29- Related Party Transsction
1) Particulars of ralationship
Ky Mangerial Mames of Relaied Parties Designation
Persanal Ashiok Blancar (w.ed 2181 July, 2020 Chairman, Non Exacutive Director
B L Gaggar Chractor
o P idondm Diresdar
Filya Pija Jain Divectar
T K Brottachana vt
Cipbasish Ray [Fraedar
Privania Moinia [wea.l 3Rar Augued, 20200 Cirectar
8. P. Bumar Manager & SFO
Misha Leddha {ceased w.af 18th June, 2081)  Company Secrslary
Sudha Janiw.e.l 18ik Decarmban2021) Company Secretany

(87}
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
{All amounks in Fe. lacs, unless ohensise sised)

i) Dieslogunes of transactions batwoeen the companias and reiaind paies with status of cutstanding
cinesing Balancas:

Particoiame Yeor Emtied 318t Year Endad 318

March, 2022 Karch, 2021

(A} Particulars of ransactions with relatel periles

(Key reanagerim Personnet)
I} Remuneeation of Key Managerial Persannsl
8. P. Kumar
Ehorl temm arployes benelts 19,95 1B.20
Pagt-amploymont banefts 2.65 zag
Sudha Jain :
Sheart e emplayes bonatia 1. 7k
Miahie Laddha
Sher arm amployoe bameliits [3E 1.85
lip Adwancas
Paid - o0
Recaived back 1.B5 0.8
iif} Directors Sitting Fras
Asnok Bhandari 0.86 050
B L Gaggar 048 ol
J P Mimnsdra Q.65 TS
Riya Puga Jain 05 .08
T I Bhattecharyn aTr .81
Dabasiah Aoy nE 1]
Piyanica Mobin L2s 0.28
B) Ouistandlng balance st the and ol year (Key Mansgesial Pensonne]
Closing balanse ol SOVENCES 5625 7.0
Nobe 30: Disclosurs of Ratios
Mating Mumesstos | Desominatus |Gurrant parind| Pravioss pericd| % Variaes | RESSER TOF
a) Capikal 1o rigk- | Tier | Plis Risk Waignied 10457 14544 {28.10)
Wipightad sasats | Tier il Capaal | Assats mereass s
rartio [CRARY tha rigx
WiTier |GRAR | TieriCapisl |AiskWighied| 10458 asad | gmmag | Eamed
RaSis |
¢} Tier 12 GRAR | Ther || Capltnl | Mk Weighlad o o 54 0%
heEAls
Qlgeay | WghtyUguid |Wicsioumon]  BESZER | 3122471 3%y | L aesets
Coverage Ratio | Aesis L s

|.. Patlo ts caivmabed s per forrmala peescibed W e regulabony autheriy,

(S8}

!
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Notes to Financlal Statemont for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
|8 emounts in Ag, lace, uniass ohanvise shabed)

Mata: 31 Maslosura of financlal instrumeant
Thia section axploins the judgements and estimatos mada in distermining e fair values of tha financial

ingtrumiands that are (o) recognised snd measurad at flr valise and fo) measumed 6 amertised cost and
{er vehich feir valups & glsclossd [n ihe linencial stelemants,

The deseds of signiicant accouniing palicies, Inciuding the ciara for recognition, the basie of massurament
are e basis on which income and @perges ars recogrisad, in respac of aadh cass of findnal st
financial Eatdity ard equsy Instrumeant ana disdosed = nole 3 o e Snancial sEtements.

a) Fair Yalua Mensurement
Categories of Financhal Instrumants

Pasticutus roto et 5008 e, 2081
Finantlal Assals
a) Menswred st Amortiaed Cosl
Ih Cash and Cash Eqdvasents 4 20 A, 650,55
i} Gsher Bank Balancoes 5 163 271.88
i) Ciher Finangal Assets T 1756 55.41
S ub-Tiial 2830 401582
b} Measured ot Falr Valisa throwgh OC1 (FYDCT)
I§ Fvenatriant in Equity Sharee ; HOATISE  Z61 42601
il Imetstmard in Pralasancs Shars ] 1831 266,34
Sub=Tobal 21946085 261 68215
& Moasured al Fadr Value through Profif and Loss
(FTPL)
) bveabmant in Mulual Fund g 4254 GO0
Sulh-Toba! 4254 G084
Total Financial Assets 220,1682.81  286,388.41
Finaneial Lishilbes
o) Moasured ai Amoriised Cost
i Trada Fayable 1 104 o
i} Othar Finsncial Lakdiies 12 570 6.62
Total Financlal Liabiiktas 6,74 8,82
i Falr ¥alua Hlararehy

Thi= eaction explains the judgementa and esSmates mada in detanminirg tha fair values of e Bnancial
msinEments that are {2} recognised and messwred at fair vablue and (b rmeaswened at arotised cost and far
which fair values am disciosed in the fnarcial statements. To prowide an indication aboul Be redability of
the Ipuis usad In detarmining talr value, tha Compary has classifisd = financial Fstrumants inda the
Ihresbevels prescibed under the acoounting stesdarnds,

Lawvel 1: Level 1 hiaranchy Includes financial instriementa massunsd walng quoled prces.

Layel 2: The feir value of inanci| nalnimants that ere not iredad in &n active markat (8 determinas wsing
valuation techaigises which maximese the wse of absarmble markel dals sod mly a2 fits 4s possibie on
antity-spaciic psfmacas. i all significant inputs requined to far valua an nsirumant ar chearvakds, ha
resingmant = inclsded in Bval 2.

Lisrval 3 B oma o more of Ihg significand inputs tsnet based on absanmble market data, the retrumant |a
Included inlencal 3.

1
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

() Valustion Mathodology
Spacic waluation eehniquas uSed 0 Value Inancil mstnmants ncude
;Eghlrw}w of invetsmant In quobad equify shares and mutunl lunds is measwed & quoted price ar

+ e Jeir value of 1evel 3 s rumania s valuad on tha basia ol valisation repors providad by axtamal valuses
with Bna mecaption of canmain meinuments, whern costbroalupalue has been condidensd @ B0
approdimate estirmbes of Bir value becouse of wide mange ol possible fal wele invesiment and
costhargak-up walus represants tho best asttmate of falr waluas with in that enge.

(I Fakr value of Financial Assats and Liablites measured st Falr value - recurring Falr Value
Measuramants

An & 31t Manch, 2022 g &l 318l March, 2021

FR— Lavell  Lavel3 Laval!  Lowedd
Financial Aseais

Iraeimantt in Equity Insirumards® 18,240.63 1 23804 260182 32 1844, B0

Irreastmant in Muiual Fund 4 54 - G164 .

Iragimant in Dakt instrument - 18.30 - 255.25

Total Plnancial Assals HE2EE1T 124824 B0OE7LEE  1499.84

Iresastmant Inegqualy instru mants includes & inenemenl lebed on calcultn ok exchanps(CSEL As rading
on CHE le not actve. ouotss @ nod avalable Hence, the said Feestment s boen valoed =
levaid.

(iv) Significani Estimates

Tha fisis valua of finanalal ifsiniments that are nol traded in 2n eciiva marked i3 datamined uging valuation
lechnigues, Tha Company usas s judgemant foaelesl a variely of methods and make ssumglions thal
e mginty based on makel conditions existing &f the and of sach reparing pedad, For datais of the key
assumprions wedand the mpact of changes 1o these assumglions sea (1) mbowa,

{100)
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{4l amocunis in Rs. s, uniess rhareios saiad)
21 Faeir valua messurament (eont d)
{vi Fair value of sssots and linbiltles measured at costyamortisad cost

The camying amounl of financial Asaeds and Bnancial debiites Messarad at amortised cosl are &
rapscnable approairnation of their falf values snce the Company does nol anlicigate theal the camying
amcunt would be significently diiarent fram the valies that woulld bo cvontually raceived o settled.
Maragement aaaserad Ihat fuirvaiues of saen and cash ecuvalanls, othar bank batancas, Cinerfinancial
gggels gnd olhed financial Hallilies approsdmate elr ceamyng amoumta of hese insbuments, &3
discuesiaad hedow:!
Parfioulars 85 ai 3Te March, 2022 A= at st Manch, 2021
Carying Yalus Fair value Carmying Valua Fiasir vl

Finanolal nasets;
Cagh and csah agukaloms 1020 810,20 3,968 55 3,688 58
Dithise b Disbances 183 1.63 271 .58 271 BB
thes nancial assals 1786 17.65 Ba.41 S5.41
Finamaial liadilitise
Traxhs Pagabiog 104 1.04 A -
Ceher inancial iabinies g = 6.652 6.2
V1) Maturity Analysis of issets and labilities

Particulars A8 at 31sl March, 2023 Az gl &1t March, 2021

‘Within 12 Mostha  Aftsr 12 Mortne. Within 12 Mantha After 12 Monthe
ASSETS
Financlal Assals
Cash and cash nouvalerts 1020 - A a88 55
Cthier Ennk Binlnnoas 183 - ar.ea a
Ivasimants 4254 214, 450,83 a1 64 281 E&R. 15
Cibser Nirancind asseta 1755 - 5641 -
Total Financlal Asseis E71.82 215,480, 62 4 FOVEG 21 B
Mon-finamesal Asasly e
Gurreni tax assate Mot 450 z G008 ;
Proparty. Plamt & Equipmani Ay .52
Dthar non-financial assets Q.74 - 4.78 .
Tetal Man Finanaial Asseta FiE=] LAt R e
Tital Amanin FAEs 00 MR4H3e 4,77E10 201 ,083.07
Linbilitias S
Financial Liabiiies
Trace Payablas 1,08 . 5 =
Oifhar Bnancial Bakiltes 5.70 x aag .
Tolal Financisl Llabiliise 5,74 s £.RZ
Man-Financlal Liabllitles i
Prwislons 53.53 - BE 33 =
Dwfamed tax liabiiBes (Nel) 042 B.2896.51 aATH 12,267 08
Crher nin-irercial Eadilibes 4,16 - 1.67 .
Totol Mon Fiancial Liakdifies SB.11 G 51 51,07 1225750
Total Lisbiities 4.5 B.288.51 E7.54 12,267 88
Mat Equity BE4EAD 213,204,865 A, 7021 243.415.18

(104)
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Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
(Al amounts in Fs. lacs, unkes stherdiss stabed)
32 Financlal risk manogermant

hias & robist finansal sk manogament sysiam in place i ctankily, avakisia, and mitigaie vetious
mummﬁmuwmﬂmmmmmmmm gra el The
Company’s sanior menagamant |s reapenalble for el and marBonng i fsd management
framwerk within Be overll rex managament oojectivas and 8, B8 approwed by tha Board of
Direciiots, Such rsk managemant slralegas and 5 pre esiabliEnsd to lgenlily and oatenlial
ﬁﬁm!amwmmmw.nlunHMmeﬂukhhmlmm. rewiaw tha

in market condinng and asEeE NSk mananeman pafonrance. Any change in Campany's resk
wmmnhﬂmampulmmnm priorapprealof &5 Boand of CWacioes,

panmBant,
mm.sm.nmrMuh-mmermmm1m maanl of corkrachual imarest
ar ﬂmﬂpﬁmmﬂuﬂnﬂmﬂm.wm.mur&htwﬂmﬂﬂ;mnﬂm Hgof ey CUBlaman &0
athier counlarpartbes “and |ingorporates  1his informetlon o lis éradit risk conirod,

iy Marke risk:
Msrhing sk e o form of -mmmm:wmm—mnmuWhmm#umm
mmmduwmumﬂ suh markot Figk alacts al securifias And investors in the same menner, Thasa
ciafy price fuctuafons foltve il o broad frends and cyclas and B mard Rews and irensaction Jrien
rather than fundamentals and many a tirnas, | mey aPoo! he reums Bom an irwesiment. Markal fan
mialorly. comgiiges of fwo fypes - Interat roe rigk and athar figk, such as equly prce fisk and
mwmﬁm:lmmdwmml Lofrowings mnd IriesimaTs.

Irrbehaed rade risk

[rbanast rabs risk ke type of Spslameato ﬂahhﬂpuﬂnulaﬂgr;ﬂﬂimmhd#hﬂmmllmmm
danariures. The valis of the fued-rate debt nstnaments genarally dasing Qe 1o 1ise i inenest mies ard
ke weraa, The rafionale = ikl & bond in a promiss ol @ biura siredm of paymands: an mastor will oller less
for a bond ihal «cut &1 & raie kower Ehan the ralee ofiared In the currant markat. A rielng Interest ree
EoEnario nhis thia Copany’a Inbarast cxpenciue anbomorwed (e,

Tha Company Mo ha interst tHe SCANaTas on & requiar besls ard accondingly takas insestments
uﬁa-ua‘ fons o wheths 10 imvagl in foosd rabe dabt instruments, shares and securies 81 A parkcular point of
s,

Price riek

Prica ik i the risi thert e fair vwalu of  fnencis] instrumant will §uckiate duo to changes in markat traod

%rlm. 113 résenss fresm finmencinl msssts auch Rs Evastments in squity instruments, bonds, mubual funds ate. The:

ortpany & sxpogsd o srics Fitic il maindy Iram imvesmonts caried at FYOU! which are vaiied usng
Pﬂﬂﬂ

quaad mm:.nmmudﬁmmwﬂulwﬁmmmm
prcis ol thasa metrumsnts. fram ing prices mesting A3 81 the raporting ke ia glven heloa:
i Carrying Volue ss 81
o 3-Mar22 1 Mar-21
imvestanks carmad af FWIGCH valusd usig pontsd pricks @ acive markey 218,243 64 E5D1BEES
Sanaihvity analyis on boal
Fasticivns BEPDrEn B upen

Aucuation of mane! prioes

Ingransa by 10 % Dedrease by 10 %
S on Iotal comprehensive oOme ber yaar ended 31 Merch 2022 21,824.26 (21,824 26
impzct on total eomgrehenshe income for year ended 31 March 2021 28,018,723 26,018.23)

Equity instrumant through OCI being a component of other agusty would Ficraacaidacieace &0 B rasull
of gain/icas an equity socuritins ciaseilled as fair value through Crnar Gomprahenshiva Insome
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Motas to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
{ Al amounts in As. lkcs. unkess oiharwiss stabed)

[} LIty rigic:

Liguldity rofers to the readinass of the Comoany 1o eall and malsa s faancial aeses. Liguidiy ritk |8 ans
#f s mast criscal risk feciors Tor Compandas whic ig imo 1a businass of irvesiments |0 shares ard
securitias, [t1s e fekaf nat baing sble to realsa fa tun pécs of & fnancinl assel. of s not baing able ko
g2l B Apancial asset ai all bacausa af mar-aveRanl ity of buyers. Unwillingnass o lmrd or restncied
g Ly Banis and Finencal Insfiulions may aba lead ba iguidity concarns lorthe anitas,

The Company MEnEns 8 wall-dramied patioha of invesmants in shores and secudlieg . & dedicated
{eaim of i roat axparts ans monlisting tha markats on a carfin s hasla, which sdiises tha menagamant
for Eennly purchase or sake of san . Thie mEnagemant ensures o manage 55 cash flows and assel
(labiliy pattoms ba ansure thal the firanciel obligalons ar saflsfied in Bmely mannar

Tha falkwing 1akée shows e remaining cantracaual maturities of inancial llabiiies at the reparting date.
The ameurils repoded are on gross and undiscounted basls,

Fariiulamns Less than 1 yoar  Bebween | lo 5years "Dver B poars” Tokal

A 831 Margh S92
Trada Payabios 1.04 - : 1.04
Oalvar finaneial Hatiibios 8.7a - - 5.0
68.74 - - .74

Am wt 31 March 2021
Tmde Payanles - . i
Cither fimanclal labiitisa A . 682
Gas = - £.02

{ll.l']l'ﬂ'hﬂur-yrlﬂﬁ

Inflafianary or purchasng powes fiak refem 1o1ha varabon in irveator relums cawsed by inflalion. I & the
riak, that rasults in increase of thi pricas of gooce Bnd services which resulls in deciesass of purchasing
porecar of money, mdnhal,-mmlmmnmdm.mlmmumm”r
inflafion e rieing costs of production And sxcass demand for goods and Sendices in relaticn o thelr
supphy. infistion end interast rate rigss are cosely relited as interest rales genarally go up with infation.

Tha Comparny closel momiors the infiation data ard analyses the reascns jor wide fuchsabions ket
arid lis sfect an vafous secizes and Busnesses, The rmain objsefiva 2 o avold inflafonany risk and
peoardingly inves! in securities and debl Ingrumants that provides Nighes retlims g comparnd 12 tho
Inftatianan kong-tanm.

3 Capital managemant

For fha purposa of Compamy’s capdal managemert, capital inclades lssued equity shan capiial, other
equiy reseves and borgwed caplal less cash and cash equivalarts. The pimary cbjective of capial
managamand ie to malrain an afcient capital structure fo reduce the oot of caphel, support donponba
expansion slrabegiag and 1o maximize shersholdars valis,

Thi ardky marages b capitsl ainsctine and makes adjustmentsin light ol changae in econam cand Bans
and shae requirermams ol fhe fnansial coveanants. To mainkakn o adfust the cap@al svscare, tha endly may
Bdust the dividend paymant b sharehalders, relum capils: o sharahokdiers. or Bsua new shanss. Tha
ity moritars capial using @ gaarng rasi, which is net debt divided by fotal capital plus net debt, The
enthy’'s palicy is to kesp an apimum gesring rafio, Tha antity moludes within ned deby, imaenest earing
Ipgna and bormowings Inss cash and cash eguvalers.
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Notas to Financial Staternent for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022
{48 amainte in AE. Ia6s uniaes ofnarwiss stabod)

Folawing table-summarizes tha capital structne of the Compamy.

“Famicuan - Ra Al J1-Mares  As ot 31 -Mar-21
Barowirgs . -
Logs: Cash and cash squivalents il 3,880,558
Adjusied not detit % _{3,684.55)
Tetal saquity %) 1 254,118

Med cebt o squlty ratic ;

1"} Equily indudes capitel and all rasenes of the Camparn’ thal &ns managed B:lw;inl
** Ag nogative e NE

I b el
The Gompany andered bnle cancellable kase arrangaments for cerain secommedations. Tams of such

lange ncluda upto three manth'e rotica by ether party for sarcalation, oplicn for seneeal on mebeally
agresd larms and thers ane no sestnclions imposad by such lease emangements. The Company has
applisd the ‘shor <term kbasa’ axsmpiions lor hese leases, Aenial expanses incared am dsclossd in
Nols 23 as Rant Exparses,

Molads:

The previous year figures have boen reclassiied and regroupad whare considered necassary iz condirm
taihis yoar's preseniationa.

Metads:

Particulars required under Paragraph 18 of the Masiar Direction Nar-Banking Financisl Company- Nor-

Sytamically Impariant Men-Daposl taking Comparry (Reserve Bank] Dimactions, 50716 ara givan in i
AnnEnure appenses hereto,

Tha wozompanying nolas anean intagral part of tha financial stalermenla,

Iri teares of our report aiteched.

For Chaturvedi & Gompany Far and cn bahal of the Boand ol Direciors
Chartared Accourkanis

Firm Regisiration No. 302137E

Milima Jashd B L Goggar T. K. Bhattacharys
Parnar Dirmctor D réschcr
Warmbarshis Mo, 052122 [N -00404722 IN-D0T 17865
Piass - Kolkaie 2. P Kumas Sudha Jaln
Dheker; Pif Mgy 2032 Manage: & CFO Company Sacreary
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AMMEXLIRE (REFEFFED TO if HOTE 35 OF THE FINAKCIAL STATEMENTE)

SCHEDULE T0 THE BALANCE SHEET OF A NON-DEPGSIT TAKENG HOH-BANKING FINARCIAL EOMPARY
£All ameeds in As. leos, ilass othareise laled)

Pariculars fa ab 31st harch, 2022
’ Amount Amaunl
Linbiftics shhs: out " A 4

{t) Laans and achvances sualled by the NBFCE
inclusive of interest accrued tharson but not pald:

{g} Deipanbunes: Secuined L HIL
: Unsagurad MIL HIL
(othes tham fulling winin the
meaning ol public depoalka)
b} Dwiermed Gredis MIL MIL
(5] Tenm Loans KL ML
() Imrconporate [oas and bosfowing ML HIL
g} Commabrial Paper KIL HIL
i CEerLoéans- HIL RIL
Aasats sida:

(4] Break-up of Loans and Advencas including bills recaivabies
[other than ihose Ineluded in (4) beioew]:

[a} Secunsd HiL ML
b} Lnsccunad 1587 il
(3 Break up of Leased Assels and stosk

on hire and olhes Bssels

eounting towerds AFC sctivites

() Leaseassels including lopse rentals urder sundny debions:

(s} Financlal lasss MIL HiIL
ib) Dparating laasa KIL MIL
(i) Stock an hira Including hire eharges under sandny dabiors
(g} Assats on hire MIL HIL
(o} Fepossassed ASEtE MIL WAL
(i) Other lcans counfing lowands AFG activilies
{a)  Loars where assets have bean rapoasessed MIL HIL

(8) Loans otherthen (b Bhous MIL MIL
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ANNEXURE (REFERRED T0 IN NOTE 86 OF THE FINANCI
SCHEDULE TO THE BALARCGE SHEET OF A NON-DEPOSTT

AL STATEWENTS

TAK2:G MON-BANKING FINARCIAL COMPANY
{All arraunts in e, B, unléds olfantiss glated)

Prriloulars
Amount Amount
Duistanding Dvesrdun
{4) Bresk-up of Invesiments:
Current Investmenis:
1. Caumiled:
(i} Shanes (=) Equity ML ML
(b} Pretaranon MIL MIL
) Dwbantures and Bords TMEL. ML
() Unike of mikusd fundcs AL NIL
ilv} Covemmant Securies MIL HIL
(¥} Othors (plesse spechy) HIL MIL
2 Unguoted:
{I} Shares! (a) Equity HiL ML
ib) Praferenca HiL NIL
[ Debanures end Barda HiL KL
B Urds of el funds 4000 L
iy} Govemmank SEcJrifes ML HIL
v Others (Pleass spedify) HIL HIL
Long Term investments:
1. Guolsd:
if] Bhare: (a) Egully 12456.48 ML
b} Prafomncs 00 ML
{i] Drabemunes and Bonds ML ML
[ii] ks of martual Linds MIL MIL
() Gevammant Securfties HiL ML
{v} Ohars (Please spacly) L ML
2. Unguoted:
% Sharca: (a) Equily 73804 MIL
(&) Prelerence 25.00 HIL
(i) Debenfures ang Bonds L HL
{8} Urits of mubsal funas MIL L
v} Govammen Sesurkes ML HIL
{¥) Dihers (Plasss specify) MIL HIL
(5] Bomower group-wiss clasalfication of essats finanzad
o8 in {2) nnd (3) abowe
ArmoUTTE net gl ProveEons
Catagary Secured iUngecuned Tednl
1. Rolnted Partias
ju} Subsidiaries HIL Mk Pl
(b} Companies in e GEME gIoAE HIL HIL MIL
[} Oithier redated paiiss HIL MIL HIL
2 Oihaar than roixied panies MIL 1587 15.9'.|'m
Tolal HIL 1657 1587

1
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ANHEXURE |HEEHHWIIHE‘I‘EHHFHIM
SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF A HON-DEFDSIT

L STRTEMENTE)

mm:umaummmmmr
(Al mrncngs n P IRCs, unlass sthesaiss saled)

{6} Inweator e classification of ai
Investments (currant and lang term) in shares and socurithes (hoth quoted ang unguoied]:
Marcnt \Walus | ook Yakie
Cuimgrory Bewak Lp! (Ml of Provisians)
or fair walus or FAY
1. PFelgied Pariag
ig} Subskdiarias ML HIL
[0} Comganies in ths same group NL MIL
{g) Otiwr slated padies MIL ML
o [Onher than relsisd parieg #18,533.43 13,250.413
Tetal 219.5633.43 13.259.43
7} Othor informatian
Particidars Amounl
{iy Groaa Non-Parfarming Ass=is
(&) Falated partias M
ib) Cthar than rdaied parties MIL
Gy Wat Hon-Perfoming Assals
(o) Relaiad parkes MIL
(b Cibr tham mdaied parten WL
(I Assels pcquired in setisfackon of cobt HIL

Ap par aur Feport of even dale attached Merewith.
PFor Chalurvedi & Gompany

Chasterad Aoscuniants

Firm Registraticn Mo 30213TE

Wilima Joskil B L Gaggar T. K. Bhatinsharys
FRrner Diracice Cirecior
Mambarship No. 052122 Ok (004123 CHM-007 11 565
Flace : Molain %, B Kumar Suwdha Jain
[rato: 7Eh May 2002 Manager & CFD Campany Secretany
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o 2 % Chanani & Asociates

Chartered Accountants

An 1SO 9001:2008 Certified Firm, Certificate No.: 221010128008

Head Office: 5/1 Clive Row, 3" Floor, Room Ne.78, Kolkata-T0000]

Rranches: Bangalore, Chendigarh, Guwahati, Jaipur, Kolhapur,
Mirmbai, New Delhi, Pama, Raipur and Ranchi.

Contct; Dial; +91 9830044507, #0133- 22130296

Emil: kkeaf@kkea net.

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the unaudited financlal results of
Wastern India Commercial Company Limited for the quarier ended 30 June 2022

To
The Board of Directors of
Westarn India Commercial Company Limited

\We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of
western India Commercial Company Limited {the “company®) for the quarter endad
40-06-2022 together with the relevant notes thereon (the “Statement’). The Statemeani
nas been prepared by the Company pursuant to Regulation 33 of the Sscurilies and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018, as amended, which has been initisled by us for identification purposes.

This statement is the responsioility of the Company's Management and has Deen
approved by the Board of Direciors, has been prepared In @ccordance witn the
recognition and measurement principies laid down In the Accounting Standard “Interim
Financial Reporting” (Ind As 34) prescribed under section 133 of the Companles Act,
2013 read with relevant rules iesued thera under and other accouning principies

generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is to ssue & report on thasa financial
statements baged on our raview.

Wa conducted our review of the Staternant in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Intarim Financial Information Performed by the
independant Auditor of the Entity”. issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of
India. This standard requires that we pian and parform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as 1o whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement

A review b5 limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and ang tical
procedures applied to financial data and thus provide less assurance tharnydp SO,




Based on our review conducted as above. nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to beleve that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results
prepared In accordance with applicable accounting standards and other recognized
accounting practices and policies, has not disclosed the information reguired to be
discloged |n terms of Raguiation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inciuding the manner in which it is 10 be disciosed, or
that # containe any material missiatement

For K. K. Chanani & Assoclates
Charferad Accountants
ion Mo.; 322232E

Kata, the 12%day of August, 2022
UDIN No. 22056045A0WIMG3751
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Ta
The Board of Diveclors

N.B.1INDUSTRIAL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

1 We have reviewed the sccompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial resalts of
ML Todustrial Finumee Company Hmived ['the company’) for the quarter ended June ﬂ
2oaz (e Stutement’) attuched herewith, being submitted by the eompany pursuant to the
requiremnents of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosurs
Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended (the “Listing Regulations™), This statement is
the respansibility of the Company's Management and has been approved by the Board of
Directors, Cur responsibility is tv express a conclusion on (he statement hased on our review.

2. We condueted our review of the Statement in sceordance with the Standard on Review
. [SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Finuncial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Eatity”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
This stansdard reguires that we plan and perform the mriew to obtain moderate assurance as
ks whether the financial statements are free of moterial misstatement. A review fs lmited
primarily v inquiries of company personnel and anolytionl procedures applied 1o fnancil
data and thus provide loss assurance than an audit. We have not performied an pudit and
secordingly, we do not express an sudit opinion.

3 Bastd on our review conductid as above, we report that nothing hes come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the aceompanying statement of unsudited financial results
prepared in accordance with applicable Indisn accounting stundaeds and other reécognined
acewiitivg practices and policies has not disclosed the tion ired to be dischosed
i terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Di reduinsments)
Regulations, 2015 inchuding the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any
material misstatoment.

For Chaturvedi & Company
Chartered Aveountanis
Firm Registration Ko, - 30a137E

Place : Kolkaty S i
[ate 1 12% August, ooz (35 Vil Membership No. age
[ et 13} UDIN : 2255222 RO MYH LS
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CHATURVEDI & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KOLKATA. MUMBAL DELHI, CHENNAL KANPUR
m 0, BENTINCK STREET, KOLKATA - 700069
pme : 1237 - 4060 / 4603 6407

Ty

Tho Boenrd of Directors,

. B.1Industrial Finanee Company Limited,
e1, Steand Road,

I:.'D]-HDI -mll

West Bengal

Ref : Auditor's certificate to confirm that the Accounting Treatment contained in the Draft
muﬁp&uMhHMﬂwﬂmmwwmﬂm
gection i35 of the Companies Act, 2013

I, We, the staturory anditor of M.B.1 Industrial Finance Limited (herainafter
Tramsfesee ar ‘the Company’ or "N, B.LIndu "), have examined the proposci accounting
{remtment speci in claise 11 of the Draft Scheme of Amabpamation (*Scheme”) between Westem
Ludinﬂummnﬂalﬂnmptwmmadmdm:umpsg{mﬁmﬁ\dy referred to as ‘Companies’) and
their respective shareholdens and crediters In terms of the provisiona of seetlons pao-a32 and other
nedevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’) and the requirements of the SEBI Master
Cipenlar Mo. SERI/HO/CFDYDILY/CIR/P/202t /0000000665 dated 239 November, 2021 (SEBI
Mustor Clrenlar’) issved under SEBI Dbligations and Disclosure Requivements}
Regulations, 2018 ('SEB] Regulations’) with reference to its compliznce with the applicable Accounting
Srndirds notified under the Act and othar generally socepted accounting principtes.

Management’s Responsibility

e pesponeibility for the pi tlom of the Draft Scheme snd its complinnee with the relevant laws
- mﬂmmmﬂ;ﬁqw Seandards s aforesaid, is that of the Board of
Directors of the Companies 1 . This mmmmm
maintenance of internal contrel relevant to the preparation and of the Scheme wnd

T&mmmmmhm&mﬂm:mmmmmmmmm
renmatanees.

4. Theminegement of the Company is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
el rements of the Act ard SEBL Rapulations and to provide ali relevant information to The Securities

and Exchange Board of Indis, the Natioan! Stock Exchange of Indis Limited ('RSE’) and the Natlozal
Company Liw Tribunal (RCLT').

Aunditor's Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to exnmine and report whether the accounting treatment as specifled in dause 11
of the Scheme complias with the applicable Accounting Standarde and other genemlly acospied
sveaunting principles. Nothing contained in this certificate, nor anything ssid or done in the course of,
or in connection with fhe serdces that are subject to this certificate, pxtend any duty of care that
we may have It our capecity of the statutory suditors of any Anancial ataterments of the Company.

5. ‘Wecartied our examingtion in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certiflenies
for Special Purposes, issued by the Ipstitete of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICALD. This Guidance
Siote reiires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAL

)

4P




f. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Qua]m-'ﬂnn'm:ﬂ (500}
1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits end Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurence and Relnted Services Engagements. Further our examingstion did not extend 1o any
gther parts und napects of & legal or proprietary nature in the sforesaid Scheme.

Opinion

. Based on ourexaminetion and according to the Information and explinations given to us, we conflrm
that the nccognting treatment contained in the uforesald scheme is in complisnce with SEBI
mdnmmddmmmwmunmmmummmmmﬂmw
the Centrl Government under section 133 of the Act, read with the rules mede there under, and otler
generally accepied acconnting principles, s applicable,

H. For east of references, clause 13 of the Scharme, authenticated on hehalf of the Company, is
repradiced in Annescire 110 thigcartifiente and is initi d by us only for the purposes of identification.

itestriction on Dstribution and Use

g, Tﬁhfﬂtﬁmlﬁ[ﬂhﬂﬂ&dﬂﬂiﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂﬂfﬂﬂﬂmﬂmfﬁmﬂnmﬁﬂﬁ requiremnents of cirelans lssued
under SEBI Regulations for opwerd submission to the NEE, WCLT und other regulatory anthority
susouinted for approval of the Scheme, Thiscertificate shounld not be used for any other purpesewithout
wiit prive written consent. Accordingly, we do not aceept or nssume any Hahility or any duty of ¢are for
asny other purpoae or to any other pemon to whom this eertificate is shown or into whose hnnds it mav
coma without our prior consent in writing.

For Chaturvedi & Compmay
Chartersd Accountants
Firm Registrabion No.: 302137E

?ﬂ:;.:m

Nilima Joshi

Partner

Membership Number | ogaios

- ':'}-:;._-:. UDIN - 2ao52132ATISEN2555
Pl = Foollita by
Date | 20" September, 2022 Sy 0 Bt Do

ball v Trve |




Annexmre i to the Anditors’ certificate, dated go™ September, 2022, on the proposed
sceounting treatment specifivd in the Scheme

Relevant extract of clause 11 "Acconnting Treatment” as per the Scheme of Amnalgamntion
between Western Indin Commercln]l Company [imited and MN.E.LIndustria]l Finance
Company Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

114
111,

ekl

1E. 1A

15.1.9.

11.15,

LR Bt

it

11.0,8,

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
IN THE BODKS OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

The Transferoe Company shall racoed the nssets, iabilivies and reserves of the Transferor Company,
&8 on Appointed Date, mmﬂin&mmmmmmsdm.md:m@m-mﬁww"w
‘Pocling of Interest Mathod' of acccunting as per Indion Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 10p
(Business Combinution) in accordance wi ix C of "Business Combinations of entitios
under common control” under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, zo15. No
adjustment ahill be made to refioct the fair valies, T TecOfnise uny now asgels ar Habilities,

Thet identity of the reserves of Traneferor Company shall ba preserved and shall appear in the
fnunciel statements of the Transferss Company in the soms fiorem, in which they appoared In the
financio] stetements of the Transferor Compary.

Upom coming Into effect of this Szheme, the Tranaferes Com ghall ssue Hew Equity Shares to
r.'uﬂpmﬂumhuklm urmmmw{mmm,ﬂw. heldﬂﬁTmnd:rﬂ
Cowpauny into the Transferor Company), These New Bquity Shares shall be issued and recorded ot
fece value and accordingly the face value of the shures to be issued shall be craditsd to
Transferee Company's share enpital account.

Tl currying vilue of investments in the financisl statemanta of the Tratisferes Company In the
equﬁyuhnm-mpthlﬁth:ﬁm&mrﬂumwmahnﬂﬂmdmmeﬂaﬂmmmmmmm
beeoming effective and there shall be no further obligation in that behzlf,

Upon coming into aﬁmﬂﬂnmmﬂnm%mmﬂr—mrﬂmﬁhuw sdvances,
depoelte balaneos or other obligstions ms between Transferor Company and the Tramsforee
Cnmpany, the obligations in respoct thereof shall carte 1o o -end and correspondlng effect shall be
given In the books of neoonnta and records of Bhe Transferec Company for the reduction of any
zzete or labilities, 48 the case may he.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the surplus/ deficit, if any, of the net value of assets, Habilities,
reserves of the Transferor Company soquired and recorded by the Transfires Company in terms of
clause 33.1.1 of the Scheme over the sum of (1) face valiwe of New uity Shares issued and allotied
tothe sharahinldars of the Teansforor Company, smd (b the value of nts cancalled pursisnt

toelanse 11,14 af the Scheme shall ba adjusted in caplital reserves sceount i the financlol stmtement
af the Tmnsferee Company,

In mwfnngdlﬂh-unnpmammﬂﬁgzdjwbmm the Transferee Company and the Transfaror
Company, the iinpact of the same w quantified and the same ghall he appropristely adjueted
ngainst the eapital reserves of the Transferee Company.

}"I'u: ot and expenses refuting to the Schame ahall b aceourted for in the statement of Profit and
sy,

BT
P



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 D01
;2213 0957, 2243 7725, 2230 T906, 2730 9E01/9504 (4 LINES), Fax : 033-2213 1650
E.mall - westemirdiacommerchalcolidifpmai com

Annexura K
Zird September, 2022

To,

The Secretary,

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited,
7, Lyons Range, Dalhousie,

HKolkata - T00001

Scrip Code: 10033036; Code No.: 7401

Diear Sirf Madam,

Sub: Application under Reguiation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Raquirements), Regulations, 2018 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Western
India Commercial Company Limited (“Transferor Company” [ “the Company”) with
N.B.|industrial Finance Company Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”)

Compliance report as per the format specified in circular dated November 23, 2021 issued
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), bearing reference no.
SEBVHO/CFDVDILA/CIRIP/2021/0000000685, as amended ("SEBI Clreular”).

It ks hereby certified that the draft scheme of amalgamation of Wastern India Cornmercisl Company
Limited into and with N.B.lIndustrial Finance Company Limited under sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and cther applicable provisions does not, in any way vielate, override or Imit
the previsions of securities laws or requirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the same is in
compliance with the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and tha SEBI circular, inciuding the foliowing:

T [T —— i | e E b e T EETe i
8N | Refarenca -|.'.:':-'|-‘.-:i:.1-r-1..! i3 b T 2 . ]

&

e e

of Corparate govemance requirements | Yes, nn
LODR Regulabons
Z | Regulation 11 of LODR | Compliance with sacurites laws Yes, complied
Regulaticns
Requirements of the SEBI circular
{a) | Para (INA)Z) Submission of documents 1o Stock | Yes, complied |
Exchanges
(B) | Para (I(A)3) Conditions for schemes of Nat Applicabla
arrangemant imolving unlisted
enlities
{c) | Para (I)(AN4) (a) Subsmission of Valuation Report Yes, complied




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 D01
@ - 2913 DOST, 22473 TTI5, 2230 TA05_ ZZ30 8601/9604 (4 LINES), Fax : 0x3-2213 1650
E.maail : westamindacommarciaicoRdilgmail.com

s = —— - Y T AL koo T -

Par - | Campliance
Auditors certificate regarding Auditor cerificate of
complignce with Accounting | Tranafarae Company,
Standards i.e., N.B.Lindustrial
Finance Company
Lid. has baen
attached as Anneuna
J to this application.
Haowever, suditer
certificate of
Transferor Company,
L., Western India
Commercial Company
Lid. is not required
since upon Scheme
becoming effective
the Transferor
Company shall stand
dissolved.

(8) | Para (I)(ANS) Provision of approval of Yes, will be complied

(A(E)

.~ Chairman | Managing-Director

Cartified that the transactions/ accounfing treatment provided in the draft scheme of
amalgamation involving Westem India Commercial Company Limited and M.BlIndustnal
Finance Company Limited are in comgliance with all the Asesunting Standards applicable o
a fisted antity.

ChiefFinanclal Qificar




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL €O, LTD. &3

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - TG00 001
¢ ; 2213 095T, 2243 TT25, 2230 1908, 2230 9601/9604 (4 LINES), Fax : 0332213 1650
' E.mail : westernindiapommercialcoldigmail com

Annexure L

Brief particulars of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company

. Particulars ?munfﬂhﬂqmm _ Transferor Company
Name of ithe | M.B.lIndustrial Finance Company Limited | Westem India Commercial Company
COMpany (*M.B.ILIndusfriai") Limited ("Western India™)
 Date of | 21st December, 1936 August 13, 1928
Incorporation &

details of name | The name of the company was changed from | The name of the company was
changes, ifany | "The New Bank Ltd." to "“THE NEW BANK changed from “Indlan Investment Co.

OF INDIA LTD." and therealter to Lid" to "Westem India Commencial
“N.B.|Industrial Finance Company Limited” | Company Limited” on 8% August,
on 26" May, 1981 1874
Registersd 21, Strand Rosd Kokata — 700001, Wast 21, Btrand Road Kolkata = 700001,
Offica Bengal, India West Bengal, India

Brief particulars | | Amalgamation of Western India inlo N.B.Lindusirial

af tha schams :
% « Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all assals, liabilites and employeas of
Wasterm India shall ba transfermed inte M. B.1.Industrizl

+ Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Transferee Company shall issue 94 (ninety
four) fully paid up equity shares of face value of INR 5/- each of tha Transferee
Company for every 3 (three) fully pald up equity shares of face value of INR 100/-
each of the Transferor Company.

= The Scheme shall ba subject to requisite approval of shareholders/ creditors, NSE,
CSE, Rasarve Bank of India, National Company Law Tribunal and any other
eppropriate authorty, which by law may be necessary for the implementation of

thiz Scheme.
“Rationale for the | Proposed amalgamation would be in the best interests of the Transferor Company
soheme and Transferee Company and their respective sharsholders, employeea, creditors
and other stakeholders. The proposed amalgamation will yield advantages as set out
inter alia below,

, a) The shares of the Transferor Company are l=ted on Calculta Stoek
Exchange and thus, no trading activity is being undertaken in the shares of
Transferor Company. Upon amalgamation of the Transferar Company into
the Transferee Company, equity shares of the Transferee Company, listed on
Mational Stock Exchange having natonwide trading terminal, would ba issued
to the shareholders of the Transferor Company. Thus, the amalgamation
waukd result in providing better lquidity to the shareholders of Transferar
Company while not being prejudicial to the interest of Transferee Company
and its sharehclders, creditors, employees or any stakeholders,

k) The amalgamation would result in improving the potential for further
expansion of the businesses by way of consolidation of caphal base and
increasad borrowing strengths of the comoined antity.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

o4 STRAMND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 (01
- 2213 0857, 2243 TT25, 22%) 7906, 2230 $601/9604 (& LINES), Fax ; 032-2213 1650
£ mal : westernindiacommerdialcolbdEiomas.com

" Pariiculars Transferee Company Transferor Company
g} The amalgamation will result not only in consclidating and impraving the
internal systams, procedures and controls but will also bring greatsr
managermant and operational efficency due to integration of various simikar
functions being carried out by both the Companies.
d) Greater size, scale, financial sirength and fexibility for the merged Transferse
Company will result in maximizing and unlocking overall shareholders valua.
@) The amalgamation will result in significant reduction in multiplicity of legal
and ragulatory compliances which &t prasent is required to be made
separatzly by the Companies with saving in adminisirative cost and deriving
economies of scale.
Date of | 21" September, 2022 21" SBeptember, 2022
resolufion
passed by the
Board of
Direclor of the
COmpany
approving  the
mm — TR
Dale of meeting | 21" September, 2022 21" September, 2022
of the Audi
Commilles in
which the draft
scharme has
baen approved
Appointed Date | April 1, 2022 . -
| Mame of | Nabonal Stock Exchangs of India Limited | Calcutia Stock Exchange Limited
Exchanges {("NSE") ("CSE")
i whare sacurifies
of the company
| are ligted
| Nalura af | Investmant In shares, securtles and financlal | Investment In sharas, securities and
Businass activity financial activity
Capltal before | Pajd up capiial Paid up capital
the scheme 24,56 806 equity shares of INR &'- each 18,000 equity shares of INR 100/-
iNo, of equity | amountng to INR 1,22 B4,030/- each amourting to INR 15,00, 000/
shares a5 wel
‘ as capital In
rnJpess)
No. of shares to | 4,98,044 equlty shares
| be issued
Canceflation of | All the equity shares held by N.B.LIndustrial in Western india shall stand cancelled
shares on
account of cross
haolding, If any L
Capltal after the HNot applicable, as upon Schema
schama 249, 54,850 equity sharas of INR 5/- aach becoming effectve the Transheror
(Mo, of equity | amounting to INR 1,47,74, 250/ Company shall stand dissolved
shares az weall
as  capltal  In
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC093924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA, - T00 001

- 2213 0B5T, 2243 7725, 2230 7906, 2230 26010604 (4 LINES), Fax - X3-2213 1650

E.mai : wasismindiacommercalcoitd @gmel.com

i)

Transferee Company Transferor Company

rupees)

Met ‘Worth as
per secton
2(8T) of
Companies Act,
2013

{Rs. In croras) (Rs. In eronas)

Fra

INR 132.29 er INR 33.73 cr

INR 173.07 o Nol applcable, &s  Transferor
Company shall stand dissolved

pursuant to amaigamation

Valuation by
indepandant
Chartarad
Accountant —
Nama of the
valuerivaluer
firm and Regn
no,

RESA vValuation Advisors LLP (registration number: IBEIRV-ENS2018110)

Methods of
valuaiion and
value per share
arrived under
Bach mmedhod
with waight
given to each
mathod, if any.

Refer Valuation Report in Annaxure C

Fair wvalue par
ghares

INR 6,609/- INR 2,07 ,076/-

Exchange ratic | Upon the Schame becoming effective, Transferas Company ehall issus 94 (ninaty
four) fully paid up equity ehares of face value of INR &/- each of tha Transferea
Company for evary 3 (thras) fully paid up aquity shares of face valoe of INR 100/-
asch of the Transfaror Company,
Mame of | Sumadha Fiscal Services Limited
Merchant
Banker glving
fairness opinion
Sharehalding Pre Past Pre Past
patiem {ae an June 30, 2022) {as on Jure 30,
2022
Mo. of ol | Nooof b of Mo, of
Sheres | holding | Shares | holding | Shares
Frometar 18,26,292 | T4.33% | 21,83022 | 73.80% | 13,450
Public 830,514 | 2567% | 7.71,828 | 26.12% | 4,510
Custodizn Mil Nil | Nl il Mil
TOTAL 24,56,806 | 100% | 2954850 | 100% | 18,000
Na of | 57156 | BF18 10
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLCO93924

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA, - 700 001
@ - 2213 0057, 2243 7725, 2290 1903, 2230

SG01/9604 (4 LINES), Fax : 0332213 1650

E.mail : wastermindiscommurgabeolid@gmail.com

Farticulars Transferee Company Transferor Company
" shareholders | I
Names of the 1. Harimochan Bangur 1. Harimohan Bangur
Promoters 2 Rajkamazl Devi Bangur 2 Raikamal Devi Bangur
{as on June 30, | 3 Prashant Bangur 3. Prashant Bangur
2022) 4 Ranu Bangur 4, Ranu Bangur
5 Benu Gopal Bangur 5, Benu Gopal Bangur
6. Shrea Capital Services Lid B Shres Capital Services Ltd
7. Asish Creations Pyt Lid 7. Asish Creations Pvt Lid
8 Digviay Finleasa | td 8, NBI Indusirial Finance Co Lid
9. Mannaknzhna Investments Pyl Lid 9. Mannakrishra Investments Put
10, Mewa Investments Pyt Lid Lid
11. The Didwana Imvestment Company Lid 10. Digviay Finleass Lid
12. Dldu Investmanis Pvi Lid 11. India Paint & Commercaal Co.
12, Ragini Finance Pvt Lid Lid
14. The Venklesh Co Lid 12. Newa Investments Pvt Lid
15. Rajesh Vanijya P Lid 13. The Laxmi Salt Co Lid
16. Th Laxml Salt Co Lid 14. The Vankbash Co Ltd
17. India Paint & Commarcial Co. Lid, 15. Dudu Investments Fwi Lid
18. Western India Commercial Co. Lid 16. Ragini Finance Pyt Ltd
18, Ramgopal Holdings Pvt Lid, 17. Rajesh Vanijya P Lid
20. Karmayog Proparties Pyt Litd 18, The Didwana |nvestment
21. Alia Buildhome Pvt Lid Company Lid
22. Agua Infra Projects Lid 18, Ramgopal Holdings Pt Lid.
23. Suryadewats Propadies Pvi Lid 20. Karmayog Properties Pyt Lid
24, Shreacap Holdings Pt Ltd 21. Alfa Buildhoma Pyt Ltd
25. Shrea Bangur Family Trust #2. Agua Infra Projects Lid
28. Shrea Bangur Family Welfare Trust 23, Suryadewata Properties Pvi Lid
27. Shres Bangur Family Hergage Trust 24. Shreecap Holdings Pyt Lid
25, Shree Bangur Family Trust
28, Shree Bangur Family Walfare
Trust
ZT. Shres Bangur Family Hertage
Trust
Mames of the 1. Ashok Bhandari 1. Rajkamal Devi Bangur
Board of | 2. Bankat Lal Gaggar Z. Subhas Jajoo
Directors 3. Jagdish Prasad Mundra 3, Jagdish Prasad Mundra
(as on March 4. Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya 4. Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya
a1, 2022) 5. Riya Puja Jain 5, Ravi Goenka
8. Debasish Ray
7. Privanka Mohta
Fiease specify | Transferor Company and Transferee Company are promates group companies. As on
relation among | June 30, 2022, the Transferee Company holds 11.68% shares of the Transferor
the companies | Company
Invalved In the
gcheme, if any




WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL CO. LTD.

CIN No. L67120WB1928PLC0%3914

21, STRAND ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 001
- 2213 0057, 2243 7725, 223) 7906, 2230 $601/9504 (4 LINES), Fax . 033-2243 1650

E.mal ; westsmindiscommardalcoltdifigmal.com

Particulars Transferee Company Transferor Gompany
Details | There is no change in management control in Transfarsa Company

ragarding
changa i
management
control n listed
ar resulting
company
sacking listing if
any

For Western India Commarclal Co, Ltd.

}2_,1-{5;1.
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N\ R R (hanan & Associates

Chartered Accountants

An 150 9001:2008 Certified Firm, Certificate No.: 221010128008
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Annexurs M1

The Bowrd of Directons.

Western Indla Commuercial Company Limited,
21, Strand Road, Kolksts,

Holkata — 700004,

Yiest Bengal

Independent suditor's certificete on the Statement of pre amalgamation and post amalgamaticn
notlonel Net Worth (ss per section Z{67) of the Companies Act, 2013) of Western India Commercial
Company Limited [“tha Company”) as at 30" June, 2022

T

This certificate is issued in eccordence with the terms of our engagement with Western India
Commareial Company Limiksd,

The Board of Diectars of Wastam india Commarctal Company Limad ["Traneferor Company®) at
ks meeting held cn 21% September. 2022 approved & scheme of amalgamation (“the Schame™)
with N.B.lIndustrisl Finance Company Limited " Transferes Company™)

The accampanying statement sontaning details of pre amalgamation and post emalgamation net
worth as at 30" June, 2022, duly signed by the authorzed signalory of the Company (“the
Slatement”) Is annexed, which we have Initialled for idartification purposes only,

Menagemant's Responslbility

|

The responsibility for the preparation of the Staterent is that of the Board of Dieclors of the
Comgany Intiuding the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and relevant supperting
records and documanis, This responsibility includes the design, implamentation and mainenance
of internal contrel relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an
appropriste basis of preparation and making estimales that are reasonabis in the circumstances,

The Management ie also responsible for ensuring adharence that the details in the Staterment ame
COrnect

Tha net worth of the Company has been traced from and calculated based onfiy ?
financlal statemant of ha Gnrmq].r for the period snded 30" June, 2022,




Auditer's Responsibliity

7. Our respongibiity 's to provide reasonable assurance that the net worth of the Company as

redsrraa 1o in the Statemant has been cormectly extracted from the uraudied financial statemment
for the year ended 30 June, 2022 and the compulation of net worlh is arthmetically correct,

'uwmmmwrmﬂnnhmﬁﬂwﬁu&mmmmnﬂmmmd
Cerlificates for Special Purposes, |ssued by the Institule of Charersd Accountants of India
('1GAI'), Tris Guidance Nole requires that we comply with the athical requiremants of the Code of
Ethics lsswad by ICA

W have complod with the relavart epplicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Contnol
(EQC) 1, Quallty Contral for Firma thet Pedorm Audits and Reviews of Historcal Finamnclal
Information, and Otner Assurance and Relsted Services Engapements, Further our axamination
did not extend to any other parts and aspects of = legal or proprietary neture in the sforeseid
Sehamea.

opinicn

10.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, wé are
of the opinian that the amounts in the Statement in respect of the net worth of the Company has
basn correcily extracted from the unaudited financial statarment for the period endad 30% June,
2022, pregared In accordance with Ind AS, and that the compulalion of the net worh in the
Eiatement is arthmelically accuraia,

Raatriction on Distribution and Usa

11

Thig certificate is ssued al the request of the Company in connection wih 1he proposed
amalgamation pursuant 1o tha requirements of the Scheme for onward submission 10 the Slack
Exchange (Mations| Stock Exchange ard Calculia Stock Exchange). This certificate should not
ke used for any other purposa without our prior writlen consenl. Accordingly, we do nol accepl of
essume any liabilty or any duty of care for any other purposa or fo any other person lo whom this
eoriificale Is shown or into whose hands It may come without our priar consent In writing.

For

K. K. Chanani & Assoclates
Crartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.. 0322232E

Parinar

Membership Number: (0550

Place: Kolkata
Date: 237 September, 2022

UDIN: 2205604 5AUECLMTAGT



Annexure; Statement of net worth {as per section Z(57) of the Companies Act, 2013 of Wastarn
indla Commercial Company Limited (“the Company™')

Computation of net worth (as per seclion 2(57) of e Companies Act, 2013} of the Company has been

produced balow:
_INR in Crores
Particulars Pre Amalgamaticn Mot | Post Amalgamation Nat |
Worth as on 0™ June, | Worth as on 30" June,
022 2022
Paki up Equity Share Capital (A) 018 Hol applicable, 28 upon
Echama becoming effsctive
Add: Dther Equity 3 Western India Commercial
“Etmtutory Reserves 8.55 Company Lid. shal siand
Cencral Resenes 8.45 digachved.
| Refnined Earnings 18,55
Total (B 5.%'55
Mot 'ﬂu@ IEI + !ﬁ.’} 33.73 J
Hotas:

3 ff

The figures have been arived on the bass of figures exracted from unaudited financial
mﬁhmpﬂhdmm“mmﬂmwﬂdhm“mwﬁlnﬂnﬁmﬂnn
Stardards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Far the purpose of above calculation, folowing defirltlan of nat worth a3 defined In saction Z(37)
of the Companies Acl, 2013, as arandad, has been considerad,

*nef worth® meons tha sggregate value of the pald-up share capial and &l resarves creaied out
of the profits, securilios premium sccount and debit or cradil balsnice af profit and loss account,
aftar deduciing the aggregate value of the accumwisted Josses, defarmed expenditurs and
rigcalaneous expondiure nof written off, az per the sudited balance shest, but dopgestlg e
ragerves created aut of revalustion of assels, write-back of depreciation and ampSGaBddsR,




